
 
 

 1 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

SONOMA COUNTY 
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 102A 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 

  

 
TUESDAY OCTOBER 15, 2013 8:30 A.M. 

(The regular afternoon session commences at 2:00 p.m.) 
 

Susan Gorin  First District   Veronica A. Ferguson County Administrator 
David Rabbitt  Second District   Bruce Goldstein  County Counsel 
Shirlee Zane  Third District 
Mike McGuire  Fourth District 
Efren Carrillo  Fifth District 

 
This is a simultaneous meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County, the Board of Directors of the 
Sonoma County Water Agency, the Board of Commissioners of the Community Development Commission, the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, the Board of Directors 
of the Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District, the Sonoma County Public Finance Authority, and as 
the governing board of all special districts having business on the agenda to be heard this date.  Each of the 
foregoing entities is a separate and distinct legal entity. 
 
The Board welcomes you to attend its meetings which are regularly scheduled each Tuesday at 8:30 a.m.  Your 
interest is encouraged and appreciated.  
  
AGENDAS AND MATERIALS:  Agendas and most supporting materials are available on the Board’s website at 
http://www.sonoma-county.org/board/. Due to legal, copyright, privacy or policy considerations, not all materials 
are posted online.  Materials that are not posted are available for public inspection between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, at 575 Administration Drive, Room 100A, Santa Rosa, CA. 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Board of Supervisors office at 575 
Administration Drive, Room 100A, Santa Rosa, CA, during normal business hours. 
 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, an alternative 
format, or requires another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(707) 565-2241, as soon as possible to ensure arrangements for accommodation. 
 
Public Transit Access to the County Administration Center: 
Sonoma County Transit: Rt. 20, 30, 44, 48, 60, 62 
Santa Rosa CityBus: Rt. 14 
Golden Gate Transit: Rt. 80 
For transit information call (707) 576-RIDE or 1-800-345-RIDE or visit or http://www.sctransit.com/ 

 
APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar includes routine financial and administrative actions that are usually approved by a single 
majority vote.  There will be no discussion on these items prior to voting on the motion unless Board Members or 

the public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
Any member of the audience desiring to address the Board on a matter on the agenda:  Please walk to the podium 
and after receiving recognition from the Chair, please state your name and make your comments.  In order that all 
interested parties have an opportunity to speak, please be brief and limit your comments to the subject under 
discussion.  Each person is usually granted 3 minutes to speak; time limitations are at the discretion of the Chair.   
 

http://www.sonoma-county.org/board/�
http://www.sctransit.com/�


 
 

 2 

8:30 A.M. CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

I. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
(Items may be added or withdrawn from the agenda consistent with State law) 

 
II. BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 (Items 1 through 15) 
 

PRESENTATIONS/GOLD RESOLUTIONS 
(Items 1 through 4) 

 
PRESENTATIONS AT BOARD MEETING  
 

1. Present Certificates of Honor to the generous sponsors of the Schulz Celebrity Golf Classic held 
on June 5, 2012, raising $400,000 to benefit Sonoma County Children's Charities: Fifth Third 
Bank, American Ag Credit, Northern California Medical Associates, Avant Air, Cobra Puma 
Golf, Nissan/Kia of Santa Rosa, M. Draxton, Inc., Codding Enterprises, Trione Winery, Zinna 
Family Trust, Jackson Family Wines, First Community Bank, and Lytton Rancheria. (Fourth 
District)  
 

2. Adopt a Gold Resolution celebrating the 50th Anniversary of the Rohnert Park Chamber of 
Commerce. (Third District)  

 
PRESENTATIONS AT DIFFERENT DATE  

 
3. Adopt a Gold Resolution honoring and acknowledging the Sonoma County Beekeepers 

Association as recipients of the North Bay Leadership Council’s 2013 Leaders of the North Bay 
Award for “Paint the Community Green”. (Second District)  
 

4. Adopt a Gold Resolution congratulating Chuck Williams for being named Sonoma’s 2013 Muse. 
(First District)  

 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 

AND 
REGIONAL PARKS 

 
5. Adopt a Resolution of the Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open 

Space District (District) approving submission of an application for a $950,000 grant from the 
California Urban Greening Grant Program under the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and 
Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Proposition 84) to fund 
the acquisition of approximately 75 acres for the Copeland Creek Watershed Project and 
authorizing the District’s General Manager to execute all documents that may be necessary to 
apply for and administer the grant. (First and Third Districts) 



 
 

 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

6. Disbursement of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Advertising Funds (First District) – Approve Advertising 
Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract with the 
following entity for advertising and promotions activities for Fiscal Year 2013-14: Sonoma 
International Film Festival, $1,500. 
 

7. Disbursement of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Advertising Funds (Third District) – Approve Advertising 
Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract with the 
following entity for advertising and promotions activities for Fiscal Year 2013-14: Sunny Hills 
Services, $500. 

 
8. Disbursement of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Advertising Funds (Fourth District) – Approve 

Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a contract 
with the following entity for advertising and promotions activities for Fiscal Year 2013-14: 
Kiwanis Club of Cloverdale Foundation, $250. 

 
GENERAL SERVICES 

AND 
SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 

 
9. Concurrently, acting as Sonoma County Board of Supervisors and Sonoma County Water 

Agency Board of Directors, Authorize the Chair to execute renewal of MOU between the County 
of Alameda and County of Sonoma/Sonoma County Water Agency for the Local Government 
Electric Vehicle (EV) Fleet National Demonstration Project to allow Alameda County’s 
continued administration and facilitation of a regional electric vehicle fleet and infrastructure 
grant; and Acting as the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors adopt a Resolution granting right-
of-way to the Sonoma County Water Agency on properties it owns. 

 
NORTHERN SONOMA COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 

(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 
 

10. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Air Pollution Control Officer of the Northern Sonoma 
County Air Pollution Control District to: Execute funding agreement with Lloyd Group 
Holdings, Inc. for electric vehicle charging stations, for the amount of $23,616 to fund the 
purchase and installation of two dual-unit phase II Electric Vehicle charging stations at the Dry 
Creek Center Parking Lot in Healdsburg. 
 

TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS 
 

11. Approve out-of-state travel requests for the Airport Manager for up to six (6) trips in Fiscal Year 
2013-14.



 
 

 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
12. Approval of Minutes – (A) Minutes of the Meeting of September 24, 2013 for the following:  

Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, Community Development Commission, 
Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District, Sonoma County Public Financing 
Authority, Sonoma County Water Agency, and Board of Supervisors; (B) Minutes of the Special 
Meeting of October 1, 2013 for the Board of Supervisors. 

 
APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS 

(Items 13 through 15) 
 
13. Reappoint Mike Sangiacomo to the Agricultural Preservation and Open Space Fiscal Oversight 

Commission effective November 8, 2013 and expiring on November 7, 2015. (First District) 
 

14. Reappoint Wendy Peterson to the Sonoma County Tourism Board effective January 1, 2014 and 
expiring on December 31, 2015. (First District) 
 

15. Reappoint Jennifer Buffo to the Sonoma County Tourism Board representing the Second District 
for a term of two years ending December 31, 2015. (Second District)  

 
 



 
 

 5 

IV. REGULAR CALENDAR  
(Items 16 through 18) 

 
GENERAL SERVICES / COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR / PROBATION / 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

16. Endorse the new facilities project concept as presented; and adopt a Resolution authorizing the 
application for State S.B.1022 funding in the amount of $24,000,000 for the construction of a 
Community Corrections Center.  

 
TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS 

 
17. 10:00 A.M. – Conduct a public hearing and (A) Authorize the Chair to execute the purchase 

agreement for 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA (APN 164-150-010) to protect runway 
approaches and setbacks at the Charles M. Schulz –Sonoma County Airport; (B) Authorize the 
Director of Transportation and Public Works to execute any other documents reasonably 
required to effect said purchase; and give direction to staff; and (C) Adopt a Resolution 
authorizing the issuance and sale of a note in the principal amount of $1,000,000 to purchase real 
property commonly known as 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA. (Fourth District) 

 
INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

 
18. Authorize the Director of the Information Systems Department to execute an agreement for 

purchase of equipment and professional services agreement with Nexus IS, Inc. (Nexus) for 
procurement, installation, implementation, and training for Cisco Systems enterprise unified 
communications system for a total amount not to exceed $4,076,000 including a $194,000 
contingency for a two year period commencing October 16, 2013. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 6 

V.  CLOSED SESSION CALENDAR 
(Items 19 through 22) 

 
19. The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session: Public Employee 

Appointment: Permit and Resource Management Department Head Recruitment. Agency 
Negotiator: Wendy Macy, Director of Human Resources (Govt. Code Section 54957). 
 

20. The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session: Conference with Legal 
Counsel – Existing Litigation – Name of Case: Peter Justin Lang v. County of Sonoma. USDC 
Case No. CV 12-0983 (Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)). 

 
21. The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session: Conference with Real 

Property Negotiator – Jose Obregon, General Services Department Director, for the lease of 
County property located at 1350 Bennett Valley Road, Santa Rosa, CA 95404, to the Sonoma 
County Riding and Driving Club (Govt. Code Section 54956.8).  

 
22. The Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Water Agency, the 

Board of Commissioners of the Community Development Commission, and the Board of 
Directors of the Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District will consider the following in 
closed session:  Conference with Labor Negotiator, Agency Negotiators: Wendy Macy/Carol 
Allen /Janae Novotny, Burke & Associates, Carol Stevens, Burke & Associates, and Janet Cory 
Sommer, Burke & Associates.  Employee organization: All.  Unrepresented employees: All, 
including retired employees (Govt. Code Section 54957.6 (b)).  
 

 
 



 
 

 7 

V. REGULAR AFTERNOON CALENDAR  
(Items 23 through 27) 

 
2:00 P.M. - RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
23. Report on Closed Session.  
 
24. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA  

(Comments are restricted to matters within the Board’s jurisdiction.  The Board will hear public comments at this 
time for up to thirty minutes.  Please be brief and limit your comments to three minutes.  Any additional public 
comments will be heard at the conclusion of the meeting.) 

 
25. Permit and Resource Management Department:  Review and possible action on the following: 

a) Acts and Determinations of Planning Commission/Board of Zoning Adjustments 
b) Acts and Determinations of Project Review and Advisory Committee 
c) Acts and Determinations of Design Review Committee 
d) Acts and Determinations of Landmarks Commission 
e) Administrative Determinations of the Director of Permit and Resource Management 

 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 

(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 
 
26. Hold a study session on lands acquired for recreation including: (1) Fiscal Overview; (2) Initial 

Public Access, Operation and Maintenance Policy, (3) Accounting Review, and (4) Fee Lands 
Strategy; and adopt a Resolution approving an update to the District’s 2007 Initial Public Access, 
Operations and Maintenance Policy.   
 

27. ADJOURNMENTS 
 

NOTE: The next regular meeting will be held on October 22, 2013 at 8:30 a.m. 
 

Upcoming Hearings (All dates tentative until each agenda is finalized) 
 
1. October 22nd (AM) – Jail Booking Fees and Jail Access Fees Hearing 
2. November 5th (AM) – Ordinance Amending Chapter 7 of Sonoma County – Building Code 
3. November 5th (PM) – General Plan Amendments (3rd for 2013) 
4. November 5th (PM) – AGP13-0008; 1998 Jones Road, Windsor 
5. November 5th (PM) – PLP09-0035; 4411 Porter Creek Road, Santa Rosa 
6. December 3rd (PM) – AGP12-0011; 422 Highway 1, Bodega Bay 
7. December 3rd (PM) – AGP12-0015; 4055 Middle Two Rock Road, Two Rock 
8. December 3rd (PM) – AGP12-0029; 4324 Spring Hill Road, Two Rock 
9. December 3rd (PM) – Fourth General Plan Amendment 
10. December 3rd (PM) – PLP11-0042; 6445 Highway 12, Santa Rosa 
 

 



Revision No. 20120709-11 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 1
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number:  Supervisorial District(s):  

Mike McGuire, 565-3758 Fourth 

Title: Certificates. 

Recommended Actions:  

Present certificates of appreciation to the sponsors of the 2013 Schulz Celebrity Golf Classic, which raised 
$400,000 to benefit Sonoma County Children's Charities. 

Executive Summary:  

 

Prior Board Actions:  

Board recognizes sponsors of the Schulz Celebrity Golf Classic every fall. 

Strategic Plan Alignment: Goal 3: Invest in the Future 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  Select an item. $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20120709-11 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required):  

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary Range 
(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required):  

 

Attachments:  

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board:  

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 2
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor Zane, 565-2241 Third District 

Title: Gold Resolution 

Recommended Actions: 

Adopt a Gold Resolution Celebrating the 50th Anniversary of the Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce 

Executive Summary: 

None 

Prior Board Actions: 

None 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required
 
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Supervisors Of The County Of Sonoma, State Of California, 
Celebrating the 50th

Whereas, Since 1963, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce has existed for its 
members and has added value to Rohnert Park by working to strengthen the local economy, 
provide networking and connecting opportunities, improve the quality of life in the community 
and create an environment in which businesses can thrive; and 

 Anniversary Of The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce And Recognizing 
The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce’s Contributions To The Rohnert Park Business 

Community. 

Whereas, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce provides business building 
opportunities to its members through active participation in events and through various 
committees and task forces; and 

Whereas, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce enables its members to reach 
customers and clients by providing numerous opportunities for promotion and advertising to its 
members; and  

Whereas, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce is a resource for referrals for the 
community; and  

 
Whereas, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce’s mission of creating an 

environment in which business can prosper is driven by actions to encourage and promote 
Economic Development; and 
 

Whereas, The Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce fills a lobby and advocacy role by 
building relationships with elected officials and educating them on the needs and positions of 
local businesses; and  
 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County thanks 
the Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce for its dedication to the community and congratulates 
it on 50 years of service. 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 
 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 3
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: No Vote Required 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors  

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor David Rabbitt – 707/565-2241 Second District 

Title: Gold Resolution 

Recommended Actions: 

Gold Resolution Honoring and Acknowledging the Sonoma County Beekeepers Association as recipients 
of the North Bay Leadership Council’s 2013 Leaders of the North Bay Award for “Paint the Community 
Green”. 

Executive Summary: 

 

Prior Board Actions: 

 

Strategic Plan Alignment Not Applicable 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $   $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   September 24, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Supervisors Of The County Of Sonoma, State Of California,  

HONORING AND ACKNOWLEDGING THE SONOMA COUNTY BEEKEEPERS ASSOCIATION AS 
RECIPIENT OF NORTH BAY LEADERSHIP COUNCIL’S 2013 LEADERS OF THE NORTH BAY AWARD 

FOR “PAINT THE COMMUNITY GREEN” 
 
 

WHEREAS, The Sonoma County Beekeepers’ Association (SCBA) is being recognized for 
Environmental Stewardship - as leaders in finding solutions to one of the most pressing environmental 
issues facing our planet: bee shortages and their importance to food production; and 

WHEREAS, SCBA is a nonprofit organization with a collective of over 300+ bee enthusiasts 
whose hive is constantly growing while working to increase awareness of the importance of bees 
through sharing information and ideas leading to better beekeeping; and 

WHEREAS, SCBA is instrumental to the future of agriculture and the environmental health of the 
North Bay, especially in light of the loss of billions of bees to colony collapse and other factors – SCBA’s 
knowledge of the science and art of raising honey bees, and their work to ensure that the bees remain 
healthy, plays a key role in enhancing and supporting environmental and economic sustainability; and 

WHEREAS, SCBA participates in events, festivals and other community gatherings to educate the 
public on the joy and importance of bees and beekeeping thereby educating future generations on how 
honeybees are an indicator species critical to the sustainability of our environment and economy; and   

WHEREAS, The Sonoma County Beekeepers’ Association is an environmental steward devoted 
to saving local bees and plants; an organization of environmental leaders deserving of our thanks and 
praise for their vision, passion and commitment to sustainable farming, gardening and pest 
management.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors 

honors and acknowledges The Sonoma County Beekeepers Association as recipients of the 
North Bay Leadership Council’s 2013 Leaders of the North Bay Award for “Paint the Community 
Green”.  



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 4
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor Susan Gorin, 565-2241 First 

Title: Gold Resolution 

Recommended Actions: 

Adopt a Gold Resolution congratulating Chuck Williams for being named Sonoma’s 2013 Muse. 

Executive Summary: 

 

Prior Board Actions: 

 

Strategic Plan Alignment Not Applicable 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

Resolution 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2013 Resolution Number:  

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Supervisors Of The County Of Sonoma, State Of California, 
Congratulating Chuck Williams on the Occasion of Being Named Sonoma’s 2013 Muse 

 

WHEREAS, Chuck William was born on October 2, 1915 in Northern Florida and developed a 
love of cooking at his maternal grandmother’s side; and, 

WHEREAS, Mr. Williams overcame adversity in his young life while working and attending 
school during the Depression, travelled and worked during World War II in exotic locales, and 
finally, arrived in Sonoma permanently in 1947 and promptly declared it home; and,  

WHEREAS, on September 15, 1956 Mr. Williams opened his first Williams-Sonoma store at 605 
Broadway featuring high quality kitchenware that was both functional and beautifully 
conceived by American and European designers, thus changing the landscape of how America 
entertains at home; and, 

WHEREAS, the store was a huge success and Mr. Williams soon ran out of space and relocated 
to San Francisco where his business grew into an empire; and,  

WHEREAS, in 1971, Williams-Sonoma introduced its first cookware catalog and now includes 
over 250 stores nationwide; and, 

WHEREAS, Mr. Williams is an editor or contributor to nearly every cookbook that Williams-
Sonoma release and involved with the production of more than 100 cookbooks; and,  

WHEREAS, in 2012, Mr. Williams repurchased 605 Broadway and will open a Williams-Sonoma 
store at the site of the first store, thus returning to the community of Sonoma; 

WHEREAS, the City of Sonoma and the Sonoma Community Center have named Chuck Williams 
as Sonoma’s 2013 Muse, thereby  honoring him as a person who has made significant 
contributions to the culture & heritage of the Sonoma Valley; and,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County hereby 
commends Chuck Williams on the honor of being named Sonoma’s Muse on this date of 
October 11, 2013. 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 5
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, Board 
of Directors of the Sonoma County Water Agency, and Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, Water Agency, and 
Regional Parks 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Sara Press, SCAPOSD – 565-7368 
Joan Hultberg, SCWA – 547-1902 
Elizabeth Tyree, RP – 565-2575 

Districts 1 and 3 

Title: Copeland Creek Watershed Project Grant Application 

Recommended Actions: 

Adopt a resolution of the Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space 
District (District) approving submission of an application for a $950,000 grant from the California Urban 
Greening Grant Program under the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River 
and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Proposition 84) to fund the acquisition of approximately 75 
acres for the Copeland Creek Watershed Project and authorizing the District’s General Manager to 
execute all documents that may be necessary to apply for and administer the grant. 

Executive Summary: 

California voters passed the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and 
Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Proposition 84) on November 7, 2006. Proposition 84 authorized 
the Legislature to appropriate $70 million for urban greening projects that reduce energy consumption, 
conserve water, improve air and water quality, and provide other community benefits. Because of the 
built-out nature of California's urban areas, the Urban Greening for Sustainable Communities Program 
(Program) provides funds to preserve, enhance, increase or establish community green areas such as 
urban forests, open spaces, wetlands and community spaces.  
 
Since 2008, the Sonoma County Water Agency (Water Agency) has been working on the multi-phase, 
multi-partner Copeland Creek Watershed Project, located in the Copeland Creek Watershed between 
Highway 101 at Rohnert Park, east to Crane Creek Regional Park. The Copeland Creek Watershed Project 
includes construction of stormwater detention basins and sediment collection basins, restoration of 
riparian habitat along Copeland Creek, acquisition of 75 acres of open space (the subject of this grant 
Proposition 84 application – see below), and construction of a trail connection between the urbanized 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

area and Crane Creek Regional Park. Partners include the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District (District), Sonoma County Regional Parks (Regional Parks), the City of Rohnert Park, 
Sonoma State University, and others. 
 
More specifically, to implement the project: 

• In June 2011, the Water Agency was awarded a $345,580 Caltrans Environmental Enhancement 
and Mitigation Program grant for the Copeland Creek Enhancement and Restoration Project to 
restore riparian habitat along Copeland Creek to improve water quality and salmonid habitat 
(approved by Board November 3, 2010).  
  

• In March 2013, the Water Agency was awarded a $1,000,000 Proposition 84 grant for Copeland 
Creek Stormwater Detention/Groundwater Recharge Basins and Habitat Restoration Project to 
construct stormwater detention basins on property adjacent to the 75-acre acquisition to reduce 
flooding and increase groundwater recharge (approved by Board May 14, 2013).  
 

• Subject to future funding, the Water Agency will construct sediment collection basins on 
property adjacent to the proposed 75-acre acquisition to improve water quality and fish habitat 
and detain fine sediment.  
 

• Subject to the District’s Matching Grant Program, Regional Parks and the City of Rohnert Park will 
implement the Crane Creek Regional Trail Matching Grant Project to construct public multi-use 
trails on the proposed 75-acre acquisition and adjacent properties to connect the urban area 
with the existing Crane Creek Regional Park. This project was recommended for the District’s 
Matching Grant Program by the District’s Citizens’ Advisory Committee in 2007. 

 
With Board approval, the District will apply for a $950,000 grant from the Proposition 84 California 
Urban Greening Grant Program for acquisition of approximately 75 acres as part of the Copeland Creek 
Watershed Project to increase permanent preserved open space, to provide an uninterrupted path 
along the Copeland Creek corridor, connect Rohnert Park and Sonoma State University to Crane Creek 
Regional Park, enhance commuting and recreational opportunities, and protect the headwaters to 
Hinebaugh Creek. This acquisition will provide land necessary for Regional Parks and the City of Rohnert 
Park to implement the Crane Creek Regional Trail Matching Grant Project. The current landowner, 
University District, LLC, is a willing seller that has been engaged in on-going conversation with the Water 
Agency and the City of Rohnert Park. At closing, Regional Parks will accept fee title to the property while 
the District will retain a conservation easement. 
 
An independent appraisal would be required at the time of grant award. If the independent appraisal is 
significantly higher than the grant award, the District and its partners would reconsider the land 
purchase or return to the Board with an alternate plan.  
 
The District would serve as the project manager for the acquisition grant. Grant administration includes 
compliance with grant provisions, quarterly financial and narrative reporting, and invoicing. While up to 
10 percent of the grant may be used to reimburse project and grant management costs, it is expected 
that the majority of the grant funds would reimburse land acquisition costs. The Water Agency has 
received and continues to pursue additional grants for fund the larger Copeland Creek Watershed 
Project. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

 
The Strategic Growth Council approved the District’s concept proposal on August 26, 2013 and 
requested a full proposal, which must include a resolution from the applicant’s governing board 
authorizing the General Manager to file an application.   

Prior Board Actions: 

• 5/21/2013: Board of Supervisors approved County of Sonoma Capital Project Plan 2012 – 2017, 
including the Copeland Creek Trail and Crane Creek Park Expansion projects. 
 

• 05/14/2013:  Water Agency Board adopted Reso 13-0197 to execute Prop. 84 Sub-grantee 
agreement with County of Humboldt for Copeland Creek Stormwater Detention/Groundwater 
Recharge Basins and Habitat Restoration Project ($1,000,000; awarded March 2013).  
 

• 12/06/2011:  Water Agency Board adopted Reso 11-0637 to file Urban Greening grant application 
for Copeland Creek Project (was not awarded). 
 

• 4/5/2011:  Water Agency Board adopted Reso 11-0158 to file Prop. 1E grant application for 
Stormwater and Flood Management grant program for the Copeland Creek Habitat Enhancement 
and Restoration Project: Detention and Recharge Basins (was not awarded).  
 

• 11/3/2010:  Water Agency Board adopted Reso 10-0785 to file grant application for Copeland Creek 
Enhancement and Restoration Project under the State of California Environmental Enhancement 
and Mitigation Program ($345,580; awarded June 2011).  
 

• 8/24/2010: Board of Supervisors adopted Reso 10-0636 to adopt the 2010 Sonoma County Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Plan.  

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

  

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $   $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

If the grant is awarded, the District would receive the funds next fiscal year.  The District’s FY 14-15 
budget would reflect this $950,000 revenue as well as the $711,270 expenditure recommended for the 
Crane Creek Regional Trail Matching Grant Project. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

1. Concept Proposal for Copeland Creek Watershed Project 
2. Resolution 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

1. Urban Greening Project Guidelines for Sustainable Communities 



 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District Approving the Submission of an Application for a $950,000 Grant From 
the California Urban Greening Grant Program Under the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality 
and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006 (Proposition 84) to 
Fund the Acquisition of Approximately 75 Acres for the Copeland Creek Watershed Project, 
and Authorizing the District’s General Manager to Execute all Documents That May Be 
Necessary to Apply for and Administer the Grant. 

 
Whereas, the Legislature and Governor of the State of California have provided funds 

for the California Urban Greening Grant Program Under the Safe Drinking Water, Water Quality 
and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection Bond Act of 2006  (“Proposition 84 
Urban Greening Grant Program”); and 
 

Whereas, the Strategic Growth Council has been delegated the responsibility for the 
administration of this grant program, establishing necessary procedures; and 
 

Whereas, said procedures established by the Strategic Growth Council require a 
resolution certifying the approval of applications(s) by the Applicant’s governing board before 
submission of said application(s) to the State; and 
 

Whereas, the District, the Sonoma County Water Agency, Sonoma County Regional 
Parks and others are collaborating to implement the Copeland Creek Watershed Project, which, 
among other components, includes public acquisition of 75 acres of permanent preserved open 
space (Project) for a future trail connection and expansion to Crane Creek Regional Park; and 

 
Whereas, the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

(District), if selected, will enter into an agreement with the State of California to carry out the 
Project; and 
 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Directors hereby: 
 

1. Approves the filing of an application for the Copeland Creek Watershed Project 
under the Proposition 84 Urban Greening Grant Program. 

2. Certifies that the District understands the assurances and certifications in the 
application. 

 
 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 

3. Certifies that the District or title holder will have sufficient funds to operate and 
maintain the Project consistent with the land tenure requirements; or will secure the 
resources to do so. 

4. Certifies that the District will comply with the provisions of Section 1771.5 of the 
State Labor Code regarding payment of prevailing wages on Projects awarded 
Proposition 84 funds. 

5. Certifies that the Project will comply with any laws and regulations including, but not 
limited to, legal requirements for building codes, health and safety codes, disabled 
access laws, environmental laws and, prior to commencement of construction, all 
applicable permits will have been obtained. 

6. Certifies that the District will work towards the Governor’s State Planning Priorities 
intended to promote equity, strengthen the economy, protect the environment, and 
promote public health and safety as included in Government Code Section 65041.1. 

7. Appoints the District General Manager, or designee, as agent to conduct all 
negotiations, execute and submit all documents including, but not limited to 
applications, payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for the 
completion of the aforementioned project. 

 
 

Directors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 

___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 



Concept Proposal

file:///S|/...D/Approved Packets/BOARD PACKETS/Crane Creek MGP/Electronic Submission/Attachments/Concept Proposal.htm[9/25/2013 9:05:21 AM]

  

 
 

   
 

Project Title: Copeland Creek Watershed Project 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Benefits: - Uses interagency cooperation and integration; -
Uses existing public lands and resources; - Increases public
access; - Improves public health; - Restores and enhances
riparian habitat; - Improves urban flood protection.

Funding Calculations

Sum of Other Funding Sources: $12,178,993.00 
Grant Amount Requested + Other Funding: $13,128,993.00 
Total Project Cost: $13,128,993.00 
Percent Funded: 100 %

 
 
 

Other Cost(1): $940,000.00
Acquisition of 75 acres to link Rohnert Park with Crane Creek
Regional Park and achieve SB 375 and One Bay Area Sustainable
Community Strategy goals

Other Cost(2): $0.00

Other Cost(3): $0.00

Other Cost(4): $0.00

Other Cost(5): $0.00

Other Cost(6): $0.00

Other Source(1): State Grant Funds (Prop. 84, Caltrans EEMP) 
 
 

Purpose(1): Habitat restoration, flood mitigation, fishway and water
quality improvement, detention basins

Other Source(2): Federal Transportation Enhancement Grant 
 
 

Purpose(2): Reconstruction of Class I Copeland Creek Bike Path, a
major bike/pedestrian path in Rohnert Park

Other Source(3): Project Partners' Matching Grant Funds 
 
 

Purpose(3): Matching funds for the grants listed above

Other Source(4): Project Partners' Funds 
 
 

Purpose(4): Balance needed for land acquisition, design and
construction of trails and basins

Project Scope / Proposed Elements for Grant Funding: 
The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, in partnership with the Sonoma County Water Agency,

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text



Concept Proposal

file:///S|/...D/Approved Packets/BOARD PACKETS/Crane Creek MGP/Electronic Submission/Attachments/Concept Proposal.htm[9/25/2013 9:05:21 AM]

Sonoma County Regional Parks, the City of Rohnert Park, Sonoma State University, and others, proposes to implement a regionally-
integrated project in the Copeland Creek watershed between Highway 101 at Rohnert Park, east to Crane Creek Regional Park.  This
public-private partnership intends to accomplish the following objectives:

Acquisition of 75 acres of open space to connect the urban area with the existing Crane Creek Regional Park, providing permanent
public access and protecting the headwaters to Hinebaugh Creek.  Grant funds would be used to acquire the property, with project
partners funding the other project components.

Construction of 12,000 linear feet of public trails and bike paths to: 1) provide an uninterrupted path connecting Rohnert Park and
Sonoma State University to a Regional Park; 2) provide alternate commute options for pedestrians and cyclists with a commensurate
reduction in GHG emissions; and 3) enhance community education opportunities through interpretative signs along paths, thereby
engaging students and others in the hydrology, fish and wildlife habitat, and geomorphic processes in the upper watershed. Interpretive
signage will discuss the role of biking. hiking and land conservation in supporting the GHG emissions reduction and Sustainable
Communities goals included in SB 375.

Stormwater detention of up to 200 acre-feet (AF) in three off-stream basins located in the alluvial fan that will provide regional flood
protection, an off-channel refuge in Copeland Creek to protect federally-listed juvenile steelhead against high flow events, and annual
groundwater recharge potential of over 150 AF to improve groundwater supply reliability and conserve energy resulting from reduced
pumping of surface water supplies.

Riparian habitat restoration along 16,000 linear feet of Copeland Creek that will remove ten acres of invasive species and establish 21
acres of riparian habitat by replanting with 14,650 plants to improve water quality and salmonid habitat, and sequester carbon; and
create career-building opportunities for youth and students.

Removal of up to 11,000 cubic yards of sediment, re-contouring two miles of channel bottom, and construction of localized sediment
collection basins to detain fine sediment from roads, erosion and other upland sources that otherwise would be deposited onto the
streambed in order to improve water quality and aquatic ecosystems.

Plant Palette: 
Planting of local, native and drought-tolerant upland and inundation-tolerant species will enhance uplands, low-lying
areas, grasslands and wetland instream habitat.  Once removed, invasive species and exotics will be replaced with native trees and
vegetation from one- to 15-gallon nursery containers, including 1,300 upland trees, 1,620 riparian trees, 3,360 upland shrubs, 3,360
riparian shrubs, 3,360 upland grasses, and 3,360 in-stream graminoids to stabilize creek banks and reduce sedimentation in areas at
risk of erosion.  

These plantings will follow the Sonoma County Water Agency’s Stream Maintenance Program Manual which details planting layout and
species selection according to the channel geomorphic form, and was developed in consideration of the current and known historic
native flora of the site and the local subwatershed area. Special care will be taken to collect and propagate genetically-appropriate
native plant material. The plants will be propagated by a qualified native plants nursery.

Collaboration: 
The District and its partners have been collaborating on project planning, seeking funding opportunities, and leveraging resources for
the past three years. The District and the Water Agency are formal partners of the Regional Climate Protection Authority (RCPA), and
are responsible for leading projects and initiatives focused on natural resources and water supply related to climate mitigation. This
project fulfills several RCPA Strategic Plan goals, including habitat restoration and protection, and development of alternative
transportation routes.

Support for open space acquisition and trail development is evident by the number of partner organizations and agencies.  Additionally,
the Water Agency convened a Steering Committee in 2009 to address flooding, groundwater, and stakeholder concerns in this area. 
This public-private committee met six times, held three public workshops involving over 200 people, and conducted briefings with a
group of 20 stakeholders representing varied interests. 



Concept Proposal

file:///S|/...D/Approved Packets/BOARD PACKETS/Crane Creek MGP/Electronic Submission/Attachments/Concept Proposal.htm[9/25/2013 9:05:21 AM]

Partnerships: 
1. Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District (District) – applicant and lead agency for acquisition of Property
2. Sonoma County Water Agency – lead agency for stormwater detention/groundwater recharge basin design and construction, and
habitat restoration
3. Sonoma County Regional Parks – lead agency for trail project on Property
4. The City of Rohnert Park – lead agency for trail project through city  
5. Sonoma County Regional Climate Protection Authority
6. Sonoma State University
7. Sotoyome Resource Conservation District
8. The Conservation Corps North Bay
9. University District, LLC
10. Rohnert Park Bicycle Advisory Committee
11. Rohnert Park Parks and Recreation Commission
12. Sonoma County Bicycle Coalition
13. Sonoma County Trails Council

Site Control - Acquisition: 
The current owner of the 75 acres proposed to be acquired with this grant is University District, LLC.  The City of Rohnert Park and the
Sonoma County Water Agency have been engaged in on-going discussion with Brookfield Homes, the owner representative, who has
written a willing seller letter.

The Sonoma County Water Agency is in the process of acquiring 53 acres adjacent to the 75-acre Property, which is where the
stormwater detention/groundwater recharge basins will be constructed.  The current owner of these 53 acres is also University District,
LLC, who has offered the land for dedication to the project partners.  
 
The Sonoma County Water Agency owns and maintains the land along Copeland Creek throughout the watershed.

CEQA 
 

Status:The District would file a Notice of Exemption related to acquisition of the Property.

The CEQA analysis for the riparian habitat restoration is complete.  A certified CEQA EIR exists for the proposed site locations of the
stormwater detention/groundwater recharge basins. Because the basins themselves were not included in the initial CEQA project
description, additional CEQA documentation is required. Once final design is complete, the Sonoma County Water Agency will prepare
the required CEQA analysis.

Organizational Capacity:The District is nationally-recognized land protection agency, with a highly-trained staff with years of real estate
transactions, land conservation, and habitat enhancement experience. Since its formation in 1990, the District has permanently
protected over 85,000 acres via fee title or conservation easement acquisition in over 180 transactions via a voter-approved quarter-
cent sales tax. The District commissions independent appraisals to determine the fair market value for each conservation transaction.

Project Readiness:Property acquisition is ready to proceed upon grant award. Steps to be taken to acquire the Property and proceed
with the project are as follows:
· Execute grant agreement
· Obtain title report and open escrow
· Conduct fair market appraisal of Property and submit to the State for review
· Prepare and negotiate purchase agreement between District and property owner
· Perform standard due diligence
· Negotiate conservation easement and recreation covenant between District and Regional Parks
· Prepare title conveyance documents
· Following Board approval and CEQA NOE posting, close escrow, with fee title transferring to Regional Parks and District retaining



Concept Proposal

file:///S|/...D/Approved Packets/BOARD PACKETS/Crane Creek MGP/Electronic Submission/Attachments/Concept Proposal.htm[9/25/2013 9:05:21 AM]

conservation easement 
· Post signs on Property acknowledging source of funds
· Complete trail design and CEQA analysis, and construct trail on Property 
· Remove invasive species and restore habitat along Copeland Creek
· Complete design and CEQA analysis, and construct stormwater detention/groundwater retention basins 
 

Additional Project Information:The Copeland Creek Watershed Project is an interagency collaborative effort that will provide multiple
benefits, including protecting open space, enhancing recreational opportunities, restoring riparian habitat, and providing regional flood
protection and groundwater recharge potential. The trails will help improve public health and provide alternate commute options for
pedestrians and cyclists, thus reducing traffic and greenhouse gas emissions. The restored creek will improve water quality and
salmonid habitat. Improving groundwater supply reliability will conserve energy resulting from reduced pumping of surface water
supplies.

Contact Information (1):Sara Press    Title:Associate Open Space Planner 
Phone:707-565-7360  Phone2:--    Email:sara.press@sonoma-county.org

Contact Information (2):Misti Arias    Title:Conservation Program Manager 
Phone:707-565-7360  Phone2:--    Email:misti.arias@sonoma-county.org

1 Density file(s) found: Copeland Creek - Density.pdf
1 Site Plan file(s) found: Copeland Creek - Site Plan.pdf
2 Photographs file(s) found: Copeland Creek - Looking Eastward from Petaluma Hill Rd over Property.jpg, Copeland Creek at Jasmine
Court,  Looking Eastward Toward SSU.jpg
Picture1 Description Copeland Creek - Looking Eastward from Petaluma Hill Rd over Property
Picture2 Description Copeland Creek at Jasmine Court,  Looking Eastward toward SSU
1 Plant Palette file(s) found: Copeland Creek - Conceptual Planting Diagram.pdf

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 6
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor Susan Gorin, 565-2241 First 

Title: Disbursement of FY 13/14 First District Advertising Funds. 

Recommended Actions: 

Approve Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a 
contract with the following entity for advertising and promotions activities for FY 13/14: Sonoma 
International Film Festival, $1,500. 

Executive Summary: 

Category E – Local Events and Organizations of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy provides 
grant allocations to each Supervisor, to be distributed at the Supervisor’s discretion. The First District 
has reviewed applications and wishes to recommend the following FY 13/14 advertising grant award: 
 

1.) Sonoma International Film Festival for advertising and promotions activities for FY 13/14: 17th 
Annual Sonoma International Film Festival, $1,500.  
 

Funds will be distributed upon approval of these awards by Board and execution of Advertising grant 
agreement contract with each entity. The contract will require the County logo on promotional 
materials produced using the grant award and will require submission to the District Director and 
County Administrator’s Office of advertising and promotional activity receipts up to the total amount of 
the grant award. 
 

Prior Board Actions: 

Previous grants were awarded through District 1 on 9/17/13 and 9/24/13. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Grant funds allow non-profit partners to advertise and grow local events and encourage tourism thereby 
promoting economic development and growth. 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 1,500 County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $ 1,500 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 1,500 Total Sources $ 1,500 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Funds are included in the FY 13/14 budget.  The District was allocated a total of $41,216.  Following 
today’s actions, $17,716 will remain for award. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

N/A. 

Attachments: 

FY 13/14 Grant Award Agreement Template. 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

None. 



1 
 

 

 
A G R E E M E N T 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this         day of               ,         , by and between the 

COUNTY OF SONOMA, (hereinafter COUNTY) and the «Organization», (hereinafter ADVERTISER). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has represented that it is aware of and understands the provisions 
and requirements of Government Code Section 26100 and COUNTY’S “Advertising and Promotions 
Program Policy” for the expenditure of funds appropriated under Section 26100, and that any expenditure 
made by ADVERTISER will be in compliance with Section 26100, the Advertising and Promotions 
Policy, and this Agreement, and 

 
WHEREAS, COUNTY’S Board of Supervisors has relied on those representations in authorizing 

the execution of this Agreement, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has applied for and received funding under Category E – Local 

Events and Organizations category of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER is ready, willing and able to perform the services herein provided to 

be performed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. During the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, COUNTY shall pay to ADVERTISER the total 
sum of $«Amount» (hereinafter "Advertising Funds"), payable upon execution of this contract. 

 
2. ADVERTISER must submit to the COUNTY receipts of activities performed utilizing the 

Advertising Funds.  Activities must take place between July 1, 2013 and June 30, 2014.  Receipts 
must be remitted to the COUNTY by July 31, 2014. If receipts are not submitted by July 31, 2014, 
repayment will be required of grant dollars not supported by advertising expense receipts by August 
15, 2014. Failure to submit required receipts may jeopardize ability to receive future grant awards. 

 
3. In consideration whereof, ADVERTISER promises and agrees to render the following services to 

COUNTY during the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014: 
 

All actions as set forth in the attached, Exhibit A (application for funding). In the case of more than 
one event, Advertiser will not transfer funds between events without prior approval from the 
COUNTY’s program coordinator. 

 



2 
 

4. ADVERTISER agrees to keep complete and accurate books and records, and to make available and 
submit to audit by COUNTY all of ADVERTISER’S books, records, and financial statements upon 
COUNTY’S request and without prior notice. 

 
5. ADVERTISER warrants to COUNTY that any Advertising funds paid to ADVERTISER by 

COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement shall be expended for only those purposes authorized by 
Section 26100 of the Government Code of the State of California and the COUNTY’s Advertising 
and Promotions Policy. 

 
6. Travel expenses, such as transportation and lodging, and/or meal costs, are not allowable advertising 

and promotions expenses. Advertising Funds may not be used to purchase or lease fixed assets. 
 
7. ADVERTISER agrees to submit copies of all published materials to the County Administrator’s 

Office. 
 
8. Indemnification: 

 
a. ADVERTISER agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or entity, 

including COUNTY, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release COUNTY, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, disabilities, or 
expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including ADVERTISER, that arise out 
of, pertain to, or related to ADVERTISER’s or its agents’, employees’, contractors’, 
subcontractors’, or invitees’ performance or obligations under this Agreement.  ADVERTISER’s 
obligations under this Section apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on COUNTY’s 
part, but to the extent required by law, excluding liability due to COUNTY’s conduct.  COUNTY 
shall have the right to select its legal counsel at ADVERTISER’s expense, subject to 
ADVERTISER’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification 
obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or 
compensation payable to or for ADVERTISER or its agents, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, or invitees under workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

 
b. ADVERTISER shall be liable to COUNTY for any loss or damage to COUNTY property arising 

from or in connection with ADVERTISER's performance hereunder. 
 
9. Non-Discrimination:  ADVERTISER shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

rules and regulations in regard to non-discrimination in employment because of race, ancestry, color, 
sex, age, national origin, religion, marital status, medical condition, or handicap, including the 
provisions of Article II of Chapter 19 of the Sonoma County Code, prohibiting discrimination in 
housing, employment, and services because of AIDS or HIV infection. 

 
10. Assignment/Delegation:  ADVERTISER shall not assign, sublet, transfer or delegate any interest in 

or duty under this agreement without written consent of COUNTY, and no assignment shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until so consented. 

 
11. Merger:  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement between the parties 

hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of 
the Agreement, pursuant to C.C.P. Section 1856. No modification of this agreement shall be effective 
unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 

 



3 
 

12. Termination:  At any time, with or without cause, COUNTY shall have the right in its sole 
discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to ADVERTISER. In the event of 
such termination, COUNTY shall pay ADVERTISER for services rendered satisfactorily and in 
good faith to such date in an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fees specified in the 
Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by ADVERTISER bear to the total 
services otherwise required to be performed for such total fee; provided, however, that there shall be 
deducted from such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by COUNTY by virtue of the 
breach of the Agreement by ADVERTISER. 

 
13. Repayment: If ADVERTISER fails to comply with the rules and requirements of the Advertising and 

Promotions Program Policy or the specific Category requirements under which the ADVERTISER 
received funds, as specified, then ADVERTISER shall, within ten days of receipt of notice of such 
failure by COUNTY, return all grant funds provided by COUNTY under this Agreement; provided, 
however, that COUNTY may, in its sole discretion, allow ADVERTISER to retain some or all grant 
funds if COUNTY determines that the failure was inadvertent or immaterial, or that ADVERTISER 
has taken action to ensure that the failure will not reoccur. 

 
14. Conflict of Interest:  ADVERTISER covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire 

any interest, direct, or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of its services hereunder. ADVERTISER further covenants that in the performance of this contract 
no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

 
15. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event the COUNTY brings an action or proceeding for damages arising out 

of the ADVERTISER’s performance under this Agreement or to establish the COUNTY’s right or 
remedy, the COUNTY shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as a part of 
such action or proceeding. 

 
16. Statutory Compliance:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state  

and local laws, regulations, statutes and policies applicable to the services provided under this 
Agreement as they exist now and as they are changed, amended or modified during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
17. AIDS Discrimination:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with the provisions of Chapter 19,  

Article II, of the Sonoma County Code prohibiting discrimination in housing, employment, and 
services because of AIDS or HIV infection during the term of this Agreement and any extensions of 
the term. 

 
18. No Third Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and 

the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 
 
19. Extra or Changed Work:  Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be 

authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  ADVERTISER 
expressly recognizes that, pursuant to Sonoma County Code Section 1-11, COUNTY personnel are 
without authorization to order extra or changed work or waive Agreement requirements.  Failure of 
ADVERTISER to secure such written authorization for extra or changed work shall constitute a 
waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such 
unauthorized work and thereafter ADVERTISER shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever 
for the performance of such work.  ADVERTISER further expressly waives any and all right or 
remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all extra work performed without such 
express and prior written authorization of the COUNTY. 

  



4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands the day and year first 
above written. 
 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By __________________________________ 

County Administrator, authorized by the 
Chair, Board of Supervisors 

 
ATTEST: ____________________________ 
 Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

«Organization» 
«Street» 
«City», «StateZip» 

 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By ___________________________ 
 «Contact» 
 «Event» 
 
 
 
 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 7
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Shirlee Zane, 565-2241 Third. 

Title: Disbursement of FY 13/14 Third District Advertising Funds. 

Recommended Actions: 

Approve Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a 
contract with the following entity for advertising and promotions activities for FY 13/14: Sunny Hills 
Services, $500. 

Executive Summary: 

Category E – Local Events and Organizations of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy provides 
grant allocations to each Supervisor, to be distributed at the Supervisor’s discretion. The Third District 
has reviewed applications and wishes to recommend the following FY 13/14 advertising grant award: 
 

1.) Sunny Hills Services for the promotion of, and advertising efforts related to, the Sunny Hills Road 
Ride; grant award of $500. 

 
Funds will be distributed upon approval of these awards by Board and execution of Advertising grant 
agreement contract with the entity. The contracts will be executed by the County Administrator. 
The contracts will require the County logo on promotional materials produced using the grant award 
and will require submission to the District Director and County Administrator’s Office of advertising and 
promotional activity receipts up to the total amount of the grant award. 
 

Prior Board Actions: 

8/20/13 - Awarded FY 13/14 Category E grants. 
9/10/13 – Awarded FY 13/14 Category E grants. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Grant funds allow non-profit partners to advertise and grow local events and encourage tourism thereby 
promoting economic development and growth. 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 500 County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $ 500 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 500 Total Sources $ 500 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Funds are included in the FY 13/14 budget.  The District was allocated a total of $18,352. To date, $2,000 
has been awarded.  Following Today’s actions, $15,852 will remain for award. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

N/A. 

Attachments: 

FY 13/14 Grant Award Agreement Template 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

None. 



1 
 

 

 
A G R E E M E N T 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this         day of               ,         , by and between the 

COUNTY OF SONOMA, (hereinafter COUNTY) and the «Organization», (hereinafter ADVERTISER). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has represented that it is aware of and understands the provisions 
and requirements of Government Code Section 26100 and COUNTY’S “Advertising and Promotions 
Program Policy” for the expenditure of funds appropriated under Section 26100, and that any expenditure 
made by ADVERTISER will be in compliance with Section 26100, the Advertising and Promotions 
Policy, and this Agreement, and 

 
WHEREAS, COUNTY’S Board of Supervisors has relied on those representations in authorizing 

the execution of this Agreement, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has applied for and received funding under Category E – Local 

Events and Organizations category of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER is ready, willing and able to perform the services herein provided to 

be performed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. During the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, COUNTY shall pay to ADVERTISER the total 
sum of $«Amount» (hereinafter "Advertising Funds"), payable upon execution of this contract. 

 
2. ADVERTISER must submit to the COUNTY receipts of activities performed utilizing the 

Advertising Funds.  Activities must take place between July 1, 2013 and June 30, 2014.  Receipts 
must be remitted to the COUNTY by July 31, 2014. If receipts are not submitted by July 31, 2014, 
repayment will be required of grant dollars not supported by advertising expense receipts by August 
15, 2014. Failure to submit required receipts may jeopardize ability to receive future grant awards. 

 
3. In consideration whereof, ADVERTISER promises and agrees to render the following services to 

COUNTY during the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014: 
 

All actions as set forth in the attached, Exhibit A (application for funding). In the case of more than 
one event, Advertiser will not transfer funds between events without prior approval from the 
COUNTY’s program coordinator. 

 



2 
 

4. ADVERTISER agrees to keep complete and accurate books and records, and to make available and 
submit to audit by COUNTY all of ADVERTISER’S books, records, and financial statements upon 
COUNTY’S request and without prior notice. 

 
5. ADVERTISER warrants to COUNTY that any Advertising funds paid to ADVERTISER by 

COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement shall be expended for only those purposes authorized by 
Section 26100 of the Government Code of the State of California and the COUNTY’s Advertising 
and Promotions Policy. 

 
6. Travel expenses, such as transportation and lodging, and/or meal costs, are not allowable advertising 

and promotions expenses. Advertising Funds may not be used to purchase or lease fixed assets. 
 
7. ADVERTISER agrees to submit copies of all published materials to the County Administrator’s 

Office. 
 
8. Indemnification: 

 
a. ADVERTISER agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or entity, 

including COUNTY, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release COUNTY, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, disabilities, or 
expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including ADVERTISER, that arise out 
of, pertain to, or related to ADVERTISER’s or its agents’, employees’, contractors’, 
subcontractors’, or invitees’ performance or obligations under this Agreement.  ADVERTISER’s 
obligations under this Section apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on COUNTY’s 
part, but to the extent required by law, excluding liability due to COUNTY’s conduct.  COUNTY 
shall have the right to select its legal counsel at ADVERTISER’s expense, subject to 
ADVERTISER’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification 
obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or 
compensation payable to or for ADVERTISER or its agents, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, or invitees under workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

 
b. ADVERTISER shall be liable to COUNTY for any loss or damage to COUNTY property arising 

from or in connection with ADVERTISER's performance hereunder. 
 
9. Non-Discrimination:  ADVERTISER shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

rules and regulations in regard to non-discrimination in employment because of race, ancestry, color, 
sex, age, national origin, religion, marital status, medical condition, or handicap, including the 
provisions of Article II of Chapter 19 of the Sonoma County Code, prohibiting discrimination in 
housing, employment, and services because of AIDS or HIV infection. 

 
10. Assignment/Delegation:  ADVERTISER shall not assign, sublet, transfer or delegate any interest in 

or duty under this agreement without written consent of COUNTY, and no assignment shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until so consented. 

 
11. Merger:  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement between the parties 

hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of 
the Agreement, pursuant to C.C.P. Section 1856. No modification of this agreement shall be effective 
unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 

 



3 
 

12. Termination:  At any time, with or without cause, COUNTY shall have the right in its sole 
discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to ADVERTISER. In the event of 
such termination, COUNTY shall pay ADVERTISER for services rendered satisfactorily and in 
good faith to such date in an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fees specified in the 
Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by ADVERTISER bear to the total 
services otherwise required to be performed for such total fee; provided, however, that there shall be 
deducted from such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by COUNTY by virtue of the 
breach of the Agreement by ADVERTISER. 

 
13. Repayment: If ADVERTISER fails to comply with the rules and requirements of the Advertising and 

Promotions Program Policy or the specific Category requirements under which the ADVERTISER 
received funds, as specified, then ADVERTISER shall, within ten days of receipt of notice of such 
failure by COUNTY, return all grant funds provided by COUNTY under this Agreement; provided, 
however, that COUNTY may, in its sole discretion, allow ADVERTISER to retain some or all grant 
funds if COUNTY determines that the failure was inadvertent or immaterial, or that ADVERTISER 
has taken action to ensure that the failure will not reoccur. 

 
14. Conflict of Interest:  ADVERTISER covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire 

any interest, direct, or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of its services hereunder. ADVERTISER further covenants that in the performance of this contract 
no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

 
15. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event the COUNTY brings an action or proceeding for damages arising out 

of the ADVERTISER’s performance under this Agreement or to establish the COUNTY’s right or 
remedy, the COUNTY shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as a part of 
such action or proceeding. 

 
16. Statutory Compliance:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state  

and local laws, regulations, statutes and policies applicable to the services provided under this 
Agreement as they exist now and as they are changed, amended or modified during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
17. AIDS Discrimination:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with the provisions of Chapter 19,  

Article II, of the Sonoma County Code prohibiting discrimination in housing, employment, and 
services because of AIDS or HIV infection during the term of this Agreement and any extensions of 
the term. 

 
18. No Third Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and 

the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 
 
19. Extra or Changed Work:  Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be 

authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  ADVERTISER 
expressly recognizes that, pursuant to Sonoma County Code Section 1-11, COUNTY personnel are 
without authorization to order extra or changed work or waive Agreement requirements.  Failure of 
ADVERTISER to secure such written authorization for extra or changed work shall constitute a 
waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such 
unauthorized work and thereafter ADVERTISER shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever 
for the performance of such work.  ADVERTISER further expressly waives any and all right or 
remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all extra work performed without such 
express and prior written authorization of the COUNTY. 

  



4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands the day and year first 
above written. 
 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By __________________________________ 

County Administrator, authorized by the 
Chair, Board of Supervisors 

 
ATTEST: ____________________________ 
 Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

«Organization» 
«Street» 
«City», «StateZip» 

 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By ___________________________ 
 «Contact» 
 «Event» 
 
 
 
 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 8
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Mike McGuire, 565-2241 Fourth. 

Title: Disbursement of FY 13/14 Fourth District Advertising Funds. 

Recommended Actions: 

Approve Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to execute a 
contract with the following entity for advertising and promotions activities for FY 13/14: Kiwanis Club of 
Cloverdale Foundation, $250. 

Executive Summary: 

Category E – Local Events and Organizations of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy provides 
grant allocations to each Supervisor, to be distributed at the Supervisor’s discretion. The Fourth District 
has reviewed applications and wishes to recommend the following FY 13/14 advertising grant award: 
 

1.) Kiwanis club of Cloverdale Foundation for the promotion of, and advertising efforts related to 
the Cloverdale Harvest Marathon, Half Marathon and 5K; grant award of $250. 

 
Funds will be distributed upon approval of these awards by Board and execution of Advertising grant 
agreement contract with the entity. The contracts will be executed by the County Administrator. 
The contracts will require the County logo on promotional materials produced using the grant award 
and will require submission to the District Director and County Administrator’s Office of advertising and 
promotional activity receipts up to the total amount of the grant award. 
 

Prior Board Actions: 

7/30/13 – Awarded FY 13/14 Category E grants. 
9/10/13 – Awarded FY 13/14 Category E grants. 
10/8/13 - Awarded FY 13/14 Category E grants. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Grant funds allow non-profit partners to advertise and grow local events and encourage tourism thereby 
promoting economic development and growth. 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 250 County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $ 250 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 250 Total Sources $ 250 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Funds are included in the FY 13/14 budget.  The District was allocated a total of $29,232. Following 
today’s actions, $7,032 will remain for award. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

N/A. 

Attachments: 

FY 13/14 Grant Award Agreement Template 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

None. 



1 
 

 

 
A G R E E M E N T 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this         day of               ,         , by and between the 

COUNTY OF SONOMA, (hereinafter COUNTY) and the «Organization», (hereinafter ADVERTISER). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has represented that it is aware of and understands the provisions 
and requirements of Government Code Section 26100 and COUNTY’S “Advertising and Promotions 
Program Policy” for the expenditure of funds appropriated under Section 26100, and that any expenditure 
made by ADVERTISER will be in compliance with Section 26100, the Advertising and Promotions 
Policy, and this Agreement, and 

 
WHEREAS, COUNTY’S Board of Supervisors has relied on those representations in authorizing 

the execution of this Agreement, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER has applied for and received funding under Category E – Local 

Events and Organizations category of the Advertising and Promotions Program Policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, ADVERTISER is ready, willing and able to perform the services herein provided to 

be performed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the parties hereto as follows: 
 

1. During the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014, COUNTY shall pay to ADVERTISER the total 
sum of $«Amount» (hereinafter "Advertising Funds"), payable upon execution of this contract. 

 
2. ADVERTISER must submit to the COUNTY receipts of activities performed utilizing the 

Advertising Funds.  Activities must take place between July 1, 2013 and June 30, 2014.  Receipts 
must be remitted to the COUNTY by July 31, 2014. If receipts are not submitted by July 31, 2014, 
repayment will be required of grant dollars not supported by advertising expense receipts by August 
15, 2014. Failure to submit required receipts may jeopardize ability to receive future grant awards. 

 
3. In consideration whereof, ADVERTISER promises and agrees to render the following services to 

COUNTY during the fiscal year July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014: 
 

All actions as set forth in the attached, Exhibit A (application for funding). In the case of more than 
one event, Advertiser will not transfer funds between events without prior approval from the 
COUNTY’s program coordinator. 

 



2 
 

4. ADVERTISER agrees to keep complete and accurate books and records, and to make available and 
submit to audit by COUNTY all of ADVERTISER’S books, records, and financial statements upon 
COUNTY’S request and without prior notice. 

 
5. ADVERTISER warrants to COUNTY that any Advertising funds paid to ADVERTISER by 

COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement shall be expended for only those purposes authorized by 
Section 26100 of the Government Code of the State of California and the COUNTY’s Advertising 
and Promotions Policy. 

 
6. Travel expenses, such as transportation and lodging, and/or meal costs, are not allowable advertising 

and promotions expenses. Advertising Funds may not be used to purchase or lease fixed assets. 
 
7. ADVERTISER agrees to submit copies of all published materials to the County Administrator’s 

Office. 
 
8. Indemnification: 

 
a. ADVERTISER agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or entity, 

including COUNTY, and to indemnify, hold harmless, and release COUNTY, its officers, agents, 
and employees, from and against any actions, claims, damages, liabilities, disabilities, or 
expenses, that may be asserted by any person or entity, including ADVERTISER, that arise out 
of, pertain to, or related to ADVERTISER’s or its agents’, employees’, contractors’, 
subcontractors’, or invitees’ performance or obligations under this Agreement.  ADVERTISER’s 
obligations under this Section apply whether or not there is concurrent negligence on COUNTY’s 
part, but to the extent required by law, excluding liability due to COUNTY’s conduct.  COUNTY 
shall have the right to select its legal counsel at ADVERTISER’s expense, subject to 
ADVERTISER’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This indemnification 
obligation is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or 
compensation payable to or for ADVERTISER or its agents, employees, contractors, 
subcontractors, or invitees under workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other 
employee benefit acts. 

 
b. ADVERTISER shall be liable to COUNTY for any loss or damage to COUNTY property arising 

from or in connection with ADVERTISER's performance hereunder. 
 
9. Non-Discrimination:  ADVERTISER shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 

rules and regulations in regard to non-discrimination in employment because of race, ancestry, color, 
sex, age, national origin, religion, marital status, medical condition, or handicap, including the 
provisions of Article II of Chapter 19 of the Sonoma County Code, prohibiting discrimination in 
housing, employment, and services because of AIDS or HIV infection. 

 
10. Assignment/Delegation:  ADVERTISER shall not assign, sublet, transfer or delegate any interest in 

or duty under this agreement without written consent of COUNTY, and no assignment shall be of 
any force or effect whatsoever unless and until so consented. 

 
11. Merger:  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement between the parties 

hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of 
the Agreement, pursuant to C.C.P. Section 1856. No modification of this agreement shall be effective 
unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties. 

 



3 
 

12. Termination:  At any time, with or without cause, COUNTY shall have the right in its sole 
discretion, to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to ADVERTISER. In the event of 
such termination, COUNTY shall pay ADVERTISER for services rendered satisfactorily and in 
good faith to such date in an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fees specified in the 
Agreement as the services satisfactorily rendered hereunder by ADVERTISER bear to the total 
services otherwise required to be performed for such total fee; provided, however, that there shall be 
deducted from such amount the amount of damage, if any, sustained by COUNTY by virtue of the 
breach of the Agreement by ADVERTISER. 

 
13. Repayment: If ADVERTISER fails to comply with the rules and requirements of the Advertising and 

Promotions Program Policy or the specific Category requirements under which the ADVERTISER 
received funds, as specified, then ADVERTISER shall, within ten days of receipt of notice of such 
failure by COUNTY, return all grant funds provided by COUNTY under this Agreement; provided, 
however, that COUNTY may, in its sole discretion, allow ADVERTISER to retain some or all grant 
funds if COUNTY determines that the failure was inadvertent or immaterial, or that ADVERTISER 
has taken action to ensure that the failure will not reoccur. 

 
14. Conflict of Interest:  ADVERTISER covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire 

any interest, direct, or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance 
of its services hereunder. ADVERTISER further covenants that in the performance of this contract 
no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

 
15. Attorneys’ Fees:  In the event the COUNTY brings an action or proceeding for damages arising out 

of the ADVERTISER’s performance under this Agreement or to establish the COUNTY’s right or 
remedy, the COUNTY shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as a part of 
such action or proceeding. 

 
16. Statutory Compliance:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state  

and local laws, regulations, statutes and policies applicable to the services provided under this 
Agreement as they exist now and as they are changed, amended or modified during the term of this 
Agreement. 

 
17. AIDS Discrimination:  ADVERTISER agrees to comply with the provisions of Chapter 19,  

Article II, of the Sonoma County Code prohibiting discrimination in housing, employment, and 
services because of AIDS or HIV infection during the term of this Agreement and any extensions of 
the term. 

 
18. No Third Party Beneficiaries:  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create and 

the parties do not intend to create any rights in third parties. 
 
19. Extra or Changed Work:  Extra or changed work or other changes to the Agreement may be 

authorized only by written amendment to this Agreement, signed by both parties.  ADVERTISER 
expressly recognizes that, pursuant to Sonoma County Code Section 1-11, COUNTY personnel are 
without authorization to order extra or changed work or waive Agreement requirements.  Failure of 
ADVERTISER to secure such written authorization for extra or changed work shall constitute a 
waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such 
unauthorized work and thereafter ADVERTISER shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever 
for the performance of such work.  ADVERTISER further expressly waives any and all right or 
remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all extra work performed without such 
express and prior written authorization of the COUNTY. 

  



4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands the day and year first 
above written. 
 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By __________________________________ 

County Administrator, authorized by the 
Chair, Board of Supervisors 

 
ATTEST: ____________________________ 
 Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 

«Organization» 
«Street» 
«City», «StateZip» 

 
 
 
DATE: ______________________________  By ___________________________ 
 «Contact» 
 «Event» 
 
 
 
 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 9
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County and Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Water 
Agency 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): General Services and Sonoma County Water Agency 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

David Worthington 565-2809 
Carolyn Glanton  524-1182 

ALL 

Title: Electric Vehicle Grant Memorandum of Understanding and Sonoma County Water Agency 
Property Grant of Right-of-Way 

Recommended Actions: 

Concurrently, acting as Sonoma County Board of Supervisors and Sonoma County Water Agency Board of 
Directors, Authorize the Chairman of the Boards to execute a renewed MOU between the County of Alameda and 
County of Sonoma/Sonoma County Water Agency for the Local Government Electric Vehicle (EV) Fleet National 
Demonstration Project to allow Alameda County’s continued administration and facilitation of a regional electric 
vehicle fleet and infrastructure grant. 

Acting as the Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors, Adopt a resolution authorizing the Agency’s 
General Manager to certify that interests in land have been acquired by the Agency to meet the grant 
requirement that participants exhibit proof of right-of-way on properties on which charging stations will be 
installed.  

Executive Summary: 

The County of Sonoma and the Sonoma County Water Agency have been collectively engaged in electric vehicle 
efforts since 2008.  Driving these efforts have been commitments to reduce the green house gas emission levels 
attributed to County and Agency operations.  As a collateral outcome and through the course of the combined 
activities, significant progress has been made at the County level in preparing the region for mass market 
introduction of electric vehicles. A chief factor to ensure preparedness is the installation and availability of 
infrastructure to charge electric vehicles.   

The County Fleet is currently comprised of 241 hybrid electric and all electric vehicles which represent 28% of the 
light duty vehicles in the fleet.  Between February of 2002 and June of 2013 the integration of hybrid electric 
vehicle technology into the fleet has resulted in a savings of 143,466 gallons of fuel and an annual reduction of 
1,563 tons of CO2 emissions.  The “average” cost of fuel during this time period was $2.74 per gallon which 
results in an approximate fuel cost savings of $393,097. The County also realized an average savings of $1,100 per 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

vehicle in life cycle costs when the first of the model year 2002 hybrid electric vehicles were retired and sent to 
auction as compared to conventionally powered vehicles of the same size and model year. Expanded introduction 
of commercially available plug-in hybrid electric (PHEV’s) and battery electric vehicles (BEV’s) has provided the 
County with the ability to further reduce fuel consumption and the resulting emissions by continuing to replace 
conventionally powered vehicles in the fleet with vehicles that achieve fuel economy of over 70 miles per gallon 
or better.   

At the end of 2009 the County installed its first Electric Vehicle Charging Station to support the integration of 
battery electric and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles into the County Fleet.   Since then the County has installed or 
facilitated the installation of 55 charging stations with a total of 110 charging ports at 20 different site locations 
throughout the County with a majority of these stations funded through successful grant applications. 

In 2010 Sonoma County and the Water Agency joined a coalition of 10 Bay Area counties, cities and water districts 
to pursue a grant through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to fund “fleet” electric vehicles and the 
support charging infrastructure.  The Director of General Services signed an MOU to this effect in 2010 which was 
ratified by the Board in 2011. The grant was awarded and is being coordinated and administered through 
Alameda County which has asked that all grant participants approve a Memorandum of Understanding outlining 
their respective roles.   

The new MOU augments the old MOU by providing more detail on the roles and responsibilities of Alameda 
County, as lead agency, and the other MOU partners, for, among other things, procurement of electric vehicles, 
Architectural and Engineering (A/E) professional design services and chargers. More detailed terms regarding 
Federal requirements and standard terms for MOUs are also included.  Each MOU partner will commit to a 
quantity of electric vehicles and chargers. However, there is a general obligation for the MOU partners to absorb 
any net loss in the total quantity of 90 electric vehicles and 90 charging stations.  A priority for absorbing any such 
loss is specified, but Alameda County has agreed to absorb the loss in the event no other partners or other local 
governments are interested in do so.   The new MOU will include the Water Agency as a separate party along with 
the County. 

Board approval of the MOU will allow the County and the Water Agency to continue as partners in the grant 
process and with the understanding that Alameda County will continue as the lead agency and move forward with 
the release of RFQ’s for the purchase of electric vehicles, A/E professional design services, and an RFP for the 
purchase and installation of electric vehicle charging infrastructure.  

A technical factor included in the grant administration guidelines is that all grant participants exhibit proof of 
right-of-way on properties on which the charging stations will be installed.  The County of Sonoma holds a 
historical resolution to this fact however the Water Agency did not. The attached resolution confirms that the 
Water Agency possesses right-of-way for properties which it owns. 

Prior Board Actions: 

June 19, 2007 – The Board of Supervisors accepts reimbursement of $72,000 from the Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District’s “Transportation Fund for Clean Air” as incentive for the County’s purchase of 36 
gasoline/electric hybrid vehicles. 

November 18, 2008 – The Board of Supervisors authorized the Chair to execute two Memorandum of 
Understanding with Nissan North America, Inc., one for General Services and one for the Water Agency, pursuant 
to their electric car government partnership. 

January 11, 2011 – The Board of Supervisors ratified the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding signed by 
General Services in November, 2010 which included other local entities and Alameda County.  



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

County Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Supporting the development of an electric vehicle fleet and infrastructure demonstrates environmental 
stewardship in accordance with the County Strategic Plan Goal #2.  As gasoline prices continue to escalate, grant 
funded electric vehicle infrastructure will become an example of economic stewardship. 
 
Water Agency Organizational Goals and Strategies, Goal 2:  Responsibly manage Water Agency finances.  Utilizing 
grant funds to purchase vehicles and install infrastructure exemplifies responsible management of Water Agency 
finances 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $   $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

The anticipated award for Sonoma County is $518,962 to purchase 22 vehicles and install 22 fleet support 
charging stations. The County’s planned expenditure of $547,000 to replace 22 conventional fossil fuel vehicles 
will serve as the County’s match to the grant.  The Water Agency anticipates spending $215,000 on grant related 
activities to purchase 5 electric vehicles and install 5 fleet support charging stations of which $106,966 will be 
reimbursed from the grant. At this time, the expected purchase of the vehicles and charging stations would occur 
during the 2014/2015 fiscal year with the EV charger installations occurring at a later date in accordance with 
applicable accessibility guidelines in place at that time. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

1) Resolution, Sonoma County Water Agency Right of Way Authority (Att 1) 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

2) Alameda County Memorandum of Understanding Cover Letter (Att 2) 
3) Alameda County Electric Vehicle Memorandum of Understanding Board Letter (Att 3) 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

Two (2) copies of the Memorandum of Understanding for the Local Government Electric Vehicle (EV) 
Fleet National Demonstration Project. Twenty-Eight (28) signature pages of the Memorandum of 
Understanding for the Local Government Electric Vehicle (EV) Fleet National Demonstration Project.  

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution of The Board Of Directors Of Sonoma County Water Agency authorizing the 
Agency’s General Manager to sign on behalf of the Agency certifications or other 
instruments which attest that properties to be used for installation of electric vehicle 
charging stations pursuant to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission grant are 
owned by the Agency and/or the Agency has the necessary rights of way for such 
installation.  

 

Whereas, the Water Agency has joined a coalition of Bay Area counties, cities and water 
districts to pursue a grant through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission to fund 
fleet electric vehicles and charging infrastructure, including charging stations.  A grant 
has been awarded and is being coordinated and administered through Alameda County; 
and 

 
Whereas,  the anticipated award for the Water Agency will provide funding to purchase 
5 electric vehicles and install 5 charging stations; and 

 
Whereas, a requirement of the grant administration guidelines is that all grant 
participants exhibit proof of right-of-way on properties on which the charging stations 
will be installed; and 

 
Whereas, the Water Agency has identified properties it owns for installation of the 
charging stations, in which there are no legal impediments or property interests that 
would prevent such installation. 

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County 
Water Agency hereby finds, determines, and declares as follows: 
 
1. The above recitals are true and correct. 
 
2. The Agency’s General Manager is authorized to sign on behalf of the Agency 

certifications or other instruments which attest that properties to be used for 
installation of electric vehicle charging stations pursuant to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission grant are owned by the Agency and/or the Agency 
has the necessary rights of way for such installation.  



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



 
 

June 14, 2013 

MOU Cover Letter  
Local Government EV Fleet National Demonstration Project 

 
This cover letter is intended to provide an overview of the Local Government EV Fleet National 
Demonstration Project and provide context for the attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  

 
In 2010, 10 local governments across the San Francisco Bay Area comprised of County of Alameda, 
County of Sonoma, City and County of San Francisco, City of Concord, City of Santa Rosa, Sonoma 
County Water Agency, City of Oakland, City of San Jose, City of Fremont, and Marin Municipal Water 
District, and the Bay Area Climate Collaborate (BACC), a nonprofit organization serving as a project 
convener, were awarded a $2.8 million federal grant to promote the use of electric vehicles by local 
governments.  The grant is from the Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration for 
the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and/or Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
(CMAQ) Program through the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC).   
 
The scope of the grant is to purchase 90 all-electric vehicles, including 79 sedans and 11 small cargo vans 
or SUVs, and to purchase and install 90 electric vehicle charging stations across the Bay Area.  The grant 
is covering the incremental cost between a typical replacement vehicle and the cost of an electric vehicle, 
and is fully funding the cost of purchasing and installing electric vehicle charging stations, up to the 
budget threshold, for the participating partner agencies.  Also included in the grant are pilot projects with 
Alameda County, Sonoma County, and City of San Jose to test MPG meter technology and car sharing.  
 
The 10 agencies, with the exception of City of Santa Rosa, entered into an MOU in 2010 that established 
Alameda County as the lead agency coordinating the procurement process and grant management.  At this 
point, the project was delayed by two significant obstacles: 1) the project was required to secure a partial-
waiver from the Federal Highway Administration to the “Buy America” provision, which required that 
purchased equipment be built from all US steel (no all-electric vehicles currently meet this requirement), 
to instead require final assembly in the US, and 2) the process of obtaining preliminary environmental 
clearance (“Authorization to Proceed”) on the project from Caltrans was more involved than anticipated, 
and was eventually obtained in July 2012, allowing partners to begin the procurement process.   
 
As a result of new developments that have occurred during these delays and in an effort to deliver greater 
specificity overall, Alameda County has prepared an updated MOU that has been attached for review by 
all partner city councils or boards of supervisors.  This revision more thoroughly describes the roles and 
responsibilities of Alameda County and those of the other Partner agencies.  
 
All 10 partner agencies will need to sign an agreed upon MOU to commence the procurement process. 
Once the MOUs are signed by all 10 partner agencies and, if necessary, adopted by their respective 
Councils or Boards, Alameda County will commence the collaborative procurement process to purchase 
the electric vehicles and charging stations.  After the award is given for the vehicles and charging stations, 
all Partners will execute their own contracts directly with the selected vendors.  It is important to note 
that all Partners reserve the right not to enter into contract with any awarded vendors. As per 
federal regulations, agencies will also be responsible for obtaining a Caltrans-certified Resident Engineer 
to oversee the installation of charging stations, unless they have opted to self-install charging stations, 
therefore waiving the right to seek reimbursement for  installation and no longer needing to adhere to 
federal regulations. 
 



 

 

 
July 1, 2013 
 

 
Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County of Alameda 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 536 
Oakland, California 94612-4305 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF TWO MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND 

BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF ALAMEDA AND PARTNER AGENCIES FOR THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) FLEET DEMONSTRATION 
PROJECT  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

A. Approve and authorize the two attached Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) between the 
County of Alameda and partner agencies in the Local Government EV Fleet Demonstration 
Project; and  
 

B. Authorize the Board President to execute the MOUs as partner agencies sign the agreements.  
 
DISCUSSION/SUMMARY
 

: 

The County of Alameda is leading the Local Government EV Fleet Demonstration project, a regional 
initiative comprised of 10 Bay Area jurisdictions to purchase 90 electric vehicles (EVs) and 90 EV 
charging stations for use in municipal fleet operations.  In November 2010, your Board approved the 
filing of an application for the Federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) and/or Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Funding for $2.8 million (File #26707, Item #19).  
At the same time, your Board approved a MOU by and between County of Alameda and 7 of the 
partner agencies that established the County of Alameda as the lead agency for the project and other 
provisions.  The latest two MOUs are an update to the November 2010 MOU and elaborate on the 
roles and responsibilities of the County of Alameda and the other partner agencies.   One MOU is by 
and between the County of Alameda and 8 partner agencies and the other is by and between the 
County of Alameda and the City of Santa Rosa, which was not a party to the original November 2010 
MOU and thus required a separate agreement.     
 
The County of Alameda is the lead agency for the project and is joined by 9 other partners, 
comprising Bay Area cities, counties, and water districts.  The County is managing the project, 

AGENDA #____,  July 30, 2012 



Honorable Board Members Page 2  July 1, 2013 
 
 

 

including preparing architectural site designs and leading the collaborative procurement process.  By 
utilizing a cooperative approach, the County is expected to maximize the value of the grant by 
reducing transaction costs and leveraging significant purchasing power to achieve competitive pricing 
for the EVs and EV charging stations.  Furthermore, the County is playing an integral role in assisting 
other partner agencies to prepare their facilities for EVs and EV charging stations and navigate the 
complexities of federal funding regulations.  The County of Alameda is also leading the development 
of these MOUs by and between the County of Alameda and the 9 other partner agencies.  
 
In advance of the procurement process, more detailed MOUs are needed to clearly outline the roles 
and responsibilities of the County of Alameda and all other partner agencies.  The MOUs detail the 
roles of the County of Alameda as the lead agency in the project, including key responsibilities such 
as preparing professional design services and leading the procurement process for the purchase of 
EVs and the purchase and installation of EV charging stations in compliance with all relevant state 
and federal funding regulations.  The Partner agencies are responsible for performing their own due 
diligence to prepare for the installation of EV charging stations and will each enter into a separate 
contract with the awarded vendor(s).  Each partner reserves the right to enter into contracts with the 
awarded vendors(s).   
 
The nine partner agencies include: Sonoma County, the City & County of San Francisco, the City of 
San Jose, the City of Fremont, the City of Oakland, the City of Concord, the City of Santa Rosa, the 
Sonoma County Water Agency, and the Marin Municipal Water District.  
 
Both MOUs were developed by the County of Alameda and agreed upon by all 9 partners and their 
respective legal counsels.  The Partner agencies are all currently seeking formal adoption by their 
City Councils, Board of Supervisors, and/or other relevant approving entities.  All signatures are 
expected to be received by the County of Alameda from the partner agencies in the next few months, 
allowing the procurement process to begin.   
 
FUNDING: 
 
There are no financial implications with approval of the recommended actions nor are there penalties, 
financial, or otherwise with termination of the MOUs by the County of Alameda.  Any partner, 
including the County of Alameda can withdraw from the MOUs up until thirty calendar days before 
the issuance of the solicitations.   
 
CMAQ is providing approximately $2.8 million in funding for the project with the remainder being 
covered by matching funds from the Partners and vehicle replacement funds by the County of 
Alameda. There will be no net cost to the County for this project.   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Aki K. Nakao 



Honorable Board Members Page 3  July 1, 2013 
 
 

 

Director, General Services Agency 
 
Attachments 
 
 
cc: Susan Muranishi, County Administrator 
 Patrick O’Connell, Auditor-Controller 
 Donna Ziegler, County Counsel 
 
 



 

 

PARTNER AGENCY SIGNATORIES  
 

 
 
Project participants MOU Signed  MOU recommended for 

approval, but have not yet 
submitted signed copies of 
the document 

Sonoma County  X 
City & County of San Francisco  X 
City of Concord  X 
City of Fremont  X 
City of Oakland  X 
City of San Jose   X 
City of Santa Rosa  X 
The Marin Municipal Water 
District 

 X 

The Sonoma County Water 
Agency 

 X 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 10
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Directors of the Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Transportation and Public Works – Northern Sonoma County Air 
Pollution Control District 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Barbara Lee, (707) 433-5911 The Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control 
District 

Title: VPMP Grant to Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. for two electric vehicle charging stations 

Recommended Actions: 

Adopt resolution authorizing the Air Pollution Control Officer of the Northern Sonoma County Air 
Pollution Control District to:  

1. Execute Funding Agreement with Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. for electric vehicle charging stations, 
in a form approved by County Counsel, in the amount of $23,616 to fund the purchase and 
installation of two dual-unit phase II Electric Vehicle charging stations at the Dry Creek Center 
Parking Lot in Healdsburg; and  

2. Amend the agreement, in a form approved by County Counsel, provided there is no increase in 
the funding amount. 

Executive Summary: 

Staff of the Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District (District) is requesting authorization 
to allow the Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) to execute a funding agreement for purchase and 
installation of two dual-unit electric vehicle charging stations with Lloyd Group Holdings for funding 
amount not to exceed $23,616. This item also requests authorization for the APCO to amend the 
agreements if needed, provided the amendments do not increase the authorized grant amount. 
 
In 1991, the California Health and Safety Code was amended by AB 2766 to allow local air pollution 
control districts to collect fees in the form of a surcharge on motor vehicle registrations. The funds 
generated by the surcharge are to be used to characterize and reduce air pollution from motor vehicles 
used within the air district. Since the inception of the Vehicle Pollution Mitigation Program (“VPMP”) the 
District has funded a number of diverse projects to reduce the impact of vehicle emissions within 
Sonoma County. 
 
Lloyd Group Holdings submitted an application to the District for $23,616 of VPMP grant funding to 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

cover the purchase and installation costs of two dual-unit electric vehicle charging stations, to be 
located at its existing Dry Creek Center Parking Lot in Healdsburg, a privately-owned parking lot heavily 
trafficked by the public. It is the responsibility of the recipient to install charging stations in accordance 
with applicable standards and guidelines, including all applicable accessibility requirements. The 
installation of electric vehicle chargers (resulting in four electric vehicle parking spaces) at a highly 
trafficked parking lot along the Highway 101 corridor in northern Sonoma County is consistent with the 
District’s priority to enhance the electric vehicle charging network within its jurisdiction. The District, 
along with the County of Sonoma, Sonoma County Transportation Authority, and other local planning 
agencies, have agreements in place to build and enhance the EV charging network to encourage travel 
using electric vehicles. Studies have shown that a greater availability of electric vehicle chargers helps 
drivers to feel more secure driving their electric vehicles longer distances. 
 
The proposal from Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. was scored in accordance with the Board-approved scoring 
method. The score sheet and a funding eligibility memo are attached to this item. 

Prior Board Actions: 

05/12/09: Res No. 09-0447 authorized the NSCAPCD to join the Sonoma County Local Government 
Electric Vehicle Partnership 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Protecting air quality and public health by implementing and developing programs to mitigate the 
negative impacts of air pollution. 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 23,616  $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $ 23,616 

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 23,616 Total Sources $ 23,616 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

The NSCAPCD FY 13/14 adopted budget for VPMP includes funding to be used for eligible grant 
applications. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

VPMP Scoring Sheet; Funding Eligibility Memo; Resolution 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

Draft Agreement 



VPMP 
RANKING CRITERIA SCORES 

PROJECT TITLE: Lloyd Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
TOTAL SCORE: 79 

FUNDS REQT: $23,616 EVALUATED BY: Jessica DePrimo 

A. 50 Pt. - Is project a Priority Project? Or if it is an unranked project, rank based on cost 
effectiveness in pollution reduction. 

This is an infrastructure project and no cost effectiveness 
calculation is needed. Completing and enhancing the electric 
vehicle charging network in the NSCAPCD jurisdiction is a 
priority of the District, as well as the County of Sonoma, SCTA, 
and other local planning organizations. 

SCORE 

50 

B. 20 Pt - Use of Matching Funds. 
SCORE 

Project electrical foundation and grading was done at the 
expense of the applicant, while the NSCAPCD is paying for 
charger equipment and installation. AB 2766 funding total less 20 
than 50% of the total project cost. 

C. Public awareness of/Exposure to program air benefits. 

Public exposure to the Big John's parking lot will be high. The 
area where the chargers will be located is a highly trafficked 
corner. The applicant will be required to install signage stating 
the air quality benefits and including NSCAPCD's name and 
participation in the project. No advertisement other than signs. 

SCORE 

4 

D. 10 Pt - Creativity (new type of project for this District).
 

10.1TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_Att#1 Scoring Sheet.xlsm
 



Not a new type of project. 

SCORE 

0 

E. 5 Pt. - Public/Private Partnership 

Partnership between NSCAPCD and Big John's, Inc. 

SCORE 

5 

F. 5 Pt. - Local Governmental/Agency clean air planning commitment. 

Applicant is not a local government/agency 

SCORE 

0 

10.1TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_Att#1 Scoring Sheet.xlsm 



VPMP Grant Program Funding Eligibility Justification Memo – Dry Creek Center Parking Lot EV Chargers Page | 1  
 

Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District VPMP Program 
Project: Dry Creek Center Parking Lot EV Chargers Date: 8/22/13 
Funding: $23,616 By: Jessica DePrimo 
Cost Effectiveness: N/A; Infrastructure Project  

VPMP Grant Program – Funding Eligibility Justification Memo 
 
The Dry Creek Center Parking Lot EV Chargers Project involves installation of two new dual unit charging 
stations at a renovated parking lot in an existing busy shopping center located at the corner of Dry Creek 
Boulevard and Healdsburg Avenue in Healdsburg. This memo addresses the methodology for evaluating 
the project, and outlines the District’s justification for funding of the project.  

Evaluation Methodology 

The District has historically used cost-effectiveness calculation guidelines from CA Air Resources Board 
(CARB) entitled Methods to Find the Cost-Effectiveness of Funding Air Quality Projects: For Evaluating 
Motor Vehicle Registration Fee Projects and CMAQ Projects, May 2005. This document can be found at 
the following web URL: http://www.arb.ca.gov/planning/tsaq/eval/eval.htm along with a link to 
emission factors updated in 2010. According to the CARB guidelines, electric vehicle charging stations 
are considered infrastructure projects, and are difficult to evaluate for cost-effectiveness. They should 
instead be evaluated for their consistency with clean air plans.  

Justification 

The installation of two new dual-unit electric vehicle chargers (resulting in four electric vehicle parking 
spaces) at a highly trafficked parking lot along the 101 corridor in northern Sonoma County is consistent 
with the District’s priority to enhance the electric vehicle charging network within its jurisdiction. The 
District, along with the County of Sonoma, SCTA, and other local planning agencies, have agreements in 
place to build and enhance the EV charging network to encourage travel using electric vehicles. Studies 
have shown that a greater availability of electric vehicle chargers helps drivers to feel more secure 
driving their electric vehicles longer distances. 

Recommendation 

This project is expected to provide an air quality benefit to the community by encouraging electric 
vehicle use within Healdsburg and northern Sonoma County. The District recommends providing funding 
to cover the cost of the electric vehicle charging stations and their installation, in the amount of 
$23,616. 

http://www.arb.ca.gov/planning/tsaq/eval/eval.htm�


 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Directors Of The Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control 
District Authorizing Disbursement of AB2766 Grant Funds for the Purchase and Installation of 

Two Electric Vehicle Charging Stations at the Dry Creek Center Parking Lot in Healdsburg, 
California 

 
Whereas, Assembly Bill 2766, Statutes of 1990, authorizes collection of fees on 
registered motor vehicles for the purpose of reducing air pollution from such vehicles; 
and 

 
Whereas, by Resolution No. 91-1104, this Board adopted Vehicle Pollution Mitigation 
Program (VPMP) to allocate Assembly Bill 2766 funds, and by Resolution No. 92-1853 
gave additional direction to staff regarding allocation of these funds; and 

 
Whereas, the Board has reviewed staff recommendations and ranking for the proposal 
received requesting VPMP grant funds; and 

 
Whereas, the Board has reviewed existing grant allocation criteria and the proposed 
standard grant contract form; and 

 
Whereas, Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. has applied to the District for Assembly Bill 2766 
grant funds to purchase and install two electric vehicle charging stations for a total of 
four electric vehicle parking spots; 

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Board of Directors of the Northern Sonoma 
County Air Pollution Control District hereby finds, declares and determines as follows: 

1. All the above findings are true and correct; 
2. The project will make a contribution to the reduction of air pollution within 

Sonoma County and the District boundaries; 
3. Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. is approved for grant funding in the amount of 

$23,616 in VPMP grant funds; 
4. The Air Pollution Control Officer of the Northern Sonoma County Air 

Pollution Control District, or her designee, is hereby authorized and directed 
to develop a funding agreement with Lloyd Group Holdings, Inc. and, subject 
to County Counsel approval as to form, execute, fund, audit, and administer 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 

said funding agreement. 
5. The Air Pollution Control Officer of the Northern Sonoma County Air 

Pollution Control District, or her designee, is hereby authorized to amend the 
funding agreement, in a form approved by County Counsel, provided there is 
no increase in the funding amount. 

 
 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 11
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Transportation and Public Works 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Susan Klassen, (707) 565-2231  

Title: Out-of-State Travel Authorization- Sonoma County Airport 

Recommended Actions: 

Approve out-of-state travel requests for the Airport Manager for up to six (6) trips in FY 13-14. 

Executive Summary: 

The Department of Transportation and Public Works is seeking approval of up to six (6) out of state 
trips for Airport business. Pursuant to the Travel and Meal Reimbursement Policy (Administrative 
Policy #3-2) Department Heads are authorized to approve the first two out-of-state trips and the 
County Administrator can approve the third out-of-state travel in a fiscal year. The Airport Manager 
has already been approved by the Department head for two out-of-state trips; The first trip was to 
attend the Southwest Chapter of the American Association of Airport Executives Board Meeting and 
Summer Conference in Phoenix, Arizona (July 2013) and the second trip is to attend the Boyd Group 
International Airline Forecasting Conference in Baltimore, Maryland (November 2013). The County 
Administrator has also already approved one out-of-state trip this fiscal year to attend the World 
Routes 2013 Conference in Las Vegas, Nevada (October 2013). 
 
Although it’s not uncommon for the Airport Manager to travel out of state in the course of business, 
this is an exceptionally high year for travel since the runway expansion project is scheduled to be 
completed in November 2014.  The Airport Manager anticipates that this year is critical to begin 
negotiations with airlines interested in providing service to the Charles M. Shultz Airport in addition to 
addressing noise concerns prior to additional commercial service by altering the descent patterns.  It is 
imperative that the right staff person is empowered to negotiate with the airlines during these 
conferences. Also, the expectation at these conferences is that the decision-makers attend. Based on 
the planning efforts of the Airport Business Attraction Committee, the target is to have agreements 
with these airlines within the next year as the current focus is the runway opening and airlines start 
their planning a year ahead. While the Airport Manger is travelling, he is available by phone and email 
to the Assistant Airport Manager and the Operations Supervisor, who will be responsible for daily 
operations. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

 
In that regard, it is requested that the Airport Manager be allowed up to six (6) additional out-of-state 
travel trips this fiscal year to attend the following: 

- Attend live fire training in Salt Lake City, Utah in November to re-certify the live fire component 
as required by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) for Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting 
(ARFF). The Airport Manager’s certification has expired and it is anticipated that the Airport 
Manager will need to act as back-up for ARFF activities in the coming year.  

- Attend up to two (2) meetings with United Airlines at their headquarters in Chicago, Illinois to 
discuss potential service to Denver, Colorado.  

- Attend meetings with the FAA in Seattle, Washington for discussions of new approach patterns 
for noise mitigation for the new runway configuration. Meeting dates have not yet been set as 
the FAA has not yet completed its review and drafting of the new approaches.  

- Attend the Airline Business Network 2014 Conference in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada in March 
2014. The conference is the largest airline route planning and networking event in North 
America.  

- Attend the Airports Council International-North America (ACI-NA) Marketing and 
Communication Conference in Atlanta, Georgia in June 2014. This conference has two 
components: the first is a brief conference regarding airport marketing and communications; 
the second is the opportunity to have one-on-one meetings with various airlines to discuss 
opportunities and market potential.  

 

Prior Board Actions: 

2/7/12 and 3/1/11: Board authorized out-of-state travel for Airport Manager. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Provides the opportunities to meet with airlines one on one to discuss potential service opportunities 
and the opportunity to gain the most recent industry information. 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 9,500  $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $ 9,500 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 9,500 Total Sources $ 9,500 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Funding for the travel expenses related to these trips has been included in the FY 13-14 Airport 
Enterprise Budget. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

N/A    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

N/A 

Attachments: 

None 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

None 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 12
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Board of Supervisors (707) 565-2241  

Title: Minutes of September 24, 2013 and October 1, 2013 

Recommended Actions: 

Approval. 

Executive Summary: 

Approval of Minutes – 
(A) Minutes of the Meeting of  September 24, 2013 for the following:  Agricultural Preservation and Open 

Space District, Community Development Commission, Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control 
District, Sonoma County Public Financing Authority, Sonoma County Water Agency, and Board of 
Supervisors; and 

(B) Minutes of the Special Meeting of October 1, 2013 for the Board of Supervisors. 

Prior Board Actions: 

None. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Not Applicable 

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

N/A 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

None 

Attachments: 

Minutes of September 24, 2013 and October 1, 2013 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

None 



1 
 

ACTION SUMMARY  
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

SONOMA COUNTY  
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 102A  

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403  
 
TUESDAY  September 24, 2013 8:30 A.M. 
 
Susan Gorin 
David Rabbitt 
Shirlee Zane 
Mike McGuire 
Efren Carrillo  

First District 
Second District 
Third District 
Fourth District 
Fifth District  

Veronica A. Ferguson 
Bruce Goldstein  

County Administrator 
County Counsel  

 
This is a simultaneous meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County, the Board of Directors of the 
Sonoma County Water Agency, the Board of Commissioners of the Community Development Commission, the 
Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, the Board of Directors 
of the Northern Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District, and as the governing board of all special districts 
having business on the agenda to be heard this date.  
 
The Board welcomes you to attend its meetings which are regularly scheduled each Tuesday at 8:30 a.m. Your 
interest is encouraged and appreciated.  
 
AGENDAS AND MATERIALS: Agendas and most supporting materials are available on the Board’s website at 
http://www.sonoma-county.org/board/. Due to legal, copyright, privacy or policy considerations, not all materials 
are posted online. Materials that are not posted are available for public inspection between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., 
Monday through Friday, at 575 Administration Drive, Room 100A, Santa Rosa, CA.  
 
SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS: Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Board of Supervisors office at 575 
Administration Drive, Room 100A, Santa Rosa, CA, during normal business hours.  
 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability which requires an accommodation, an alternative 
format, or requires another person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(707) 565-2241, as soon as possible to ensure arrangements for accommodation.  
 
Public Transit Access to the County Administration Center:  
Sonoma County Transit: Rt. 20, 30, 44, 48, 60, 62  
Santa Rosa CityBus: Rt. 14  
Golden Gate Transit: Rt. 80  
For transit information call (707) 576-RIDE or 1-800-345-RIDE or visit or http://www.sctransit.com/.  
 

APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
The Consent Calendar includes routine financial and administrative actions that are usually approved by a single 

majority vote. There will be no discussion on these items prior to voting on the motion unless Board Members or the 
public request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  

Any member of the audience desiring to address the Board on a matter on the agenda: Please walk to the podium 
and after receiving recognition from the Chair, please state your name and make your comments. Closed session 
items may be added prior to the Board adjourning to closed session. In order that all interested parties have an 
opportunity to speak, please be brief and limit your comments to the subject under discussion. Each person is 
usually granted 3 minutes to speak; time limitations are at the discretion of the Chair.  

  



2 
 

 
8:33 A.M. CALL TO ORDER 

 
8:33 A.M. Chairman Rabbitt called the meeting to order. 
 
Supervisors Present: Susan Gorin, David Rabbitt, Shirlee Zane, Mike McGuire, and  

Efren Carrillo. (All Supervisors Were Present) 
 
Present: Veronica A. Ferguson, County Administrator and Sheryl Bratton, Assistant County 

Counsel 
 

Chairman Rabbitt presiding. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

I. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

(Items may be added or withdrawn from the agenda 
consistent with State law)  

Chairman Rabbitt announced a correction to the Agenda for Consent Item #8 - Legal 
Services Agreement with the law firm of Foley & Lardner LLP; the title should reflect 
authorization for the Chair to enter into a legal services agreement, not County Counsel. 

 
He also announced that consent item #13 was pulled from the agenda. 

 
II. 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS   

Supervisor Carrillo reported that he had participated in a Water Bond Coalition conference 
call and announced a hearing scheduled for the Natural Resources Water and Environmental 
Quality Committee in Sacramento set for that morning. He provided an update on Senate 
Bill 42 and Assembly Bill 1331 and announced that he will participate in the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife Fishery Restoration grant program. 

 
Supervisor Gorin announced that she had participated in the Sonoma Clean Power Authority 
meeting; the Bay Conservation Development Commission meeting; and the 4-H Foundation 
Annual Fundraiser event.  

 
Supervisor Zane announced that she had attended the Sonoma County Waste Management 
Agency meeting; the Sonoma Marin Area Rail Transit Board of Directors meeting; the 
Sonoma Clean Power Authority meeting; the Clean Power Ad-hoc committee meeting; the 
Rohnert Park Founders Day parade; and the 4-H Foundation Annual Fundraiser event.  She 
gave the Board an update on AB 137. 

 
Supervisor McGuire announced that the Paws and Pasta fundraiser event had raised close to 
$97,000. He invited the Board to attend the Career Technology Education fund reception to 
welcome the new Executive Director and provided the Board with a Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority Tree Ad-Hoc Committee update.  

 



3 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Chairman Rabbitt reported that a traffic control meeting had been convened in anticipation 
of the November 5, 2013, opening of the Graton Casino in Rohnert Park. He announced that 
he had attended a meeting to discuss California State Association of Counties Tribal 
compact negotiations; the Golden Gate Bridge Highway Transportation District Board 
meeting; the Association of Bay Area Governments meeting (ABAG); and stated that he 
had been nominated to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission Labor Negotiation 
Committee and as Vice President for ABAG 

 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

(Items 1 through 23)  
 
PRESENTATIONS/GOLD RESOLUTIONS  
(Items 1 through 5) 
 
PRESENTATIONS AT BOARD MEETING  
 
1.  Presentation of Certificates - Honoring the Sebastopol World Friends delegates from 

Chyhyryn, Ukraine. (Fifth District)   
Speaker: Duane De Witt 

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
2.  Adopt a Gold Resolution proclaiming October 2013 as Domestic Violence Awareness 

Month in Sonoma County. (District Attorney/ Sheriff’s Office/Health Services/Human 
Resources/Human Services)   
Speaker: Colleen Fernald 

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

Approved by Resolution No. 13-0369 
 
3.  Adopt a Gold Resolution recognizing September 24, 2013, as National Voter Registration 

Day. (Clerk-Recorder-Assessor)   
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
Approved by Resolution No. 13-0370 
 
4.  Adopt a Gold Resolution proclaiming October 2013 Cyber Security Awareness Month. 

(Information Systems)   
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
Approved by Resolution No. 13-0371 
 
  



4 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 
PRESENTATIONS AT DIFFERENT DATE 
 
5.  Adopt a Gold Resolution honoring and acknowledging the Petaluma Creamery on the 

celebration of their 100th Anniversary. (Second District)   
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
Approved by Resolution No. 13-0372 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
6.  Disbursement of  Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Discretionary Advertising Funds (Fifth District) - 

Approve Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to 
execute a contract with the following entities for advertising and promotions activities for 
Fiscal Year 2013-14: EcoRing Farmer’s Market, $700; Farm Bureau Ag Days, $1,000; 
Graton Community Club, $1,000; Monte Rio Chamber of Commerce, $1,000; Occidental 
Community Choir, $1,000; Russian River Alliance, $1,000; Russian River Chamber of 
Commerce, $5,400; Russian River Counselors, $500; Russian River Rodeo Association, 
$1,000; Russian River Rotary Foundation, $4,000, Stewards of the Coast and Redwoods, 
$4,500; The Sea Ranch Foundation, $1,000;  Western Sonoma County Historical Society, 
$1,000.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
7.  Disbursement of Fiscal Year 2013-14 Discretionary Advertising Funds (First District) - 

Approve Advertising Program grant awards and authorize the County Administrator to 
execute a contract with the following entities for advertising and promotions activities for 
Fiscal Year 2013-14: Sonoma Valley Chorale, $2,000.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
COUNTY COUNSEL / HEALTH SERVICES 

 
8.  Authorize Sonoma County Counsel to execute a legal services agreement with the law firm 

of Foley & Lardner LLP, in an amount not to exceed $100,000, for outside counsel 
assistance regarding a State Mental Health audit finding, for a contract term through June 
30, 2015 with the option to extend the contract for an additional one year period within the 
contract amount. (4/5 vote required)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
  



5 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
(Commissioners: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 

AND 
GENERAL SERVICES / TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS / 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY FOR THE SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY 

 
9.  Agreements and Policies Related to Redevelopment Projects -   
 

(A)  Board of Supervisors and Board of Commissioners: Approve and authorize the Director 
of the General Services Department and the Executive Director of the Sonoma County 
Community Development Commission (CDC) to execute an inter-agency agreement to 
perform environmental remediation, planning, and public outreach activities for the 
Roseland Village Project, and to execute subsequent amendments to extend the term 
and to make revisions that do not materially change the scope of work or increase the 
total amount of the agreement.  

 
(B)  Board of Supervisors, Board of Successor Agency, and Board of Commissioners: 

Approve and authorize the Executive Director of the CDC, acting on behalf of the 
Successor Agency for the Sonoma County Community Redevelopment Agency 
(Successor Agency), to execute an agreement for professional services to provide 
$1,170,250 to Harris and Lee Environmental Services to perform environmental 
remediation, monitoring, testing, and related work for the Roseland Village Project.  

 
(C)  Board of Commissioners: Approve the Roseland Village Shopping Center Interim 

Temporary Use Policy.  
 

(D)  Board of Supervisors, Board of Successor Agency, and Board of Commissioners: 
Approve and authorize the Director of the Department of Transportation and Public 
Works and the Executive Director of CDC, acting on behalf of Successor Agency, to 
execute the first amendment to supplemental agreement for funding of Highway 12 
Phase 2 Stage 2 Project, extending the term of the agreement to December 31, 2016.  
(First and Fifth Districts)  

 
Speaker: Duane De Witt 
 
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
 
  



6 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

GENERAL SERVICES 
 
10.  Authorize the Chair to execute a Job Order Contract with the following contractors for the 

minimum and maximum amounts indicated: Mark Scott Construction, Inc. $25,000 - 
$3,000,000; Bay West Construction $25,000- $1,500,000; Murray Building, Inc. $25,000 - 
$1,000,000; A. E. Nelson Construction $25,000 - $1,000,000. The maximum contract term 
for all will be either one calendar year from the effective date of Notice to Proceed or when 
Job Orders totaling the maximum contract amount have been completed, whichever occurs 
first; and Adopt a Resolution delegating the authority to approve Job Orders issued under 
the above Job Order Contracts to The County Administrator, General Services Director, and 
County Architect with specific limits indicated and ordering that projects consistent with the 
purposes of Job Order Contracting be performed.   

 
Speaker: Ed ___________ 
 
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
Approved by Resolution No. 13-0373 
 

HEALTH SERVICES 
 
11.  Authorize the Director of Health Services to execute the first amendment to an agreement 

with The Lew Edwards Group to develop a public education campaign related to substance 
use prevention and education, increasing the contract by $42,465 resulting in a new not to 
exceed amount of $112,465, and extending the term from December 31, 2013 to June 30, 
2014.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
12.  Adopt Resolutions authorizing the Director of Health Services to execute Grant Agreements 

providing funding for capital costs and service expansion to: Sonoma Valley Community 
Health Center in the amount of $200,000; Petaluma Health Center in the amount of 
$150,000; and West County Health Centers in the amount of $100,000.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

Approved by Resolution No. 13-0374, 13-0375, 13-0376 
 
  



7 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
AND 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

NORTHERN SONOMA COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT 
SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 

(Directors/Commissioners: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 
 
13.  Authorize the Director of Human Resources to execute investigative services agreements in 

amounts not to exceed $100,000 per agreement, per annum, for 4 year terms with the 
following 14 selected investigative firms: J.M. Bova & Associates; Kronick, Moskovitz, 
Tiedemann & Girard; Linda Daube; McMillan & Shureen LLP; Renne, Sloan, Holtzman & 
Sakai LLP; Hirschfeld Kraemer LLP; Wise Gleicher; G4S Compliance & Investigations; 
CPS HR Consulting; Meyers Nave; Liebert Cassidy Whitmore; Jackson Lewis LLP; Porter 
Scott; and Whitestar Group, Inc.   

 
Item #13 was pulled from the agenda. 
 
14.  Approve revisions to the US Department of Transportation Alcohol and Controlled 

Substances Testing Program - Employee Policy and Procedures, effective September 24, 
2013; and Authorize the Human Resources Director to approve future administrative 
changes necessary to conform to changes in the regulations.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
PERMIT AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

 
15.  Authorize the Chair to execute a Deed and Covenant to allow one detached farm family 

dwelling unit on property located at 6801 and 6803 West Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg, 
APN 090-010-020 and -021 (File No. ZPE13-0205). (Fourth District)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
REGIONAL PARKS 

 
16.  Adopt a Resolution granting two Easement Deeds over sections of the West County Trail in 

Graton to PG&E, authorizing the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute the Easement 
Deeds for APN 130-080-070 and 130-080-082, and authorizing the Director of Regional 
Parks to execute related documents necessary to complete the transaction and file a Notice 
of Categorical Exemption pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 
(Fifth District)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

Approved by Resolution No. 13-0377 
  



8 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
17.  Ratify the Sheriff’s execution of the amendment to the Letter of Agreement with the United 

States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration, Domestic Cannabis 
Eradication/Suppression Program (DCE/SP) for the period from January 1, 2013 to 
December 31, 2013 to receive an additional $20,000 to be used for marijuana suppression 
and eradication activities.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS 

 
18.  Authorize the Chair to: (1) execute the Consent to Transfer of ownership adding additional 

partners to the lease agreement of Santa Rosa Hangar Associates, LP, tenant upon property 
at the Airport, located 3742 Becker Blvd.; (2) execute a first amendment to the 
aforementioned lease to set the rental rate to market; and (3) authorize the Director of 
Transportation & Public Works to execute any other documents reasonably required to 
effect said Consent to Transfer and the first amendment. (Fourth District)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
19.  Authorize the Chair to sign an engineering design contract with Drake Haglan & Associates, 

Inc. for the seismic retrofit of Wohler Road Bridge over the Russian River (C01136) in an 
amount not to exceed $653,454 with a term ending December 31, 2016. (Fourth and Fifth 
Districts)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
20.  Authorize the Chair to execute a contract for on-call disaster recovery management services 

to Kermani Consulting Group for an amount not to exceed $300,000 with a term ending 
August 31, 2016 with an option of two one year extensions at the discretion of the Director 
of Transportation and Public Works.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
21.  Authorize the Chair to sign an engineering design contract with Quincy Engineering, Inc. 

for the replacement of Freestone Flat Road Bridge over Salmon Creek (C11004) for an 
amount not to exceed $429,980 with a term ending December 31, 2015. (Fifth District)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
  



9 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 
 
22.  Adopt a Resolution accepting donation of Grant of Easement deed, and land for construction 

of a sidewalk in the vicinity of the new Sutter Hospital along Old Redwood Highway, Santa 
Rosa; accepting land described therein into the County highway system; authorizing the 
Chair to execute agreement for donation of Easement; authorizing proration and transfer of 
taxes on said land, and authorizing refunds, if applicable, pursuant to §5096 of the Revenue 
and Taxation Code; lands of Edward J. Venturi Family Trusts et al (APN 058-071-016); 
Project No. C12005. (Fourth District)   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

Approved by Resolution No. 13-0378 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
23.  Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of September 10, 2013 for the following:  Agricultural 

Preservation and Open Space District, Community Development Commission, Northern 
Sonoma County Air Pollution Control District, Sonoma County Water Agency, and Board 
of Supervisors.   

Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  
UNANIMOUS VOTE   

 
9:56 A.M. The Board recessed 
10:13 A.M. The Board reconvened 
 
  



10 
 

IV. REGULAR CALENDAR (Items 24 through 26)   
 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 

 
24.  Adopt a Resolution: (1) Adopting an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 

Trail Project; (2)  Approving plans and specifications for construction of the East Slope 
Sonoma Mountain Trail Project (Trail Project); (3) Approving contractor minimum 
qualification requirements and authorizing District staff to solicit bids for the Trail Project 
(Phase 1); and (4) Making certain findings, waiving competitive bidding requirements, and 
awarding a contract for construction of Phase 2 to Sonoma County Trails Council, for an 
amount not-to-exceed $9,500. (First District)   

 
10:21 A.M.  
 
Present: Bill Keene, Open Space General Manager and Sheri Emerson, Open Space Program 
Manager 
 
Speakers: 
Craig Anderson 
Tjiska Van Wyk 
Ken Wells 
Ted Eliot 
Pat Eliot 
 
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
Approved by Resolution No. 13-0379 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
(Commissioners: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 

 
25.  Conduct a public hearing and approve the Purchase Agreement for $381,000 by and 

between the Sonoma County Community Development Commission, as seller, and Dan and 
Julie Kidson, as buyers, for the former Sheriff Substation property located at 16717 Sonoma 
Highway, Agua Caliente (APN 056-562-019), and authorize and direct the Executive 
Director of the Commission to carry out all tasks necessary to comply with the terms of the 
Agreement and close escrow. (First District)   

 
10:13 A.M.  
 
Present: John Haig, Redevelopment Manager 
 
10:19 A.M. Public Hearing opened 
 
Duane De Witt 
Julie Kidson 
 



11 
 

REGULAR CALENDAR (Continued)   
Item #25 Continued 
 
10:24 A.M. Public Hearing closed 
 
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
 

GENERAL SERVICES /AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 
AND 

SONOMA COUNTY WATER AGENCY 
SONOMA COUNTY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

(Directors: Gorin, Rabbitt, Zane, McGuire, Carrillo) 
 
26.  Sonoma County Energy Independence Program Update -   
 

(A)  Acting as the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Public Finance Authority:  
Adopt two Resolutions and approve agreements with the County authorizing continued 
issuance and sale of revenue bonds, determination of interest rate and loan of funds to 
the County, to fund the Sonoma County Energy Independence Program; and  

(B)  Acting as the County Board of Supervisors:  Adopt four Resolutions authorizing the 
Treasurer to invest in bonds issued by the Public Finance Authority, and authorizing 
execution of various related agreements with the Public Finance Agency, including a 
bond purchase agreement, determination of interest rate and a loan agreement; and 
receive an update on the program activity of the Sonoma County Energy Independence 
Program (S.C.E.I.P.); and  

(C)  Acting as the Directors of the Sonoma County Water Agency:  Adopt a Resolution 
withdrawing funds from the County Treasury Pool, and authorizing the withdrawn 
funds to be invested in Sonoma County Energy Independence Program bonds as a long-
term Water Agency investment.  

 
11:00 A.M.  
 
Present: David Sundstrom, Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector & County Energy 
Independence Program Administrator; Jane Elias, Sonoma County Energy Independence 
Program Manager; Liz Yager, Energy and Sustainability Program Manager  
 
Speaker: Colleen Fernald 
 
Board Action:  Approved as Recommended  

UNANIMOUS VOTE   
 
Action (A) Approved by Resolution Nos. 13-0380, 13-0381 
Action (B) Approved by Resolution Nos. 13-0382, 13-0383, 13-0384, 13-0385 
Action (C) Approved by Resolution No. 13-0386 
 
11:53 A.M. The Board recessed to closed session. 
  



12 
 

V. CLOSED SESSION CALENDAR (Items 27 through 29)   
 
2:06 P.M. County Counsel Goldstein reported on Closed Session Items #27-29.  
 
27.  The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session:  Conference with 

Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Name of Case: County of Sonoma v. Barrios, Sonoma 
County Superior Court Case No. SCV 253201 (Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)).   

Board Action: Approval was given for the Compromise and Release of settlement of the 
litigation of County of Sonoma v. Antonio and Genny Barrios, in the amount of $12,500 and 
a Stipulated Judgment for a permanent injunction requiring the property owners to abate all 
outstanding code enforcement violations within 120 days of submittal of permit application 
package to Permit and Resource Management Department.  All permit applications are due 
no later than January 24, 2014.  Direction was also given to County Counsel to execute all 
documents necessary to effectuate the settlement. 
UNANIMOUS VOTE 

 
28.  The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session:  Conference with 

Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Name of Case: Friends of Lafferty Park, et al v. 
Pikachu II, LLC, et al, Sonoma County Superior Court Case No. SCV 253148 (Govt. Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(1)).   

Board Action: The Board will monitor the litigation and direction was given to Counsel to meet 
with the attorneys involved in the case. 
UNANIMOUS VOTE  

 
29.  The Board of Supervisors will consider the following in closed session:  Conference with 

Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Name of Case: Barella-Geney Corp., et al. v. County 
of Sonoma, et al. - Sonoma County Superior Court - Case No. SCV-249342 (Govt. Code 
Section 54956.9(d)(1)).   

Board Action: Approve a settlement of the County's claims in this lawsuit.  The County settled 
its claims against Barella-Geney Corporation, doing business as North Bay Construction, 
whereby the County will receive $500,000 from North Bay Construction and the County 
will keep its contract retention of $500,000.  The County will settle its lawsuit against 
Winzler & Kelly whereby Winzler & Kelly will pay the County $850,000, and the parties 
will execute mutual releases, with the exception of latent defects and indemnity rights from 
third party claims.  The County will dismiss its lawsuit against Winzler & Kelly.  The Board 
authorized County Counsel and the Director of the Department of Transportation and Public 
Works Department to execute all necessary settlement documents. 
UNANIMOUS VOTE  

 
  



13 
 

VI. REGULAR AFTERNOON CALENDAR (Items 30 through 34)   
 
2:06 P.M. - Reconvene from Closed Session 
 
Supervisors Present: Susan Gorin, David Rabbitt, Mike McGuire, Efren Carrillo, Shirlee Zane 
 
Present: Veronica Ferguson, County Administrator and Bruce Goldstein, County Counsel  
 
30.  Report on Closed Session.   
 
2:06 P.M. County Counsel Goldstein reported on closed session items #27-29  
 
31.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA  (Comments are 

restricted to matters within the Board’s jurisdiction.  The Board will hear public comments 
at this time for up to thirty minutes.  Please be brief and limit your comments to three 
minutes.  Any additional public comments will be heard at the conclusion of the meeting.)   

 
2:08 P.M. Public Comment Opened 
 
Colleen Fernald 
Maureen Devoe 
Richard E. Hannan 
John Jenkel 
Ed Wackerman 
Zac Britton 
Lisa Maldonado read by Thomas Bonfigli 
Diana Dodson read by Michael Tebo 
Karen Fraser 
Thomas Morabito 
Marsha Vas Dupre 
 
2:18 PM Supervisor Zane left meeting 
2:26 PM Supervisor Zane joined meeting  
 
2:37 P.M. Public Comment Closed 
 
32.  Permit and Resource Management Department:  Review and possible action on the 

following:   
a) Acts and Determinations of Planning Commission/Board of Zoning Adjustments   
b) Acts and Determinations of Project Review and Advisory Committee   
c) Acts and Determinations of Design Review Committee   
d) Acts and Determinations of Landmarks Commission   
e) Administrative Determinations of the Director of Permit and Resource Management   
 
2:37 P.M. No Acts and Determinations were acted on or reviewed. 
 
2:37 P.M. David Hurst, Deputy County Counsel replaced Bruce Goldstein, County Counsel.  
  



14 
 

REGULAR AFTERNOON CALENDAR (Continued)   
 

PERMIT AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
 
33.  ZCE12-0007 - (FIFTH DISTRICT) 

a) APPLICANT: Dutton Ranch Family Limited Partnership, a California Limited 
Partnership   

b) LOCATION: 2760 Sullivan Road, Sebastopol   
c) ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NO.: 061-030-036   
d) ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT:  Categorical Exemption   
e) REQUEST: Conduct a public hearing and consider finding the project exempt from the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and adopt an Ordinance approving a 
Zone Change from the Diverse Agriculture, Frozen Lot Size Combining Zone District 
to the Diverse Agriculture B6-20 acre density Zone District on a 19.05 acre portion of a 
parcel in order to eliminate the split zoning to fulfill a condition of a previously 
approved Lot Line Adjustment (LLA11-0034).   

 
2:37 P.M.  
 
Present: Traci Tresconi, Project Planner 
 
2:38 PM Public Hearing Open 
 
2:39 PM Public Hearing Closed 
 
Board Action: Adopt an Ordinance approving a Zone Change from the Diverse Agriculture, 
Frozen Lot Size Combining Zone District to the Diverse Agriculture B6-20 acre density Zone 
District on a 19.05 acre portion of a parcel in order to eliminate the split zoning to fulfill a 
condition of a previously approved Lot Line Adjustment (LLA11-0034). 

UNANIMOUS VOTE 
Approved by Ordinance No. 6047 
 
34.  ADJOURNMENTS   
 
2:40 P.M. The Board adjourned the meeting in memory of DeNice Copelin, Richard H. Fedrick 
and Patti Rosen. The meeting was adjourned to October 8, 2013 at 8:30 A.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Michelle Arellano, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board  
 



 
ACTION SUMMARY 

SPECIAL MEETING  
COUNTY OF SONOMA 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2013 

575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 102A 
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 

________________________________________________________________________ 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma met this date in adjourned session 
with the following members present: Susan Gorin, David Rabbitt, Shirlee Zane, Mike 
McGuire, Efren Carrillo 
 
Chairman David Rabbitt presiding 
 
Present: Bruce Goldstein, County Counsel 

Veronica A. Ferguson, County Administrator 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

9:03 A.M. Chairman Rabbitt called the meeting to order. 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS LISTED ON THE AGENDA  

None. 
  

9:03 A.M.  The Board recessed to closed session. 
 

IV. CLOSED SESSION CALENDAR 
 

1. The County of Sonoma Board of Supervisors will meet in closed session for the 
following: Public Employee Appointment – Permit and Resource Management 
Department Head Recruitment. Agency Negotiator: Wendy Macy, Director of 
Human Resources and Norm Roberts, Roberts Consulting Group (Govt. Code 
Section 54957). 

 
V. ADJOURN 
 

12:30 P.M. Adjourn to October 8, 2013 at 8:30 A.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Michelle Arellano, Chief Deputy Clerk    



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 13
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor Susan Gorin, 565-3752 First District 

Title: Appointment 

Recommended Actions: 

Reappoint Mike Sangiacomo to the Agricultural Preservation and Open Space Fiscal Oversight 
Commission effective 11/08/2013 and expiring on 11/07/15. (First District) 

Executive Summary: 

 

Prior Board Actions: 

 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 4: Civic Services and Engagement 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 14
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor Susan Gorin, 565-3752 First District 

Title: Appointment 

Recommended Actions: 

Reappoint Wendy Peterson to the Sonoma County Tourism Board effective 01/01/2014 and expiring on 
12/31/15. (First District) 

Executive Summary: 

 

Prior Board Actions: 

 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 4: Civic Services and Engagement 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $  County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 15
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: No Vote Required 

Department or Agency Name(s): Board of Supervisors 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Supervisor David Rabbitt 565-2241 Second 

Title: Appointment 

Recommended Actions: 

Reappoint Jennifer Buffo to the Sonoma County Tourism Board representing the Second District for a 
term of two years ending 12/31/15. 

Executive Summary: 

 

Prior Board Actions: 

 

Strategic Plan Alignment Not Applicable 

 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $   $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

 

Attachments: 

 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 16
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s):  General Services, Sheriff, Probation, CAO 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Ed Buonaccorsi 707-565-2550 County-wide 

Title: Community Corrections Center 

Recommended Actions: 

Endorse the new justice facilities project concept as presented.  

 Adopt a Resolution authorizing the application for State S.B. 1022 funding in the amount of $24,000,000 for the 
construction of a Community Corrections Center. If the State offers a conditional award, staff will return to your 
Board as appropriate for approval of specific project components.  

Executive Summary: 

Sonoma County has the opportunity to leverage substantial funding for adult criminal justice facilities. By taking 
advantage of State funding that has become available to Sonoma County through the 2011 A.B. 900 financing 
process and by submitting a companion funding request for additional funds now available through S.B. 1022, the 
County can address some detention facility needs and pursue the construction of a Community Corrections 
Center (C.C.C.).   Developing a Community Corrections Center is one of the key elements of the Sonoma County 
Criminal Justice Master Plan.  If successful with its application the County could receive up to 9 dollars in state 
bond proceeds funding for every 1 dollar the county expends to build a new justice facility that will contain an 80 
bed Community Corrections Center, 80 minimum security detention beds, programming and administrative space 
and a new cook chill kitchen with a total value estimated at $67 million.  

The Facility: Staff is proposing a 160 bed facility, to be built adjacent to M.A.D.F., to meet some of the housing 
needs of the Sheriff’s Office and to provide for a small Community Corrections Center.  The facility would 
include 80 locked, minimum security detention beds, managed by the Sheriff’s Office.  This will provide more 
flexibility overall for managing offender housing needs.   The facility also provides an 80 bed Community 
Corrections Center consistent with the original intent of the Criminal Justice Master Plan, but it is much 
smaller than the originally recommended 350 bed facility. The new facility additionally contains program and 
administrative space and a new cook chill kitchen to serve the needs of all adult detention facilities. The C.C.C. 
will be designed for conversion to a full minimum secure detention facility, and the minimum security 
detention beds will be designed for conversion to C.C.C. beds, should that flexibility be necessary for overall 
management of adult offenders in the future.  Operational methodologies and structures are outlined in a 
preliminary staffing plan that accompanies the application, and will be finalized prior to construction.   



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Further details are included in Attachment A. 

A.B. 900: On January 10, 2012, your Board adopted a resolution approving the application requesting $43 
million in grant financing from A. B. 900 funding for a 160 bed C.C.C., as required by the Board of State and 
Community Corrections (B.S.C.C.), with Sonoma County proposing to provide an additional $9 million in 
matching funds, for a total project of $52 million. Sonoma County was placed on the list of eligible counties.  
However, at the time grant financing funding was awarded, the available funding was exhausted and Sonoma 
County did not receive any funds.   Since that time, funding has become available to fund additional eligible 
projects and Sonoma County has been conditionally offered $36 million. Staff is working with the State to 
secure this grant funding, based on previous Board direction and approval. 

S.B. 1022: On July 23, 2013, the B.S.C.C. issued a Request for Proposal for S.B. 1022 funding to finance the 
construction of Adult Criminal Justice Facilities. County staff recommends submitting an application for 
additional S.B. 1022 funds to be leveraged with   the $36 million of A.B. 900 to construct a justice facility that 
would provide 160 beds of housing provided by A.B. 900 and constructing the programming and kitchen 
components that intrinsic with the C.C.C. The proposed facility development strategy would provide a 
Community Corrections Center (C.C.C.) that has 80 unsecured transitional beds bed and, separately, 80 beds 
of minimum security detention housing at the County Center in a manner that best leverages outside funding 
sources and offers flexibility in managing adult offenders.  

Capital Project Budget and Funding Strategy: The total capital budget for the minimum security detention 
beds, CCC and a central cook/chill kitchen is estimated at $66,676,432 escalated to the mid-point of 
construction. This budget includes site work, utilities, building construction, design, consultants, project 
management, permits, fees, furniture and equipment, and contingencies. 

Summary of Project Costs 

Fund Source/Project 
Component 

State Funding County Match Funding  
(including land value) 

Total Budget 

A.B. 900-Housing Areas $36 million $4.0 million $40 million 
S.B. 1022-
Program/Kitchen Areas 

$24 million $2.68 million $26.68 million 

Total C.C.C. Project $60.0 million $6.68 million $66.68 million 
 

Source of County Match Funds 

Both A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 authorize the value of the land to be used as part of the County’s match.  An 
appraisal of the land values the land at $1,995,000, making the remaining county cash match to be $4.68 
million. The proposed capital funding sources for the County’s share is the Criminal Justice Construction Fund 
(C.J.C.F.) and Tobacco Securitization Fund.   

Funding Stream and Process 

The S.B. 1022 application is due to B.S.C.C. no later than October 24, 2013.  Conditional Awards will be 
approved by the Executive Steering Committee in January, 2014.  If the County receives a conditional award, 
the County will be responsible for providing funding for all design work, estimated to be $1.1 million.  State 
reimbursement will not occur until the project has received final approval.  There is some risk that if the State 
does not sell the bonds for this project, the County will not be reimbursed for the design costs. 

The State funding for both A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 will be from the issuance of lease-revenue bonds. The State 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

will be responsible to repay the bonds at maturity.  During the term of these bonds (approximately 25 years 
after the bonds are sold), the State Public Works Board (S.P.W.B.) will hold an irrevocable lease interest in the 
facility.  The S.P.W.B. will lease the facility to B.S.C.C., who will in turn sub-lease the facility to the county. 

SB 1022 Project Documents/Requested Action: The application process for the S.B. 1022 funding requires 
your Board adopt a resolution including certain requisite components.  The attached resolution provides the 
requisite components and language required by the B.S.C.C.  The proposed action does not obligate the 
County to a financial commitment until the conditions established by the B.S.C.C. are met and the projects 
have received final approval.  The proposed resolution indicates to the B.S.C.C. the County’s commitment to 
working with the B.S.C.C. to meet these conditions and construct the project as described above.   

1. The proposed resolution identifies the preference criteria the County wishes to pursue to submit the 
strongest possible application.  The proposed resolution: 
a. Commits adequate contribution of County funds.  This also includes authorization to proceed 

with the project when State financing is awarded. 
b. Includes documentation required for the initial Real Estate Due Diligence Package. 
c. States that the County will complete the CEQA process in a timely manner. 
d. States that the Board approves the Project Documents as to form. See attached staff report for 

discussion of risks.  
2. The proposed resolution includes project authorizations and assurances. The proposed resolution: 

a. Names County Officials to various roles and authorizes signatures as required by the program 
guidelines. 

b. Provides assurance that the County will adhere to the requirement and terms of any agreements 
with the State. 

c. Provides assurance that the County will operate the facility within 90 days of project completion. 
d. Provides assurance that the County will not lease any portion to other entities for a period of 10 

years after project completion. 
e. Provides assurance that the County owns the project site and the fair market value of the site, 

appraisal value of $1.995 million. 
If the County receives a conditional award from the B.S.C.C. for S.B. 1022 funding, staff will continue a due 
diligence and project definition process with the B.S.C.C. Staff would, as part of this process, bring various 
components back to the Board for discussion and approval.  These components are discussed in more detail 
in Attachment A, which provides additional information about the Sonoma County Criminal Justice master 
Plan, the A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 funding opportunities and which includes additional detail about the new 
justice facility project concept, including preliminary Project Operating Costs, Funding Strategy and Project 
Risks. . 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends your Board endorse the new justice facilities project concept as presented.  

 Staff further recommends your Board adopt a resolution authorizing the application for State S.B. 1022 
Funding in the amount of $24,000,000 for a Community Corrections Center.  If the state offers a conditional 
award, staff will return to your Board as appropriate for approval of specific project components. 

Prior Board Actions: 

12/05/06: Approval of contract for Analysis of Criminal Justice System and Alternatives to Incarceration with 
David Bennett. 

02/26/08: Consultant Services Agreement with David Bennett for Phase 2 work on the Sonoma County Criminal 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Justice Master Plan. 

01/11/10 – Receive reports on the Upstream Investments Project, the Juvenile Justice System Study, and Phase 2 
Adult Criminal Justice Master Plan Report, and provide direction on these projects. 

1/10/12: Adopt a resolution authorizing the application for State A.B. 900 Phase 2 funding in the amount of 
$43,000,000 for a Community Corrections Center. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 1: Safe, Healthy, and Caring Community 

The C.C.C. provides a model for the use of alternate detention facilities and strategies for reducing incarceration 
costs, reducing recidivism rates, and improving offender re-entry outcomes. 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 158,000 County General Fund $ 158,000 

Add Appropriations Reqd. $ 1,100,000 State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $  Total Sources $  

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Preparation of the S.B. 1022 application is funded from the General Fund and the Community Corrections 
Partnership.  Should the State award funds to the County, it is expected that an additional $1,100,000 will 
be expended in F.Y. 13-14 to work with the State to establish the project and initiate design.  This 
$1,100,000 will be considered eligible project costs. Staff will return in a future Consolidated Budget 
Adjustment to appropriate these funds, if the project is funded by the State. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

This will be incorporated in operations plan, if a Conditional Award is received. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Attachments: 

Board Resolution approving the funding application.   

Attachment A: S.B. 1022 County Jail Capital Financing – Community Corrections Center, dated Oct. 15, 2013 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2012 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Supervisors Of The County Of Sonoma, State 
Of California, Authorizing the Application For State Lease-Revenue Bond 
Financing From The Board of State and Community Corrections For County 
Jail Funding In The Amount Of $24,000,000 for a Community Corrections 
Center.  

 
Whereas, the General Services Director has submitted to this Board an application to the 

Board of State and Community Corrections for lease-revenue bond financing in the amount of 
$24,000,000 from funds made available per Senate Bill Number 1022, authorizing State lease-
revenue bond financing for the acquisition, design and construction of adult local criminal justice 
facilities (“Application”); and   

 
Whereas, the County’s Strategic Plan found criminal justice costs continue to require an 

ever larger amount of County discretionary funding and recommended identifying means to 
intervene in this unsustainable trend; and 

 
Whereas, the Board of Supervisors approved recommendations in its Criminal Justice 

Master Plan – Phase 2 to address the ever increasing cost of the criminal justice system by taking 
a systems approach which protects public safety and offers a range of detention alternatives that 
provide the justice system with custody and offender programs to reduce recidivism; and 

 
Whereas, a Community Corrections Center addresses a pivotal recommendation from 

the Criminal Justice Master Plan – Phase 2 by implementing an array of supports and systems to 
improve offender outcomes; and 

 
Whereas, a Community Corrections Center is consistent with the Sonoma County Public 

Safety Realignment Interim Plan (2011), developed to prepare the county for the forthcoming 
increase to its inmate population following AB 109; and 

 
Whereas, the latest needs assessment shows that the County’s Main Adult Detention 

Facility needs to expand to keep up with its growing special needs population; and 
 
Whereas, the existing kitchen cannot meet certain functional needs of the Main Adult 

Detention Facility and has physical deficiencies and is in need of replacement; and 
 
Whereas, the Application contemplates construction of a potential Community 



Resolution #1 
Date:  10/15/2013 
Page 2 
 
Corrections Center which would address these needs, as today described to this Board, but does 
not commit the County to accept any funds, nor does it commit the County to approve, or 
prevent the County from altering, the potential project; and  

 
Whereas, as a condition of the Application, this Board is asked to make the findings, 

declarations, and determinations contained herein.  
 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that this Board finds, declares and determines as 

follows:  
 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
2. The County of Sonoma is seeking the following preference criteria: 
 
PREFERENCE CRITERION #1: Adequate County Contribution Funds  

The County of Sonoma (the “County”) is seeking funding preference for its proposed 
project within the Adult Local Criminal Justice Facilities Construction Financing 
Program (the “SB 1022 Financing Program”).  As such, the Board of Supervisors of 
Sonoma County does hereby represent, warrant and covenant as follows: 

1) Lawfully Available Funds.  The county cash contribution funds, as 
described in the documentation accompanying the County’s SB 1022 Financing Program 
Proposal Form, have been derived exclusively from lawfully available funds of the 
County. 

2) County Cash Contribution Funds Are Legal and Authorized.  The payment 
of the county cash contribution funds for the proposed adult local criminal justice facility 
project (the “Project”) (i) is within the power, legal right, and authority of the County; (ii) 
is legal and will not conflict with or constitute on the part of the County a material 
violation of, a material breach of, a material default under, or result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien, charge, restriction, or encumbrance upon any property of the 
County under the provisions of any charter instrument, bylaw, indenture, mortgage, deed 
of trust, pledge, note, lease, loan, installment sale agreement, contract, or other material 
agreement or instrument to which the County is a party or by which the County or its 
properties or funds are otherwise subject or bound, decree, or demand of any court or 
governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the County or any of its activities, 
properties or funds; and (iii) have been duly authorized by all necessary and appropriate 
action on the part of the governing body of the County. 

3) No Prior Pledge.  The county cash contribution funds and the Project are 
not and will not be mortgaged, pledged, or hypothecated by the County in any manner or 
for any purpose and have not been and will not be the subject of a grant of a security 
interest by the County.  In addition, the county cash contribution funds and the Project 
are not and will not be mortgaged, pledged, or hypothecated for the benefit of the County 
or its creditors in any manner or for any purpose and have not been and will not be the 
subject of a grant of a security interest in favor of the County or its creditors.  The County 
shall not in any manner impair, impede or challenge the security, rights and benefits of 



Resolution #1 
Date:  10/15/2013 
Page 3 
 

the owners of any lease-revenue bonds sold by the State Public Works Board for the 
Project (the “Bonds”) or the trustee for the Bonds. 

4) Authorization to Proceed with the Project.  The Project proposed in the 
County’s SB 1022 Financing Program proposal is authorized to proceed in its entirety 
when and if state financing is awarded for the Project within the SB 1022 Financing 
Program.   

5) Authorization of funds for County Match.  County matching funding in the 
amount required by an award of funds from SB 1022 is herby authorized from the 
Tobacco Securitization/Endowment Fund upon state financing being awarded the Project 
within the SB 1022 Financing Program. 
 
PREFERENCE CRITERION #2: Real Estate Due Diligence 

The County is seeking funding preference for submittal of the complete initial real estate 
due diligence package.   

 
PREFERENCE CRITERION #3: CEQA Compliance   

The County is in the process of meeting this criterion.  Should the County receive a 
conditional award, the Board of Supervisors is committed to completing the CEQA 
process in a timely manner.  Based on past experience with projects at the County Center, 
a negative declaration is expected. 

 
PREFERENCE CRITERION #4: Authorization of Project Documents  

The County is seeking funding preference associated with review of and authorization to 
execute the project documents required within the SB 1022 Financing Program.  As such, 
the Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County does hereby approve the form of the Project 
Delivery and Construction Agreement, the Board of State and Community Corrections 
Jail Construction Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Right of Entry for Construction and 
Operation, and the Facility Sublease.  Contingent upon final project approval by the 
Board, the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, or designee (the “Authorized Officer”), 
acting alone, is hereby authorized for and in the name of the County to execute, and the 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors is authorized to attest, the Project Delivery and 
Construction Agreement, the Board of State and Community Corrections Jail 
Construction Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Right of Entry for Construction and 
Operation, and the Facility Sublease, in substantially the form hereby approved, with 
such additions thereto and changes therein as are required by the BSCC or the State 
Public Works Board to effectuate the SB 1022 Financing Program and as condition to the 
issuance of the Bonds.  Approval of such changes shall be conclusively evidenced by the 
execution and delivery thereof by the Authorized Officer, who, acting alone, is 
authorized to approve such changes. 



Resolution #1 
Date:  10/15/2013 
Page 4 
 

The Authorized Officer is authorized to execute these respective agreements at such time 
and in such manner as is necessary within the SB 1022 Financing Program.  The 
Authorized Officer and the Director of the General Services Department of the County, 
or designee, is further authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all 
documents required to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Project Delivery 
and Construction Agreement, the Board of State and Community Corrections Jail 
Construction Agreement, the Ground Lease, the Right of Entry for Construction and 
Operation, and the Facility Sublease. 

3.  For the purposes of the potential project, the County Construction Administrator shall 
be Ed Buonaccorsi, Deputy Director Facilities Development and Management, the Project 
Financial Officer shall be José Obregón, Director of the General Services Department, and the 
Project Contact person shall be Mark Hummel, Associate Architect. 

 
4.  José Obregón, Director of the General Services Department, is hereby authorized to 

sign the assurance statement and submit the Application for funding. 
 
5.  This Board hereby offers its assurance that all County officers, agents and employees 

will adhere to State requirements and terms of any agreements to be executed between the 
County, the Board of State and Community Corrections and the State Public Works Board in the 
expenditure of any State financing allocation and County contribution funds. 

 
6.  This Board hereby offers its assurance that the County has appropriated, or will 

appropriate after notification of conditional award of financing but before state/county financing 
agreements, the amount of county cash contribution identified by the County on the financing 
program proposal form submitted to the Board of State and Community Corrections; the County 
acknowledges the need to identify the source of funds for county cash contribution, and assures 
that the cash match contribution does not supplant (replace) funds otherwise dedicated or 
appropriated for construction activities.   

 
7.  This Board hereby offers its assurance that, should the project be approved and 

completed, the County will safely staff and operate the facility for which funds are being 
requested (consistent with Title 15, California Code of Regulations) within 90 days after project 
completion. 

 
8.  The County certifies that it is not and will not be leasing housing capacity in this SB 

1022 financed adult local criminal justice facility to any other public or private entity for a period 
of 10 years beyond the completion date of the adult local criminal justice facility. 

 
9.  The County owns the site of the potential project in fee simple and owns and controls 

rights of access to the site sufficient to assure undisturbed use and possession of the site, and, 
following the Board of State and Community Corrections notice of conditional award and during 
the term of subsequent negotiations and any resulting financing agreements, will not dispose of, 
modify the use of, or change the terms of real property title, or other interest in the site of the 
facility subject to construction, or lease the facility for operation by other entities, without 
permission and instruction of the Board of State and Community Corrections. 



Resolution #1 
Date:  10/15/2013 
Page 5 
 

 
10.  The fair market value of the land proposed to be used for the potential facility is 

estimated as of this date to be $1,995,000 and the land is not encumbered under any existing 
agreement or court order.  

 
11.  The Director of the General Services Department is authorized to submit the 

Application on behalf of the County for State S.B. 1022 Funding in the amount of $24,000,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
  
This attachment provides additional detail about the Sonoma County Criminal Justice Master Plan, the 
facilities needs of the adult detention facilities under the control of the Sonoma County Sheriff’s 
Department and the opportunity presented to construct a new justice facility substantially funded by 
both State financing sources through A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 grant funds.   Information is provided on: 

 The Sonoma County Criminal Justice Master Plan 

 Adult Detention Facilities Needs Assessment and deficiencies identified at the Main Adult 
Detention Facility (M.A.D.F.) 

 The proposed new justice facility 

 A summary of both A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 funding opportunities 

 A summary of the County’s 2012 application under A.B. 900  

 The Key steps in the S.B. 1022 process  

 Preliminary Program and Operations Budget for the Proposed New Facility 

 A summary of Potential Risks associated with SB1022 and initial strategies to address them  

 

The Sonoma County Criminal Justice Master Plan 

The initial 2007 County Strategic Plan found that criminal justice costs were requiring an increasing 
portion of county discretionary funding. This reduces funds available for other services, a trend that 
would continue if ways to intervene were not found. For example, in FY 09-10, the County spent over 
$200 million from the General Fund directly on the Criminal Justice system, or over 50 percent of the 
General Fund; this includes the services and programs of the Sonoma County Sheriff’s Office, the 
District Attorney’s Office, the Public Defender’s Office and conflict counsel costs, the Probation 
Department, and funding for offender treatment programs offered through the Sonoma County 
Department of Health Services. These costs are in addition to those incurred by local law 
enforcement agencies and the Sonoma Superior Courts.    

At the time the County was preparing its first strategic Plan in 2006 and 2007, efforts were underway 
to develop a master plan for the criminal justice system triggered by a potentially serious future 
deficiency in the number of jail beds looking into the future.  

In December 2007 the first Phase of the County's Criminal Justice Master Plan was presented. It 
found that Sonoma County could reduce the number of jail beds projected as needed in the future by 
taking steps to improve system functioning.   Recommendations included: 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 2 of 1  

 Plan a Community Corrections Center (C.C.C.), a new program and facility paradigm for 
serving jail time that is focused on holding offenders accountable while positively 
reintegrating them into the community. 

 Link Program Resources to Offender Risk to better allocate resources and to craft individual 
offender change strategies 

 Develop a Continuum of Program Services to be available across custody-to-community 
continuum that includes a day reporting center and evidence based programs designed to 
foster continuity of services, improve offender outcomes and expand the availability of lower 
cost intervention options. 

 Implement a Comprehensive Pre-Trial Services program: a strategy designed to provide 
front-end screening for all persons booked into jail, support jail management, reduce pre-
trial failure, and facilitate efficient case processing. 

 Develop an Early Case Resolution Program: A strategy designed to improve system efficiency 
by expediting case processing through the court system.  

Phase 2 of the Criminal Justice Master Plan, with work conducted in 2008 and 2009, further developed 
these recommendations.  Included among them was implementation of the Early Case Resolution 
program, early planning for a Pre-trial Services program and development of a preliminary program and 
facilities cost estimate for a 350 bed Community Corrections Center. The Master Plan explores a new 
paradigm for the adult criminal justice system and through a “systems approach,” which acknowledges 
that new jail beds alone cannot solve a county’s detention facilities overcrowding problems. In a systems 
approach, the intent is to develop a strategy which protects public safety and offers a range of detention 
alternatives that provide the justice system with custody and offender programs to reduce recidivism, 
while providing for adequate jail beds. 

A key recommendation in the master plan was the construction of a 350 bed Community Corrections 
Center (C.C.C.). At that time, the estimated capital investment was $108 million and the estimated 
annual operating cost was $16,200,000. Due to the high capital and operational costs, brought forward 
during very fiscally challenging times, it was recommended that staff consider a pilot C.C.C. at North 
County Detention Facility (N.C.D.F.), which would have reduced jail capacity, and utilize some of the 
existing inactive detention housing units. Due to a lack of funding and the general consensus that the 
County Administration Center complex is the more viable C.C.C. location, staff deferred the 
development of the pilot C.C.C. at the N.C.D.F. 

With the economic downturn experienced beginning with the FY 2009-10 fiscal year budget, efforts 
focused on preserving as much of the core criminal justice system programming and offender resources 
as possible, but little could be done to advance additional recommendations contained within the 
Criminal Justice Master Plan until the passage of A.B. 900 which presented a first opportunity for 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 3 of 1  

facilities funding.   In late 2011, Sonoma County began planning to apply for some facilities funding 
made available by A.B. 900 Phase II. 

Adult Detention Facilities Needs Assessment 
As a requirement to justify the need for A.B. 900 Phase II funds, Sonoma County contracted with Voorhis 
/ Robertson Justice Services (V.R.J.S.) to perform a needs assessment to be included in the A.B. 900 
Phase II application. This assessment was recently updated to support the current S.B. 1022 application. 
The needs assessment report has resulted in a number of findings and/or recommendations for Sonoma 
County.  

1. The first major finding is that currently, Sonoma County has 1,476 adult beds within the Criminal 
Justice System. In summary terms, those beds are distributed with 915 beds at M.A.D.F. and 561 
beds at N.C.D.F. 

2. The second major finding is that while there is system capacity available to meet projected 
need, the current system does not have enough of the “right” type of beds to meet future 
demand. Future demand is based on the effects of an increasing number of special population 
inmates (requiring single cells, sub-divided dayrooms and recreation yards to support the jails 
inmate classification system), effects of A.B. 109 – Criminal Justice Realignment, and the goals of 
the County to reduce criminal behavior and recidivism through the implementation of special 
programming and alternatives to detention such as a Community Corrections Center. 

3. The third major finding is that by the year 2018 when the new justice facility would come on 
line, Sonoma County will require 1,241 system beds for the housing of the offender population. 
Whereas A.B. 900 Phase II funding addressed projected needs to the year 2018, the S.B. 1022 
funding only addresses the projected needs to the year 2014. The current total system bed 
capacity is 1,476 beds. Therefore, the County’s current total bed capacity exceeds the year 2014 
projected need. However, the issue for the County is not the total number of beds, but the lack 
of the “right” beds at the right location that support the County’s Criminal Justice Master Plan 
(C.J.M.P.) 

4. The fourth major finding and the basis for pursuing A.B. 900 Phase II and S.B. 1022 is the fact 
that the projected number of beds required for year 2018 should be an aggregation of 328 
single cells for high risk special populations (risk is defined as the potential for the individual to 
harm others and/or themselves or be harmed by others), 765 multiple occupancy detention 
cells/dorms for medium and low risk offenders, and 147 multiple occupancy dorms for low risk 
community corrections residents for a total of 1,241. There are currently 260 special needs cells 
and a projected need for 328 by 2018, a shortfall of 68 cells.  

5. The fifth major finding is that three operational deficiencies exist within the current system, in 
particular at M.A.D.F. Those deficiencies are: 

a) Limitations in the M.A.D.F. booking and release area impact the ability of staff to safely 
and effectively manage inmates during that process.  

b) Due to the need to align bed and inmate types, housing unit improvements or special 
unit additions are required to increase the staff ability to manage the increase in special 
population inmates.  

c) The current kitchen was sized for a smaller inmate population of 700, not the current 
M.A.D.F. capacity of 915; much less the combined bed capacity of M.A.D.F. and N.C.D.F. 
capacity of 1,476, if a combined kitchen scenario were to be considered. In addition, 
improvements beyond capacity are required to respond to long-term future demands. 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 4 of 1  

 

In response to these major findings and the C.J.M.P. goals and objectives, the needs assessment 
report identified the following major recommendations:  

1. Construct an 80 bed Community Corrections Center to support the recommendations of the 
previous Criminal Justice Master Plan and to align with the goals of Sonoma County to reduce 
criminal behavior and recidivism. 

2. Construct 80 minimum security beds. 
3. Continue with the phased in strategy to implement the required type of housing unit 

improvements within the M.A.D.F. so that special populations can be managed in a safe and 
effective manner. 

4. Construct a new cook-chill kitchen with the capacity to serve the projected inmate population 
resulting in reduced meal services operating costs.  The cook-chill kitchen must be able to 
provide meals for all adult detention system inmates.  

Main Adult Detention Facility Deficiencies Report 
 
Upon receipt of Criminal Justice Master Plan  Phase 2 report  in January 2010,  your Board also 
directed further study of the facility deficiencies at the M.A.D.F. as they relate to general operations 
and special inmate needs. Staff was directed to analyze the deficiencies and provide more detailed 
recommendations for mitigation.  A report, “Main Adult Detention Facility Expansion Project / 
Current Deficiencies / Architectural and Operational Options” was completed in January 2011. The 
report was prepared by V.R.J.S., H.O.K. Architects, the Sheriff’s Office and General Services. The 
report identified and prioritized the deficiencies as follows: 

1. Booking / Intake 
2. Kitchen 
3. Housing Unit Modifications 
4. M.A.D.F. Court Holding 
5. Public Lobby and Visitation 
6. Administration 

 
The report recommends initial resources should be focused on the top three priorities until 
completed. To that end, the County’s Capital Project Plan (C.P.P.) for prior fiscal years and Fiscal Year 
2013/14 has recommended funding to address these needs. Most recently, improvements, at the 
request of the Sheriff’s Office, have focused on special needs cells and housing units, resulting in the 
hardening of jail cells and subdividing dayrooms and recreation yards to allow the Sheriff’s Office to 
further segregate an increasingly complex and dangerous inmate population as categorized by the 
Objective Inmate Classification System. 

The January 2011 report identifies many deficiencies within the “Booking” area. In short, the Booking 
area needs to be expanded to address the increased level of activity, to facilitate more effective and 
secure separation and processing of offenders, and to reduce the increased liability that occurs with 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 5 of 1  

less than desired levels of inmate supervision at peak workload times. The current space and 
structural configuration of the M.A.D.F. is such that the most efficient and least costly means of 
expanding the Booking area would be by relocating the existing M.A.D.F. kitchen from its current 
location adjacent to Booking. This strategy is facilitated and amplified by the fact that the existing 
kitchen has exceeded its operating life and will soon require replacement of most of the existing 
equipment. 

To address the kitchen deficiencies, and in recognition of  the need to utilize the space for Booking 
operations, the report recommends the County relocate kitchen operations outside the perimeter of 
the M.A.D.F and use the cook-chill model to meet its food operational needs. Subsequent kitchen 
infrastructure failures and costly repairs support a strategy for relocation. . It is estimated that the 
capital costs would be approximately $4 million less to build a new kitchen outside the M.A.D.F than 
to remodel the current kitchen. This would allow the County to meet all of its adult detention facility 
food needs from one facility, reducing annual staffing and food costs. In addition, having a cook-chill 
facility would afford the option of contracting such services to a variety of entities that provide meals 
as part of their services.    

In addition to the reduced capital needs, it is estimated that the cook-chill process can reduce the 
County’s annual food and staffing costs by approximately $500,000 by preparing meals for the C.C.C., 
M.A.D.F. and N.C.D.F. In addition, preliminary discussions with other counties have generated 
interest in Sonoma County potentially providing food services to other counties. Staff is of the 
opinion that having a viable central kitchen is essential to any detention facility system, including one 
with a C.C.C., and thus the S.B. 1022 application will include funds for a central cook-chill kitchen. 
Staff would also continue discussions about providing food service to other counties and programs as 
a means of generating revenue. 

The New Facility Concept 

Staff is proposing a 160 bed facility, to be built adjacent to M.A.D.F., to meet some of the housing 
needs of the Sheriff’s Office and to provide for a small Community Corrections Center.  The facility 
would include 80 locked, minimum security detention beds, managed by the Sheriff’s Office.  This will 
provide more flexibility overall for managing offender housing needs.   The facility also provides an 80 
bed Community Corrections Center consistent with the original intent of the Criminal Justice Master 
Plan, but it is much smaller than the originally recommended 350 bed facility. The new facility 
additionally contains program and administrative space and a new cook chill kitchen to serve the 
needs of all adult detention facilities. The C.C.C. will be designed for conversion to a full minimum 
secure detention facility, and the minimum security detention beds will be designed for conversion to 
C.C.C. beds, should that flexibility be necessary for overall management of adult offenders in the 
future.   The facility concept now proposed represents a shift from the original size of a C.C.C. as 
recommended in the County of Sonoma’s Criminal Justice Master Plan. The original concept was that 
of a fully residential, program-oriented, non-secured facility operated by the Probation Department. 
This concept has been influenced by the subsequent A.B. 109 (Realignment) inmate environment 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 6 of 1  

such that it now includes a separate minimum security detention housing component operated by 
the Sheriff to provide needed inmate housing flexibility.  The requirements imposed by the two 
funding sources have also impacted this change in design. The overall bed size of the new facility is 
dictated by the limitations of available state financing dollars and the County’s available funding 
match. The legislation requires the S.B. 1022-funded portion of the overall facility be under the 
jurisdiction of the County Sheriff as well.  An operational agreement will be developed between the 
Sheriff’s Office and Probation Department so that the C.C.C. component will be managed by the 
Probation Department. 

Though the proposed Community Corrections Center component is limited to 80 beds, it 
nevertheless supports the reintegration of individuals back into the Community and is a priority 
linchpin to a systems approach to managing offenders. All C.C.C. residents will live in a non-secured 
housing setting and will participate in extensive treatment and therapeutic programs. Individuals 
who participate in the C.C.C. can either be received from custody or from the community.  

The facility will also have a secure housing component for minimum security inmates who have been 
identified as higher risk for re-offending. Those inmates will also participate in programs and at some 
point during their confinement may be eligible, depending on behavior, needs and risk level, to move 
into the C.C.C.  

The principal goal of the new facility is to create an environment that facilitates a successful 
transition back to the community and reduce the potential for reoffending. Individual case plans are 
designed to address conditions of supervision, court orders, treatment needs, community safety, 
victim restitution, and successful transition back to the community. Issues addressed include, but are 
not limited to, employment, cognitive programming, and substance abuse. 

A range of services are envisioned to be offered in the new facility to address criminal risk. These may 
include: 

a) Substance abuse treatment 
b) Mental health evaluation and services 
c) Cognitive skills classes 
d) Employment testing and job search assistance 
e) G.E.D. and literacy classes 
f) Life skills: nutrition, parenting, money management, computer skills, culinary skills 
g) Day Reporting Center (D.R.C.) 

 
The C.C.C., along with the jail, operates as part of a continuum of custody to community-based 
resources. Having both facilities provides a jurisdiction with increased flexibility to manage its 
offender population, while providing the offender a graduated re-entry to the community. Most 
importantly, working in unison, both housing options can increase the potential for successful 
rehabilitation and lower recidivism rates, reducing the need for more costly strategies and facilities.    

 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 7 of 1  

Facility Funding 

A.B. 900 

In October 2011, the State of California Correction Standards Authority (C.S.A.) issued a Request for 
Applications to counties that may be interested in applying for A.B.900 Phase II financing for the 
construction or expansion of county jails. Staff was of the opinion that pursuing A.B.900 funds may 
facilitate the eventual construction of a C.C.C. at the County Center in alignment with the 
recommendations in the County’s Criminal Justice Master Plan and also in line with the State’s 
realignment plan to shift state inmates to the local jurisdiction (A.B. 109), and thus submitted an 
Interest Statement to the C.S.A..  The C.S.A responded to the interest statement by inviting Sonoma 
County to submit an application for capital financing. 

With Board approval, Staff submitted an application for financing from A.B.900 Phase II and was 
successful in being placed on the list of counties to receive financing.  However, due to the County’s 
placement on the list, the available financing ran out before any could be awarded to Sonoma 
County.  In September, 2013 staff received notification from Board of State and Community 
Corrections (B.S.C.C., formerly C.S.A.) staff that San Joaquin County had declined their A.B. 900 Phase 
I award, and therefore, $36,000,000 in funding had become available for Sonoma County’s project, 
sufficient to fund only the housing portion of the facility. 

S.B. 1022 

Following the award of A.B.900 Phase II financing, the State Legislature enacted S.B. 1022, providing 
up to $500,000,000 in state lease-revenue bond financing authority for acquisition, design and 
construction of adult criminal justice facilities in California.  On July 23, 2013, the B.S.C.C, issued a 
request for proposal (R.F.P.) to establish conditional awardees and allocate financing as authorized by 
S.B. 1022.  S.B. 1022 provides up to $160,000,000 in state lease-revenue bond financing for mid size 
counties, such as the County of Sonoma, with a maximum award of $40,000,000 per mid-size county.  
Each county may submit only one project for financing. 

Since then, a Steering Committee, with representatives from County Administrator’s Office, 
Probation Department, Sheriff’s Office, and General Services Department, and its consultants, has 
been preparing the County’s response to the S.B. 1022 R.F.P., to be used in conjunction with the A.B. 
900 funding in order to fund the programs and kitchen areas of the facility and “complete the vision” 
for this new justice facility. .  

Capital Project Budget and Funding Strategy 

The total capital budget for the C.C.C. projects with an intrinsic central cook/chill kitchen is estimated 
at $66,676,432 escalated to the mid-point of construction. This budget includes site work, utilities, 
building construction, design, consultants, project management, permits, fees, furniture and 
equipment, and contingencies. 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 8 of 1  

Summary of Project Costs 

Fund Source/Project 
Component 

State Funding County Match Funding 
(including land value) 

Total Budget 

A.B. 900-Housing Areas $36 million $4.0 million $40.0 million 
S.B. 1022-
Program/Kitchen Areas 

$24 million $2.68 million $26.68 million 

Total C.C.C. Project $60.0 million $6.68 million $66.68 million 
 

Source of County Match Funds 

Both A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 authorize the value of the land to be used as part of the County’s match.  
An appraisal of the land values the land at $1,995,000, making the remaining county cash match to 
be $4,685,000. The proposed capital funding sources for the County’s share is the Criminal Justice 
Construction Fund (C.J.C.F.) and Tobacco Securitization Fund.   

Funding stream and process 

The State funding for both A.B. 900 and S.B. 1022 will be from the issuance of lease-revenue bonds. 
The State will be responsible to repay the bonds at maturity.  During the term of these bonds 
(approximately 25 years after the bonds are sold), the State Public Works Board (S.P.W.B.) will hold 
an irrevocable lease interest in the facility.  The S.P.W.B. will lease the facility to B.S.C.C., who will in 
turn sub-lease the facility to the county. 

Unfunded projects 

The A.B. 900 and the S.B. 1022 funds will provide a significant source of one-time revenue for 
Sonoma County to work towards achieving the goals as outlined in the Criminal Justice Master Plan 
and addressing the deficiencies identified in M.A.D.F.  This project alone, however, does not include 
the necessary future renovations to the booking area of M.A.D.F. or the connector to the new 
courthouse, when constructed.  These projects will have to be funded separately by the County as 
funding becomes available. 

 S.B. 1022 Application Process 

The B.S.C.C. Request for Proposals (R.F.P.) states that applications will be evaluated and compared 
based on need for the project by providing certain information: conclusion of needs assessment; 
statistical data that supports the needs assessment conclusions; identify security, safety, health 
needs; program and services needs; litigation or court ordered caps; any non-compliance findings or 
recommendations for regulatory authorities; average daily population as compared to system 
capacity; latest demographic data; latest jail profile; detention alternatives undertaken; project scope 
of work and its impact; administrative work plan; adequate staffing plan for facility; effects of 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 9 of 1  

realignment; and project budget that demonstrates project will be delivered in a reasonable and cost 
effective manner. 

The R.F.P. identifies four preference criteria, which, if satisfied, will provide the proposal greater 
overall preference.  The four preference criteria are: 

1. Commitment of adequate county contribution funds (mandatory criteria). 
2. Initial real estate due diligence package submittal. 
3. Documentation evidencing CEQA compliance has been completed. 
4. Review of and authorization to execute the financing program project documents. 

The B.S.C.C. Executive Steering Committee (E.S.C.) will review each application for its 
worthiness, based on a county’s overall justification of the need for, and reasonableness of, the 
scope of the proposed project. The factors listed in the previous paragraph will be used to make 
the assessment of worthiness. Each member of the E.S.C. will determine if each project passes 
or fails. The E.S.C. may require a county to be interviewed by the E.S.C. The results can be used 
to also determine a project’s worthiness. It is staff’s intent to present a strong case that this 
project aligns with the goals and strategies of Realignment and would provide a means for the 
State to demonstrate a commitment to and the value of new and better detention strategies. 

Each proposal will first be rated without regard to the above preference criterion, generating a 
rank ordered list for small, medium, and large counties.  When the B.S.C.C. Board makes 
conditional awards, those counties that sought and satisfied the preference criterion with their 
proposal will be awarded first. 

If Sonoma County is successful, B.S.C.C. will inform the County in January 2014 with a notice of 
conditional award. A due diligence process would follow to (1) finalize project scope with 
B.S.C.C., (2) complete environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act, and 
(3) complete negotiations for the leasing-revenue agreements among the County, State Public 
Works Board, California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation, and the Board of State 
and Community Corrections. When the agreements are finalized, Staff would return to your 
Board to request the Board authorize the Chair to execute the financing agreements. At that 
time, the County would decide whether or not to accept the funding and to proceed with the 
C.C.C.  

Application Strategy 
 
A strategy has been developed with the Steering Committee to put the County in the best possible 
position to be awarded state funding. The County’s proposal is to link the innovative corrections 
strategies, detailed by the Sonoma County Adult Criminal Justice Master Plan, with the utilization of 
a Community Corrections Center to facilitate the attainment of the outcomes being sought through 
the Realignment initiative. This project could provide a model for the use of alternate detention 
facilities and strategies that the State could use for reducing incarceration costs, reducing recidivism 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 10 of  

rates, and improving offender re-entry outcomes. The C.C.C. would represent a significant step 
towards innovative corrections programming for the County and the State. Key components of the 
strategy that would be emphasized to the State include: 

1. Linking and integrating new facilities to research-based rehabilitative programs that reduce 
recidivism and are anticipated to improve offender outcomes 

2. Creating innovative, lower cost facilities and housing that could be used flexibly by the 
County for a variety of correctional and programmatic purposes to better meet its future 
needs 

3. Leveraging a one-time State investment (State will finance up to 90% of the capital cost) to 
implement recommendations for improving the County’s correctional facilities, process, and 
methodology. The potential resulting reductions in recidivism rates and offender outcomes, 
and improvement to public safety, constitute an exceptional opportunity for return on the 
State’s initial investment 

4. Integrating with both the Sonoma County Adult Criminal Justice Master Plan 
recommendations, and the Sonoma County Public Safety Realignment Plan (2013), the 
implementation of a C.C.C. is a significant and critical priority for the County 

5. Reducing long-term costs for the County’s Criminal Justice System by implementing a 
community corrections model that focuses on reducing recidivism while maintaining 
lower per-bed construction and facility operating costs than a conventional jail facility 

6. Establishing the C.C.C. as a promising model for increasing efficiency, and improving 
criminal justice operations, offender outcomes, and public safety 

 
In short , the goal will be to demonstrate to the B.S.C.C. that the County’s proposed project is a 
key component to improving corrections outcomes and that state funding would allow the 
County to apply new “best practices” that align with the County’s Criminal Justice Master Plan 
and create a successful model for other counties to consider.  

Estimated Operating and Program Budget 
 
The application requires your Board to adopt a resolution stating that if the County enters into an 
agreement with the State for S.B. 1022 funding, the County will agree to staff and operate the 
facility within 90 days of construction completion. Adopting this resolution does not commit the 
County to proceed with this project at this time. Staff has prepared, working with V.R.J.S., HOK, the 
Sheriff’s Office, Probation Department and General Services, an estimated operating and program 
budget to inform your Board of the potential operating costs. The estimated annual cost, in 2013 
dollars, is $9.6 million. Escalated to the estimated completion date of mid 2018, the estimated 
annual cost is $11.5 million. 

There are opportunities to reduce the estimated operating costs that will be defined in more detail 
as the project is developed, should the County receive an award. If your Board approves the 
application, staff with develop a funding strategy and return for Board approval in time for award. 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 11 of  

Some of the projected operating costs will be incurred irrespective of whether this facility is built or 
not as the jail population increases. In addition, new facility operating costs would not be incurred 
until mid 2018 allowing the County time to strategize and develop cost management and funding 
strategies that would consider all potential resources.   

Once the new justice facility is built, the County will need to provide an estimated $11.5 million 
annually (2018 dollars) for its operation. While this is an additional operating cost, the C.C.C. 
component is expected to result in:  

1. Better outcomes for our community, by reducing crime 
2. Reducing future County costs, by reducing recidivism  
3. Offsetting jail and other program costs, because some offenders will be sent only to the 

C.C.C. 
4. Possibility to better position the County for additional Realignment funds   

 

A project schedule has been prepared which meets this requirement and the milestones 
established in the Request for Applications. Some key milestones related to the application, the 
conditional award, agreement and overall capital project are: 

Grant application due October 24, 2013 
County presentation to State  December 4 – 6, 2013 
Executive Steering Committee recommendations                      December 12, 2013 
B.S.C.C. conditional awards January, 2014 
Complete C.E.Q.A. process January, 2014 – February, 2015 
Start Public Works Board meeting –Project Established March 2014 – April 2014 
Schematic Design Phase Completion August. 2014 
Design Development Phase Completion                             April 2015 
Construction Document/Permit Phase Completion             December, 2015 
Construction Bidding Completion February, 2016 
Construction Phase Completion July, 2018 
Occupancy within 90 days of Completion August, 2018 

 

S.B. 1022 Project Documents/Requested Action 

The application process for the S.B. 1022 funding requires your Board adopt a resolution including 
certain requisite components.  The attached resolution provides the requisite components and 
language required by the B.S.C.C.  The proposed action does not obligate the County to a financial 
commitment until the conditions established by the B.S.C.C. are met and the projects have received 
final approval.  Proposed resolution indicates to the B.S.C.C. the County’s commitment to working 
with the B.S.C.C. to meet these conditions and construct a C.C.C. as described above.   



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 12 of  

1. Identification of preference criteria the County wishes to pursue in its application to better 
position its proposal for potential award and specific language relative to those criteria.   

Commitment of adequate county contribution funds.  Resolution commits Tobacco 
Securitization funds. This also includes authorization to proceed with the project when 
State Financing is awarded.Initial Real Estate Due Diligence Package.The County will 
complete the CEQA process in a timely manner.The Board approves the Project 
documents as to form. This includes naming authorized officials for the signature of 
said documents.  Staff is recommending the Chair of the Board be named as the 
authorized official.  Staff has reviewed the proposed project documents.  See below for 
discussion of risks. Project authorizations and assurances 

a. Name the County Construction Administrator, Project Financial Officer, and Project 
Contact Person 

b. Authorize the Director of General Services to sign the Application Proposal.  
c. The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors is authorized to execute agreements 

required by the State for the project.  The Chair of the Board and the General Services 
Director are authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver documents required to 
consummate those agreements. 

d. The County will adhere to the requirement and terms of any agreements with the State 
e. The County will operate the facility within 90 days of project completion 
f. The County will not lease any portion to other entities for a period of 10 years after 

project completion. 
g. Site Assurance County’s ownership of the project site, and the fair market value of the 

site.  The current estimate market value of the site is $1.995 million. 
If the County receives a conditional award from the B.S.C.C. for S.B 1022 funding, staff will begin a 
due diligence and project definition process with the B.S.C.C. Staff would, as part of this process, 
bring various components back to the Board for discussion and approval.   

Project Documents and Associated Contract Risks  

The proposed resolution includes language that the Board is approving the documents as to form.  
Thus the County is providing assurance to the state that it will not insist on changes to the 
documents.  However, staff will seek to include modification language to address the provisions 
identified below before the documents are executed by the County.   The County will need to sign 
several documents in order to received funding from the B.S.C.C.  Staff has reviewed the documents, 
and has not identified any issues of concern with the Jail Construction Agreement and the Facility 
Sublease.  Staff has identified provisions in some documents which are unusual or represent a higher 
than normal risk for the County.  A preliminary discussion of these risks is presented below. If the 
County receives a conditional award, staff will work with B.S.C.C. staff to address these concerns.  
However, by accepting the documents as to form in the Resolution, the County is providing assurance 
to the State that it will not decline the award based on the contract language as it currently exists.  
There are, however, other points in the process in which the County can decline the award.   At a 



Attachment A 
SB1022 Application for Capital Financing 
Community Corrections Center 
October 15, 2013 
 

16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report.docm  Page 13 of  

minimum, the Board will be asked to approve an operations/staffing plan, the final project design 
documents, and final lease documents with the state.  Any unaddressed potential risks will be 
presented to the Board at final project approval. 

Project Delivery and Construction Agreement 

1.    The State is not obligated to issue the bonds under certain circumstances.  In such case, the 
County will not receive reimbursement for any Project costs, although money provided by 
the interim loan will be repaid by the State.  Thus, there is a risk that the County will not be 
able to recover costs it has spent upfront if the bonds are not issued and the Project does 
not go forward. These costs would include design of the project to the point of approval.   

2. Insurance coverage requirements for the County are high.  Self insurance can be utilized, but 
the high amounts may be higher than the County’s self insurance program which could 
require obtaining additional insurance policies.  This is a low risk because the County will be 
doing project implementation, increasing cost to the County. Staff is consulting with Risk 
Management on this issue. 

3. Exculpation language limits the State’s liability so that there is a risk the State would have no 
obligation to  pay costs it was liable for if the loan or Bond funds are inadequate or are not 
permitted to be used to cover the costs.  This may shift responsibility to the County for such 
costs.  This risk is likely low as long as the County implements the project and the state does 
not have to step in since the state will only be providing funding.    

Ground Lease 

1.  Includes a provision that the State can use the property for uses other than the Project.  It is 
unclear to staff why the state needs this level of discretion. 

2.  Includes a provision allowing the State to sublet or assign the Site or Project or ground lease 
without consent of the County.   Unclear under what circumstances the State would want to 
invoke this paragraph.  

3.   It is unclear whether County can terminate lease if bonds are not issued. The state may not 
want termination as an option if the County has received and expended interim loan 
financing.  Better language would include the County’s right to terminate if the bonds are not 
issued and any interim loan money has been returned to the state. 

Right of Entry 

It does not appear to allow County to meet insurance requirements utilizing self insurance.   



Revision No. 20130802-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 17
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Transportation & Public  Works 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Susan Klassen (707) 565-2231 Fourth 

Title: Airport Real Property Acquisition 

Recommended Actions: 

Authorize the Chair to execute the purchase agreement for 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA; authorize 
the Director of Transportation and Public Works to execute any other documents reasonably required to 
effect said purchase; and give direction to staff. 
 
Approve a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of a note in the principal amount of $1,000,000 
to purchase real property commonly known as 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA. 

Executive Summary: 

The Department of Transportation and Public Works Airport Division is requesting approval to acquire 
the property located at 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA 95492 (APN 164-150-010) consisting of 10± 
acres of land with a 1,091 square foot single family residence, horse barn, shop and shed. It is located 
within the Airport Master Plan, and is identified for voluntary acquisition by the County in order to 
protect runway approaches and setbacks at the Charles M. Schulz –Sonoma County Airport. Title to the 
property is vested as Bud Giacomelli and Elizabeth Ann Giacomelli, Trustees, or the Successor Trustees, 
of The Giacomelli Family 2000 Revocable Trust. 
 
It is anticipated that the majority of the property acquisition costs will be funded through the Federal 
Aviation Administration’s (FAA) Airport Improvement Program. Any unfunded costs will be paid from 
operating revenues from the Airport Enterprise fund. The total acquisition cost is estimated to be 
$1,020,000: $850,000 for the purchase; $70,000 for relocation, moving and closing costs; and $100,000 
for administrative expenses. FAA, funding for real property acquisitions is available only on a 
reimbursement rather than a direct funding/grant basis, i.e., the FAA will reimburse the Airport in 
arrears for property purchases that have been completed. The Airport does not currently have sufficient 
fund balance to cover the purchase price and related expenditures for the subject acquisition and 
therefore requests a short term loan in the form of the requested $1,000,000 Note. The Treasury 
section of the Sonoma County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office (“ACTTC”) has agreed 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

to purchase the requested Note and when FAA funding has been received, the Airport will pay back the 
loan, together with interest estimated at $1,010,000. The Treasury invests funds for various agencies 
across the county and is administered by the ACTTC. Under the ACTTC’s investment policy, annually 
approved by the Board of Supervisors, the ACTTC is able to purchase the requested Note. County 
Counsel has reviewed the proposed structure of the financing, and believes it complies with state law.  

Loan Request 

Loan purpose: Real property acquisition at the Airport 

Loan amount: $1,000,000 

Loan term: Note is payable June 30, 2014, with up to two (2) renewal periods of one (1) year 
each, at the discretion of the Treasurer 

Loan interest 
rate: 

The interest rate earned by the funds invested by the Sonoma County Treasurer in 
the “pooled investment account” as calculated quarterly, plus 0.75 of 1.00 
percent rounded to the nearest tenth 

Loan guarantee: General fund – though the loan is guaranteed by the General fund, actual 
repayment will come from reimbursement by the FAA; explained in greater detail 
below. 

 

Repayment Source 

Principal: FAA – Anticipated to be 90% funded through grants 

Airport Enterprise fund – 10% local match 

Accrued interest: Airport Enterprise fund – operational revenue 

 

RISK OF NON-PAYMENT 

The risk that the FAA will not have the funding to reimburse the County 90% to 95% of eligible real 
property acquisition costs within the term of the loan and renewals thereof is quite low. However, to 
cover the unlikely downside potential, the Department of Transportation and Public Works would need 
to pledge its FY 13-14 contribution from the General Fund as a guarantee of loan repayment. This pledge 
requires an internal arrangement between the Department and the Airport Enterprise Fund as to the 
repayment of the General Fund contribution to the Department. 

The subject Note has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel and the Debt Advisory 
Committee, and the Treasury has agreed to purchase the Note. The Airport currently has two 
outstanding Treasury Notes for $500,000 and $310,000. These notes will be paid off within the current 
fiscal year. 



Revision No. 20130802-1 

Prior Board Actions: 

9/17/13 No. 17 Approved resolution declaring intention to purchase subject property; 10/4/11 Res. No 
11-0540 approved a note for $310,000; 8/9/11 Res No. 11-0416 approved a note for $500,000 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

This acquisition supports the operation of our regional airport which is a significant contributor to a 
strong and diverse economy that supports job growth and job retention for all residents.  

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 1,030,000  $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $ 918,000 

 $  Fees/Other $ 112,000 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 1,030,000 Total Sources $ 1,030,000 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

The cost of the acquisition is $1,020,000 and the estimated interest expense is $10,000. Appropriations 
are included in the FY 13-14 budget. The Airport is requesting approval of a Note from the Treasury for 
the amount of $1,000,000 to facilitate the acquisition of this property. The remaining costs will use 
operating revenues for funding.  

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

None. 

Attachments: 

Resolution No. 13-0364; Location Map; Note; Note Resolution 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

Purchase Agreement; Report on Purchase. 



------------------
------------------

THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT IS A 
CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINALCounty of Sonoma ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE 

State of California ATTEST: SEP 1 7 2013 
• R ·USON, Clerk/Secretary 

Item Number: 17 

Date: September 17,2013 Resolution Number: 13-0364 

n 4/5 Vote Required 

Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma, State of California, Declaring 

Its Intention to Purchase Certain Real Property Located at 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, CA; 


Directing the Publication of the Notice of Intent; and Setting the Date and Time for 

Consummation of the Purchase. 


Whereas, the County of Sonoma ("County') desires to purchase the real property 
commonly known as 1480 Sanders Road, Windsor, within the County of Sonoma, California, and 
further identified as Assessor's Parcel No. 164-150-010 ("Property") from The Giacomelli Family 
2000 Revocable Trust ("Sell er"), said property having been identified in the Air Transportation 
Element of the General Plan and designated for voluntary acquisition in order to protect 
runway approaches and setbacks at the Charles M. Schulz-Sonoma County Airport; and 

Whereas, the County and the Seller have reached a tentative agreement ("Purchase 
Agreement") as to the terms and conditions for the sale of the Property, subject to certain 
contingencies and the completion of environmental, legal and procedural requirements; and 

Whereas, prior to consummation of the purchase, the County will have published its 
notice of intention to purchase the Property once a week for three consecutive weeks in 
compliance with Government Code Sections 23350 and 6063; and 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that this Board of Supervisors hereby finds, determines, 
declares, and orders, as follows: 

1. INTENTION TO PURCHASE: This Board of Supervisors authorizes the purchase of the 
Property from the Seller for the sum of Eight Hundred Fifty Thousand and no/l00 Dollars 
(U.S. $850,000) contingent upon all of the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase 
Agreement for the Property by and between the County and the Seller. 

2. CONSUMMATION OF PURCHASE: This Board of Supervisors hereby sets October 15, 
2013 as the date at 10:00 A.M. as the date and time to consummate said purchase and 
directs the Clerk of the Board to publish a Notice of Intention to Purchase the Property in 
accordance with Government Code Sections 6063. 

3. DIRECTIONS TO DIRECTOR OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS: The Director of 



Resolution # 13-0364 
Date: September 17J 2013 

Page 2 

Transportation and Public Works is hereby authorized and directed J prior to the 
consummation of said purchase J to: 

a. Complete such procedures as are necessary for compliance with statutory 
requirements for the consummation of said purchase inciudingJ but not limited tOJ 

compliance with the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 2100J et seq.) and Government Code Section 65402J and 
instructing North American Title Company to prepare any necessary legal documentsJ 

subdivision endorsementsJ escrow instructionsJ preliminary title report updatesJ and 
hold any necessary legal documents; and 

b. Take such steps as may be necessary to enable the County to complete the purchase 
of the Property in a timely manner; and 

c. Prepare and deliver to the Clerk of the Board at least five days prior to October 15J 

2013 J a written report on the purchase. 

4. DIRECTIONS TO COUNTY COUNSEL: County Counsel is hereby authorized and directed J 

prior to the public hearingJ to take any necessary action as may be necessary and 
appropriate to assist the Airport Manager in completing this transaction. 

Supervisors: 

Gorin: Aye Zane: Aye McGuire: Aye Carrillo: Aye Rabbitt: Aye 

Ayes: 5 Noes: 0 Absent: 0 Abstain: 0 

So Ordered. 



LOCATION MAP 

1480 Sanders Road 

Sonoma County Assessor’s Parcel 164-150-010 

 

 

Subject Property 



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS 
AIRPORT SERIES 2014-3 SONOMA COUNTY 

(SUBJECT TO CALL AND REDEMPTION) 
 

NOTE 

 

No.                         $1,000,000 

 

The County of Sonoma, duly organized and existing under and pursuant to the 
Constitution and laws of the State of California, for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the registered owner the principal sum not to exceed of $1,000,000 on June 30, 
2014, and to pay interest on such principal sum from the date hereof at the rate earned 
by funds invested by the Sonoma County Treasurer in his “pooled investment account” 
as calculated quarterly, plus 75 basis points rounded up to the nearest tenth. The 
principal of this Note and accumulated interest due shall be payable to the registered 
owner only upon presentation of this Note at maturity. Both the principal of and interest 
on this Note are payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the Office of 
the Sonoma County Treasurer. 

This Note, in the principal amount not to exceed $1,000,000, represents the entire Note 
issue of the Series 2014-3 Note issue, and is issued under and pursuant to the laws of 
the State of California, including the provisions of Section 53850 and following, of the 
California Government Code (the "Law"), and pursuant to a resolution (the "Resolution") 
adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma. Reference is hereby 
made to the Resolution for a specific description of the security therein provided for the 
payment of the principal of and interest on this Note, to all of the provisions of which the 
registered owner hereof by his acceptance of this Note hereby consents and agrees, 
and each subsequent registered owner of this Note has recourse to all of the provisions 
of the Resolution and the Law and is bound thereby. 

The Board hereby covenants and warrants that it will pay promptly, when due, the 
principal of this Note and interest accruing hereon, all in accordance with the terms 
hereof and the terms and provisions set forth in the Resolution and the applicable Law. 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note do exist, have happened and 
have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the 
amount of this Note, together with all indebtedness and obligations of the County, does 
not exceed any limit prescribed by the Resolution or the laws of the State of California. 



This Note is subject to call and redemption in whole or in part at any time prior to 
maturity without penalty or premium by the Department giving the registered owner thirty 
(30) days' prior written notice thereof. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Sonoma has caused this Note to be signed in 
its name by the Chair of the Board of Supervisors and countersigned by the Clerk of the 
Board, and has caused this Note to be dated October 15, 2013. 

 

____________________________   
      Chair, Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board 

 



 County of Sonoma 
State of California 

 
 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Supervisors Of The County Of Sonoma, State Of California, 
Authorizing The Issuance And Sale Of A Note In The Principal Amount Not to Exceed  

$1,000,000 To Purchase Land For Approach Protection For The Sonoma County Airport  

 
Whereas, the County of Sonoma (“County”) is in need of a cash advance to purchase 
land of approximately 10.0 acres at the Sonoma County Airport to enhance the Airport’s 
ability to protect the approaches to the Airport; and 

 
Whereas, the County is authorized pursuant to Government Code Section 53850 and 
following to borrow money on a temporary basis, provided such borrowed amount does 
not exceed eighty-five percent (85%) of the estimated amount of anticipated revenues 
that will be used to pay back the loan; and 

 
Whereas, the Treasurer for the County is authorized pursuant to Government Code 
Section 53601(d) to invest in a note and desires to loan such funds to the County. 

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that this Board hereby finds, determines, declares, and 
orders as follows: 

 
1. The Note

 

. The $1,000,000 Note authorized by the Resolution shall be designated 
"Sonoma County Department of Transportation and Public Works, Airport Series 2014-3 Note 
(hereinafter "The Note") and is being issued pursuant to the provisions of Government Code 
Section 53850 et seq. The amount of the Note is less than eighty-five (85%) of the estimated 
revenue the County anticipates receiving in this fiscal year from certain revenues that will be 
used to pay back the Note. 

2. Security

 

. The account receivable constituting the security on which the Note is being 
issued is the anticipated revenue from the Airport Enterprise Fund, including reimbursement 
anticipated from the Federal Aviation Administration. In addition the County pledges to pay the 
Note from any all revenue lawfully available to the County for repayment. 

3. The Project. The Project consists of the purchase of approximately 10.0 acres of real 
property adjacent to the Sonoma County Airport. The initial estimated cost of such property 
includes appraisal, escrow and closing costs. 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 

 
4. Authorization to Borrow and Issue Note

 

. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 53850 
and following Government Code, the County shall borrow the principal sum not to exceed 
$1,000,000 and shall issue a single principal amount Note to evidence said indebtedness, which 
Note is hereby authorized to be issued for the purpose hereinabove set forth. The Board 
delegates to the Director of Transportation and Public Works the authority to sell and deliver 
the Note to the County Treasurer in exchange for the principal sum not to exceed $1,000,000. 
The note shall be issued in registered form, shall be dated October 15, 2013, and shall mature 
on June 30, 2014. The Note shall bear interest at the rate earned by funds invested by the 
Sonoma County Treasurer in his "pooled investment account" as calculated quarterly, plus 75 
basis points rounded to the nearest tenth. Payment shall be due at the time of maturity of the 
note. The interest on principal of the Note shall be payable in lawful money of the United States 
of America at the office of the County Treasurer of Sonoma County, California. 

5. Note to be Callable and redeemable

 

. The Note shall be callable and redeemable in 
whole or in part at any time following its issuance and before maturity by the Board giving the 
registered owner of the Note thirty (30) days’ prior written notice. The price of redemption 
shall be the prorated unpaid balance of principal and accrues interest at the date of redemption 
without penalty or premium. 

6.  Form of Note
 

:  The Note shall be substantially the following form: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF SONOMA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS 
AIRPORT SERIES 2014-3 SONOMA COUNTY 

(SUBJECT TO CALL AND REDEMPTION) 
 

NOTE 

 

No.                         $1,000,000 

 

The County of Sonoma, duly organized and existing under and pursuant to the 
Constitution and laws of the State of California, for value received hereby promises to 
pay to the registered owner the principal sum not to exceed of $1,000,000 on June 30, 
2014, and to pay interest on such principal sum from the date hereof at the rate earned 
by funds invested by the Sonoma County Treasurer in his “pooled investment account” 
as calculated quarterly, plus 75 basis points rounded up to the nearest tenth. The 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 3 
 

principal of this Note and accumulated interest due shall be payable to the registered 
owner only upon presentation of this Note at maturity. Both the principal of and 
interest on this Note are payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the 
Office of the Sonoma County Treasurer. 

This Note, in the principal amount not to exceed $1,000,000, represents the entire Note 
issue of the Series 2014-3 Note issue, and is issued under and pursuant to the laws of 
the State of California, including the provisions of Section 53850 and following, of the 
California Government Code (the "Law"), and pursuant to a resolution (the "Resolution") 
adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma. Reference is hereby 
made to the Resolution for a specific description of the security therein provided for the 
payment of the principal of and interest on this Note, to all of the provisions of which 
the registered owner hereof by his acceptance of this Note hereby consents and agrees, 
and each subsequent registered owner of this Note has recourse to all of the provisions 
of the Resolution and the Law and is bound thereby. 

The Board hereby covenants and warrants that it will pay promptly, when due, the 
principal of this Note and interest accruing hereon, all in accordance with the terms 
hereof and the terms and provisions set forth in the Resolution and the applicable Law. 

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Note do exist, have happened and 
have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the 
amount of this Note, together with all indebtedness and obligations of the County, does 
not exceed any limit prescribed by the Resolution or the laws of the State of California. 

This Note is subject to call and redemption in whole or in part at any time prior to 
maturity without penalty or premium by the Department giving the registered owner 
thirty (30) days' prior written notice thereof. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Sonoma has caused this Note to be signed in its 
name by the Chair of the Board of Supervisors and countersigned by the Clerk of the 
Board, and has caused this Note to be dated October 15, 2013 

  



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 4 
 
 

____________________________   
      Chair, Board of Supervisors 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board 

 
 

7. Authority to Execute Note

  

. The Chair of the Board of Supervisors who may be in office 
at the date of the Note or at any time thereafter prior to the delivery of the Note to the 
purchaser thereof is hereby authorized and directed as such officer to sign by his manual 
signature the note and the Clerk of the Board who may be in office at the date of the note or at 
any time thereafter prior to such delivery of the Note is hereby authorized and directed as such 
officer to countersign by use of her manual signature the Note. If any officer whose signature or 
countersignature appears upon the Note ceases to be an officer of the Board before the 
delivery of the Note to the purchasers, his or her signature or countersignature shall 
nevertheless be valid and of the same force and effect as if her or she had remained such 
officer. 

8. Proceeds of Sale of the note Dedicated to the Project

 

. The purchase price of the Note 
(except for the accrued interest received thereon) shall be deposited forthwith upon receipt in 
a special fund designated to be “Sonoma County Airport Land Acquisition” which fund has been 
established and is being administered by the County Auditor. All monies in said fund shall be 
applied to the payment of costs and expenses of the construction of the Project described in 
the recital paragraphs of this Resolution, including costs of issuance of the Note. 

 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 18
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Supervisors of Sonoma County 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Information Systems 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Susanne Lake (707) 565-2255 All Supervisorial Districts 

Title: Telecommunications System Purchase and Implementation with Nexus IS 

Recommended Actions: 

a) Authorize the Director of the Information Systems Department (ISD) to execute an Agreement 
For Purchase of Equipment and Professional Services Agreement with Nexus IS, Inc. (Nexus) for 
procurement, installation, implementation, and training for Cisco Systems enterprise unified 
communications system for a total amount not to exceed $4,076,000 including a $194,000 
contingency for a two year period commencing October 16, 2013. 

b) Authorize the Director of ISD to execute minor amendments to the Agreement and amendments 
that do not exceed the contingency in the amount of $194,000, and authorize the Division 
Director of ISD’s Technical Services Division to execute minor amendments in the products 
purchase. 
 

Executive Summary: 

Background 
Currently, Information Systems Department (ISD) provides telecommunication services to 
approximately 5,000 users at more than 60 locations on a voice network that is maintained by an 
outside vendor. A wide variety of terminal equipment is located in buildings throughout the county 
campus connected by conduits, fiber optics, and copper cables. 
 
In July 2012, ISD reported to the Board of Supervisors the 17 year old County’s telecommunications 
system is nearing the end of its useful life. Consequently, the Board approved staff’s recommendation 
to replace the telephone system with the modern voice technology. With the technical assistance of a 
telecommunications expert consultant, COMgroup, Inc, the County validated the technical design and 
detailed specifications for an Internet Protocol (IP) premises-based telecommunications system. The 
new design will converge voice and data networks and use PC based capabilities to enhance 
functionality while eliminating the separate networks currently being utilized. 

 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

In order to replace and update county wide telecommunication services and address Human Services’ 
department’s call center needs staff recommends executing agreement with Nexus IS, Inc. to 
implement Cisco Systems enterprise solution, and increase by 4.0 full time equivalents (FTE) ISD staff 
to support the new system. 
 
Request for Proposal 
In April 2013, a Request For Proposal (RFP) was issued which included the procurement and 
implementation of the core servers, voice gateways, telecommunications software, new telephones, 
related peripherals, and training to all users. A vendor was sought for all hardware equipment, 
software, warranties and required services including planning, design, implementation, installation, 
and training. A managed services vendor was also sought for the ongoing maintenance, monitoring and 
support of the new system. 
 
Nine (9) vendors responded and the County received eight (8) qualified responses. The evaluation 
committee, made up of seven (7) County staff members from multiple departments was created to 
review and rate the RFP responses. Three vendors (Altura, Nexus and NEC) representing three different 
equipment manufacturers (Avaya, NEC and Cisco) were selected as finalists based on technical, 
functional, experience, references and total cost of ownership. Vendor presentations were provided to 
the RFP evaluation committee and product demonstrations were presented to fifty (50) non-ISD 
County staff members representing nineteen (19) county departments. 
 
Of the three finalists, Nexus, proposing a Cisco based solution, scored 18.5% higher than the second 
ranked vendor for implementation services based on the criteria noted above. Nexus scored 37.5% 
higher than the second ranked vendor for the managed services component. Separate negotiations for 
managed services are underway. ISD will return to the Board of Supervisors with a separate agreement 
for managed services before December 31, 2013. Nexus is a local vendor with a business license in the 
City of Santa Rosa. 
 
The final unified communications system solution will provide traditional telephone functionality as 
well as the advanced features itemized below. In addition, the solution will provide the functionality to 
meet the emerging State health care reform call center requirements. 
 
Advanced Features 

• Voice mail integrated with email 
• Presence (the graphic ability to see if someone is available, in a meeting, status, etc.) 
• Extension of County phone functions to mobile devices (increased worker mobility) 
• Real time chat (a live conversation by typing on a computer) 
• Single number reach (ability for users to provide one phone number and be reached wherever 

on whichever device) 
• Desktop and file sharing (facilitating increased collaboration and involvement) 
• One-to-one video conferencing (enhanced communication and mobility tools) 
• Emergency responder automation and notification services 
• Enhanced call center functionality and reporting, performance indicators, and call recording 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

 
Project Phases 
Within 18-24 months, these milestones will be achieved: 

1. Procurement and receiving of the system – November 2013 
2. Installation of core infrastructure - January 2014 
3. Pilot launch and testing at ISD and HSD departments – February 2014 
4. Customer department roll-out schedule – Begins April 2014 

The rollout schedule begins with Child Support Services followed predominantly by 
departments on the County campus. ISD will schedule the remaining departments according to 
each department’s business needs and impacts. 
 

Project Cost 
Total costs for hardware, software and warranty for five years; professional services for 
implementation; and ISD labor and hardware costs are estimated at $5.7 million. A 5% contingency 
addresses design, network, or contact center configuration changes which may become evident upon 
completion of the system requirement definitions. 

 
CISCO Hardware/Software  $       2,830,170  

 Nexus Professional Services  $       1,051,830  
 5% Contract Contingency  $           194,000  
    Subtotal Contract Expenses:     $      4,076,000 

 ComGroup Prof Services  $          259,692  
ISD Labor and Training  $          828,552  
ISD Hardware 

 
 $          479,469  

Project Contingency 
 

 $            79,267  
Project Total 

 
 $       5,722,980  

 
The investment and implementation cost of the system for FY 13/14 will be approximately $2,066,000. 

Financing 
ISD recommends funding the project using existing Accumulated Replacement Fund reserve accounts 
up to $1.9 million over a two year fiscal period (FY 13-14 and FY 14-15). Additionally, Human Services 
Department will contribute $1.6 million of State and Federal funding to the replacement project as the 
solution will address their separate data network and health care requirements. Staff completed an 
analysis of the early withdrawal of replacement funds, and recognizes the significant withdrawal leaves 
low reserves for unanticipated technology infrastructure needs. Any unforeseen major event could 
possibly require use of other fund balances collected for other purposes and/or the General Fund. 
Telephone rates to ISD’s customers are not expected to increase directly as a result of the investment. 
Restoration of reserve accounts will begin in FY 15/16. 
 
Ongoing Costs 
The annual baseline operating savings are expected to be approximately $400,000 to $700,000 per 
year based on comparable industry metrics due to reduced voice lines converged with data lines, 
removing duplicate network (voice), and lowering managed services costs for ongoing operations. The 
net savings, realized in the next two years and ongoing thereafter, will finance $515,000 in new 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

telecommunications County staff. ISD will return to the Board upon project completion to summarize 
service enhancements and operating efficiencies attained. 
 
Staff Resources 
The introduction of voice over the Internet technology merges voice and data networks. This allows 
the County to leverage technologies such as video conferencing, streaming media, presence, real time 
chat, and other services in addition to voice communications while eliminating redundant 
infrastructure. 
 
Because the voice system will now be part of the County network and desktop infrastructure, ISD will 
increase four (4) FTEs including one Senior Network Analyst to support the new Voice over Internet 
Protocol (VoIP) infrastructure; two Information Technology Analysts to support the convergence of 
voice and data networks at the Desktop and Service Desk; and an Administrative Aide to maintain and 
align with ISD’s internal billing and inventory processes. County operator services will be transitioned 
from the current contractor to County staff (Administrative Aide and Service Desk group) who have a 
thorough understanding of the County’s business and will be able to see who is available to receive a 
call as a result of the new technology. Human Resources has reviewed and concurs with the 
recommended positions. 
 
During a typical power outage, VoIP becomes unavailable because VoIP devices (computers, routers, 
adapters) rely on a power source to function. Traditional phone lines are usually available during such 
an outage, which is a major advantage in an emergency. ISD intends to install uninterruptible power 
supply (UPS) with extended battery life as part of the VoIP installation. If longer connectivity is desired 
during a power outage, ISD will assess each departments needs and consider other alternatives such as 
retaining analog lines. 
 

Prior Board Actions: 

2/26/13: Board authorized ISD to execute an agreement with COMgroup, Inc for the technical 
specifications and project implementation of an enterprise telecommunications system. 
7/31/12: Board approved an agreement with COMgroup, Inc. for research and analysis of the current 
telephone system. 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 3: Invest in the Future 

Investment in an enterprise unified communications system will provide a more resilient and flexible 
infrastructure, additional features for voice and data, and improved redundancy. 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 1,362,000 County General Fund $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $ 703,965 State/Federal $ 1,603,965 

 $  Fees/Other $  

 $  Use of Fund Balance $ 462,000 

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 2,065,965 Total Sources $ 2,065,965 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

A contribution from Human Services Department in the amount of $1,603,965 from improved 
State/Federal funding allocations and the use of Replacement Funds of $703,965 will be included in the 
Quarter 1 (Q1) Consolidated Budget Adjustment. FY 2014-15 budget will include project appropriations 
necessary to complete the installation and reflect revised ongoing operating expenses. 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

Senior Network Analyst C 1.0  

Information Technology Analyst C 2.0  

Administrative Aide C 1.0  

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

1.0 Senior Network Analyst – This VoIP specialist would team with internal network services staff 
and vendor engineers to maintain, troubleshoot, and support systems. The focus is primarily on voice 
systems but integration with data infrastructure will also be critical. 
 
2.0 Information Technology Analysts – Assigned to the County Service Desk and Desktop Support 
teams, these staff will assume responsibility for triaging incidents and service requests, coordinate 
vendor activities for customers, perform routine equipment moves, troubleshoot and replace end user 
equipment, and provide related services. 
 
1.0 Administrative Aide – Assigned to the administration division, the individual will be responsible for 
routine county operator service for the public, billing, inventory, asset management, and related 
functions. 
 



Revision No. 20121026-1 

Attachments: 

Exhibit B  – Scope of Work; Exhibit C – Payment Schedule, Exhibit D – Bill of Materials; and Exhibit E – 
Change Procedure 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

Professional Services Agreement with Nexus IS  



Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

 

 

Exhibit “B” - Scope of Work 

Unified Communications Solution 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B2 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 

1 Acronyms .................................................................................................... 6 

2 Executive Summary .................................................................................... 8 

Nexus Profile .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Project Objectives ...................................................................................................................... 8 

3 Solution Overview ....................................................................................... 9 

3.1 Current Environment ........................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Operational Requirements ................................................................................................ 10 

3.3 Solution Description .......................................................................................................... 10 

3.4 Solution Components ..................................................................................................... 13 

3.4.1 Cisco Unified Communications Manager .............................................................. 13 

3.4.2 Unity Connection Voice Mail ................................................................................... 13 

3.4.3 CER - Cisco Emergency Responder v9.0 ............................................................... 13 
3.4.4 Cisco Unified Communications Instant Messaging & Presence ......................... 13 

3.4.5 Jabber ........................................................................................................................ 14 

3.4.6 PCCE - Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Release 9.0(x) ............................... 14 

3.4.7 UCS - Unified Computing Solution ......................................................................... 14 

3.4.8 Metropolis Call Accounting ..................................................................................... 14 

3.4.9 Voice Gateways ........................................................................................................ 14 
3.4.10 Endpoints .................................................................................................................. 14 

3.4.11 Calabrio Workforce Management ........................................................................... 14 

3.4.12 Calabrio Quality Management ................................................................................. 15 

3.5 Product Implementation Specifics ................................................................................ 15 

3.5.1 Phase I - Unified Communications Products ......................................................... 15 

3.5.2 Phase 1 - PCCE Infrastructure ................................................................................ 16 
3.5.3 Phase 1 - PCCE Implementation Objectives .......................................................... 17 

3.5.4 Phase 2 - Unified Communications Products ........................................................ 18 

3.5.5 Phase 2 - PCCE Implementation ............................................................................. 18 

3.5.6 Customer Departments ............................................................................................ 19 

3.5.7 Physical Locations ................................................................................................... 20 

4 Professional Services Overview .............................................................. 22 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B3 

4.1 Project Approach ............................................................................................................... 22 

4.2 Project Initiation ................................................................................................................. 23 

4.3 Requirements Definition Development – Core UC ......................................................... 23 
4.4 Requirements Definitions Development – PCCE (Contact Center) .............................. 24 

4.5 Design Development .......................................................................................................... 25 

4.6 Contact Center Design Development ............................................................................... 26 

4.7 Implementation Tasks – Phase One ................................................................................. 26 

4.7.1 Phase One Responsibilities: ...................................................................................... 28 

4.8 Contact Center Upgrade Deployment Tasks ................................................................... 29 
4.9 Site Implementation Tasks – Phase Two ......................................................................... 33 

4.10 QoS Deployment .............................................................................................................. 34 

4.11 General Test and Acceptance ......................................................................................... 35 

4.12 Contact Center End User Acceptance Testing ............................................................. 35 

4.13 Knowledge Transfer and Training .................................................................................. 36 

4.13.1 System Administration Knowledge Transfer ......................................................... 36 
4.13.2 End-User Knowledge Transfer Training ................................................................. 36 

4.13.3 Contact Center Agent/Supervisor Knowledge Transfer ....................................... 36 

4.13.4 Contact Center Administrative Knowledge Transfer ............................................ 37 

4.14 Cutover/First Day of Support .......................................................................................... 38 

4.15 Deliverables ...................................................................................................................... 38 

4.16 Project Completion .......................................................................................................... 38 
4.17 Issue Escalation ............................................................................................................... 39 

4.17.1 Implementation Issues ............................................................................................. 39 

4.17.2 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Issues ............................................................. 39 

4.17.3 Cisco SMARTnet: Critical Technical Support ........................................................ 39 

4.17.4 Resolution of Issues ................................................................................................. 40 

5 Responsibilities of Each Party ................................................................. 41 

5.1 Project Coordination .......................................................................................................... 41 

5.2 Project Kickoff Meeting ..................................................................................................... 43 

5.3 Network Readiness for VoIP System ............................................................................... 43 

5.4 Environmental .................................................................................................................... 44 

5.5 Carrier Services .................................................................................................................. 44 

5.6 End User Requirements .................................................................................................... 44 
5.7 Routing ................................................................................................................................ 45 

5.8 IVR Call Handling ............................................................................................................... 45 

5.9 Contact Center Requirements .......................................................................................... 45 

5.10 Quality Monitoring ........................................................................................................... 45 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B4 

5.11 Training ............................................................................................................................. 46 

5.12 Installation Coordination ................................................................................................. 47 

5.13 Post Installation Test and Acceptance .......................................................................... 48 
5.14 Documentation ................................................................................................................. 48 

5.15 County Responsibilities .................................................................................................. 49 

5.16 Implementation Phase ..................................................................................................... 49 

5.17 Off-Site Staging ................................................................................................................ 51 

5.18 Deployment ....................................................................................................................... 51 

5.19 Hardware Disposal ........................................................................................................... 52 

6 Responsibilities ......................................................................................... 53 

6.1 General Responsibilities ................................................................................................... 53 

6.2 Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Specific Responsibilities ................................... 54 

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B5 

Document Control 
Author:  Tony Russi 

Change Authority:  Nexus Professional Services 

Revision History 
The table below shows the revision history of this document. 

Version No. Issue Date Status Reason for Change 

1.1 7/19/13 Revision Incorporate customer comments 

1.2 7/25/13 Revision Incorporate customer comments 

Review History 
The table below shows the review history of this document. 

Reviewer’s Details Version No. Date 

Tony Russi 1.1 7/19/13 

Susanne Lake 1.1 7/20/13 

Tony Russi 1.2 7/25/13 

Susanne Lake 1.2 7/26/13 

Tony Russi 1.2 7/26/13 

Susanne Lake 1.2 7/28/13 

Tony Russi 1.4 8/8/13 

Susanne Lake 1.5 8/12/13 

Michael Brown 1.15 8/23/13 

Jeff Bowser 1.16 8/28/13 

Susanne Lake 1.17 9/13/2013 

 

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B6 

1 Acronyms 
 

Acronym Definition 

BIB Built In Bridge 

CAD Cisco Agent Desktop 

CER Cisco Emergency Responder 

CFB Conference Bridge 

CR Compliance Recording 

CSD Cisco Supervisor Desktop 

CTI Computer Telephony Integration 

CTIOS CTI Object Server 

CUCM Cisco Unified Communications Manager 

CUIC Cisco Unified Intelligence Center 

FIN Finesse Desktop 

FXO Foreign Exchange Office 

FXS Foreign Exchange Station 

IM Instant Messaging 

IM&P Instant Messaging and Presence 

IOS Internetworking Operating System 

IP Internet Protocol 

IPP IP Phone 

IPT IP Telephony 

MC Meeting Center 

MS Microsoft 

PCCE Packaged Contact Center Enterprise 

POTS Plain Old Telephone Service 

PRI Primary Rate Interface 

PSTN Public Switched Telephone Network 

QM Quality Management 

SBC Session Border Controller 

SCCP Skinny Call Control Protocol 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B7 

SIP Session Initiation Protocol 

TFTP Trivial File Transfer Protocol 

TLS Transport Layer Security 

TP Telepresence 

UC Unified Communications 

UCCE Unified Contact Center Enterprise 

UCS Unified Computing System 

UCS Unified Computing System 

UCXN Unity Connection 

UM Unified Messaging 

UPS Uninterruptible Power Supply 

VG Voice Gateway 

VM Voice Mail 

VM Virtual Machine 

VMW VMware 

VoIP Voice Over Internet Protocol 

WBX WebEx 

WFM Workforce Management 

WFO Workforce Optimization 

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B8 

2 Executive Summary 
This Scope of Work identifies the services and activities to be performed by Nexus IS, herein 
after named “Nexus” (and/or others as identified herein). 

Nexus Profile 
Nexus, headquartered in Valencia, California has offices throughout California, Arizona, 
Oregon and Washington. The company employs more than 450 people and serves client 
organizations of all types and sizes in local, national and international markets. 

Project Objectives 
The County’s current telephony system includes a mix of NEC PBXs. Each operates 
independently, but are linked via NEC CCIS or Fusion networking. There are a significant 
number of digital and analog trunks utilized for networking - 71 digital carrier trunk circuits 
(T1 / PRI) and over 190 analog carrier trunk circuits.  There are approximately 2,400 digital / IP 
telephones and over 2,700 analog extensions.  In addition, 18 sites are served via AT&T Centrex 
service, covering about 127 total lines.  Voice mail and auto attendant features are provided by 
three older AVT Repartee systems.  

The project goal is to replace the legacy phone systems with a new Cisco Unified 
Communications Solution.  To meet these requirements the following must be achieved: 

• Design and deploy a solution which consists of various collaborative applications, 
servers and gateway hardware and related licenses.  

• Integrate the voice solution with the County’s Exchange voicemail system.  
• Deploy Unity Connection Voice Mail solution to Human Services Department.  
• Provide implementation services for the entire solution. 
• Provide IT administrative knowledge transfer on all supported software and related 

documentation. 
• Install, configure, and train users on the solution for instant messaging, presence, and 

desktop sharing.  
• Design, install, configure and train users on the contact center solution for all customer 

departments.  
• Deploy IP and soft phone technology to all customer departments. Provide applicable 

training and user handouts.   



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B9 

3 Solution Overview 

3.1 Current Environment 
This is the County’s current environment.  

LAN/WAN Manufacturer: Cisco with PoE 

Current Firewall Manufacturer: Cisco ASA and Imperva Web App Firewalls 

Desktop Environment: Windows 7 64-bit and Windows XP 

Current PBX: (7) NEC 2400, (21) NEC 2000, (1) SV8500, (18) Sites with 
AT&T Centrex Service 

Current PSTN Connectivity: PRI, POTS 

Number of Handsets Approximately 5227 

Current QoS Policy: QoS enabled 

Current Routing Protocols: County Network – EIGRP and Static Routes 

Internet – BGFP (Internal and External)  

Connection Speed: WAN: (28) Opt-E-MAN Sites 
             (14) T1 Sites 
Internet: Primary link to Sonic.net is 100Mb CIR and   
500Mb Opt-E-MAN. Secondary link to AT&T is 20Mb 
CIR and 20Mb Opt-E-MAN to AT&T. 

Workstations Approximately 3500 

This is HSD’s current environment. 

LAN/WAN Manufacturer: Cisco 

Current Firewall Manufacturer: Cisco 

Desktop Environment: 50% WinXP SP3, 50% Win7 SP1, 50% MS Office 2007, 50% 
MS Office 2010 

Current PBX: NEC SV8500, NEAX 2000 IVS 

Current PSTN Connectivity: PRI, POTS, T1 

Current QoS Policy: DSCP, Queuing 

Current Routing Protocols:  N/A 

Connection Speed: 20Mb, 10Mb, T1 

 
  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B10 

3.2 Operational Requirements 
The operational requirements include:  

• All network upgrades and integration must take place without effecting normal 
business processes.  All outages shall be scheduled and calendared a minimum of one 
week in advance with County of Sonoma IT personnel. 

• IPT solution will be implemented in parallel to current solutions. 
• Coordinate changes using County change management processes and procedures. 

3.3 Solution Description 
The County Unified Communications (UC) Solution is a comprehensive architecture that 
consists of the following major components and a high level framework is presented below: 
 

• Core Applications 
o Cisco Unified Communications Manager and endpoints 
o Cisco Unified Communications Instant Messaging & Presence (IM&P) 
o Cisco Emergency Responder 
o Exchange Unified Messaging (provided by  County, but integrated by Nexus) 
o Metropolis Call Accounting 
o Cisco Unity Connection Voice Mail for Human Service Department 
o Standard Endpoints –  

 Cisco 8945 handsets,  
 Cisco 8961 handsets (when sidecar required, no video) 
 Cisco 9951 for executives 
 Mobile devices 

• Collaboration Applications 
o Jabber Desktop Client 

•  Contact Center Applications 
o Packaged Contact Center Enterprise 
o Calabrio Call Recording 
o Finesse Agent Application 

  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
The County is separated into two primary logical networks that are interconnected via WAN: 

• “HSD” – The Human Services Department network 
• “ County” – Refers to all other County departments serviced by the Information Services 

division WAN. 

To map this solution to County’s physical IT infrastructure, four primary locations will be used 
to house the core voice equipment and associated applications.  These locations and roles are 
presented in the table below. 

Site Reference Description / Address Purpose 

County Campus ISD Data Center 
2615 Paulin Drive  

Main County data center 

Sheriff Administration Located at county campus 
2796 Ventura Av 

Secondary County data center 

HSD Administration HSD main office 
3600 Westwind Blvd 

HSD primary data center 

HSD Economic 
Assistance Center  

HSD EASC 
520 Mendocino Ave 

HSD secondary data center 

 
  

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B12 

 
Key architecture components and their associated mapping to physical locations are 
represented in the figure below: 
  

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B13 

3.4 Solution Components 
3.4.1 Cisco Unified Communications Manager 

This provides services such as session management, voice, video, messaging, mobility, and web 
conferencing. 
• Extend video capabilities to your employees through a single, unified communications 

infrastructure from the desktop to Telepresence rooms 
• Simplify voice systems with unified communications to cut costs and dramatically simplify 

provisioning and maintenance 
• Build productivity with comprehensive unified communications to help workers 

communicate and work more effectively 
• Enable mobility with embedded unified mobility software capabilities to keep workers 

productive wherever they are, with any content type, on any device 
• Improve collaboration -simply click to begin an IM session, initiate a phone call, or easily 

start a video-conferencing call 

3.4.2 Unity Connection Voice Mail  
Cisco Unity Connection is a voicemail and unified messaging platform which allows you to 
access and manage voice messages in a variety of ways, using your email inbox, web browser, 
Cisco Jabber®, Cisco Unified IP Phone, Smartphone, tablet, and more. Cisco Unity Connection 
also provides robust speech-recognition features for when you are mobile, so you can manage 
your voice messages hands and eyes free. 

3.4.3 CER - Cisco Emergency Responder v9.0 
An emergency communication system that helps you respond to a crisis quickly and efficiently. 
When someone in your telephone network places an emergency call, Emergency Responder 
automatically notifies you and routes the call to the local public safety answering point (PSAP) 
operator. Using the extension that Emergency Responder provides, you can look up the location 
of the caller through the Emergency Responder user web interface. After you know the location 
of the caller, you can go to the site of the emergency, send help, or otherwise complete your 
company emergency response policy requirements. Emergency Responder also maintains a 
record of emergency calls your system receives so that you can access information later.  

3.4.4 Cisco Unified Communications Instant Messaging & Presence 
Cisco Unified Communications Manager Instant Messaging and Presence Service provides 
native standards-based dual-protocol enterprise instant messaging (IM) and network-based 
presence as part of Cisco Unified Communications. This secure, scalable, and easy-to-manage 
service within Cisco Unified Communications Manager offers users feature-rich 
communications capabilities both within and external to the enterprise. 

IM and Presence Service is tightly integrated with Cisco and third-party compatible desktop 
and mobile presence and IM clients, including the Cisco Jabber™ messaging integration 
platform, Cisco WebEx® Social, and Cisco Jabber SDK. It enables these clients to perform 
numerous functions such as instant messaging, presence, click-to-call, phone control, voice, 
video, visual voicemail, and web collaboration. IM and Presence Service offers customers and 
partners the flexibility of rich, open interfaces that allow enablement of IM and Cisco rich, 
network-based presence, and IM and presence federation for a wide variety of business 
applications. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B14 

3.4.5 Jabber 
Cisco Jabber is desktop and mobile application lets you access presence, instant messaging (IM), 
voice, video, voice messaging, desktop sharing, and conferencing which must be provisioned 
and licensed in your environment.  

3.4.6 PCCE - Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Release 9.0(x) 
PCCE is a packaged solution deployment to deliver Cisco Unified Contact Center Enterprise in 
a virtualized environment. The initial model of PCCE supports up to 1,000 agents. It delivers 
CCE on a single pair of core duplexed UCS 260M2 servers, referred to as Side A and Side B. It is 
deployed in a virtualized environment, using OVA templates that are downloaded from Cisco. 
PCCE provides the essential set of contact center functionality – call processing, prompts and 
rich VXML scripting, voice response collection, agent selection, queuing, and reporting. With its 
controlled environment and well-defined configuration and deployment boundaries, CCE is a 
robust solution with high availability and solution serviceability. Additional benefits are 
simplified ordering and deployment rollout, a simplified installation process, easier operation 
and maintenance, and Unified CCE Web Administration, the streamlined, browser-based 
administration interface. This proposal includes 2 instances of PCCE, one on the ISD network 
and one on the HSD network. 

3.4.7 UCS - Unified Computing Solution 
Cisco UCS servers provide the compute infrastructure and serve as the virtualization platform 
for voice applications.  The Cisco UCS servers unify computing, networking, management, 
virtualization, and storage access into a single integrated architecture.  

3.4.8 Metropolis Call Accounting 
Metropolis OfficeWatch Telemanagement provides visibility for businesses to easily track all 
calls within the enterprise to determine employee productivity and prevent against 
unauthorized phone usage. The application includes an automatic report scheduler which 
configures an unlimited number of reports to be emailed, printed or archived on an hourly, 
daily, weekly, or monthly basis. OfficeWatch also offers 911 alert notifications and trunk 
analysis tools to help businesses reduce their liability and expenses. 

3.4.9 Voice Gateways 
The Cisco 3945 and Cisco 2951 routers serve as both the gateway to the Public Switched 
Telephone Network and provider SIP networks.  In addition, the voice gateway provides local 
call control in the event of a wide area network failure. 

3.4.10 Endpoints 
Cisco endpoints in the solution are the handsets and devices used by the users – telephones.  
Two models of phones are proposed – the Cisco 8945 and 8961 handsets. 

3.4.11 Calabrio Workforce Management 
Calabrio Workforce Management software makes it easy for contact center managers to forecast 
accurately, develop schedules for multiple sites, track key performance indicators and manage 
real-time adherence. Web-based access to every product feature from any location provides 
better visibility to managers, supervisors, agents and schedulers. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B15 

3.4.12 Calabrio Quality Management 
Quality Management Software allows your company to review and assess the performance 
levels of individual agents and teams, with the speed and ease of software built in a Web 2.0 
framework. You set business-driven parameters that automatically pinpoint and record the 
most relevant calls, providing optimal insight into service performance. 

3.5 Product Implementation Specifics 
3.5.1 Phase I - Unified Communications Products 

Phase 1 System Implementation Objectives: 

1. Core telephony components will be installed at the County’s ISD data center, Sheriff’s 
data center, and HSD’s data center for redundancy.  

2. Core telephony components will be installed at HSD’s Westwind data center and HSD’s 
Mendocino data center for redundancy.  

3. Voice mail services will be integrated with ISD’s Microsoft Exchange server.  Nexus will 
deploy the Microsoft UM Role servers.  

4. IP phones and unified messaging will be deployed to a pilot group of users at ISD and a 
pilot group of users at HSD.  

5. Implement Unity Connection voicemail for HSD pilot users. 
6. Packaged Contact Center Enterprise (PCCE) will be implemented and configured to 

support the ISD Service Desk. PCCE will also be implemented and configured to 
support the HSD Service Desk. 

7. Pilot group of HSD IT. 
 

Specific products and quantities include: 

• (6) Cisco Unified Computer Solution (UCS) Servers, distributed among 4 geographically 
disparate sites: HSD Westwind and Mendocino Data Centers; ISD Data Center and 
Sheriff Data Center.  Virtual Machines (VMs) will be deployed across new ESXi 5.1 
Hypervisors for the most fault tolerant solution to meet the County requirements. 

o This hardware configuration will scale up to support 7500 users 

o Additional hardware (UCS C220 M3 and UCS C240 M3) included for Call 
Recording and Workforce Management 

• 152  Cisco 8945  IP Phones 

•  ~152 Cisco UCL Enhanced User Licenses  

o Includes Jabber IM/Presence 

o UCM 9.1 Server Software License  

•  ~52 Cisco Emergency Responder User Licenses 

• (2) Cisco CUBE Voice Gateway ISR G2 3945 Routers  

• (4) Cisco CUBE Voice Gateway ISR G2 2951 Routers 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B16 

Phase 1 - PCCE Infrastructure  
Nexus will deploy the following components for the Phase I PCCE solution.  Hardware for all 
contact center requirements implemented in all phases will be deployed in this phase. 

Packaged Contact Center Component Model/Description Quantity 

UCS C 260 M2 Cisco Unified Computing System Servers 
(A & B Sides) 

4 

PCCE Call Server Router, Peripheral Gateway, CTI Server & 
CTI OS (A & B Sides) 

4 

PCCE Data Server Logger & Administrative Workstation (A 
& B Sides) 

4 

Unified Customer Voice Portal   Call Server, VXML Server & Media Server 
(2 each On A & B Sides) 

8 

Unified Customer Voice Portal OAMP Operations and Management Portal (On A 
Side) 

2 

Unified Customer Voice Portal Reporting Server Reporting Server (On B Side) 2 

Unified Intelligence Center Publisher CUIC Publisher (On A Side) 2 

Unified Intelligence Center Subscriber CUIC Subscriber (On B Side) 2 

Finesse Server Finesse Server Primary Node (On Side 
A) 

2 

Finesse Server Finesse Server Secondary Node (On 
Side B) 

2 

PCCE Agent/Supervisor Desktops IPCE-PREMAGT-L 230 

Customer Voice Portal Ports CVP-8X-PTS 230 

Customer Voice Portal Redundant Ports CVP-8x-REDPT 230 

VXML Feature License for Voice  Gateways FL-VXML-12 240 

Calabrio Advanced Quality Management Base 
Server 

Calabrio AQM Base Server Software 1 

Calabrio Advanced Quality Management Named 
user License 

Calabrio AQM Named User Licenses 230 

Calabrio Workforce Management Base Server Calabrio WFM Base Server Software 1 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B17 

Packaged Contact Center Component Model/Description Quantity 

Calabrio Advanced Quality Management Named 
user License 

Calabrio WFM Named User Licenses 300 

Packaged Contact Center OVA Files CCE PAC M1 

OVA Files New installations of Packaged Contact Center 

Enterprise 9.0(x) use the following OVA files: 

CCE-PAC-M1-CCE-vmv8-v9.0.1.ova 

CCE-PAC-M1-CVP-vmv8-v9.0.1.ova 

CCE-PAC-M1-Finesse-vmv8-9.0.1.ova 

cucm_9.0_vmv8_v1.5.ova 

CCE-PAC-M1-IntelligenceCenter-vmv8-fv2.1-
v9.0.ova 

CCE-PAC-M1-CVP-Reporting-Server-vmv8-
v9.0.1.ova 

3.5.2 Phase 1 - PCCE Implementation Objectives 
• Nexus will implement a new installation of Cisco’s Packaged Contact Center Enterprise 

(PCCE) infrastructure on Cisco UCS C 260 M2 servers utilizing virtualization in version 
9.x.  Installation of PCCE 9.x 

o Requirements & Design Definition (RDD) included 

o Programming to include: 

 Up to 2 (2) inbound numbers and CTI route points 

 Queues will be limited to: 

 Up to one (1) application.  Application to comprise: 

 Time of Day/Day of Week routing with afterhours, weekend and holiday 
message. 

 Routing by ANI/CLID, DNIS, or menu selection. 

 One (1) inbound menu no more than six (6) across at first level two (2) 
deep, one (1) first level selection for each CSQ, each succeeding level no 
more than three (3) across. May include prompt-and-collect digits for 
routing callers. 

 Two (2) language localizations (English, Spanish) 

 Deployment of up to twenty (20) Finesse Desktops on the ISD and HSD 
PCCE.  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B18 

 Deployment of up to five (5) Cisco Supervisor Desktops on the ISD and 
HSD PCCE.  

 Deployment of up to twenty five (25) Calabrio Advanced Quality 
Management licenses. 

 Callers in queue can request a callback when an agent becomes available, 
reducing time spent on hold and lowering caller frustration. If the caller 
decides to be called back by the system, they leave their name and phone 
number. Their request remains in the system and the effective wait time 
fires when the system places a callback to the caller. The caller answers 
the call and confirms that they are the original caller, and the system 
connects the caller to the agent after a short wait. 

 

3.5.3 Phase 2 - Unified Communications Products 
Phase 2 Implementation Objectives 

1. Contact Center services and agents deployed at 2 HSD Contact Center sites (Westwind 
and Mendocino). 

2. Implement Unity Connection voicemail for (900) HSD users. 
3. Deploy remainder of HSD’s contact centers.  
4. Deploy Contact Center agents and Automatic Call Distribution at up to 28 customer 

departments. 
5. Install IP phones and voice gateways across 28 customer departments distributed across 

53 remote locations. 
 

Specific products and quantities include: 

•  (4000) Cisco 8945 IP Phones 

•  (150) Cisco 7937 IP Conference Phones 

• (105) Cisco 9951 IP Phones 

• (4140) Cisco UCL Enhanced User Licenses 

o Includes Jabber IM/Presence 

•  (4140) Cisco Emergency Responder User Licenses, server software (45) Cisco SRST 
Voice Gateways ISR G2 2900/3900 series, software  

• (900) Unity Connection Voice Mail User licenses 

3.5.4 Phase 2 - PCCE Implementation 
o Requirements & Design Definition (RDD) 

o Programming to include: 

 Up to Thirty (30) inbound numbers and CTI route points 

 Queues will be limited to: 

 Up to one (1) application.  Application to comprise: 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B19 

 Time of Day/Day of Week routing with afterhours, weekend and holiday 
message. 

 Routing by ANI/CLID, DNIS, or menu selection. 

 Twelve (12) inbound menu no more than six (6) across at first level two 
(2) deep, one (1) first level selection for each CSQ, each succeeding level 
no more than three (3) across. May include prompt-and-collect digits for 
routing callers. 

 Two (2) language localizations (English, Spanish) 

 Use the Outbound Option and CVP IVR capability to develop an 
appointments reminder application. 

 Deployment of up to four hundred five (405) Finesse Desktops.  

 Deployment of up to four hundred five (405) Calabrio Advanced Quality 
Management licenses. 

 Deployment of up to two hundred fifty (250) Calabrio Compliance 
Recording licenses. 

 Deployment of up to three hundred (300) Calabrio Work Force 
Management licenses. 

3.5.5  Customer Departments 
 County Department Total 

Phones 
Analog 
Lines 

1 Auditor/Controller/Treasurer/Tax Collector 107 14 

2 Agricultural Commissioner 23 1 

3 Animal Care & Control 20 2 

4 Board of Supervisors 30 1 

5 Clerk/Recorder/Assessor 127 14 

6 Child Support Services 114 6 

7 Community Development 40  

8 County Counsel 44 4 

9 County Administrator 25 1 

10 District Attorney 166 6 

11 Economic Development 22 1 

12 Fire and Emergency Services 122 27 

13 Emergency Operations Center *  

14 General Services 130 19 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B20 

15 Health Services (DHS) 654 60 

16 Human Services (HSD) 841 70 

17 Human Resources 67 4 

18 Information Systems 94 10 

19 Open Space District 44 1 

20 Permit and Resource Management 118 9 

21 Probation 328 12 

22 Public Defender 54 2 

23 Regional Parks 42 5 

24 Retirement 27 2 

25 Sheriff's Office 472 50 

26 Transportation and Public Works 115 2 

27 Transportation Authority 13  

28 UC Extension 33 1 

  3,872 324 

*EOC numbers represented in Fire & Emergency Services total 

3.5.6 Physical Locations 
  Physical Location Address 

1 Agricultural Commissioner's Office 133 Aviation Bl  
2 Main County Administration   2615 Paulin 
3 Sheriff - Administration 2796 Ventura Av 
4 Dept Child Support Svcs 2nd Flr 3725 Westwind Bl 
5 CRA Sonoma 19722 8th St East, Sonoma 
6 CRA Petaluma 11 English St, Petaluma 
7 Community Development Commission 1440 Guerneville  
8 DHS La Fiesta 8511 Liman Way Rohnert Park 
9 DEA/NARC 5770 Skylane Blvd 

10 DHS Guerneville 16390 Main St, Guerneville 
11 Economic Development 401 College Ave, Santa Rosa 
12 Fleet Heavy 1200 Century Ct, Santa Rosa 
13 DHS Department of Health Services 625 5th  
14 Drunk Driver Program DDP    1000 Coddingtown Ctr 
15 DHS Alcohol and Other Drugs Program 1430 Neotomas  
16 DHS Animal  Care and Control 1247 Century Ct  
17 DHS MTU (Medical Therapy Unit) 2665 Dutton Meadows  
18 DHS Mental Health Petaluma 1360 North McDowell, Petaluma 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B21 

19 DHS Lakes 2225 Challenger Way, Santa Rosa 
20 DHS Admin 3325 Chanate  
21 HSD FY&C - Family Youth & Children 1202 Apollo Wy  
22 Human Services Dept-Administration 3600 Westwind Bl   
23 HSD Economic Assistance Svc Ctr   520 Mendocino Av 
24 HSD Adult & Aging, IHSS, APS 1st Flr 3725 Westwind Bl 
25 HSD Employment & Training  2227 Capricorn Wy  
26 HSD Family Justice Center 2755 Mendocino Avenue 
27 HSD 112 Children's Circle 
28 Human Services - Campus Site 2550 Paulin Drive, Santa Rosa 
29 Records Management/Center  1375 N Dutton Av 
30 AG Preservation & Open Space District 747 Mendocino Av  
31 Probation Youth Camp  7201 Steve Olson Ln, Frstvl 
32 JJC Juvenile Justice Center 7425 Rancho Los Guilucos Rd 
33 SCERA  (Retirement) 433 Aviation BL 
34 Sheriff Sonoma Valley Sub Station 810 Grove  
35 Sonoma Police Department 175 - First Street West 
36 Sheriff Windsor PD 9291 Old Redwood Hwy, Windsor 
37 Sheriff Helicopter 2265 Becker Blvd, Santa Rosa 
38 Sheriff Amarosa 3261 Dutton Ave South, Santa Rosa 
39 Sheriff Roseland Sub 555 Sebastopol Rd, Santa Rosa 
40 Sheriff Lake Sonoma 3333 Skaggs Spring Rd, Geyserville 
41 Court Empire 3055 Cleveland Ave, Santa Rosa 

42 
NCDF North County Detention Facility 
(Bomb Squad, TPW Road Yard) 2254 Ordinance  Rd 

43 Sheriff Guerneville Sub 1st and Church St, Guerneville 
44 TPW Refuse/Landfill 500 Mecham Rd PET  
45 TPW Sonoma Road Yard  19722 8th

46 
 Street East, Sonoma 

TPW Air Quality 159 Matheson, Healdsburg 
47 TPW Cotati Road Yard 9200 Water Road, Cotati 
48 TPW Guerneville Road Yard 14900 Armstrong Woods, Guerneville 
49 TPW Healdsburg Road Yard 17270 Healdsburg Ave, Healdsburg 

50 
Transportation Authority FLR 2 and DHS - 
FLR 2 490 Mendocino Av 

51 Sheriff Mark West 4784 Old Redwood Hwy, Santa Rosa 
52 Sheriff Coroner 3336 Chanate, Santa Rosa 
53 DHS Chanate Hall 3333 Chanate, Santa Rosa 

 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B22 

4 Professional Services Overview 

4.1 Project Approach 
Based on our solution lifecycle approach, the services will include these high level phases: 

• Project Initiation 

• Requirements Definition 

• Design Development 

• Phase I Implementation 

o Deploy core voice call control and applications to ISD, Sheriff and HSD 

o Deploy voice services to ISD users 

o Integrate the system with the county MS exchange environment for County voice 
mail users 

o Deploy Unity connection for HSD pilot users 

o Deploy PCCE contact center services to the ISD Service Desk 

o Deploy voice services to HSD IT users  

o Deploy PCCE contact center services to the HSD service desk 

o Training/Knowledge Transfer 

• Phase II Implementation 

o HSD Departmental Rollout 

o HSD Contact Center Rollouts 

o Deploy voice services to all County and HSD users using a phased approach 
 Deploy Unity Connection voicemail to remaining HSD users 
 Deploy the HSD Call Center services 

 
o Deploy contact center to County customer departments using a phase approach 

 DCSS Departmental Rollout  

 Emergency Operations Center Rollout 

 Sonoma County Campus Migration  

 Sheriff’s Department and Satellite Office(s) Rollout  

 Remaining customer departmental remote site Rollout 

 
o Integrate with SIP Carrier services 

o Project Completion  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B23 

 Nexus will work with the County to develop a detailed schedule based on customer priorities 
and constraints. 

4.2 Project Initiation 
The first milestone, project initiation consists of the following: 

• Assignment, scheduling and commitment of Nexus resources. 

• Development of the project plan which will address the following topics: 

o Equipment ordered 

o Equipment received 

o Network readiness assessment 

o Site preparedness 

o Network and provider services coordination 

o System design and configuration 

o Equipment pre-programming and testing 

o On-site training – timelines for system administration and end user training 

o On-site installation 

o Testing and acceptance 

o On-site and remote post installation support 

o Risk management 

o Issues management 

o Financial management 

o Change Control 

• Initiation of the acquisition of hardware, software, and licenses to be used by Nexus and 
deemed necessary by Nexus IS for the delivery of the project.  

• Nexus IS internal review with project team. 

• Conduct a customer kickoff meeting to review statement of work, preliminary design 
and draft timeline.  

4.3 Requirements Definition Development – Core UC 
The objective of the requirements definition process is to identify functional and tactical 
requirements affecting the solution configuration and deployment for both County and HSD 
networks. During this process, Nexus will validate the preliminary design and migration plan 
presented herein. The information also forms the foundation necessary to create the detailed 
design and plan for the core Unified Communications solution. A sample Table of Contents for 
the Requirements Definition Document is attached as Exhibit “S.1”.  

Nexus IS, in conjunction with County, will conduct a series of work sessions to finalize the 
specific hardware site specifications and business requirements.   



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B24 

Topics will include: 

o Network Physical and Logical Topology Review 

o Review of detailed business requirements (Requirements Definition Document) 

 Quality Monitoring 

 IT and End User Training 

 End User Requirements 

 Contact Center Requirements 

o Review of detailed technical requirements (Requirements Definition Document) 
including 

 Environmental 

 Carrier Services 

 Call Routing 

 IVR Call Handling 

 Encryption requirements – Handset to handset 

Requirements will be documented in a Requirements Definition Document (RDD), which will 
be submitted to County for approval.  The RDD describes the County’s business requirements 
and provides a “roadmap” for the design of the solution. County feedback will be incorporated 
into the RDD and up to two revisions of the original RDD will be provided at no additional 
cost. County will be responsible for reviewing and submitting requested changes within three 
(3) business days for each of the two revisions. Final approval must be provided within three (3) 
business days of the last revision.  

During the RDD process, Nexus or County may discover that additional functionality or 
features available to them may benefit the overall project design. Subsequent to RDD approval, 
any adjustments made to the original design, associated Bill of Material (BOM), and services 
will be documented and submitted to County for approval using the Change Order process 
prior to proceeding. 

4.4 Requirements Definitions Development – PCCE (Contact 
Center) 
In order to ensure that County’s expectations for contact center functionality are met, Nexus IS 
has included its Requirements Definition process for the contact center portion of this project. A 
sample Table of Contents for the Requirements Definition Document is attached as Exhibit 
“S.1”. 

Nexus, in conjunction with County, will review the proposed Packaged Contact Center 
Enterprise (PCCE) for the following core project components by conducting a working session 
with decision makers and key users, as identified by County.  The scope of the requirements 
definition process will include the following, as applicable: 

• IP Contact Center (including call flows) 

• Systems Requirements (i.e., security, performance, redundancy, etc.) 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B25 

• Integration Requirements (i.e., integration to third party applications, etc.) 

• Implementation Requirements (i.e., sequence of events, etc.) 

The objective of the requirements definition process will be to identify and validate functional and tactical 
requirements affecting the solution configuration and deployment.  County  inputs will be used to 
validate the preliminary call flow design and level of effort presented in this SOW. The information also 
forms the basis of understanding necessary for development of the detailed design. 

Requirements will be documented in a RDD, which will be submitted to and approved by County. The 
RDD details County’s business requirements and provides a “roadmap” for the design of the solution.  
The following represents a typical outline for the RDD: 

• Telephone Functionality Requirements (Call Center Agents) 

• Agent and CTI Requirements 

• Call Flow Requirements  

• Voicemail Requirements (Call Center Agents) 

• Contact Center Sizing (Erlang) Requirements 

• Circuit Requirements (Call Center related) 

• Silent Monitoring Requirements 

• Reporting Requirements 

• Data Networking Requirements (Call Center related) 

• Computing/Datacom Infrastructure and Requirements (Call Center related) 
Documentation deliverables include Project Plan, RDD, and Detailed Designed Document 
(DDD), based on Nexus Template, any customization to the Nexus Template will result in 
additional charges. 

4.5 Design Development 
Upon County’s review and acceptance of the RDD, Nexus IS will develop the detailed design. 
Requirements will be translated into technical parameters that describe the solution 
configuration and programming. 

This process requires County to complete sections of the data worksheets (provided by Nexus 
IS if applicable) such as dialed number plans, device pools, user names, and agent ID’s, and 
maintenance windows available. This data will be incorporated into the design documentation.  

Upon County’s review and acceptance of the RDD, Nexus will develop the detailed design for 
project. Requirements will be translated into technical parameters that describe the solution 
configuration and programming.  Design development tasks will include: 

o Development of the detailed CUCM and associated applications design 

o Development of Exchange UM integration design 

o Development of HSD’s Unity Connection integration design 

This process requires County to confirm sections of the data worksheets (provided by Nexus) 
based on the existing solutions. This data will be incorporated into the design documentation. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B26 

Any Nexus requested information needs to be provided by County within five (5) business days 
unless County and Nexus agree on an additional timeframe. 

4.6 Contact Center Design Development 
Nexus IS will develop the detailed design for the upgrade of the PCCE project. Requirements 
will be translated into technical parameters that describe the solution configuration and 
programming. 

This process requires County to confirm sections of the data worksheets (provided by Nexus) 
based on the existing PCCE design such as dialed number plans, device pools, user names, and 
agent ID’s. This data will be incorporated into the design documentation. Any Nexus requested 
information needs to be provided by County within five (5) business days unless County and 
Nexus agree on an additional timeframe. 

4.7 Implementation Tasks – Phase One 
 The following table identifies solution components and associated tasks, defining what 
responsibilities shall be borne by Nexus and by County.  Specific dependencies and timing of 
tasks will be developed during the engagement.  

High level tasks in Phase I include: 

o Phased implementation and acceptance testing of the core voice equipment and 
associated applications 

o Deployment and acceptance testing of Microsoft Exchange Unified Messaging 
integration components 

o Deployment and acceptance testing of the ISD and HSD user community 

o Deployment and acceptance testing of the ISD and HSD Service Desk contact 
centers 

o End user training 

o All testing of solutions will include testing failover  

o HSD Unity Connection Voice Mail implementation 

The mark ■ is used to indicate primary responsibility for each task; as applicable, tasks marked 
by □ will require secondary involvement by that identified party.  Tasks that are not pertinent to 
this project (if any) are marked N/A. 

System Task Customer Nexus 

Unified Communications 
Manager Version 9 
(Including IM&P server) 

Gather and create user DB □ ■ 

Create dialing plans □ ■ 

Pre-configure/stage UCM server  ■ 

Upload database  ■ 

Configure dialing plans  ■ 

Configure Nexus standard softkey 
template 

 ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B27 

System Task Customer Nexus 

Configure Nexus standard features**  ■ 

Configure conferencing resources  ■ 

Configure Hunt group(s)  ■ 

Configure voice gateways  ■ 

Configure MOH □-Provide 
WAV file(s) 

■ 

AD integration □-Provide 
Credentials 

■ 

Voice Encryption  ■ 

Test  ■ 

IP Telephones Inventory user IDs, MAC addresses  ■ 

Unpack, place decals and place phones   ■ 

Test phones  ■  

BAT File Normalization  ■ 

Voice gateway/WAN 
Router (SRST Gateways) 

Rack/stack/cable voice gateway  ■ 

Configure voice cards  ■ 

Configure DSP resources  ■ 

Configure SRST  ■ 

Configure/Test PSTN voice circuits  ■ 

Configure/Test SIP PSTN trunks   ■ 

Configure/Test QoS  ■ 

Configure WAN/Internet connectivity (IP 
Sec) 

□ ■ 

Test Metro Ethernet Backhaul Services  ■ 

MS Exchange Voicemail 

Gather Design Requirements □ ■ 

Create User Database and upload  ■ 

Provide server hardware for UM role 
servers 

■  

Install virtual server and operating system 
for UM role server 

■  

Configure UM role server and integration  ■ 

Configure AD integration  ■ 

Test  ■ 

Cisco Jabber 
Gather User requirements □ ■ 

Configure AD integration □-Provide ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B28 

System Task Customer Nexus 

Credentials 

Configure Exchange Integration  ■ 

Configure UCM Voice integration  ■ 

Install Client ■ □ 

Cisco Unity Voicemail Including UM with HSD    

Cisco Emergency 
Responder 

Gather ERL Requirements □ ■ 

Configure ERL  ■ 

Configure SNMP for CER  ■ 

Export ALI Database  ■ 

Test  ■ 

Unified Computing 

Stage and Install Equipment per design 
specifications 

 ■ 

Test  ■ 

Call Recording 

Requirement gathering □ ■ 

Install and configure Quality 
Management 

 ■ 

Test  ■ 

Call Accounting Install and Configure Application □ ■ 

End to End Quality of 
Service Configuration 

Configure end to end quality of service 
(QoS) 

■ □ – Provide 
recommen
dations 

 

4.7.1 Phase One Responsibilities: 
County agrees to the following responsibilities: 

• County will provide station locations, IP addressing and subnet mask plan for the 
network. 

• County will provide information about existing network equipment and phone systems 
for network and telephony requirements 

• County will provide building layout, including floor plans, cabling and power locations 
for all applicable sites. 

• County will provide all information regarding call flows within and outside of any call 
centers. 

• County and cabling contractor will ensure that all cable termination and cable patching 
is completed after installation. 

• Encryption will support IP Phone to IP Phone and IP Phone to main site gateways (3).  
No encryption in SRST mode or to analog gateways. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B29 

• The County will provide all station patch cables. 

• All LDAP directories that affect this project will be up to date and functioning properly. 

• All Active Directory applications and databases that affect this project will be up to date 
and functioning properly. 

• Network infrastructure and data center infrastructures are ready to accept applications. 

4.8 Contact Center Upgrade Deployment Tasks 
Due to compatibility requirements between the Unified Communications Manager and Packaged Contact 
Center Enterprise components, the sequence of events in the project must be carefully considered and 
closely maintained. Nexus will work closely with County during the Requirements Definition phase to 
provide a detailed sequence of events. County currently plans to deploy PCCE in the environment of 
Cisco UC Manager 9.x clustered across the WAN. 

The mark ■ is used to indicate primary responsibility for each task; as applicable, tasks marked by □ will 
require secondary involvement by that identified party.  Tasks that are not pertinent to this project (if 
any) are marked N/A. 

The following table identifies solution components and associated tasks, defining what responsibilities 
shall be borne by Nexus and County. 

 
System Task County Nexus 

UCS Tasks 

UCS Servers Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Storage Infrastructure Integration □ ■ 

 VMware Installation □ ■ 

 

System Task County Nexus 

PCCE Tasks 

PCCE Call Servers (4) Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS/DB □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install PCCE Software  ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B30 

System Task County Nexus 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Scripting  ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

PCCE Data Servers (4) Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS/DB □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install PCCE Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

CVP - Call Server, 
VXML Server & Media 
Server (8) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS/DB □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install PCCE Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

CVP Operations Server 
(2) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install CVP Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Scripting □ ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B31 

System Task County Nexus 

 Testing □ ■ 

CVP Reporting Server 
(2) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install CVP Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Scripting □ ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

CUIC Publisher (2) Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install CVP Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Scripting □ ■ 

Testing □ ■ 

CUIC Subscriber(2) Physical Installation ■ □ 

Install OS ■ □ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install CVP Studio Software  ■ 

 Configuration  ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B32 

System Task County Nexus 

Finesse Primary Node 
(2) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install WIM Software  ■ 

 Configuration □ ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

Finesse Secondary 
Node (2) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install WIM Software  ■ 

 Configuration □ ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

Calabrio AQM Base 
Server (1) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install WIM Software  ■ 

 Configuration □ ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

Calabrio WFM Base 
Server (1) 

Physical Installation □ ■ 

 Install OS □ ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B33 

System Task County Nexus 

 Network/Infrastructure 
Integration 

□ ■ 

 Install WIM Software  ■ 

 Configuration □ ■ 

 Testing □ ■ 

Notes: 
County will be involved in components of the software installation and 
configuration since items such as domain and IP addresses need to be considered. 

4.9 Site Implementation Tasks – Phase Two 
Nexus’ responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to, the responsibilities below and 
County agrees to responsibilities as identified below. Specific dependencies and timing of tasks 
will be developed during the engagement.   

The mark ■ is used to indicate primary responsibility for each task; as applicable, tasks marked 
by □ will require secondary involvement by that identified party.  Tasks that are not pertinent to 
this project (if any) are marked N/A. 

System Task County Nexus 

 

 

 

 

 

Unified Communications 
Manager Version 9  

Gather and create user DB □ ■ 

Create dialing plans □ ■ 

Pre-configure/stage UCM server  ■ 

Upload database  ■ 

Configure dialing plans  ■ 

Configure Nexus standard softkey template  ■ 

Configure Nexus standard features  ■ 

Configure conferencing resources  ■ 

Configure Hunt group(s)  ■ 

Configure voice gateways  ■ 

Configure MOH □-Provide WAV 
file(s) 

■ 

Test  ■ 

 

 

 

 

Inventory user IDs, MAC addresses  ■ 

Determine phone placement locations ■ ■ 

Unpack, place decals and place phones   ■ 

Test phones  ■ 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B34 

System Task County Nexus 

 

IP Telephones 
BAT File Normalization  ■ 

 

Voice gateway 

 (SRST Gateways) 

Rack/stack/cable voice gateway  ■ 

Configure voice cards  ■ 

Configure DSP resources  ■ 

Configure SRST  ■ 

Configure/Test PSTN voice circuits  ■ 

Configure/Test SIP PSTN trunks   ■ 

Configure/Test QoS  ■ 

 Voicemail Integration 

Gather User Requirements □ ■ 

Create User Database and upload  ■ 

Test  ■ 

Cisco Emergency 
Responder 

Gather ERL Requirements □ ■ 

Configure ERL (1)  ■ 

Configure SNMP for CER  ■ 

Export ALI Database  ■ 

Test  ■ 

UPS Installation 

Install UPS, batteries, and configure SNMP 
card 

□ – Acquire 
UPS and 
provide 
equipment 
storage, staging 
area 

■ 

 Update site specific documentation ■ – Review 
documentation 

■ 

Documentation Updates Install APs  ■ 

 Configure the wireless controller for the site  ■ 

Training 
Provide end-user training ■- Attend 

Training 

■ 

4.10 QoS Deployment 
Nexus will work with the County to provide the system QoS requirements necessary for the 
implementation.  The County will be responsible for deployment and monitoring of the end-to-
end QoS configuration. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B35 

4.11 General Test and Acceptance 
The following parameters establish the acceptance criteria/proof of performance that shall 
result in successful project acceptance by the County. Testing is to be conducted by Nexus in the 
presence of County representatives.  

• Successful automatic alternate routing between facilities 

• Successful testing of both UCM subscribers at both sites 

• Deployment and acceptance testing of Microsoft Exchange Unified Messaging 
integration components 

• Deployment and acceptance testing of Cisco Unity Connection voice mail 

• Deployment and acceptance testing of two pilot locations of approximately140 users 
End user training as outlined in this scope of work 

• Successful testing of voicemail services and integrated messaging 

• Successful testing of PSTN/SIP calls 

• Successful SRST fallback from UCM 

• Successful Layer 3 routing, IPSec VPN and local call processing for Fire Station locations 

• Deployment and testing of Cisco IP telephones (Nexus IS responsibility to place/test) 

• Validated dial plan 

• Successful cut-over from existing telephony services to new Cisco solution 

• Successful testing of CER ERLs (up to 20 ERLs) 

• Successful testing of Jabber/Presence application with Exchange Messaging and 
Voicemail integration 

• Successful testing of call recording software 

• Successful testing of Unified Computing, VMware Hypervisor 5.1 and collaboration 
applications residing on UCS hardware 

•  Successful testing of all redundant power supplies included in the Bill of Materials.  

• All testing will include testing failover 

• Successful testing of Unity Connection voice mail 

4.12 Contact Center End User Acceptance Testing 
Nexus will conduct user acceptance testing in conjunction with the County to ensure the 
successful operation of the system. The following parameters establish the system level 
proof of performance criteria for the contact center component of the system: 

• Unified Communications Manager connectivity 
• Cisco Agent Desktop and Supervisor Desktop connectivity 
• Successful testing of all call routing logic defined within the Requirements Definition 

Documents 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B36 

• Successful feature and functionality testing of the Cisco Agent Desktop 
• Successful feature and functionality testing of the Cisco Supervisor Desktop 

Once accepted, County will sign system acceptance acknowledgement and system will remain 
in this configured state without modification until go-live or a change order is created with any 
necessary charges included and agreed upon by both parties. 

4.13 Knowledge Transfer and Training 
Nexus will provide Knowledge Transfer training sessions for administrative staff and end users 
on-site.  

4.13.1 System Administration Knowledge Transfer 
The following system administration knowledge transfer sessions will be provided: 

• Up to (2) hours of CER System Administration training 
• Up to (4) hours of Cisco IM&P/Jabber and Unity Connection System Administration 

training 
• Up to (4) hours of QM System Administration training 
• Up to (4) hours of CUCM System Administration training 
• Two (2) Service Desk first level troubleshooting and triage knowledge transfer for both 

ISD Service Desk and Desktop Support Teams up to (2) hours each.  

o Basic converged IP Handset  

o Converged network troubleshooting 

o Basic Jabber troubleshooting 

o Basic IM&P troubleshooting 

 

4.13.2 End-User Knowledge Transfer Training 
Nexus will provide end-user knowledge transfer to the County: 

• End-User training and documentation at customer department locations –  
• One end user training session per group of 15 users  

o Up to (45) minutes for handset operation and features 
o Up to (30) minutes of Cisco Jabber and Unity Connection (if applicable) End-User 

training  

4.13.3 Contact Center Agent/Supervisor Knowledge Transfer  
Nexus will provide Agent/Supervisor training during the week prior to cutover. Classes shall 
be scheduled Monday through Friday, between 8am and 5pm, in a manner such that multiple 
classes are conducted on any given day and in a contiguous manner.  

Training will be provided during multiple training sessions. 

Phase 1 – For each of the ISD and HSD Service Desks 

• One (2) 1.5-hour training sessions for agent level training. 
• One (1) 3-hour training sessions for supervisor desktop tools and functions 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B37 

Phase 2 – For all other Contact Centers 

• Eighty (80) 1.5-hour training sessions for agent level training 
• Five (5) 3-hour training sessions for supervisor desktop tools and functions 

Agent training sessions will be limited to up to five (5) attendees per session. Supervisor 
sessions will be limited to up to five (5) attendees per session. It will be the responsibility of 
County to schedule attendees and ensure attendance.  

The class will consist of live telephones and personal computers as required for attendees to 
obtain hands on training.  County will be responsible for providing the training room and 
associated hardware and software to support the class. 

Nexus will provide one set of end user documentation to be given to users during their training 
course. County will be responsible for reproducing the appropriate number of copies for the 
users. 

4.13.4 Contact Center Administrative Knowledge Transfer 
The County will designate appropriate personnel who are familiar with the project details and who will 
continue to maintain the systems after cutover. The knowledge transfer session(s) provide the basic 
understanding of how the system(s) operate. Knowledge transfer DOES NOT provide expert and/or 
advanced functionality administration. County and its customer departments should NOT expect to 
troubleshoot advanced situations and upgrade their system(s) without assistance from Nexus or Cisco 
unless County personnel receive advanced Cisco training/certification(s).  

System Administration knowledge transfer will be delivered at a single County location and will include: 

Phase 1 

One (1) 8 hour sessions for PCCE Administrative Training 

One (1) 8 hour session for CVP Administrative Training 

One (1) 6 hour session for Standard Reports Overview 

Phase 2 

One (1) 6 hour session for Standard Reports Overview 

Informal administrator knowledge transfer may be recorded and typically covers the following: 

• Contact Center Enterprise 

o Introduction to Contact Center Enterprise 

o How to add users/agents 

o Basic call handling 

o Basic troubleshooting techniques 

o Backup procedures 

  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B38 

 

4.14 Cutover/First Day of Support 
Nexus will provide on-site support for each cutover at a mutually agreed upon time.  

Nexus will provide one technician on-site to run the ISD Service Desk. These technicians will be 
onsite during the first one (1) day that users will need to operate the system.  On-site hours are, 
at minimum, between 7:30 am and 5:30 pm.  

4.15 Deliverables 
Task Deliverable 

Project Management Plan and Schedule Approved Initial Detailed Project Plan 
Communication Plan 
Change Management Plan 
Configuration Management Plan 
Training Plan 
Critical Services Cutover Plan 
Cutover Fallback Plan 

Network Readiness Validation (Assessment) Network Ready for Use (NRFU) Document 
Requirements Definition Requirements Definition Documents for Core 

UC and PCCE 
System Requirements Complete Verified List of Equipment to Order 
Network and Voice System Design Approved Low Level Design Document 
Onsite Voice Equipment Staging and Testing Verified List of Equipment Received 

System Test and Acceptance Plan 
System Test and Acceptance Results 

Voice Implementation Deployment Plan 
Detailed Design Document 
Customer Department Completion Certificate 

Final System Acceptance System Delivery Acceptance Document 

4.16 Project Completion 
Upon Nexus’ completion of the professional services, Nexus shall notify County of completion 
of a specific milestone or service performed by providing either the Customer Department 
Completion Certificate or the System Acceptance Certificate.  County has five (5) working days 
from the receipt of the certificate(s) to schedule appropriate personnel to review the particular 
milestone or services performed and sign the certificate(s). Signing of the certificate(s) signifies 
County’s acceptance of the milestone and to County’s knowledge that services have been 
performed as described in the certificate(s) and in accordance with the SoW.  The County will 
make a reasonable effort to respond within the (5) business day review period. 

In order to refuse acceptance of the services performed, County must explain how services do 
not conform to the SoW. Nexus shall address such non-conformance in a timely manner. Nexus 
shall compile a written action plan to correct any deficiencies and the process for acceptance 
detailed herein shall be repeated until such time as all deficiencies have been resolved and the 
services meet the requirements of the SoW as identified by County.  

At the conclusion of this project, Nexus will have deployed a solution as described throughout 
the various applicable contractual documents including but not limited to this SOW. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B39 

As acknowledgement that the system has been placed into commercial operation, County will 
sign the applicable certificate(s), which may list certain minor items that were not yet able to be 
deployed. These items (if any) will also have documented due dates for the expected 
completion date. Other items listed could include as-built documentation and or drawings as 
applicable based on what was purchased in the agreement. 

4.17 Issue Escalation 
There are two kinds of support issues that require escalation: 

• Implementation issues 

• Operations and Maintenance (O&M) issues 

4.17.1 Implementation Issues 
All issues directly related to the implementation of the County network are the responsibility of, 
and should be directed to, the Nexus Project Team. These issues include anything within the 
scope of the signed Professional Services Scope of Work. The responsibility for maintenance of 
the installed components of the new network transitions to an O&M status upon County 
signing the Customer Department Completion Certificate or the System Acceptance Certificate.  

Problem Resolution – During an implementation, the Nexus Project Manager will be 
responsible for ensuring Cisco-related issues are resolved to the satisfaction of County. For 
contact information pertaining to the Nexus Project Team direct all inquiries to the following 
individuals: 

Problem Resolution Contact Information 

Name Title Phone E-mail 

Michael Patterson Manager, Professional Services 925-271-3333 Michael.patterson@nexusis.com 

Michael Parish Director, Professional Services 925-271-6750 michael.parish@nexusis.com 

Dale Hardy Vice President, Professional Services 858-427-2610 dale.hardy@nexusis.com 

 

Problem Escalation – Any problems encountered post-implementation require County to open 
a support case with the Nexus TAC. 

 4.17.2 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Issues 
Once the solution has been implemented, operational and maintenance issues are outside the 
scope of this SoW.  

4.17.3 Cisco SMARTnet: Critical Technical Support 
Cisco software and hardware maintenance is included on the bill of materials and is provided 
for primary components and applications for five years.  SMARTnet can be identified on the bill 
of materials by the prefix “CON”, for Contract, followed by a contract type identifier as shown 
below: 

SNT- SMARTnet maintenance agreement, typically hardware only. See Exhibit “L.1” - Smartnet 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B40 

ISV – Independent Software Vendor, Cisco provided support for third party software included 
in the solution, i.e. VMware server operating systems. See Exhibit “L.4” – ISV Cisco Third Party 
Support Service 

ESW – Essential Software Maintenance, technical support for software and minor release 
updates included.  See Exhibit “L.2” – ESW Cisco Software Application Support Services 

UCSS – Unified Communications Software Subscription. See Exhibit “L.3” – UCSS Unified 
Contact Center Customer Application Software 

4.17.4 Resolution of Issues 

If issues arise regarding this Scope of Work that has not been resolved by either the Nexus or 
County Project Manager, escalation will occur as follows:  

Nexus Escalation Contact Information 

Name Title Phone E-mail 

Michael Parish Director, Professional Services 925-271-6750 michael.parish@nexusis.com 

Alan Engler Vice President, 
Government/Education 

661-775-2451 alan.engler@nexusis.com 

 

County Escalation Contact Information 

Name Title Phone E-mail 

Dan Fruchey Information Systems Division 
Director 

707-565-2703 Dan.Fruchey@sonoma-county.org 

John Hartwig Information Systems Director 707-565-6055 John.Hartwig@sonoma-county.org 

 

mailto:michael.parish@nexusis.com�
mailto:Dan.Fruchey@sonoma-county.org�
mailto:John.Hartwig@sonoma-county.org�


 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B41 

5 Responsibilities of Each Party 

5.1 Project Coordination 
Nexus project coordination services provide a structured methodology for implementation for 
this SoW. Project coordination services provide oversight of the organization, direction and 
control of all project-related efforts required to complete the implementation as defined herein. 
Project coordination will include the oversight of the project as defined by this SoW together 
with the customer in the role of the Nexus’ single point of contact. Timelines and schedules will 
be established to help meet the needs of the project goals and expectations for the associated 
solutions as defined in Section 2.0 herein. 

Upon execution of this SoW by both parties and Nexus’ receipt of the executed SoW, signed 
Schedule A and Purchase Agreement from the customer, Nexus, in coordination with the 
County, will determine the optimal start date and cutover/delivery date based on discussions 
with the Nexus sales team, project coordination resource, Nexus technical resources, and the 
customer.  

The Nexus Project Manager will organize and coordinate the following tasks including but not 
limited to: 

• The procurement, staging and delivery of the equipment purchased. 

• The scheduling of Nexus resources. 

• The coordination of required customer resources and associated tasks (if applicable). 

• The planning of installation activities utilizing the timeline established after the kick off 
meeting as the guide. 

• Act as the single point of contact for change control, escalation and acceptance activities 
for the implementation team efforts defined within this SoW. 

• Participate in planning meetings, weekly status meetings, weekly conference calls and e-
mail communications with the County to discuss the project and coordinate activities. 

• Maintain the Project Plan/Schedule, track dependencies between Nexus and County 
tasks, identify and manage Nexus initiated project risks, and alert both project teams of 
any timeline slips and their effect on the project’s target end date. 

• Work in partnership with County’s Project Manager to coordinate Nexus tasks with 
County tasks throughout all phases of the project. 

• Provide a combination of on-site and remote project management, technical and user 
support during cut-over, to include up to three (3) days of post-live assistance and 
project management on-site for both main locations and one (1) full day on site for 
remote sites or specific designated departments, to assist users and to coordinate the 
resolution of any remaining issues.   

• The Nexus Project Manager will use an organized incident management process to 
track, document and resolve all identified issues. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B42 

• Provide project management throughout the project.  The Nexus Project Manager will 
collaborate and participate in Steering Committee briefings. 

Nexus General Responsibilities 

 Nexus will provide a Project Manager experienced with the proposed solution to serve 
as the County’s single point of contact in all aspects of this engagement including but 
not limited to scheduling, defining requirements, change control, risk mitigation, 
escalation, implementation planning, and acceptance.  

 Nexus will provide a Project Manager who shall work in accordance with, and under the 
direction of the County Project Manager to verify design specifications and end user 
requirements.   

 Nexus will provide guidance on best practices; however it is understood that the unique 
design requirements of the County will be the determining factor.  

 Nexus will provide one or more Certified Trainers in order to complete the training 
requirements. 

 Nexus will provide a Project Engineer to be the primary technical resource for delivery 
of the services proposed herein.   

 Where specialized products or third party products are used, the Project Engineer must 
be fully versed in those components or additional qualified engineers must be available 
to the project team as required to support the complete solution. 

 Nexus will provide a resource for integration purposes and any custom configuration 
that may be required to meet specific needs of the County, including integration with 
the existing telephony system(s) during all phases of the implementation. 

County General Responsibilities 

 County will provide an internal Project Manager to work closely with the Nexus project 
team.  This internal Project Manager’s responsibilities will be to facilitate all 
communication and meetings between Nexus Project Manager and the County project 
team, and to ensure that the County is meeting the deadlines for accomplishing any 
County tasks set forth in the project schedule.  Nexus understands that the County and 
its designated Project Manager will provide overall project direction.   

 County will provide one or more resources to assist the Nexus Project Engineer with 
design specifications, data gathering, and compilation of end-user database.  Nexus will 
clearly identify those tasks suggested for assignment to County personnel and quantify 
the work hours anticipated for completion. 

 County will provide one or more technical resources to assist the Nexus Project Engineer 
with implementation of hardware and software components, network configuration, 
and other technical requirements.  Nexus will clearly identify those tasks suggested for 
assignment to County personnel and quantify the work hours anticipated for 
completion. 

 County may provide additional resources to assist with project deliverables, including 
but not limited to installing client-side software, placement of telephones, user 
acceptance testing, and cutover assistance.  Nexus will clearly identify those tasks 
suggested for assignment to County personnel and quantify the work hours anticipated 
for completion. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B43 

5.2 Project Kickoff Meeting 
The purpose of the project kickoff meeting is to transition the project from the design and 
purchase process to the implementation phase. The agenda of the meeting will include the 
review of the contract terms, and key project task areas. The key stakeholders need to attend to 
agree on roles and responsibilities, establish joint planning, and define short-term deliverables 
for Nexus, the County, and County’s department customers. . This includes  an on-site meeting 
with the added attendance of the Nexus Account Manager, Systems Design Engineer and 
Deployment Engineer(s) either live or remotely, as well as the County’s’ key stakeholders. 
County’s key stakeholders include ISD Senior Network Analyst, Network Systems Project 
Manager, County Project Manager, Human Services Network Analyst, Human Services 
Department Information Systems Manager, and Child Support Services Department 
Information Systems Analyst.   

At a minimum, the agenda will also include the review of the following planning activities: 

• Validate the Bill of Materials as itemized in Exhibit “C” – Payment Schedule. 

• Review various other specifics of this Scope of Work. 

• Develop & verify the contact and escalation list. 

• Communication plan that defines the understanding as to how Nexus and the customer 
agree to communicate on all project related information ranging from non-critical 
information to critical information. As part of the communication plan, the Nexus 
Project Manager and the County’s Project Manager will jointly establish: 

o The time and frequency for status meetings/conference calls. 

o Documentation of meetings and the distribution of the associated meeting notes. 

o The assignment and tracking of all required action items. 

o Network information deliverables required from the customer. 

o System database information deliverables as may be required from the customer, 
including extension number assignments, IP-numbering schema, and public and 
private circuit switching information. 

o Project invoicing terms as defined in Exhibit ‘C’ – Payment Schedule.  

o Freeze dates for any database or scope changes. 

o Review and verify the County’s hours of operation, available building access for 
Nexus, County’s change management requirements, loading dock availability, 
blackout dates/times for service or delivery, security, site access badge 
requirements, escorted access requirements, and facility training requirements. 

• Site test, acceptance process and criteria based on the scope of the project 

5.3 Network Readiness for VoIP System 
• Nexus will work with designated County resource to perform a Voice Readiness 

Assessment to confirm network readiness for VoIP.  Nexus will provide a written report 
documenting findings and any required remediation that is based on the specific 
requirements of the proposed solution. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B44 

• Nexus will define:  QoS settings; IP subnet and VLAN recommendations; DNS, TFTP, 
DHCP, and AD configuration requirements; settings to enable VPN and wireless LAN 
operations; compatibility needs of network monitoring tools; and make suggestions to 
address any potential firewall issues.  

• Nexus will support and train designated County resources with implementation and 
testing of QoS and other configuration settings.  Nexus shall also provide documented 
configuration settings.  

• Nexus will work with designated County resource to define and troubleshoot any voice 
quality issues. 

5.4 Environmental 
• Nexus will perform site inspections at the County data center locations:  ISD, Sheriff’s, 

and HSD to assess power, cooling, equipment layout requirements and communicate 
any additional requirements to customer departments. 

• County will perform reasonable changes as mutually agreed upon by County and 
Nexus as recommended by site inspections to provide adequate environmental 
conditions and equipment layout requirements. 

• Nexus will ensure that all services are tested and in place at system install. 

5.5 Carrier Services 
• Nexus will validate that provider services matches system design requirements (i.e. 

alternate trunking for DR route pattern and any required co-location of equipment). 

• County will order all voice and data circuits as required prior to implementation and 
ensure that all telco demarcations are clearly identified.  Nexus shall test all circuits prior 
to use. 

• Nexus will work with County Project Manager to ensure all provider services are in 
place and tested prior to implementation.  

5.6 End User Requirements 
• Nexus and County Project Manager will conduct meetings with departmental 

representatives as needed.   

• Nexus will provide guidance and recommendations based on best practices on 
telephone features, button layout and PC clients. 

• Nexus will work with County resources to collect, compile, and validate end user 
information for onsite workers, teleworkers, and mobile workers (non-call center 
agents). 

• Nexus will work with County resource to collect, compile, and validate information for 
Call Center Agents and Supervisors. 

• Nexus will design and configure IP telephones and PC Client templates based on 
specific needs of end users. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B45 

5.7 Routing 
• Nexus will compile information on current and proposed dial plan, routing restrictions, 

alternate routing, integration with other systems, E911, internal dialling and calling 
across the DMH network. 

• Nexus will build dial plan and routing tables, validate, and upload into system 
programming. 

5.8 IVR Call Handling 
• Nexus will meet with designated County staff to determine call flow and IVR call 

handling. 

• Nexus will validate design, document and build call flow. 

• Nexus will work with County to record all required announcements based on the 
routing scheme. 

5.9 Contact Center Requirements 
• Nexus will meet with designated contact center representative to determine call flow 

design, agent and supervisor requirements. 

• Nexus will compile and document contact center design including: 

o Routing rules  

o Agent capabilities 

o Supervisor capabilities  

o Agent and supervisor PC client 

o Access to real-time and historical reports 

o Design of standard and any required custom reports 

• Nexus will validate and document contact center design. 

• Nexus will compile, validate and configure agent and supervisor queue and skill 
assignments. 

• Nexus will configure queues and skills-based routing. 

• Nexus will upload contact center programming into system. 

• Nexus will configure agent and supervisor desktops (PC clients). 

• Nexus will work with County Project Manager to deploy PC client.  

5.10 Quality Monitoring 
• Nexus will meet with designated contact center representatives to determine quality 

monitoring requirements. 

• Nexus will configure quality monitoring system to include, but not be limited to: 

o Automated and on-demand recording 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B46 

o Screen scrape   

o Archiving and retrieval per user-defined parameters 

o Customizable scoring tool 

• Nexus will work with County Project Manager to deploy Supervisory tools.  

5.11 Training 
• Nexus shall provide the following training 

o Nexus shall perform knowledge transfer on elements of the proposed solution 
for the County’s implementation team as described in the knowledge transfer 
section 4.13. 

o Nexus shall provide manufacturer certified end user, supervisor, and 
administrative training at each County site, or at agreed-upon centralized 
locations for remote sites.  

• Nexus will work with County Project Manager to determine training curriculum and 
schedules. 

• Trainers must be certified on the proposed equipment with at least one year of field 
training experience. 

• Classes will be conducted on live system equipment at each County site or designated 
remote sites (Nexus provides and sets up phones for training). 

• Nexus shall provide users with user handouts and access to online resources. 

• Classes will be “hands-on” instructor-led classes with no more than 15 users per class 
and include training on: 

o Use of basic telephone features 

o Use of PC client   

o Use of voice or multi-media messaging 

• Specialized training will be provided for contact center agents that includes 

o Use of agent functionality as appropriate to agent skill level 

o Remote agent functionality 

o Operation of PC client including After Call Work Codes and Transaction Codes 

o Operation of supervisor or agent “chat” features 

o Access to individual metrics as appropriate 

o Ability to “record on demand” as appropriate 

• Specialized training will be provided for supervisors that includes 

o Review of available supervisor tools     

o Operation of supervisor PC client 

o Access to conditional routing tools including announcements    



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B47 

o Access to standard reports 

o Creation of custom reports 

o Use of quality monitoring System   

• Nexus shall provide specialized training for Operators. 

• Nexus shall provide ongoing knowledge transfer to designated County resources during 
system design, configuration, implementation and support stabilization. 

• Specialized training will be provided for system administration and management.  This 
training may be on-site or at a Nexus/manufacturer training facility as mutually agreed 
upon. 

•  Nexus shall make available any other training tools deemed advantageous to the 
ongoing training and management of the proposed systems, including but not limited to 
access to online resources and continuing education. 

5.12 Installation Coordination  
• Nexus shall be responsible for the following 

o Nexus shall work with County Project Manager to determine site installation, 
deployment schedule, cutover plan, and coordination of equipment delivery. 
Cutover work will need to be carefully scheduled and performed with minimal 
disruption to County operations.  This includes the potential for the project to be 
disrupted due to adverse weather conditions and public service emergencies. 

o Nexus shall assume all responsibility for delivery, installation, and testing of all 
Nexus-supplied equipment, software and support services proposed. 

o Nexus shall install, configure, and test all core equipment. 

o Nexus shall stage and deploy phones according to the agreed-upon schedule. 

o Nexus shall remove and make available to the County all telephones and PBX 
common equipment upon successful cutover for each site, unless a trade in has 
been proposed. 

o Nexus shall test connectivity, registration, and programming accuracy of each IP 
phone. 

o Nexus shall test and verify ACD queues and skills-based routing. 

o Nexus shall test and verify IVR call handling patterns including announcements 
and prompts. 

o Nexus shall test and verify DR failover and recovery. 

o Nexus shall test and verify trunking, standard and alternate call routing and 
inbound and. outbound dial plan. 

• Nexus shall provide cutover coordination and support that includes the following:    

o Nexus Project Manager shall work with County Project Manager to determine 
timeline and schedule for migration to new system 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B48 

o Nexus shall provide onsite and remote (as needed) resources to support 
migration schedule  

o Nexus shall provide resources for (3) days of onsite business support following 
cutover  

5.13 Post Installation Test and Acceptance   
• Nexus shall supply adequate resources for all post-cutover issues including training, 

knowledge transfer, troubleshooting, and user programming adjustments. 

• Nexus shall supply a Test and Acceptance document for review and approval by the 
County.  At a minimum, the acceptance testing period shall consist of twenty-one (21) 
consecutive days of normal traffic load with no major component failures and no major 
alarms, defined as:  

o Any core server, core appliance, or SBC processing failure; 

o Any core server, core appliance, or SBC power supply failure; 

o Inability for the contact center to route calls as designed 

o 10% or more of incoming/outgoing trunks inoperable;  

o 10% or more stations at a site inoperable; or 

o 10% or more of the voice mail system users inoperable. 

• Nexus shall work with County resources to conduct and document test acceptance and 
site sign off.   

• Prior to being required to accept  the installed system, Nexus will provide  a  letter of 
official system certification with successful acceptance test results, accompanied by two 
sets of as-built documentation provided by Nexus.  

• Pilot Implementation  

o The County’s request for proposal indicates that two pilot locations will be 
deployed during phase I. 

o To maintain the project schedule, the County and Nexus will agree on pilot 
success criteria.   

o Any significant design changes resulting from the pilot deployment may impact 
the project schedule.  

5.14 Documentation 
• Documentation requirements include: 

o Nexus shall provide County with documentation compiled during the course of 
the project. 

• Nexus shall provide final as-built documentation including, but not limited to: 

o Detailed system configuration settings 

o Detailed device configurations  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B49 

o IP phone inventory information (templates, extensions, MAC addresses, serial 
numbers) 

o Voice mail configurations 

o End user, agent and supervisor profiles 

o Contact center configurations 

o Call flow documentation 

o Queue and skill configurations 

o System architecture diagrams 

o Jack/cable information 

• Nexus shall provide a description of ongoing support resources available to the County 
post installation.  For example:  knowledge base, website, trouble tickets, user guides, 
web based training, etc. 

5.15 County Responsibilities 
• The County network architecture is capable of supporting VoIP traffic as required per 

Cisco’s Solution Reference Network Design (SRND). The County will be responsible for 
the network remediation required to comply with SRND or work with Nexus for a 
mutually agreed upon alternate network design.  

• The County cabling infrastructure, premise wiring and data connectivity to required 
equipment is installed, tested and capable of supporting VoIP traffic prior to 
implementation. 

• The County resources assigned to the project are available to complete project tasks on a 
timely basis. 

• The County Microsoft Exchange environment is sized for and capable of handling the 
additional load presented by Unified Messaging. 

• The County will be responsible for troubleshooting Microsoft Exchange issues beyond 
the UM role server. 

• The County will provide Microsoft Server 2008 installation media and licenses. 

5.16 Implementation Phase 
Throughout the implementation phase, the Nexus Project Manager will: 

• Lead the project by following this project scope, and associated activities as established 
in the project kickoff meeting 

• Update the Project Time Line, review the project for jeopardy, and act as the Nexus 
“Single Point of Contact” 

• Coordinate the requirements associated with system data gathering requirements 

• Establish and participate in status update calls 

• Process any change orders as may be required throughout the implementation 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B50 

• Oversee the process of collecting the information required for the Requirements 
Definition Documentation (if purchased) and coordinate the preparation and 
presentation of the final document 

• Validate with the Nexus and customer project teams that voice services are in place as 
required and designed prior to the conversion date 

• Track the flow of equipment from the Nexus staging facility to the County location. 

• Contact County to confirm site readiness for equipment delivery and prior to the start of 
work on site by the Nexus deployment team 

• Verify the existence of the required electrical and environmental equipment prior to the 
installation 

• Ensure Nexus employees and any subcontractors conform to customer’s reasonable 
workplace policies, conditions, and safety regulations that are consistent with Nexus’ 
obligations herein and that are provided to Nexus in writing prior to commencement of 
the services; provided, however, that Nexus’ personnel or subcontractors shall not be 
required to sign individual agreements with the customer or waive any personal rights. 

County responsibilities include: 

• Designate a single point of contact to whom all Nexus communications may be 
addressed and who has authority to act on all aspects of the services. This primary 
contact will be available during normal business hours. 

• Designate a backup contact when the primary customer contact is not available, who has 
the same authority as the primary contact in the absence of the primary contact. 

• Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, provide information and documentation 
required by Nexus within five (5) business days of Nexus’ request. 

• Notify Nexus of any hardware and/or software upgrades or any other changes within 
the County’s network at least thirty (30) business days prior to the upgrade.  

• Notify Nexus of any installation scheduling change at least seventy-two (72) hours prior 
to the originally scheduled installation date. Scheduling changes and/or cancellations 
made after this 72-hour window may be subject to Nexus’ then current cancellation 
penalty charge. 

• When requested by Nexus, provide customer site building layouts, including the floor 
plans, location of cables, and power sources. 

• Supply the workplace policies, conditions, and environment in effect at the customer 
site.  

Nexus responsibilities: 

• Develop configuration documentation with input from County and/or County’s 
network design team. 

• Develop the implementation-specific network diagram with input from County and/or 
the design team. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B51 

• Configure the Unified Communications Manager for maximum conformance to the 
desired access and security policy, user classes of service, and toll, station, and phone 
restrictions. This conformance is based Cisco’s published SRND documentation. 

County responsibilities: 

• Provide input to Nexus for the development of configuration documentation. 

• Provide station locations IP addresses and subnet masks and existing DNS and DHCP 
server configurations information, if applicable. 

• Provide a relevant list of users, security levels, and access privileges.  Define the 
Communications Manager System administration and securities policies and any other 
special requirements to be implemented in the product. 

• Upgrade and configure any third party systems to be compatible with CUCM v9 as 
needed. 

5.17 Off-Site Staging 
Nexus responsibilities: 

• Receive, inventory, and record serial numbers for the product at the off-site staging 
location. It is Nexus’ preference to stage equipment at Nexus facilities located at 5200 
Franklin Drive, Pleasanton, CA. Inventory will be shipped to the Nexus warehouse in 
Pleasanton for staging or the County warehouse at 2300 Professional Drive, Santa Rosa, 
CA 95403. For all inventory delivered to the Nexus warehouse, Nexus will provide 
packing slips and serial numbers for all hardware in order for County to reconcile 
invoices and make payment to Nexus.  

• Load and configure implementation-specific call manager, gateways, phones, and, as 
required, Internetworking Operating System (IOS), per the staging plan requirements. 

• Unpack and assemble telephony devices and attach the designation strips for each. 

• County shall designate a location to stage any equipment or perform any technology 
configurations required as a part of this project.  This location may be used upon further 
consultation 

• Provide shipping addresses for each site along with contact names for shipment to the 
customer-specified locations. 

5.18 Deployment 
Nexus responsibilities: 

• Deliver the product from the off-site staging facility to the designated installation 
locations within the same general site. 

• Confirm that the site readiness recommendations have been completed by the customer 
and that the network is ready for the installation of the solution. 

• Install and connect the product to the customer-provided facilities at the agreed upon 
demarcation points in accordance with the documentation provided.  

• Troubleshoot and replace hardware failures relating to the installation of the product. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B52 

• Provide remote technical support for the on-site engineer during installation, migration, 
cutover, and implementation testing.  

• Verify operation of the installed Communications applications, switches, gateways, 
firewalls, servers and phones per the pre-defined Testing procedure. 

• Place, configure and test IP Phones. 

• Provide pre-defined Training.  

Customer responsibilities: 

• Identify a coordinator responsible for the services at each customer site. 

• Prepare the customer site in accordance with the site readiness recommendations. Nexus 
shall not proceed with the product installation until such modifications and changes are 
made. 

• When required, order and install all customer-provided data and voice circuits prior to 
the scheduled installation date. Ensure that telco demarcations circuit identifications are 
clearly identified. 

• Verify all distance and interference limitations of interface cables to be used and confirm 
that all necessary cabling, power, and grounding is delivered and installed prior to the 
installation date. 

• Provide remote access to gateway routers for remote implementation support and for 
remote Nexus server access for software downloads. 

• Install and verify the operation of all Customer Provided Equipment (CPE) not provided 
by Nexus.  

• Provide earthquake bracing, if required.  

• Provide any security clearances, escorts, special safety equipment, and access training as 
required to access the site. 

• Deploy Jabber clients on End User desktops. 

• End User notifications of system changes 

5.19 Hardware Disposal 
Nexus will deliver all packaging material and hardware removed as part implementation of this 
SoW to the ISD Warehouse at 2300 Professional Drive. The County is responsible for the 
disposal of above mentioned items per the County’s Policy.  



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B53 

6 Responsibilities 
The following responsibilities, together with those detailed in sections 5.0, were made to create 
this Scope of Work. Should any of these assumptions prove to be incorrect or incomplete then 
Nexus may modify the price, scope of work, or milestones in accordance with the Change 
procedure. 

6.1 General Responsibilities 
• County will provide access to customer facilities, including, where applicable, computer 

equipment, facilities, workspaces, and equipment during regular business and mutually 
agreed upon after hours. . 

• County will provide telephony system and application access via remote access VPN. 
• County will provide a documented network core architecture plan that would provide 

physical and logical schematics (Visio format preferred) prior to service commencement. 
• County, if applicable, will provide skilled personnel to assist with the following: 

o Network servers and Exchange servers have correct version and service packs 
installed. 

o Network impacts and Exchange server storage impacts will be addressed prior to 
Unified Communications install. 

• All County hardware that will be used for this engagement is listed on the Hardware 
Compatibility List published by Microsoft. 

• Ensure that all site preparation (for example, but not limited to, power, space, HVAC, 
abatement, cables, and racks) will be in place and the site ready for equipment 
installation three (3) business days prior to the beginning of the scheduled onsite 
installation. 

• Ensure cubicle jacks are properly labeled back to the wiring closet patch panel.  
• Ensure that there are the necessary power and cable requirements at each user location. 
• County will coordinate the scheduling of users for training class times and provide the 

training facilities. 
• UPS, surge protection, or wall outlets are available and labeled for equipment.  
• All patch panels and cables are properly wired and labeled. 
• All cabling meets CAT5 specs set by EIA/TIA. 
• Any additional cabling required is performed by the client’s cabling vendor. 
• County of Sonoma shall be responsible for the registration of all Cisco SMARTnet, or 

other required hardware or software registrations. 
•  Changes to the County or HSD network design architecture that could affect the voice 

system will be reviewed with Nexus prior to implementation in accordance with the 
County’s internal change process.  

• Delays caused by the lack of completed site preparation or County’s failure to meet any 
responsibilities specified in this SoW shall be billed at Nexus time and materials rates 
including travel and other expenses. Any additional costs incurred by the customer as a 
result of delays shall be the sole responsibility of the customer. 

• Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, a response will take place within two (2) 
business days of Nexus’ request for documentation or information needed for the 
project. 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B54 

• Customer has delivered to Nexus all of the required paperwork for processing. 
• Nexus requires an average of three weeks to schedule resources for the project, starting 

from the time all completed contracts are received and processed. 
• Resources from various Nexus offices may be utilized, as needed, to provide a full scope 

of technical expertise.  
• Any product or service delivery dates communicated to the customer outside of this 

SoW or the project plan is not to be considered valid or binding. 
• Requests for support or services outside of this SoW require written approval by the 

customer and acceptance by the Nexus Project Manager and may result in additional 
charges to the customer. 

• If the project extends beyond the timeline specified in the project plan due to delays 
caused by parties other than Nexus and its subcontractors, additional charges may 
apply. 

• All backup and antivirus solutions are to be provided by the customer. Nexus has not 
provided these solutions as part of this SoW and does not hold any responsibility for 
these elements of the end-state solution. 

• All SoW activities, with the exception of cutover, will be conducted during normal 
business hours, Monday through Friday, 8 am to 5 pm.  

• Where possible, most work will be performed remotely. On-site resources will only be 
used for activities such as physical hardware installation, training, cutover, and go live 
support.  

• Any services outside the scope of this project will be provided on a time and materials 
basis. 

• Customer change orders will be billed at current labor and material rates and will be 
due and payable upon receipt.  

 

6.2 Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Specific 
Responsibilities 

• All Cisco Packaged Contact Center solutions are subject to approval through Cisco’s   
Assessment to Quality (A2Q) process prior to shipment of software. 

• Customer will supply a hardware platform meeting Cisco best practice 
recommendations for Cisco Support Tools. 

• Customer will supply all Microsoft® Windows 2008 R2 operating systems and SQL 
Server 2008 licensing as required.  

• Customer will supply the Cisco UCM infrastructure that Nexus will be integrating the 
PCCE solution with.  The version of CUCM is assumed to be v9.0(1) 

• All agent and supervisor PC’s will be connected to the Ethernet port on a Cisco 8945 or 
9951 phone handsets.  

• All reports will be deployed with standard out of the box templates. No custom reports 
will be developed as part of this SOW. 

• Unified CM-based BiB (Built in Bridge) Silent Monitoring will be deployed with 
endpoint monitoring. If SPAN port monitoring is required, additional services and 
hardware will be required. Unified CM-based or SPAN-based silent monitoring can be 
configured, but not both. If Unified CM-based silent monitoring is configured, then 



 Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work 

Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work  B55 

mobile agents cannot be monitored. A separate Silent Monitoring Server is required for 
SPAN-based silent monitoring to monitor mobile agents. 

• All prompts are in writing. 
• A speaker is designated by County to record any applicable prompts during 

implementation phase.  
• For all Music on Hold/Recorded Announcement (RAN) treatments, County will supply 

a music and RAN source. 
 

 



                     Exhibit “C” – Payment Schedule   
 

C1 
 

Exhibit “C”- Payment Schedule 

Services:  For all services costs, Contractor shall be paid in lump sum amounts, upon County 
Acceptance of the listed milestone deliverable below. Percentages listed below are percentages of 
the total payment for the phase.  The retention amounts listed below shall be paid to Contractor 
upon the County’s final acceptance of work for all phases. 

Equipment/Non-Services: All Equipment including hardware, software, warranties, and taxes shall 
be paid “Net 30” as defined in the Agreement.  Title to all Equipment shall pass to County after 
delivery of Equipment to the location specified in the Scope of Work, and after acceptance and 
payment by the County. 
 
Retention:  The three Retention Payments will be made upon conclusion and final acceptance of all 
phases. 
 

1. Progress Payment Schedule  
 

PHASE TYPE OBJECTIVE MILESTONE DELIVERABLE % AMOUNT 

1 Equipment Hardware, software, warranties & taxes Verified List of Equipment 100 $583,474.98 
Professional 
Services 

Detailed Project Plan 
Communications Plan 
Change Management Plan 
Configuration Mgmt Plan 
Training Plan 
Critical Services Cutover Plan 
Network Readiness Assessment 

All Objectives Met; 
Requirements Definition for 
Core Solution and Packaged 
Contact Center Enterprise 
(PCCE) 

20 $  97,452.78 

Installation of Core Components 
Installation of PCCE Components 
Integration of Voice Mail with County 
Exchange 
Installation of Unity Connection 

All Objectives Met;  
System Test and Acceptance 
Plan, Results, and  
Document; System 
Acceptance Certificate 

40 $194,905.56 

Deploy voice services to ISD users 
Deploy contact center to ISD Service Desk 
Deploy voice services to HSD pilot users 
Deploy contact center to HSD Service Desk 
Training of ISD & HSD Service Desks 
Training of ISD users & HSD pilot users 

All Objectives Met;  
Customer Department 
Completion Certificates 

30 $146,179.17 

Retention Payment  #1 Final Acceptance Document 10 $  48,726.39 

2 Equipment Hardware, software, warranties & taxes Verified List of Equipment 100 $2,246,714.84 

2a Professional 
Services 

Deploy contact center to HSD Westwind & 
Mendocino 
Implement Unity Connection voice mail for 
remaining HSD users 

All Objectives Met; Test and 
Acceptance Plan, Results  
and Document; System 
Acceptance Certificate 

90 $85,686.30 

Retention Payment #2 Final Acceptance Document 10 $9,520.70 



                     Exhibit “C” – Payment Schedule   
 

C2 
 

2b Professional 
Services 

Deploy voice services to 7 departments All Objectives Met;  
Customer Department 
Completion Certificate 

25 $117,525.81 

2c Deploy voice services to 7 departments All Objectives Met; 
Customer Department 
Completion Certificate 

25 $117,525.81 

2d Deploy voice services to 7 departments All Objectives Met;  
Customer Department 
Completion Certificate 

20 $94,020.64 

2e Deploy voice services to 7 departments All Objectives Met;  
Customer Department 
Completion Certificate 

20    $94,020.64 

   2f SIP Carrier integration All Objectives Met;  
Test and Acceptance Plan, 
Results and Document; 
System Acceptance 
Certificate 

0              $0 

2b-e Retention Payment #3  Final Acceptance Document 10 $  47,010.32 
 

2. No Termination of Product Order Once Made:  Prices for Products in this 
Agreement, including any discounts, are based upon County’s commitment to purchase 
the entire Product Order in the Bill of Materials.  The purchase of such Products shall be 
final, and the County waives the right to terminate a Product Order once the Bill of 
Materials is finalized, provided that nothing in this provision affects the parties' ability to 
agree to adjustments to Products/Non-Service items in the Bill of Materials pursuant to 
the Change Procedure, and nothing in this provision affects the County's ability to 
terminate the services component of this Agreement.  "Product" means a non-service 
item in the Bill of Materials.  "Product Order" in this paragraph means any non-service 
order in the Bill of Materials. 

3. Tax Calculations:  Applicable taxes are estimated on the Bill of Materials. County shall 
be responsible for and shall pay to Nexus all applicable taxes associated with the 
purchase and/or license of Products and/or Services exclusive of taxes based on Nexus 
IS’ net income. 

4. Staging:  Contractor shall use commercially reasonable means to prevent damage to or 
loss of the County property held in Contractor's custody pursuant to this Agreement.  
County shall maintain adequate insurance against fire, theft, or other loss. 

 



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

LINE# PART# QTY DESCRIPTION EXT. PRICE DISC. LIST PRICE

Additional Materials
1 Calabrio Quality Management (  
2 CQM-QMBASSRV-0001-08.90 2 Quality Mgmt Base Server License (Includes Basic Export Tool) 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

3 CQM-USERLADV-0002-08.90 30 Quality Mgmt User License, Advanced - Voice, Screen, Eval 4,389.47 146.32 0.00% 0.00

4 CSS-QMBSPLAT-0004.01.10 2 Quality Mgmt Base Server Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 2,880.00 1,440.00 0.00% 0.00

5 CSS-QMPLATAD-0004.01.10 30 Quality Mgmt Advanced Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 2,000.84 66.69 0.00% 0.00

$9,270.32
6 Calabrio Work Force Managem
7 CWF-WFBASSRV-0001-08.90 2 Workforce Mgmt Base Server License 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

8 CWF-USERLADV-0013-08.90 10 Workforce Mgmt User License, Advanced 1,463.16 146.32 0.00% 0.00

9 CSS-WMBSPLAT-0004.01.10 2 Workforce Mgmt Base Server Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 2,880.00 1,440.00 0.00% 0.00

10 CSS-WMBSPLAT-0004.01.10 10 Workforce Mgmt Advanced Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 666.95 66.69 0.00% 0.00

$5,010.11
11 Calabrio Compliance Recording
12 CQM-QMBASSRV-0001-08.90 2 Quality Mgmt Base Server License (Includes Basic Export Tool) 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

13 CQM-USERLCOM-0003-08.90 10 Quality Mgmt User License, Compliance Recording Only 282.95 28.29 0.00% 0.00

14 CSS-QMBSPLAT-0004.01.10 2 Quality Mgmt Base Server Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 2,880.00 1,440.00 0.00% 0.00

15 CSS-QMPLATCO-0004.01.10 10 Quality Mgmt Compliance Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$3,162.95
$17,443.37

County Cluster\Servers
1 VMW-VS5-ST-5A= 12 VMware vSphere 5 Standard (1 CPU), 5yr, Support Required 4,702.32 391.86 79.00% 1,866.00
2 UCS-VMW-TERMS 12 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
3 CON-ISV1-VS5STD5A 60 ISV 24X7 VMware vSphere Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 10,191.00 169.85 57.00% 395.00

$14,893.32
4 VMW-VC5-STD-5A= 1 VMware vCenter 5 Server Standard, 5 yr support required 1,966.86 1,966.86 79.00% 9,366.00
5 UCS-VMW-TERMS 1 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
6 CON-ISV1-VC5STD5A 5 ISV 24X7 VMware vCenterServer Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 3,283.05 656.61 57.00% 1,527.00

$5,249.91
7 KEY-CCM-ADMIN-K9= 2 CUCM Admin Security Token, 4.3, 6.0, or Newer, CoO USA 126.00 63.00 79.00% 300.00
8 UCUCS-EZ-C220M3S 2 UCS C220 M3 SFF dual-4-core/3.3 GHz, 64 GB RAM, 8x300 GB 15K 16,197.76 8,098.88 62.50% 21,597.00
9 UCS-CPU-E5-2643 4 3.30 GHz E5-2643/130W 4C/10MB Cache/DDR3 1600MHz Included Included 0.00% Included
10 UCS-MR-1X082RY-A 16 8GB DDR3-1600-MHz RDIMM/PC3-12800/dual rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
11 UCS-HDD300GI2F105 16 300GB 6Gb SAS 15K RPM SFF HDD/hot plug/drive sled mounted Included Included 0.00% Included
12 UCSC-PCIE-IRJ45 2 Intel i350 Quad Port 1Gb Adapter Included Included 0.00% Included
13 UCS-RAID-9266CV 2 MegaRAID 9266CV-8i w/TFM + Super Cap Included Included 0.00% Included
14 UCSC-HS-C220M3 4 Heat Sink for UCS C220 M3 Rack Server Included Included 0.00% Included
15 UCSC-PSU-650W 4 650W power supply for C-series rack servers Included Included 0.00% Included
16 UCSC-RAIL1 2 Rail Kit for C220, C22, C24 rack servers Included Included 0.00% Included
17 UCSC-SD-16G-C220 2 16GB SD Card Module for C220 servers Included Included 0.00% Included
18 CAB-9K12A-NA 4 Power Cord, 125VAC 13A NEMA 5-15 Plug, North America 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
19 CON-SNT-UC220M3S 10 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD UCS C220 M3 Server 1,130.90 113.09 57.00% 263.00

$17,328.66
20 UCUCS-EZ-C240M3S 4 UCS C240 M3 SFF, dual-8-core/2.7 GHz, 96 GB RAM, 16x300GB 15 57,636.00 14,409.00 62.50% 38,424.00

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

UNIT PRICE

Sonoma County

Additional Materials

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D1



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

21 UCS-MR-1X041RY-A 32 4GB DDR3-1600-MHz RDIMM/PC3-12800/single rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
22 UCS-MR-1X082RY-A 32 8GB DDR3-1600-MHz RDIMM/PC3-12800/dual rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
23 UCS-HDD300GI2F105 64 300GB 6Gb SAS 15K RPM SFF HDD/hot plug/drive sled mounted Included Included 0.00% Included
24 UCSC-PCIE-IRJ45 8 Intel i350 Quad Port 1Gb Adapter Included Included 0.00% Included
25 UCSC-PSU2-1200 8 1200W 2u Power Supply For UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
26 UCS-CPU-E5-2680 8 2.70 GHz E5-2680 130W 8C/20MB Cache/DDR3 1600MHz Included Included 0.00% Included
27 UCS-RAID-9266CV 4 MegaRAID 9266CV-8i w/TFM + Super Cap Included Included 0.00% Included
28 UCSC-HS-C240M3 8 Heat Sink for UCS C240 M3 Rack Server Included Included 0.00% Included
29 UCSC-RAIL-2U 4 2U Rail Kit for UCS C-Series servers Included Included 0.00% Included
30 UCSC-SD-16G-C240 4 16GB SD Card Module for C240 Servers Included Included 0.00% Included
31 N20-BBLKD 32 UCS 2.5 inch HDD blanking panel Included Included 0.00% Included
32 UCSC-PCIF-01F 8 Full height PCIe filler for C-Series Included Included 0.00% Included
33 CAB-9K12A-NA 8 Power Cord, 125VAC 13A NEMA 5-15 Plug, North America 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
34 CON-SNT-UC240M3S 20 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD UCS C240 M3 Server 2,889.60 144.48 57.00% 336.00

$60,525.60
$98,123.49

County Cluster\Core Gateways
1 C3945-VSEC-CUBE/K9 2 C3945 UC SEC CUBE Bundle, PVDM3-64, UC SEC Lic, FL-CUBEE-25 6,927.90 3,463.95 79.00% 16,495.00
2 PWR-3900-AC 2 Cisco 3925/3945 AC Power Supply Included Included 0.00% Included
3 3900-FANASSY 2 Cisco 3925/3945 Fan Assembly (Bezel included) Included Included 0.00% Included
4 C3900-SPE150/K9 2 Cisco Services Performance Engine 150 for Cisco 3945 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
5 FL-CUBEE-25 2 Unified Border Element Enterprise License - 25 sessions Included Included 0.00% Included
6 ISR-CCP-EXP 2 Cisco Config Pro Express on Router Flash Included Included 0.00% Included
7 SL-39-IPB-K9 2 IP Base License for Cisco 3925/3945 Included Included 0.00% Included
8 SL-39-SEC-K9 2 Security License for Cisco 3900 Series Included Included 0.00% Included
9 SL-39-UC-K9 2 Unified Communication License  for Cisco 3900 Series Included Included 0.00% Included
10 S39UK9-15204M 2 Cisco 3925-3945 IOS UNIVERSAL Included Included 0.00% Included
11 HWIC-BLANK 4 Blank faceplate for HWIC slot on Cisco ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
12 SM-S-BLANK 8 Removable faceplate for SM slot on Cisco 2900,3900,4400 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
13 VWIC3-4MFT-T1/E1 4 4-Port 3rd Gen Multiflex Trunk Voice/WAN Int. Card - T1/E1 3,696.00 924.00 79.00% 4,400.00
14 PVDM3-64U256 2 PVDM3 64-channel to 256-channel factory upgrade 2,637.60 1,318.80 79.00% 6,280.00
15 PWR-3900-AC/2 2 Cisco 3925/3945 AC Power Supply (Secondary PS) 210.00 105.00 79.00% 500.00
16 CAB-AC 4 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
17 FL-CUBEE-100 2 Unified Border Element Enterprise License - 100 sessions 4,197.90 2,098.95 79.00% 9,995.00
18 FL-CUBEE-25 6 Unified Border Element Enterprise License - 25 sessions 3,773.70 628.95 79.00% 2,995.00
19 MEM-3900-1GU4GB 2 1GB to 4GB DRAM Upgrade (2GB+2GB) for Cisco 3925/3945 ISR 420.00 210.00 79.00% 1,000.00
20 MEM-CF-256U2GB 2 256MB to 2GB Compact Flash Upgrade for Cisco 1900,2900,3900 336.00 168.00 79.00% 800.00
21 CON-SNT-C3945VS 10 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD C3945 VSEC CUBE Bundle, PVDM3-64, UC SEC 6,772.50 677.25 57.00% 1,575.00

$28,971.60
$28,971.60

County Cluster\Contact Center
1 CCE-PAC-BUNDLE 1 Packaged CCE 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
2 CCE-PAC-CVP-LIC 4 CVP Server and Port License PAKs Included Included 0.00% Included
3 CCE-PAC-CVP-STU-90 2 Call Studio 9.0 Included Included 0.00% Included
4 CCEH-CUIC-STD 2 License for Cisco Unified Intelligence Center Standard Included Included 0.00% Included
5 CCEH-FINESSE-SVR-L 1 Cisco Finesse Server SW HA Pair for CCE Included Included 0.00% Included
6 CCEH-MEDIA90-K9 1 Media Kit for Unified CC Enterprise and Hosted 9.0 Included Included 0.00% Included
7 CUIC-V-STD-PAK 1 Licensing PAK For CUIC Standard - UCS or MCS Included Included 0.00% Included
8 CVP-90-SERVER-SW 4 CVP 9.0 Server Software Included Included 0.00% Included
9 CVP-9X-PTS-TOTAL 50 CVP 9.X Total No PT - Auto Gen value Included Included 0.00% Included
10 IPCE-DIALPORT-L 100 IPCC ENTERPRISE OUTBOUND DIALER PORT Included Included 0.00% Included
11 UCS-CPU-E72870 4 2.4 GHz E7-2870 130W 10C / 30M Cache Included Included 0.00% Included
12 UCS-MR-2X041RX-C 32 2X4GB DDR3-1333-MHz RDIMM/PC3-10600/single rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
13 A03-D300GA2 32 300GB 6Gb SAS 10K RPM SFF HDD/hot plug/drive sled mounted Included Included 0.00% Included
14 C260-MRBD-002 32 2 DIMM Memory Riser Board For C260 Included Included 0.00% Included
15 UCSC-RAIL-2U 2 2U Rail Kit for UCS C-Series servers Included Included 0.00% Included
16 UCSC-PSU2-1200 4 1200W 2u Power Supply For UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
17 UCSC-PCIE-IRJ45 2 Intel i350 Quad Port 1Gb Adapter Included Included 0.00% Included
18 UCS-MKIT-041RX-C 64 Mem kit for UCS-MR-2X041RX-C Included Included 0.00% Included
19 UCSC-HS-01-C260 4 CPU HEAT SINK for UCS C260 M2 RACK SERVER Included Included 0.00% Included
20 UCSC-PCIF-01F 4 Full height PCIe filler for C-Series Included Included 0.00% Included
21 UCSC-PCIF-01H 4 Half height PCIe filler for UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
22 UCSC-RC-P8M-C260 4 .79m SAS RAID Cable for C260 Included Included 0.00% Included

County Cluster\Servers

County Cluster\Core Gateways

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D2



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

23 R2XX-PL003 2 LSI 6G MegaRAID 9261-8i card (RAID 0,1,5,6,10,60) - 512WC Included Included 0.00% Included
24 UCSC-BBU-11-C260 2 RAID battery backup for LSI Electr controller for C260 Included Included 0.00% Included
25 UCSC-SD-16G-C260 2 16GB SD card for C260 M2 Included Included 0.00% Included
26 UCSX-MLOM-001 2 Modular LOM For UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
27 UCSC-DBKP-08E 4 8 Drive Backplane W/ Expander For C-Series Included Included 0.00% Included
28 CCE-PAC-M1 1 CCE and CVP Deployment Package M1 3,150.00 3,150.00 79.00% 15,000.00
29 CCE-PAC-AGENT 25 CCE Packaged Agent 10,132.50 405.30 79.00% 1,930.00
30 UCSS-U-CCEPCAGT-5Y 25 UCSS for CCE Packaged Agent - 5 Year Sub 2,829.75 113.19 79.00% 539.00
31 CON-ESW-CCEPAGE 125 ESSENTIAL SW CCE Packaged Agent 10,965.00 87.72 57.00% 204.00
32 CON-ESW-CCEHCUIP 10 ESSENTIAL SW License for Cisco Un 430.00 43.00 57.00% 100.00
33 CON-ESW-CCFINSVR 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Finesse Server SW for CCE 258.00 51.60 57.00% 120.00
34 CON-ESW-CVP-90-S 20 ESSENTIAL SW CVP 9.0 Server Softw 223.60 11.18 57.00% 26.00
35 UCSS-U-CCE-DP-5-1 100 UCCS for CCE Dial Ports One Year - 1 Port 5 Year Sub 3,528.00 35.28 79.00% 168.00
36 CON-ESW-IPEDIALP 500 ESSENTIAL SW IPCC ENTERPRISE OUTBOUND DIALER PORT 12,900.00 25.80 57.00% 60.00
37 CON-ESW-CCEPACM 5 ESSENTIAL SW CCE and CVP Deployment Package M1 3,225.00 645.00 57.00% 1,500.00
38 UCS-C260M2-VCD2 2 UCS C260 M2 Rack Server w/ 2-E72870, 16x 2x4GB DDR 38,214.76 19,107.38 62.50% 50,953.00
39 CAB-9K12A-NA 4 Power Cord, 125VAC 13A NEMA 5-15 Plug, North America 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
40 CON-SNT-C260VCD2 10 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD UCS B260 M2 Blade Server w/ 4-E74870 2,046.80 204.68 57.00% 476.00

$87,903.41
41 L-FL-VXML-12= 20 VXML - 12 session E-Delivery RTU 6,048.00 302.40 79.00% 1,440.00
42 VMW-VS5-ST-5A= 4 VMware vSphere 5 Standard (1 CPU), 5yr, Support Required 1,567.44 391.86 79.00% 1,866.00
43 UCS-VMW-TERMS 4 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
44 CON-ISV1-VS5STD5A 20 ISV 24X7 VMware vSphere Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 3,397.00 169.85 57.00% 395.00

$4,964.44
$98,915.85

County Cluster\Software and Licensing
1 OWE5000 1 OW Enterprise Up to 5000 Total Extensions 12,565.26 12,565.26 0.00% 0.00
2 OWES5000 1 OW Enterprise 5000 Extension 12-Month Support 2,753.68 2,753.68 0.00% 0.00
3 L-CUAC9X-ATT-CON 1 Cisco Unifed Attendant Console 9.x - eDelivery 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
4 L-CUACP9X-ATT-CON 1 Cisco Unifed Attendant Console Premium Edition 9.x 1,155.00 1,155.00 79.00% 5,500.00
5 UCSS-U-ATT-PRE-5-1 1 UCSS for Att Console Premium - 1 Instance Five Year Sub 374.85 374.85 79.00% 1,785.00
6 CON-ESW-CUACP9XA 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Unified Attend 1,773.75 354.75 57.00% 825.00
7 CON-ESW-CUAC9X-A 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Unifed Attenda 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$3,303.60
8 R-UCL-UCM-LIC-K9 1 Top Level SKU For 9.x User License - Electronic Delivery 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9 CCX-90-CMBUNDLE-K9 1 CCX 9.0 Promo Bundle available only with NEW CUCM or BE6000 Included Included 0.00% Included
10 JAB9-WIN-UCM-RTU 1 JAB9 UCM Right to Use Certificate Included Included 0.00% Included
11 LIC-CUCM-9X-ENH 140 UC Manager Enhanced 9.x License Included Included 0.00% Included
12 UCM-PAK 1 UCM 9X PAK Included Included 0.00% Included
13 LIC-CUCM-9X-ENH-A 140 UC Manager-9.x Enhanced Single User-Under 1K 6,174.00 44.10 79.00% 210.00
14 UCSS-U-UCM-A-5-1 140 UC Manager UCSS - 1 ENH User 5 Year Sub Tier A 1,764.00 12.60 79.00% 60.00
15 CON-ESW-LICCENHA 700 ESSENTIAL SW UC Manager-9.x Enhanced Single User-Unde 3,913.00 5.59 57.00% 13.00
16 JAB9-DSK-CLNT-UCM 140 Jabber for Desktop User License 9.x for UCM only 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
17 CUCM-VERS-9.X 1 CUCM  Software Version 9.X 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
18 CON-ESW-RUCLUCK9 5 ESSENTIAL SW Top Level SKU For 9. 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$11,851.00
19 R-EMRGNCY-RSPNDR 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR ESD 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
20 ER90-SW-LIC 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW LIC Included Included 0.00% Included
21 ER90-SW-MED-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW MEDIA Included Included 0.00% Included
22 ER90-USR-10 14 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS Included Included 0.00% Included
23 ER90-USR-10-NEW 14 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS NEW 588.00 42.00 79.00% 200.00
24 UCSS-U-ER-5-10 14 UCSS Emergency Responder - 10 Users 5 Year Sub 205.80 14.70 79.00% 70.00
25 CON-ESW-ER90USR0 70 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 US 903.00 12.90 57.00% 30.00
26 ER90-SW-NEW-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW NEW 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
27 CON-ESW-EMRGNCY 5 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$1,696.80
$32,170.34

County Cluster\Endpoints
1 CP-CKEM-C= 3 Cisco Unified IP Color Key Expansion Module, Charcoal 514.65 171.55 63.50% 470.00
2 CP-PWR-CUBE-4= 3 IP Phone power transformer for the 89/9900 phone series 71.16 23.72 63.51% 65.00
3 CP-8945-K9= 132 Cisco Unified Phone 8945, Phantom Grey, Standard Handset 25,293.84 191.62 63.50% 525.00
4 CP-7937G= 5 Cisco UC Conference Station 7937 Global 2,545.90 509.18 63.50% 1,395.00

County Cluster\Contact Center

County Cluster\Software and Licensing

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D3



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

5 VG224 1 24 Port Voice over IP analog phone gateway 1,132.95 1,132.95 79.00% 5,395.00
6 SVGVG-12422T 1 Cisco VG200 Series IP SUBSET/VOICE Included Included 0.00% Included
7 CAB-AC 1 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m Included Included 0.00% Included
8 MEM-224-1X64F-U 1 64MB Flash Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
9 MEM-224-1X128D-U 2 128MB DRAM Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
10 CON-SNT-VG224 5 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD 24 Port Voice over I 928.80 185.76 57.00% 432.00

$2,061.75
11 CP-9951-C-CAM-K9= 3 Cisco UC Phone 9951, Charcoal, Std Hndst with Camera 1,078.56 359.52 63.50% 985.00
12 CP-PWR-CORD-NA= 3 Power Cord, North America 10.95 3.65 63.50% 10.00
13 CP-7937-MIC-KIT= 5 Microphone Kit (7 ft)  for 7937 638.75 127.75 63.50% 350.00

$32,215.56
HSD Cluster\Servers

1 UCUCS-EZ-C220M3S 6 UCS C220 M3 SFF dual-4-core/3.3 GHz, 64 GB RAM, 8x300 GB 15K 48,593.28 8,098.88 62.50% 21,597.00
2 UCS-CPU-E5-2643 12 3.30 GHz E5-2643/130W 4C/10MB Cache/DDR3 1600MHz Included Included 0.00% Included
3 UCS-HDD300GI2F105 48 300GB 6Gb SAS 15K RPM SFF HDD/hot plug/drive sled mounted Included Included 0.00% Included
4 UCS-MR-1X082RY-A 48 8GB DDR3-1600-MHz RDIMM/PC3-12800/dual rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
5 UCS-RAID-9266CV 6 MegaRAID 9266CV-8i w/TFM + Super Cap Included Included 0.00% Included
6 UCSC-HS-C220M3 12 Heat Sink for UCS C220 M3 Rack Server Included Included 0.00% Included
7 UCSC-PSU-650W 12 650W power supply for C-series rack servers Included Included 0.00% Included
8 UCSC-RAIL1 6 Rail Kit for C220, C22, C24 rack servers Included Included 0.00% Included
9 UCSC-SD-16G-C220 6 16GB SD Card Module for C220 servers Included Included 0.00% Included
10 UCSC-PCIE-IRJ45 6 Intel i350 Quad Port 1Gb Adapter Included Included 0.00% Included
11 CON-SNT-UC220M3S 30 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD UCS C220 M3 Server 3,392.70 113.09 57.00% 263.00

$51,985.98
12 KEY-CCM-ADMIN-K9= 2 CUCM Admin Security Token, 4.3, 6.0, or Newer, CoO USA 126.00 63.00 79.00% 300.00
13 VMW-VC5-STD-5A= 1 VMware vCenter 5 Server Standard, 5 yr support required 1,966.86 1,966.86 79.00% 9,366.00
14 UCS-VMW-TERMS 1 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
15 CON-ISV1-VC5STD5A 5 ISV 24X7 VMware vCenterServer Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 3,283.05 656.61 57.00% 1,527.00

$5,249.91
16 VMW-VS5-ST-5A= 10 VMware vSphere 5 Standard (1 CPU), 5yr, Support Required 3,918.60 391.86 79.00% 1,866.00
17 UCS-VMW-TERMS 10 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
18 CON-ISV1-VS5STD5A 50 ISV 24X7 VMware vSphere Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 8,492.50 169.85 57.00% 395.00

$12,411.10
$69,772.99

HSD Cluster\Core Gateways
1 C2951-VSEC-CUBE/K9 4 C2951 UC SEC CUBE Bundle, PVDM3-32, UC SEC Lic, FL-CUBEE-25 8,731.80 2,182.95 79.00% 10,395.00
2 PWR-2921-51-AC 4 Cisco 2921/2951 AC Power Supply Included Included 0.00% Included
3 S2951UK9-15204M 4 Cisco 2951 IOS UNIVERSAL Included Included 0.00% Included
4 FL-CUBEE-25 4 Unified Border Element Enterprise License - 25 sessions Included Included 0.00% Included
5 ISR-CCP-EXP 4 Cisco Config Pro Express on Router Flash Included Included 0.00% Included
6 MEM-2951-512MB-DEF 4 512MB DRAM (1 512MB DIMM) for Cisco 2951 ISR (Default) Included Included 0.00% Included
7 MEM-CF-256MB 4 256MB Compact Flash for Cisco 1900, 2900, 3900 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
8 SL-29-IPB-K9 4 IP Base License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
9 SL-29-SEC-K9 4 Security License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
10 SL-29-UC-K9 4 Unified Communication  License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
11 HWIC-BLANK 12 Blank faceplate for HWIC slot on Cisco ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
12 SM-S-BLANK 8 Removable faceplate for SM slot on Cisco 2900,3900,4400 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
13 VWIC3-4MFT-T1/E1 4 4-Port 3rd Gen Multiflex Trunk Voice/WAN Int. Card - T1/E1 3,696.00 924.00 79.00% 4,400.00
14 PVDM3-32U256 4 PVDM3 32-channel to 256-channel factory upgrade 6,535.20 1,633.80 79.00% 7,780.00
15 CAB-AC 4 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
16 FL-CUBEE-25 12 Unified Border Element Enterprise License - 25 sessions 7,547.40 628.95 79.00% 2,995.00
17 FL-VXML-12 16 VoiceXML Feature License Up To 12 Sessions 4,838.40 302.40 79.00% 1,440.00
18 CON-SNT-2951VSCC 20 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD C2951 VSEC CUBE Bundle, PVDM3-32, UC SEC 8,256.00 412.80 57.00% 960.00

$39,604.80
$39,604.80

HSD Cluster\Contact Center
1 CCE-PAC-BUNDLE 1 Packaged CCE 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
2 CCE-PAC-CVP-LIC 4 CVP Server and Port License PAKs Included Included 0.00% Included
3 CCE-PAC-CVP-STU-90 2 Call Studio 9.0 Included Included 0.00% Included
4 CCEH-CUIC-STD 2 License for Cisco Unified Intelligence Center Standard Included Included 0.00% Included
5 CCEH-FINESSE-SVR-L 1 Cisco Finesse Server SW HA Pair for CCE Included Included 0.00% Included
6 CCEH-MEDIA90-K9 1 Media Kit for Unified CC Enterprise and Hosted 9.0 Included Included 0.00% Included

County Cluster\Endpoints

HSD Cluster\Servers

HSD Cluster\Core Gateways

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D4



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

7 CUIC-V-STD-PAK 1 Licensing PAK For CUIC Standard - UCS or MCS Included Included 0.00% Included
8 CVP-90-SERVER-SW 4 CVP 9.0 Server Software Included Included 0.00% Included
9 CVP-9X-PTS-TOTAL 50 CVP 9.X Total No PT - Auto Gen value Included Included 0.00% Included
10 IPCE-DIALPORT-L 100 IPCC ENTERPRISE OUTBOUND DIALER PORT Included Included 0.00% Included
11 UCSC-DBKP-08E 4 8 Drive Backplane W/ Expander For C-Series Included Included 0.00% Included
12 UCS-CPU-E72870 4 2.4 GHz E7-2870 130W 10C / 30M Cache Included Included 0.00% Included
13 UCS-MR-2X041RX-C 32 2X4GB DDR3-1333-MHz RDIMM/PC3-10600/single rank/1.35v Included Included 0.00% Included
14 A03-D300GA2 32 300GB 6Gb SAS 10K RPM SFF HDD/hot plug/drive sled mounted Included Included 0.00% Included
15 C260-MRBD-002 32 2 DIMM Memory Riser Board For C260 Included Included 0.00% Included
16 UCSC-RAIL-2U 2 2U Rail Kit for UCS C-Series servers Included Included 0.00% Included
17 UCSC-PSU2-1200 4 1200W 2u Power Supply For UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
18 UCSC-PCIE-IRJ45 2 Intel i350 Quad Port 1Gb Adapter Included Included 0.00% Included
19 UCS-MKIT-041RX-C 64 Mem kit for UCS-MR-2X041RX-C Included Included 0.00% Included
20 UCSC-HS-01-C260 4 CPU HEAT SINK for UCS C260 M2 RACK SERVER Included Included 0.00% Included
21 UCSC-PCIF-01F 4 Full height PCIe filler for C-Series Included Included 0.00% Included
22 UCSC-PCIF-01H 4 Half height PCIe filler for UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
23 UCSC-RC-P8M-C260 4 .79m SAS RAID Cable for C260 Included Included 0.00% Included
24 R2XX-PL003 2 LSI 6G MegaRAID 9261-8i card (RAID 0,1,5,6,10,60) - 512WC Included Included 0.00% Included
25 UCSC-BBU-11-C260 2 RAID battery backup for LSI Electr controller for C260 Included Included 0.00% Included
26 UCSC-SD-16G-C260 2 16GB SD card for C260 M2 Included Included 0.00% Included
27 UCSX-MLOM-001 2 Modular LOM For UCS Included Included 0.00% Included
28 CCE-PAC-M1 1 CCE and CVP Deployment Package M1 3,150.00 3,150.00 79.00% 15,000.00
29 CCE-PAC-AGENT 25 CCE Packaged Agent 10,132.50 405.30 79.00% 1,930.00
30 UCSS-U-CCEPCAGT-5Y 25 UCSS for CCE Packaged Agent - 5 Year Sub 2,829.75 113.19 79.00% 539.00
31 CON-ESW-CCEPAGE 125 ESSENTIAL SW CCE Packaged Agent 10,965.00 87.72 57.00% 204.00
32 CON-ESW-CCEHCUIP 10 ESSENTIAL SW License for Cisco Un 430.00 43.00 57.00% 100.00
33 CON-ESW-CCFINSVR 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Finesse Server SW for CCE 258.00 51.60 57.00% 120.00
34 CON-ESW-CVP-90-S 20 ESSENTIAL SW CVP 9.0 Server Softw 223.60 11.18 57.00% 26.00
35 UCSS-U-CCE-DP-5-1 100 UCCS for CCE Dial Ports One Year - 1 Port 5 Year Sub 3,528.00 35.28 79.00% 168.00
36 CON-ESW-IPEDIALP 500 ESSENTIAL SW IPCC ENTERPRISE OUTBOUND DIALER PORT 12,900.00 25.80 57.00% 60.00
37 CON-ESW-CCEPACM 5 ESSENTIAL SW CCE and CVP Deployment Package M1 3,225.00 645.00 57.00% 1,500.00
38 UCS-C260M2-VCD2 2 UCS C260 M2 Rack Server w/ 2-E72870, 16x 2x4GB DDR 38,214.76 19,107.38 62.50% 50,953.00
39 CAB-9K12A-NA 4 Power Cord, 125VAC 13A NEMA 5-15 Plug, North America 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
40 CON-SNT-C260VCD2 10 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD UCS B260 M2 Blade Server w/ 4-E74870 2,046.80 204.68 57.00% 476.00

$87,903.41
41 L-FL-VXML-12= 17 VXML - 12 session E-Delivery RTU 5,140.80 302.40 79.00% 1,440.00
42 VMW-VS5-ST-5A= 4 VMware vSphere 5 Standard (1 CPU), 5yr, Support Required 1,567.44 391.86 79.00% 1,866.00
43 UCS-VMW-TERMS 4 Acceptance of Terms, Standalone VMW License for UCS Servers 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
44 CON-ISV1-VS5STD5A 20 ISV 24X7 VMware vSphere Standard, List Price is ANNUAL 3,397.00 169.85 57.00% 395.00

$4,964.44
$98,008.65

HSD Cluster\Software and Licensing
1 OWE5000 1 OW Enterprise Up to 5000 Total Extensions 12,565.26 12,565.26 0.00% 0.00
2 OWES5000 1 OW Enterprise 5000 Extension 12-Month Support 2,753.68 2,753.68 0.00% 0.00
3 L-CUWL-MISC 1 Unified Workplace Licensing - Top Level -  Misc Addon Only 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
4 L-CUCM-UWL 5 Unified Communications Manager UWL DLU Bundle Included Included 0.00% Included
5 L-CUCM-UWL-PAK 1 Unified Communications Manager UWL PAK Included Included 0.00% Included
6 L-PUB-IP-DEV-UWL 1 Public Space non-app phone add-on for UWL 31.50 31.50 79.00% 150.00
7 UCSS-U-PUB-5-1 1 UCSS for Public Space Devices - 1 user 5 Year Sub 8.19 8.19 79.00% 39.00

$39.69
8 R-CUWL-STD-K9 1 Unified Workspace Licensing - Top Level for STD - 9.x 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9 IME-90-UWL 1 IME 9.0 Media Kit Included Included 0.00% Included
10 IME-PAK 1 Include PAK Auto-expanding PAK for IME Included Included 0.00% Included
11 JAB9-DSK-UWL-RTU 1 Jabber for Desktop Right to Use Certificate Included Included 0.00% Included
12 LIC-UWL-STD-SLED-A 58 Services Mapping SKU, Under 1K UWL STD users Included Included 0.00% Included
13 UCM-9X-UWL-STD 58 UC Manager 9.x CUWL STD Users Included Included 0.00% Included
14 UCXN-9X-SC-PORTS 1 Unity Connection 9.x SpeechConnect Ports Included Included 0.00% Included
15 UCXN-9X-UWL-STD 58 Unity Connection 9.x CUWL STD Users Included Included 0.00% Included
16 UWL-STD-PAK 1 CUWL STD 9.x PAK Included Included 0.00% Included
17 WEBEX-UWL-S-PAK 1 WebEx PAK for CUWL Standard Included Included 0.00% Included
18 NEW-UWL-STD-SLED 58 New CUWL Standard Edition Usr, SLED/Govt/Edu Only, 1 Usr 3,958.50 68.25 79.00% 325.00
19 UC-APPS-SW-9.0-K9 1 Version 9.0 Software Kit 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
20 JAB9-DSK-UWL 60 Jabber for Desktop 9.x for CUWL Only 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

HSD Cluster\Contact Center

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D5



Quote: A-91475-006
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 007
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

21 CUP9-ONPREM-OPT 1 Included CUCM IM and Presence for on-premise use 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
22 UCSS-U-UWL-STD-5-1 58 Cisco UWL STD UCSS - 1 user 5 Year Sub 1,400.70 24.15 79.00% 115.00

$5,359.20
23 R-EMRGNCY-RSPNDR 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR ESD 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
24 ER90-SW-LIC 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW LIC Included Included 0.00% Included
25 ER90-SW-MED-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW MEDIA Included Included 0.00% Included
26 ER90-USR-10 2 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS Included Included 0.00% Included
27 ER90-USR-10-NEW 2 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS NEW 84.00 42.00 79.00% 200.00
28 UCSS-U-ER-5-10 2 UCSS Emergency Responder - 10 Users 5 Year Sub 29.40 14.70 79.00% 70.00
29 CON-ESW-ER90USR0 10 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 US 129.00 12.90 57.00% 30.00
30 ER90-SW-NEW-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW NEW 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
31 CON-ESW-EMRGNCY 5 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$242.40
32 L-CUAC9X-ATT-CON 1 Cisco Unifed Attendant Console 9.x - eDelivery 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
33 L-CUACP9X-ATT-CON 1 Cisco Unifed Attendant Console Premium Edition 9.x 1,155.00 1,155.00 79.00% 5,500.00
34 UCSS-U-ATT-PRE-5-1 1 UCSS for Att Console Premium - 1 Instance Five Year Sub 374.85 374.85 79.00% 1,785.00
35 CON-ESW-CUACP9XA 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Unified Attend 1,773.75 354.75 57.00% 825.00
36 CON-ESW-CUAC9X-A 5 ESSENTIAL SW Cisco Unifed Attenda 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$3,303.60
$24,263.83

HSD Cluster\Endpoints
1 CP-8945-K9= 20 Cisco Unified Phone 8945, Phantom Grey, Standard Handset 3,832.40 191.62 63.50% 525.00
2 CP-PWR-CUBE-4= 1 IP Phone power transformer for the 89/9900 phone series 23.72 23.72 63.51% 65.00
3 CP-7937-MIC-KIT= 1 Microphone Kit (7 ft)  for 7937 127.75 127.75 63.50% 350.00
4 CP-PWR-CORD-NA= 1 Power Cord, North America 3.65 3.65 63.50% 10.00
5 CP-CKEM-C= 1 Cisco Unified IP Color Key Expansion Module, Charcoal 171.55 171.55 63.50% 470.00
6 CP-7937G= 1 Cisco UC Conference Station 7937 Global 509.18 509.18 63.50% 1,395.00
7 VG224 1 24 Port Voice over IP analog phone gateway 1,132.95 1,132.95 79.00% 5,395.00
8 SVGVG-12422T 1 Cisco VG200 Series IP SUBSET/VOICE Included Included 0.00% Included
9 CAB-AC 1 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m Included Included 0.00% Included
10 MEM-224-1X64F-U 1 64MB Flash Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
11 MEM-224-1X128D-U 2 128MB DRAM Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
12 CON-SNT-VG224 5 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD 24 Port Voice over I 928.80 185.76 57.00% 432.00

$2,061.75
13 CP-9951-C-CAM-K9= 1 Cisco UC Phone 9951, Charcoal, Std Hndst with Camera 359.52 359.52 63.50% 985.00

$7,089.52

Equipment Total $421,648.53
Warranty & Other Services Total $124,932.20

Schedule A Subtotal: $546,580.73

Nexus Care Subtotal: $0.00

Professional Services Total: $487,263.91

Shipping & Handling: $0.00
Estimated Sales Tax (8.75%): $36,894.25

Total Investment: $1,070,738.89

HSD Cluster\Software and Licensing

HSD Cluster\Endpoints

Customer Initials

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D6



Quote: A-91475-003
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 2- HSD and Remote Sites - A-91475 - 008
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

LINE# PART# QTY DESCRIPTION EXT. PRICE DISC. LIST PRICE

Additional Materials
1 Paging - Telephone Access Mod
2 TAMB2 1 TELEPHONE ACCESS MODULE VER 2 162.83 162.83 0.00% 0.00

$162.83
3 Calabrio Compliance Recording   
4 CQM-USERLCOM-0003-08.90 390 Quality Mgmt User License, Compliance Recording Only 24,221.05 62.11 0.00% 0.00

5 CSS-QMPLATCO-0004.01.10 390 Quality Mgmt Compliance Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 11,034.95 28.29 0.00% 0.00

$35,256.00
6 Calabrio Quality Management
7 CQM-USERLADV-0002-08.90 270 Quality Mgmt User License, Advanced - Voice, Screen, Eval 39,505.26 146.32 0.00% 0.00

8 CSS-QMPLATAD-0004.01.10 270 Quality Mgmt Advanced Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 18,007.58 66.69 0.00% 0.00

$57,512.84
9 Calabrio Workforce Manageme
10 CWF-USERLADV-0013-08.90 290 Workforce Mgmt User License, Advanced 42,431.58 146.32 0.00% 0.00

11 CSS-WMBSPLAT-0004.01.10 290 Workforce Mgmt Advanced Platinum Maintenance Support - Years 1 19,341.47 66.69 0.00% 0.00

$61,773.05
$154,704.73

Contact Center
1 CCE-PAC-ADDON 1 Packaged CCE Add-Ons 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
2 CCE-PAC-CVP-LIC 4 CVP Server and Port License PAKs Included Included 0.00% Included
3 CVP-9X-PTS-TOTAL 760 CVP 9.X Total No PT - Auto Gen value Included Included 0.00% Included
4 CCE-PAC-AGENT 380 CCE Packaged Agent 154,014.00 405.30 79.00% 1,930.00
5 UCSS-U-CCEPCAGT-5Y 380 UCSS for CCE Packaged Agent - 5 Year Sub 43,012.20 113.19 79.00% 539.00
6 CON-ESW-CCEPAGE 1900 ESSENTIAL SW CCE Packaged Agent 166,668.00 87.72 57.00% 204.00
7 CON-ESW-SHRDPOW8 5 ESSENTIAL SW Packaged CCE Add-Ons 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$363,694.20
$363,694.20

HSD Sites\Software and Licensing
1 R-EMRGNCY-RSPNDR 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR ESD 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
2 ER90-SW-LIC 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW LIC Included Included 0.00% Included
3 ER90-SW-MED-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW MEDIA Included Included 0.00% Included
4 ER90-USR-10 83 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS Included Included 0.00% Included
5 ER90-USR-10-NEW 83 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS NEW 3,486.00 42.00 79.00% 200.00
6 UCSS-U-ER-5-10 83 UCSS Emergency Responder - 10 Users 5 Year Sub 1,220.10 14.70 79.00% 70.00
7 CON-ESW-ER90USR0 415 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 US 5,353.50 12.90 57.00% 30.00
8 ER90-SW-NEW-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW NEW 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9 CON-ESW-EMRGNCY 5 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$10,059.60
10 CUWL-STD-K9 1 Unified Workspace Licensing - Top Level for STD - 9.x 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
11 IME-90-UWL 1 IME 9.0 Media Kit Included Included 0.00% Included
12 IME-PAK 1 Include PAK Auto-expanding PAK for IME Included Included 0.00% Included
13 JAB9-DSK-UWL-RTU 1 Jabber for Desktop Right to Use Certificate Included Included 0.00% Included
14 LIC-UWL-STD-SLED-A 781 Services Mapping SKU, Under 1K UWL STD users Included Included 0.00% Included
15 UCM-9X-UWL-STD 781 UC Manager 9.x CUWL STD Users Included Included 0.00% Included
16 UCXN-9X-SC-PORTS 1 Unity Connection 9.x SpeechConnect Ports Included Included 0.00% Included
17 UCXN-9X-UWL-STD 781 Unity Connection 9.x CUWL STD Users Included Included 0.00% Included
18 UWL-STD-PAK 1 CUWL STD 9.x PAK Included Included 0.00% Included
19 WEBEX-UWL-S-PAK 1 WebEx PAK for CUWL Standard Included Included 0.00% Included
20 NEW-UWL-STD-SLED 781 New CUWL Standard Edition Usr, SLED/Govt/Edu Only, 1 Usr 53,303.25 68.25 79.00% 325.00
21 UC-APPS-SW-9.0-K9 1 Version 9.0 Software Kit 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

Additional Materials

Contact Center

UNIT PRICE

Sonoma County

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D7



Quote: A-91475-003
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 2- HSD and Remote Sites - A-91475 - 008
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

22 JAB9-DSK-UWL 821 Jabber for Desktop 9.x for CUWL Only 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
23 CUP9-ONPREM-OPT 1 Included CUCM IM and Presence for on-premise use 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
24 UCSS-U-UWL-STD-5-1 781 Cisco UWL STD UCSS - 1 user 5 Year Sub 18,861.15 24.15 79.00% 115.00
25 CON-ESW-SSLEDA 3905 ESSENTIAL SW Services Mapping SKU, Under 1K UWL STD 35,262.15 9.03 57.00% 21.00
26 CON-ESW-CUWLSTK9 5 ESSENTIAL SW Unified Workspace Lic -Top Level for STD 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$107,426.55
$117,486.15

HSD Sites\Endpoints
1 CP-8945-K9= 700 Cisco Unified Phone 8945, Phantom Grey, Standard Handset 134,134.00 191.62 63.50% 525.00
2 VG224 2 24 Port Voice over IP analog phone gateway 2,265.90 1,132.95 79.00% 5,395.00
3 SVGVG-12422T 2 Cisco VG200 Series IP SUBSET/VOICE Included Included 0.00% Included
4 CAB-AC 2 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m Included Included 0.00% Included
5 MEM-224-1X64F-U 2 64MB Flash Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
6 MEM-224-1X128D-U 4 128MB DRAM Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
7 CON-SNT-VG224 10 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD 24 Port Voice over I 1,857.60 185.76 57.00% 432.00

$4,123.50
8 CP-7937G= 5 Cisco UC Conference Station 7937 Global 2,545.90 509.18 63.50% 1,395.00
9 CP-PWR-CUBE-4= 14 IP Phone power transformer for the 89/9900 phone series 332.08 23.72 63.51% 65.00
10 CP-CKEM-C= 14 Cisco Unified IP Color Key Expansion Module, Charcoal 2,401.70 171.55 63.50% 470.00
11 CP-9951-C-CAM-K9= 14 Cisco UC Phone 9951, Charcoal, Std Hndst with Camera 5,033.28 359.52 63.50% 985.00
12 CP-7937-MIC-KIT= 5 Microphone Kit (7 ft)  for 7937 638.75 127.75 63.50% 350.00
13 CP-PWR-CORD-NA= 14 Power Cord, North America 51.10 3.65 63.50% 10.00

$149,260.31
HSD Sites\Remote Site Gateways

1 C2951-VSEC/K9 5 Cisco 2951 UC Sec. Bundle, PVDM3-32, UC and SEC License P 9,864.75 1,972.95 79.00% 9,395.00
2 PWR-2921-51-AC 5 Cisco 2921/2951 AC Power Supply Included Included 0.00% Included
3 S2951UK9-15204M 5 Cisco 2951 IOS UNIVERSAL Included Included 0.00% Included
4 ISR-CCP-EXP 5 Cisco Config Pro Express on Router Flash Included Included 0.00% Included
5 SL-29-IPB-K9 5 IP Base License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
6 SL-29-SEC-K9 5 Security License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
7 SL-29-UC-K9 5 Unified Communication  License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
8 HWIC-BLANK 10 Blank faceplate for HWIC slot on Cisco ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
9 SM-S-BLANK 10 Removable faceplate for SM slot on Cisco 2900,3900,4400 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
10 VIC2-2FXO 5 Two-port Voice Interface Card - FXO (Universal) 462.00 92.40 79.00% 440.00
11 VIC3-4FXS/DID 5 Four-Port Voice Interface Card - FXS and DID 924.00 184.80 79.00% 880.00
12 PVDM3-32U128 5 PVDM3 32-channel to 128-channel factory upgrade 4,725.00 945.00 79.00% 4,500.00
13 CAB-AC 5 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
14 FL-CME-SRST-100 5 Cisco Communication Manager or SRST- 100 seat license 2,415.00 483.00 79.00% 2,300.00
15 FL-SRST 5 Cisco Survivable Remote Site Telephony License 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
16 SL-29-DATA-K9 5 Data License  for Cisco 2901-2951 735.00 147.00 79.00% 700.00
17 MEM-2951-512U2GB 5 512MB to 2GB DRAM Upgrade (1 2GB DIMM) for Cisco 2951 ISR 735.00 147.00 79.00% 700.00
18 MEM-CF-256U2GB 5 256MB to 2GB Compact Flash Upgrade for Cisco 1900,2900,3900 840.00 168.00 79.00% 800.00
19 CON-SNT-2951VSEC 25 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD Cisco 2951 Voice Sec. Bundle, UC and SEC 10,320.00 412.80 57.00% 960.00

$31,020.75
$31,020.75

County Sites\Software and Licensing
1 R-EMRGNCY-RSPNDR 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR ESD 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
2 ER90-SW-LIC 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW LIC Included Included 0.00% Included
3 ER90-SW-MED-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW MEDIA Included Included 0.00% Included
4 ER90-USR-10 364 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS Included Included 0.00% Included
5 ER90-USR-10-NEW 364 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 USR LIC 10 PHNS NEW 15,288.00 42.00 79.00% 200.00
6 UCSS-U-ER-5-10 364 UCSS Emergency Responder - 10 Users 5 Year Sub 5,350.80 14.70 79.00% 70.00
7 CON-ESW-ER90USR0 1820 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 US 23,478.00 12.90 57.00% 30.00
8 ER90-SW-NEW-K9 1 EMRGNCY RSPNDR 90 SW NEW 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
9 CON-ESW-EMRGNCY 5 ESSENTIAL SW EMRGNCY RSPNDR 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$44,116.80
10 R-UCL-UCM-LIC-K9 1 Top Level SKU For 9.x User License - Electronic Delivery 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
11 CCX-90-CMBUNDLE-K9 1 CCX 9.0 Promo Bundle available only with NEW CUCM or BE6000 Included Included 0.00% Included
12 JAB9-WIN-UCM-RTU 1 JAB9 UCM Right to Use Certificate Included Included 0.00% Included
13 LIC-CUCM-9X-ENH 3315 UC Manager Enhanced 9.x License Included Included 0.00% Included
14 UCM-PAK 1 UCM 9X PAK Included Included 0.00% Included
15 LIC-CUCM-9X-ENH-B 3315 UC Manager-9.x Enhanced Single User-1K to 10K 135,749.25 40.95 79.00% 195.00

HSD Sites\Software and Licensing

HSD Sites\Endpoints

HSD Sites\Remote Site Gateways

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D8



Quote: A-91475-003
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 2- HSD and Remote Sites - A-91475 - 008
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

16 UCSS-U-UCM-B-5-1 3315 UC Manager UCSS - 1 ENH User 5 Year Sub Tier B 33,415.20 10.08 79.00% 48.00
17 CON-ESW-LICCENHB 16575 ESSENTIAL SW UC Manager-9.x Enhanced Single User-1K t 42,763.50 2.58 57.00% 6.00
18 JAB9-DSK-CLNT-UCM 3315 Jabber for Desktop User License 9.x for UCM only 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
19 CUCM-VERS-9.X 1 CUCM  Software Version 9.X 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
20 CON-ESW-RUCLUCK9 5 ESSENTIAL SW Top Level SKU For 9. 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00

$211,927.95
$256,044.75

County Sites\Endpoints
1 CP-8945-K9= 3148 Cisco Unified Phone 8945, Phantom Grey, Standard Handset 603,219.76 191.62 63.50% 525.00
2 VG224 10 24 Port Voice over IP analog phone gateway 11,329.50 1,132.95 79.00% 5,395.00
3 SVGVG-12422T 10 Cisco VG200 Series IP SUBSET/VOICE Included Included 0.00% Included
4 CAB-AC 10 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m Included Included 0.00% Included
5 MEM-224-1X64F-U 10 64MB Flash Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
6 MEM-224-1X128D-U 20 128MB DRAM Memory for VG224 (Factory Upgrade) Included Included 0.00% Included
7 CON-SNT-VG224 50 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD 24 Port Voice over I 9,288.00 185.76 57.00% 432.00

$20,617.50
8 CP-7937-MIC-KIT= 100 Microphone Kit (7 ft)  for 7937 12,775.00 127.75 63.50% 350.00
9 CP-PWR-CUBE-4= 67 IP Phone power transformer for the 89/9900 phone series 1,589.24 23.72 63.51% 65.00
10 CP-PWR-CORD-NA= 67 Power Cord, North America 244.55 3.65 63.50% 10.00
11 CP-7937G= 100 Cisco UC Conference Station 7937 Global 50,918.00 509.18 63.50% 1,395.00
12 CP-CKEM-C= 67 Cisco Unified IP Color Key Expansion Module, Charcoal 11,493.85 171.55 63.50% 470.00
13 CP-9951-C-CAM-K9= 67 Cisco UC Phone 9951, Charcoal, Std Hndst with Camera 24,087.84 359.52 63.50% 985.00

$724,945.74
County Sites\Remote Site Gateways

1 C3945-VSEC/K9 6 Cisco 3945 UC Sec. Bundle, PVDM3-64, UC and SEC License P 19,523.70 3,253.95 79.00% 15,495.00
2 PWR-3900-AC 6 Cisco 3925/3945 AC Power Supply Included Included 0.00% Included
3 3900-FANASSY 6 Cisco 3925/3945 Fan Assembly (Bezel included) Included Included 0.00% Included
4 C3900-SPE150/K9 6 Cisco Services Performance Engine 150 for Cisco 3945 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
5 ISR-CCP-EXP 6 Cisco Config Pro Express on Router Flash Included Included 0.00% Included
6 SL-39-IPB-K9 6 IP Base License for Cisco 3925/3945 Included Included 0.00% Included
7 SL-39-SEC-K9 6 Security License for Cisco 3900 Series Included Included 0.00% Included
8 SL-39-UC-K9 6 Unified Communication License  for Cisco 3900 Series Included Included 0.00% Included
9 S39UK9-15204M 6 Cisco 3925-3945 IOS UNIVERSAL Included Included 0.00% Included
10 SM-S-BLANK 24 Removable faceplate for SM slot on Cisco 2900,3900,4400 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
11 VWIC3-1MFT-T1/E1 6 1-Port 3rd Gen Multiflex Trunk Voice/WAN Int. Card - T1/E1 1,801.80 300.30 79.00% 1,430.00
12 VIC2-2FXO 6 Two-port Voice Interface Card - FXO (Universal) 554.40 92.40 79.00% 440.00
13 VIC3-4FXS/DID 12 Four-Port Voice Interface Card - FXS and DID 2,217.60 184.80 79.00% 880.00
14 PVDM3-64U128 6 PVDM3 64-channel to 128-channel factory upgrade 3,780.00 630.00 79.00% 3,000.00
15 PWR-3900-AC/2 6 Cisco 3925/3945 AC Power Supply (Secondary PS) 630.00 105.00 79.00% 500.00
16 CAB-AC 12 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
17 FL-CME-SRST-100 12 Cisco Communication Manager or SRST- 100 seat license 5,796.00 483.00 79.00% 2,300.00
18 FL-SRST 6 Cisco Survivable Remote Site Telephony License 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
19 SL-39-DATA-K9 6 Data License for Cisco 3900 Series 1,260.00 210.00 79.00% 1,000.00
20 MEM-3900-1GU4GB 6 1GB to 4GB DRAM Upgrade (2GB+2GB) for Cisco 3925/3945 ISR 1,260.00 210.00 79.00% 1,000.00
21 MEM-CF-256U4GB 6 256MB to 4GB Compact Flash Upgrade for Cisco 1900,2900,3900 1,512.00 252.00 79.00% 1,200.00
22 CON-SNT-3945VSEC 30 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD Cisco 3945 Voice Sec. Bundle, UC and SEC 20,317.50 677.25 57.00% 1,575.00

$58,653.00
23 C2951-VSEC/K9 39 Cisco 2951 UC Sec. Bundle, PVDM3-32, UC and SEC License P 76,945.05 1,972.95 79.00% 9,395.00
24 PWR-2921-51-AC 39 Cisco 2921/2951 AC Power Supply Included Included 0.00% Included
25 S2951UK9-15204M 39 Cisco 2951 IOS UNIVERSAL Included Included 0.00% Included
26 ISR-CCP-EXP 39 Cisco Config Pro Express on Router Flash Included Included 0.00% Included
27 SL-29-IPB-K9 39 IP Base License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
28 SL-29-SEC-K9 39 Security License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
29 SL-29-UC-K9 39 Unified Communication  License  for Cisco 2901-2951 Included Included 0.00% Included
30 HWIC-BLANK 78 Blank faceplate for HWIC slot on Cisco ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
31 SM-S-BLANK 78 Removable faceplate for SM slot on Cisco 2900,3900,4400 ISR Included Included 0.00% Included
32 VIC2-2FXO 39 Two-port Voice Interface Card - FXO (Universal) 3,603.60 92.40 79.00% 440.00
33 VIC3-4FXS/DID 39 Four-Port Voice Interface Card - FXS and DID 7,207.20 184.80 79.00% 880.00
34 PVDM3-32U128 39 PVDM3 32-channel to 128-channel factory upgrade 36,855.00 945.00 79.00% 4,500.00
35 CAB-AC 39 AC Power Cord (North America), C13, NEMA 5-15P, 2.1m 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
36 FL-CME-SRST-100 39 Cisco Communication Manager or SRST- 100 seat license 18,837.00 483.00 79.00% 2,300.00
37 FL-SRST 39 Cisco Survivable Remote Site Telephony License 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00
38 SL-29-DATA-K9 39 Data License  for Cisco 2901-2951 5,733.00 147.00 79.00% 700.00

County Sites\Software and Licensing

County Sites\Endpoints

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D9



Quote: A-91475-003
Project: Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 2- HSD and Remote Sites - A-91475 - 008
Created: 9/24/2013
Valid: 10/15/2013

39 MEM-2951-512U2GB 39 512MB to 2GB DRAM Upgrade (1 2GB DIMM) for Cisco 2951 ISR 5,733.00 147.00 79.00% 700.00
40 MEM-CF-256U2GB 39 256MB to 2GB Compact Flash Upgrade for Cisco 1900,2900,3900 6,552.00 168.00 79.00% 800.00
41 CON-SNT-2951VSEC 195 SMARTNET 8X5XNBD Cisco 2951 Voice Sec. Bundle, UC and SEC 80,496.00 412.80 57.00% 960.00

$241,961.85
$300,614.85

Equipment Total $1,701,986.75
Warranty & Other Services Total $395,804.25

Schedule A Subtotal: $2,097,791.00

Nexus Care Subtotal: $0.00

Professional Services Total: $565,310.22

Shipping & Handling: $0.00
Estimated Sales Tax (8.75%): $148,923.84

Total Investment: $2,812,025.06

Customer Initials

County Sites\Remote Site Gateways

Exhibit "D" - Bill of Materials

D10



Exhibit “E”  - Change Procedure 

E1 
 

Exhibit “E” – Change Procedure 
 

1.1 If the County requires a change to the existing SoW, County’s Project Manager shall 
deliver to Contractor’s Project Manager a Change Order with sufficient detail to enable 
Contractor to evaluate it.  Contractor, within five (5) business days, or longer as may be 
mutually agreed between the parties, following the date of receipt of such Change Order, 
shall provide County with an evaluation of the Change Order and a written proposal 
(“Proposal”) containing the following, as applicable:  

a. A detailed description of the employees required to perform the requested 
services; specifications;  

b. Implementation plans, with implementation to commence not later than thirty 
(30) days after approval thereof, unless otherwise mutually agreed;  

c. The timeframe for performance; and  

d. The price for such performance based on the applicable charges set forth in this 
Agreement.   

All Proposals for a change to the project scope will include Acceptance Criteria and 
either modifications to existing payment milestones or additional fixed fee payment 
milestones payable upon acceptance of such milestones. 

1.2 If Contractor believes a change to the project is necessary or desirable, it shall promptly 
provide County its Proposal, as set forth in Section 1.1 of this Change Procedure. 

1.3 All Change Orders shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this Agreement 
(including the descriptions and timeframes for all milestone-based work) unless mutually 
agreed in writing otherwise.   

1.4 Within the reasonable timeframe specified in Contractor’s Proposal, which timeframe 
shall not be less than ten (10) business days from the Project Manager’s receipt of such 
Change Order (the “Response Period”), County shall notify Contractor in writing if 
County elects to proceed with the Change Order, provided however, that no Proceed 
Order can or will be authorized by the County without either obtaining further 
authorization from the County's Board of Supervisors, or authorization pursuant to 
Paragraphs 1.4(b) or 1.4(c) of this Change Procedure.  If, within the Response Period, the 
County gives notice to Contractor not to proceed, or fails to give any notice to 
Contractor, then the Change Order shall be deemed withdrawn and Contractor shall take 
no further action with respect to it. 

All Services or Work Product under a Change Order shall be performed and paid for in 
accordance with the following: 

a. All Change Orders shall be in writing, and shall comply with this Change 
Procedure.  The parties expressly recognize that, pursuant to Sonoma County 
Code Section 1-11, County personnel are without authorization to order extra or 
changed work or waive Agreement requirements without authorization from the 
County Board of Supervisors.  Compliance with this Change Procedure 
represents authorization from the County’s Board of Supervisors.  Contractor’s 



Exhibit “E”  - Change Procedure 

E2 
 

failure to secure written authorization for extra or changed work pursuant to this 
Change Procedure shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in 
the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work and 
thereafter Contractor shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such work.  Contractor further expressly waives any and all right 
or remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all extra work 
performed without such express and prior written authorization from County.  In 
the absence of an approved Change Order under this Section 1.3

b. Minor changes which do not significantly change the scope of work or 
significantly lengthen time schedules, and amendments to the Agreement which 
do not increase the amount of payment under the Agreement (taking into account 
all prior amendments), may be executed by the County’s Director of the County's 
Information Systems Department in a form approved by County Counsel.   

, the parties shall 
continue performance of all Services in accordance with the then-current, 
unmodified SOW. 

c. Changes which decrease the amount of payment without significantly decreasing 
the system functionality to be delivered to County under the effective SoW, or 
that increase the amount of payment under the Agreement (taking into account all 
prior amendments) by no more than $194,000, but which do not significantly 
decrease the system functionality to be delivered to County under the effective 
SoW, may be executed by the Director of County’s Information Systems 
Department, in a form approved by County Counsel. 

d. Minor changes in the Products purchased, as listed in the Bill of Materials 
(Exhibit D), or in any amendment to the Bill of Materials, may be executed by 
any designee of the Director of County’s Information Systems Department that 
has been approved by the County Board of Supervisors, in a form approved by 
County Counsel.  In this paragraph, "Products" means any non-service purchase 
in the Bill of Materials. 

e. If Contractor is of the opinion that any work it has been directed to perform is 
beyond the scope of this Agreement and constitutes extra work, it shall promptly 
notify County and provide a detailed explanation.  County shall make a 
determination as to whether or not such work is, in fact, beyond the scope of this 
Agreement and constitutes extra work not within the agreed price.  In the event 
that County determines that such work does constitute extra work, a new SOW or 
Change Order under this Agreement providing for such extra work shall be 
negotiated between County and Contractor, pursuant to this Change Procedure, 
subject to the terms and rates of this Agreement. 

f. In the event County determines that such work does not constitute extra work, 
any disagreement with this determination shall be addressed at a meeting 
between the Director of County’s Information Systems Department and Nexus’ 
Executive Sponsor. 

 



Telecommunications 
System Purchase and 
Implementation 

Information Systems Department 
October 15, 2013 
 
 

John Hartwig, ISD Director 

Dan Fruchey, ISD Technical Services Director 

J.R. Simmons, President and Principal COMGroup Inc. 

1 Page 1 



Agenda 

2 Page 2 

Project Background 

Solution and Benefits 

Work Plan and Timeline 

Project Budget and Financing 

Ongoing Support Services 

Recommended Actions 

 
 



Project Background 

3 Page 3 

• 17 year old system 
• 5,000 devices at 60 sites 
• July 2012 – contract for 

analysis of current system 
• February 2013 – contract 

extended to develop requirements  

• April 2013 - County RFP issued,  
9 responses, 3 finalists, broad participation  

• Process selected Nexus IS proposal to 
implement a Cisco Systems solution 

 



Solution 
 The evolution continues - all things Internet… 

This project will fill a Gap… our phones! 

? 

4 Page 4 



Solution 
• Replace telephone 

systems with modern 
technologies 

• Consolidate voice and data 
networks  

• Integrate desk phones, PC applications, 
smart phones and tablets 

• Enhance feature set and call center 
capacity 

 
5 Page 5 



 
 

Public Benefit 

6 Page 6 

• Improved call quality 
• Easier to reach mobile 

staff – one number 
• Caller identification on 

outbound calls 
• County operator and 

reception will know the 
status of people 

• Call center efficiency  



 

 

 

Benefits to Users 

7 Page 7 

• Hear and/or read voice mail 
messages from Outlook 

• Instant messaging 
• One phone number reaches you 

at any device 
• Small group video conferencing 
• Desktop sharing and collaboration 
• Mobility and telework options for 

lower carbon foot print  



Work Plan and Timeline 
• System delivery     Nov 2013 
 
• Install core servers and gateways  Jan 2014 
 
• Pilot launch (ISD & HSD)   Feb 2014 
 
• Implement new HSD call centers  Mar 2014 
 
• Transition first non-pilot department Apr 2014 
 
• Transition remaining departments / locations 

• Phased process over 12 month period 
• Schedule to be determined based on departmental  
   needs 

8 Page 8 



Project Budget/Costs 

“Other” costs will be temporarily financed with 
accumulated replacement funds for IT systems during FY 
13/14 and FY 14/15  

Category Contract Costs Other
Hardware/Software $2,830,170
Nexus Prof Services $1,051,830
5% Contract Contingency $194,000

Contract Total $4,076,000
COMgroup Prof Services $259,692
ISD Labor / Training $828,552
ISD Hardware $479,469
5% Misc. Contingency $79,267

Project Total $5,722,980

9 Page 9 



Project Financing (in millions) 
Fund Name FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 Totals 

Accumulated Capital 
Outlay (Telephone) 

$.23 $.46 $1.38 $.14 $2.22 

ISD Reserve 
Accounts 

$1.90 $1.90 

Human Services 
Department 

$1.60 $1.60 

TOTALS $.23 $2.06 $3.28 $.14 
 

$5.72 

*Allocations currently being charged to departments 
will re-establish ISD replacement funds over a five (5) 
year period.  

10 Page 10 



Ongoing Support Services 

• Converging voice and data environments will 
change the way ISD supports departments 

• Service desk, phone/desktop field support, 
and network functions consolidated in ISD  
• Senior Network Analyst (1.0) – all transport services 

merged 
• Information Technology Analysts (2.0) – service desk 

and desktop functions consolidated 
• Administrative Aide (1.0) – operator assistance and 

administration combined 

• Vendor resources will augment efforts 
 

 
11 Page 11 



Our future is bright 
 Unified communications through all things Internet… 

 … will help us deliver superior public service!   
12 Page 12 



 

Recommended Actions 

13 Page 13 

• Authorize the  Director of the Information Systems 
Department (ISD) to execute an Agreement For 
Purchase of Equipment and Professional Services 
Agreement with Nexus IS, Inc. (Nexus) for 
procurement, installation, implementation, and 
training for Cisco Systems enterprise unified 
communications system for a total amount not to 
exceed $4,076,000 including a $194,000 
contingency for a two year period commencing 
October 16, 2013.  

• Authorize the Director of ISD to execute minor 
amendments to the Agreement that do not exceed 
the contingency in the amount of $194,000 



Questions? 

Page 14 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

  

County of Sonoma 
Agenda Item 

Summary Report 

Agenda Item Number: 26
(This Section for use by Clerk of the Board Only.) 

Clerk of the Board 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

 

To: Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Board Agenda Date: October 15, 2013 Vote Requirement: Majority 

Department or Agency Name(s): Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Staff Name and Phone Number: Supervisorial District(s): 

Bill Keene, 565-7348 All 

Title: District Study Session:  (1) Fiscal Overview; (2) Initial Public Access, Operation and Maintenance 
Policy; (3) Accounting Review; and (4) Fee Lands Strategy; and adopt a Resolution Approving an 
Update to the District’s 2007 Initial Public Access, Operations and Maintenance Policy. 

Recommended Actions: 

Approve, by resolution, an update to the District’s Initial Public Access, Operation, and Maintenance 
Policy to include (1) costs of capital improvements, (2) limited initial payments to recreational land 
transfer recipients, (3) costs for recreational property management, and (4) costs to provide interim 
access, permit, and public outings and education programs, and 5) continued annual appropriations for 
initial public access and operation and maintenance expenditures and District Operation and 
Maintenance Reserve Fund contribution.  
 
The General Manager also recommends that the Carrington and Occidental properties owned by the 
District be moved to Tier 1 in the Fee Lands Strategy, with the designated recipient as Sonoma County 
Regional Parks, subject to action by the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors. Each property transfer 
transaction would be brought to the District Advisory Committee and Fiscal Oversight Commission for 
review, and then to the District Board of Directors for approval at a later date.  

Executive Summary: 

At the June 10, 2013 Budget Hearing, the Board requested that the District return within 90 days with 
(1) a discussion of the operations and maintenance policy, and (2) information related to proposed 
transfer of specific properties the District holds in fee. The Board also asked the District to return with a 
recommendation for increasing the contribution to the Matching Grant Program budget. This latter 
subject will be brought before the Board as a separate item. 
 
Overview and Fiscal Context 

The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District was created and funded through  
 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

voter approval of Measures A and C in 1990.  In November of 2006, the voters of Sonoma County, by a 
margin of 76%, approved Measure F (Sonoma County Open Space, Clean Water, and Farmland 
Protection Measure) extending the District’s funding for an additional twenty years.  Measure F included 
an Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1), which became effective upon voter approval.  
 
A summary of District revenues and expenditures since 1990 are included as Attachment 2. Over the 
past twenty-two years, the District has protected 106,000 acres of land through purchase of both 
conservation easements and full fee title to properties. Through partnerships and leveraging of taxpayer 
funds, the District has invested $293 million to protect $367 million in land. The District’s current 
Acquisition Plan, Connecting Communities and the Land, prioritizes acquisition expenditures in four 
categories:  Farms and Ranches; Greenbelts and Scenic Hillsides; Water, Wildlife and Natural Areas; and 
Recreation and Education. The most strategic investment of District funds, of course, is to prioritize 
acquisitions that meet more than one category. In fact, more than half of the purchases to date have 
met at least three of the four categories.  Attachment 3 illustrates an example of a multiple objective 
project, Taylor Mountain. Assigning a primary category to each acquisition, there have been an 
approximately equal number of projects across all categories. Attachment 4 shows the number of acres 
protected and total costs for each acquisition category. 
 
Measure F differed from Measure C in that it specifically authorizes funding for initial public access and 
operation and maintenance of District-protected lands intended for recreational use. Paragraph 6 of the 
District Expenditure Plan states: 

“Operation and maintenance of land includes limited funding for initial public access, operation and 
maintenance of recreational lands purchased in accordance with this Plan. No more than 10 percent of 
total revenues generated over the life of the Measure shall be made available for operation and 
maintenance purposes.” 

Since passage of Measure F in November of 2006, District sales tax revenues have totaled $118 million.  
10% of the sales tax revenue is $11.8 million. Approximately $10.6 million in expenditures are 
considered eligible for inclusion under the 10% cap. 
 
Initial Public Access and Operations and Maintenance Policy 

In 2007, the Board adopted Resolution No. 07-0666 (Attachment 5), which approved a policy proposed 
by the previous General Manager for budgeting funds under Paragraph 6 for operations and 
maintenance.  This policy stated that expenditures would include “reasonable and necessary costs 
incurred for initial maintenance of parks and open space properties ad improvements and to provide 
services for initial public use.”   It emphasized that the focus was “to provide limited expenditures to 
assist in ‘jump starting’ some level of initial public access and land maintenance on recreational 
properties purchased with the open space sales tax.”   It established a three year time limit for operation 
and maintenance payments to recreational partners. And it directed that the District designate annual 
appropriations for operation and maintenance expenditures, to be divided between (a) current 
expenditures for specific recreational properties and (b) an Operation and Maintenance Reserve Fund, 
to address long-term needs for operation and maintenance of recreational lands. The policy itself does 
not specifically address capital expenditures one way or another, although language in the staff report 
that accompanied the 2007 policy discussion specifically excluded capital expenditures from the 
definition of ‘Initial Public Access and Operations and Maintenance’. The resolution directed the General 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

Manager to periodically review the policy and recommend any needed updates arising from changed 
circumstances.  
 
Based on Board direction given in June, District staff and County Counsel have reviewed the language of 
the Expenditure Plan, the District’s experiences to date, and the public input received to develop the 
following recommendations for revisions to the Initial Public Access and O&M Policy. District staff 
presented the recommendations to the Fiscal Oversight Commission on September 5 and October 3, 
2013, and the District Advisory Committee on August 22 and September 26, 2013. These revisions will 
clarify Board direction and ensure that funding is available to achieve a balanced program over the life 
of the measure: 
 

Expenditures related to capital projects (including staff costs, services and supplies) that support initial 
public access on lands intended for recreational use are included under the 10% cap on O&M 
expenditures. 

Recommendation 1: Include Capital Improvements under 10% cap 

 
Rationale:  The language of the Expenditure Plan is ambiguous regarding including capital expenditures 
within the 10% cap, but refers to initial public access, which in practical terms requires a minimal 
amount of capital improvements to allow for public use, such as a trail, parking, signage, and perhaps a 
restroom. Due to fiscal constraints, local and state parks partners do not have the funding to implement 
these capital projects, and require some support from the District.  
 
If capital improvements were to be excluded from the 10% cap, such projects could become infeasible 
as they would be forced to compete with the Districts other objectives, including acquisition of new 
easements and/or fee purchases, and stewardship costs.  
 
Assuming conservative projections of sales tax revenue in the future, and based on estimates provided 
by Regional Parks, there would be enough funding in the 10% cap to include capital costs over the life of 
the Measure. This recommendation is consistent with the collective input received from the District 
Fiscal Oversight Commission and District Advisory Committee.  
 
Recommendation 2: Continue Limited Initial Payments to Recreational Partners 

Under the current policy, the District may make payments to entities receiving fee-title transfer of 
District recreational properties, for operation and maintenance costs that support initial public access. 
These payments may be for a period not to exceed three years from the date of fee title transfer, and 
must be made on a reimbursement basis according to an approved work plan, to ensure compliance 
with the District Expenditure Plan. The District may grant an extension of the three year timeframe in 
the case of extraordinary circumstances. The General Manager recommends that all of these policies be 
continued.  

Rationale:

 

  The District expends substantial funds to acquire recreational easement and fee properties. 
Experience to date has demonstrated that, if provided with a limited amount of ‘start-up’ funding, 
partnering park entities are often able to leverage this initial investment towards covering the cost of 
long term operation and maintenance of District-protected recreational properties.  



Revision No. 20131002-1 

Costs related to resource assessment, management, and infrastructure maintenance undertaken on 
District lands in anticipation of future recreational use, including related District staff and consultant 
time, materials and supplies, and legal costs, are eligible expenditures under the 10% O&M cap. The 
General Manager recommends that these costs continue to be included within the cap.  

Recommendation 3: Continue to Include Costs to Manage Recreational Properties 

Rationale:

 

  During the time the District holds fee title, District staff and consultants maintain fee lands in 
anticipation of future recreational uses. This work maintains fee lands purchased for recreation in a state 
that ensures their responsible transfer to a recreation entity, and their safe use for future public access. 
This cost is expected to be reduced over time as fee lands are transferred and new fee land acquisitions 
are transferred upon close of escrow per Board direction. 

Costs to provide interim access or permit programs, educational outings, or public outings on 
recreational lands protected by the District, including District staff and consultant time, materials and 
supplies, and legal costs, are eligible expenditures under the 10% O&M cap. The General Manager 
recommends that these expenditures continue to be covered under the cap. 

Recommendation 4: Continue to Include Interim Access, Permit, and Outings Costs 

Rationale:

 

  Several years are often required to develop resource studies, management plans, 
environmental documents, and to obtain regulatory approvals necessary to allow for full public access 
to District-protected recreational lands. Educational and public outings, and permit programs delivered 
via District partners have proven to be a cost effective strategy for allowing interim public access to 
protected properties, and are strongly supported by the community.  

Recommendation 5:  Continue to Consider Annual Appropriations for Initial Public Access and O&M 
Expenditures and Reserve Fund Contribution:   

As part of the annual budgeting process, the General Manager will recommend anticipated qualifying 
Initial Public Access and O&M expenditures for specific properties, as well as an annual contribution to 
the District Operation and Maintenance Reserve, and will provide a summary of dollars spent to date on 
eligible O&M over the life of the Measure. Annual budgeting does not irrevocably commit funds and the 
Board of Directors will retain the flexibility to re-allocate funds from the reserve fund for other purposes 
eligible under Measure F. This is consistent with the current policy. 
 
Rationale:  An annual budget recommendation of expenditures for initial public access and O&M by the 
General Manager to the Board assures that the Board retains financial flexibility to balance program 
needs and to participate in opportunity projects such as Preservation Ranch, Taylor Mountain, Jenner, 
key trail connections, or other projects critical to the permanent protection of the unique agricultural 
and open space landscapes of Sonoma County.  
 
The Fiscal Oversight Commission is tasked with an annual review of compliance with the Initial Public 
Access and O&M Policy (Resolution 10-0832). External auditors may be contracted to review related 
transactions and prepare a report for the Fiscal Oversight Commission. Use of external auditors would 
provide third party attestation of the accuracy of the Districts processing and classification of 
expenditures.  
 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

Accounting Review 

The County Auditor and County Administrator’s office has completed the accounting review of District 
expenditures since passage of Measure F.  A summary of the review is included in Attachment 6. 
 
District Fee Lands Strategy 

The Board adopted a District Fee Lands Strategy in November of 2012. The Fee Lands Strategy divides 
the lands held in fee by the District into two Tiers. Tier 1 includes the properties with a designated 
receiving entity, and Tier 2 includes properties with no current designated transfer recipient 
(Attachment 7).   
 
Several Tier 1 properties (2,968 acres) were identified for transfer to Regional Parks. Lawson, North 
Sonoma Mountain, and Mark West Creek properties are anticipated for transfer in the current fiscal 
year. Two other Tier 1 properties, Montini Preserve and Healdsburg Ridge, will also be transferred this 
fiscal year, to the City of Sonoma and City of Healdsburg, respectively.  
 
At the June 10, 2013 Budget Hearing, the Board requested that the District return with a plan for moving 
three properties (Carrington Ranch, Occidental Road, and Keegan-Coppin, listed by Regional Parks as 
highest priority) from Tier 2 to Tier 1.  To be considered a Tier 1 property and thus move forward with 
the transfer process, there must be expressed interest on the part of a receiving entity, and confirming 
action by its governing body.  
 
Recommendation 

The General Manager recommends that two properties, Carrington Ranch and Occidental Road, already 
considered by the Board (acting both as the District Board of Directors and County Board of Supervisors) 
during the June budget hearings, be moved to Tier 1 in the District Fee Lands Strategy, with the 
designated transfer entity identified as Regional Parks.  The District would plan on completing an 
evaluation for each of the remaining Tier 2 properties with the assistance of an Advisory Panel as 
directed in the Fee Lands Strategy. If the District’s Board decides (and concurs while acting as the 
County’s Board), three additional properties of interest to Regional Parks could be moved from Tier 2 to 
Tier 1, including Wright Hill (Poff) Ranch, Calabazas Creek, and Keegan-Coppin, with the intention of 
transferring to Regional Parks in the future. Each property transfer transaction would be brought to the 
District Advisory Committee and Fiscal Oversight Commission for review, and then to the District Board 
of Directors for approval at a later date.  
 

Prior Board Actions: 

1. Adoption of District Fee Lands Strategy, November 2012 
2. Adoption of District 2012-2015 Work plan, March 2012 
3. Resolution 2007-0666, adopting the Operations and Maintenance Budget Policy  
4. Resolution No. 2006-0657 calling an Election to extend the Sales Tax for Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 
5. Adoption of District Acquisition Plan, June 2006 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

Strategic Plan Alignment Goal 2: Economic and Environmental Stewardship 

Revisions to and clarifications of the District Initial Public Access and O&M Policy, and implementation of  
the District Fee Lands Strategy, provide an opportunity to apply a balanced, multiple-objective, and cost-
effective approach to land protection activities consistent with the voter-approved District  Expenditure 
Plan. 

Fiscal Summary - FY 13-14 

Expenditures Funding Source(s) 

Budgeted Amount $ 1,923,250  $  

Add Appropriations Reqd. $  State/Federal $  

 $  Fees/Other $ 1,923,250 

 $  Use of Fund Balance $  

 $  Contingencies $  

 $   $  

Total Expenditure $ 1,923,250 Total Sources $ 1,923,250 

Narrative Explanation of Fiscal Impacts (If Required): 

Current budget for land maintenance includes recreational land expenditures of $633,250 and $375,000 
for transfers and maintenance related to North Slope (scheduled to transfer to Regional Parks). Also 
budgeted for FY13-14 is $915,000 of capital improvements on recreational properties. Total O&M 
expenditures budgeted are $1,923,250.  
Fiscal impacts of policy recommendations today would be reflected  in future  year’s annual budget 
presentation. The policy choices have the potential to have long term and substantial impacts on District 
program objectives and outcomes (see Attachment 2). 

Staffing Impacts 

Position Title 
(Payroll Classification) 

Monthly Salary 
Range 

(A – I Step) 

Additions 
(Number) 

Deletions 
(Number) 

    

    

Narrative Explanation of Staffing Impacts (If Required): 

N/A 

Attachments: 

1.  Measure F and Expenditure Plan 
2.  Summary of District Revenues and Expenditures 
3.  Taylor Mountain Example of a Multi Benefit project 
4.  Completed Land Acquisitions by Acquisition Plan category  
5.  Board Resolution 2007-0666 and Agenda Transmittal Summary 



Revision No. 20131002-1 

6.  Summary of Accounting Review 
7.  Excerpt from District Fee Lands Strategy:  Tables 1 and 2 
8.  Draft Resolution 

Related Items “On File” with the Clerk of the Board: 

1. Connecting Communities and the Land:  A Long-Range Acquisition Plan 
2. District Fee Lands Strategy 
3. District 2012-2015 Workplan 
4. June 5, 2013 memo from County Counsel to CAO 
5. June 10, 2013, Board Agenda Summary Report for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget Hearings   



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 

MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 


(whlch.var Is appllnable to your baUol) 

Arguments In support of, or In opposilion 10, the proposed laws ara Iha opinions ollhe aulhors. 


COUNTY OF SONOMA COUNTY AUDITOR'S FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT - MEASURE F 
MEASUREF Revenues: 

F 
1Ws measure does no\ increase Ihecurrenl6ales lax. This measure conllnuBs Ihe 

Farmland Protection Measurt, To pras9lVe nelurs' 
.Sonoma County Open Spaco, Clean Water and 

currenl Open Space sales 1ax collected in Sonoma-County of 114 of one percent 
. - lands from developlllen1j protect wOOIing falma and (.25%) lortwen!yyears ,Per M,~h 31, 2011 lor open 'Peo. eligibl. for proleoUo.· 

ranchesj protect drInking waler sOu/CElS; improve wa\6f under the AgricFJllural Pre.swvalion and Open Space 2006.E)(p8MUure Plen. Open 
quality10 lakes, livers and strssmsj crealesnd Improva parks-and space (halls eligible [or protec~cn, underthis Plan, ihc!Uda commllnityseparators. 

ijTeenbelts, scenic landscape units, scenic corrldQrs, agrlcullurally prOductiveIraRs; and preserve the coaslllns and beatlhes, shall the current 
quarler·canlsales ta)!, lunding the Sonoma County Agricultural lands, biotic habitat areas, r\lanan corridors and other areas oibiatlc sIgnificance, 
Presmvation & Open Space Olsltfcl, be continued for twenly and other open space pro]ecls. 

years, and bonds aulborized tD finance pro/eelS. with rsqulred 
 Based on currenlliales tax co!letUons, hlsloncal annual growl'n In liales tax, and 
Independent audits and CltlZllIl oveJsight wilhout incfBaslng the assumpUotl that the la)t will remsin in effect for twenty (20) years. the Audl· 
taxes? tor-Con\ro!l~r Bslimates.ih8,sat9s tax collect~d, annually, under this measure will 

1m appro,lmately $17 million to $30 million. 
COUNTY COUNSEL'S IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS OF'MI"PiSURE F Proceeds from1his sales tax shBIl be deposUad lnlo the Open Space Special Tax 

. Currently, the Sonoma County AgrlcuUural PJese"NaUon and Open Spac.e Author Accounl and shall be spent only loimpJementthe projects In !he200() E)lpen~ilUTa 
Ity Imposes a114 cant transacUonh and uoomon retail sales in the counly, The' Plan below. The County Auditor shallprepar& and file, annually, wUh lna BOBrd of 
proceeds oflhlstax,which was first imposed in1991,·have baan used \0 purcnase Supervisors reports containing amounts of runds collected and expended and lile 
properlles suCh as Taylor Mountain, Montini Ranch. TO/ay RegIonal Park, and slatusof any project(s} required oraUlhorized to be funded, FiscaloverslgMwill be 
Saddle Mountain. In addition, tax. revenue hm; been used t{l purGhase oonS6lva· pJOvfded by the Soooma C{lunly Open Spare Authority, 
1I0n a3sements lWer thousands af agriculluraland open space acres. 10 pres~Ne Expendilures;openspareill Gommurnty separalors and agricuUural pJOper1les in tho community, 

111e revenues generated by this measure are available solely foropen space elioi·The curlentlalCwiU expire In 201t The p~opoaed ffi08surewould eXfend llle lax an blefor proteclionse! out In the Agricultural PrasBNatlon and Open Spacs200S Ex·
addiliona120 years, The Isxwould continue lobe ooileclaoas itis now,ln the same pendirure Plan, Blld summarized below; 
man~er as slale-Imposed sales-lax. 

1. Communjty Senarators and greenbells are lands that function as open space to
The ffieasUTa.wotdd also re"ise the exislmy Expenditure Plan, wlich go....eros how separate cmos and other cornmunlUes,
Ihe- funds raised by ihe sales1ax: can be spent. Since t~is is aspecial purpose tax, 
monies collectedwill be placed InaspetlJal fund and Gan be spent only for Y1e pur ~ Scenic landJi~~nits and sCl!nic corridols are araaa of high acenlc qusTily In

poses set out jl=l1he maasure and lha: ExpemlUlIrCl Ptan. These purposes include duding uaturallandscapes and b;lckdrops, 

presetvafKln of cornmunilyscparalors and oreenbells {lands Ihat ClI11cUon as open 
 l. Agriculhfraltv productIve lands inrJude working farms and ranches and olher 
spare 10 sepmale cilies and other communilies}i preservaUon of Gcenic land lands used forlhe producUon offoad, fiber, and plant materials anti the raising and 
stapes and torrldof5 lareas (If high sccniG Quality Including nalurallandscapBs maintaining of livestock and fann animals,
'and backdrops); presmvalion of agricullurallyprotfuctive lands (inc1udltlg working 
fanus and ranclles); pmlecUooof biotic habitat areas, {ipftrian corridors and other 4. Bfoqc habilcrl areas, [lDadar. conidorS, and oilier Breeso! biotic: slgnmcan~ In· 
areas Qf biotic significllnce ~ncllldjnlJ areas of freshwaJet end Udall'l'lershes, Illude Ireshwater and lidol marshas, watlands, S]Jecial stalus species locations, 
wetlands. Wlldl11e habItat oonidoJS and rands along creeks l!--I1G sJrsams critical (0 woodlands and IOfes\l;i, Vlildl~e lTabllat cOTiidors a.nd lands along creeks and 
protecting fisheries and water quality}: (liher open spacE!: pmjects {such as urban streams criliGa[ to protecting ns~eltes and walel quality. 
open space and IE/crealion projects w~hin OUlesrinoorporaled Dreas): and support 5, Otner open space projects include urban cpen space and recreation projan's
of operalion and maintenanca of racrealional lands that were purchased in Vll1hln Sonoma County,
aCCfJrdance with the Expenditure Plan (limited 10:,10 percenl of total revenues for 
this purpose). 6, Operation and maintenance of land Il'Icludes Urnlted funding (Dr inmal public. al)

OOSl;>, operatton -and maintenance of recTBatlonallands. pu~hased per thIs Plan, 

This meaSUfS inciLldes the 8uthoriza.tton to Issue IImitad bonds and, from lime to 

The measum reqllires that lhe Counly Auditor prepare annuall'8ports lor tha 
Board of SupelVlsors starmy the amoUnt of money COllected, the amount spent 

Umitod \0 1D% tJftotal revenues. ' 

that year, mid the status of any projects fUnded by thB tax. These mporls would Bonds: 
be public records, In addilion, ilie Sonoma County Open Space Aulhorily would 
provide ifldependenlfiscal oversight overhow the money raised by ,he: tax i5 spent, lime, enler Into lease-purchase agreements.wllh the County's Treasurer.The max:· 
Themaasure 81:,0 aulhorizes the Counly to issue bonds Of enter Into lease·purM imum Indebtedness, including Iss.uance oo5.t, inlerest, and debt structure casls . 
chase agreemenls" to be paid off with the lax revenue. to take advantage of pur· shall llolexooad the 101al amount of proceeds from Ihls sales lax. 
chase opportunities from wilHng saners as tney bec.ame available. Any bonds In accordancBwllh the Election Cot/a, the scope o! t~1I;fiscallmp8ctanalysis. hasIssued would be paid back wllh Ihe proceeds oj Ihe tax. been lirn\\ed to the mensure's sHacl on reNenues and expenditures. 11 does nol ad· 
If two-'ibirds of Ihe volers in l1le County-wIlD vo1e on \his measure vole gyes,Q the dress larger Gounlywide fiscal issues such 9S the ((leaslJre's e1fecl on tha overall 
meaSllJe win pass and the speciBllax "liII be levied. Counlyeconomy, 

,/ Rod Dole 
County Counsel 
STEVEN WOODSIDE 

Sonoma CQunly Audilor-Conlroller-Treasurer-Tax Colleclor 

By: d Kalhleen La"cqU8 
Oepuly GoUnly COllnsel 



-Sonoma County 49-502 9455 

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1

erotondo
Typewritten Text



VOTER'S PAMPHLET 

MEASURES, ANALYSES ANO ARGUMENTS 


(whlchev.r is applicable 10 your ballol) 

Argumenl, in support of, or In opposilion 10, !he proposad laws .ralha opinions of Ihe aulhors, 


ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF MEASURE F 
As Sonoma Cmmly grows, Measure FIsaunique opportunlly 10 protect our quality 
of life now, and for future generations. Measure F"wlll permanently protect lands 
threatened by developmenl Bnd prasolVe water qualUy, livers, slraam&, workIng 
farms and natural areas - wllh no Increase In taxe,;. . 
Measure Fwl1l conllnue klnding lhe Sonnma County Agricultural PreselVaUon and 
Open Space DlslJicl, responsIble for preserving Gver 6B,000 acres of clean waler 
sources, scenic ylstas, wildlife habitat, working farms and vineyards, parl\s and 
lrails .inoolis ,slablishmentby vole,s In 1990. Every dlsl,lcl purchase IssubJecllo 
oommunllyand taxpayer oveltilglrt..- ensuring thai pubic funds are spent wisely 
and efficienlly. Every IBndowneris awilling selleI and emlnen! dcrnafn Is proh[blted. 

Measure Fwill protect opan space, c1eanwaler, famllyfanns and our quaHIy orRfe 
by: protecl1ng lmportant rivers, str9alnS.lake& and groundwater 10 preseNB drink
ing water qualily In our "communllles fOi' luture n.eeds; preserving beaches and 
ooastallands; conserving naluralar"8as and open Spal:8, including those where 
cMdrencan be educated aboulnalur8 andw~dlirQ consaNation;preseIVing work
ing falTJ'ls, ranches, orchards and vineyards; protecting IIsh and Wild[ife habital; 
protecting oak woorlfandG, grasslands and redwood forests to improve air qualUy; 
helping creale and maintain parks In and tlear urban areas; and protecling natlJl"£Il. 
scenlc areas from growlh and developmenL 

Remember, Meas~re F is not a tax iflcrease - it Wlllsimplv conlinua an exIstIng 
tox. Measure f has astricl20-year lime Umn, requires cHizen overnight Bnd fI[lk 

sures tilat81f olqlendiwros are subJ~t 10 independent annool audirs. 

We must 3l:i-novrlo'protecl Sonoma"county's nalural areas, cleM Wall'll, farms. 
Bnd wildlife. The longer-we walt, the more e);penSiV6 it will be 10 protsct what 
Is left. Please join us in voting yes on Measure F. For mora lnformatlon vis.lt 
www.FriendsOfSonornaCounty.org 

sf Uants B. Banedelll 51 Bill Cogbill 

Chairman Ch;JYer-stometla. Farms Sheriff-Comfier 


51 Mary H. Hafqer sf Patrick W. Kflkenny 
Director, Sonoma Land Trust Busilless LaaderlRe-lired Banker 

51 Wanda Tapia 
Chair,latino SeNice Providers 

REBUTTAL TO ARGUMENT IN FAVOR OF MEASURE F 
Opel1 Space. District officials lrumpallhllir "prolec\ion~ of lands. What alert tax
pa.yers ought loasltis what wouldthc: use oflhese lands be noVi, orin 20 or40 
yearshadlheDlstrictnol acquired Iham'lMany people would conclude that mest 
of the acquired lands Vlould be used largel., lhe sama as 1hey are today. Why 
should taxpayers spend-limned resourtes to protect land already protected by 
overlapping regulations lhalllmll1he allowable uses? MallY d these properties 
have no practical·a1ternative uses Irom Ihair proscnt usa, and most are under no 
thmalo1 davelopmsnl The use of S200,OOO,OOO of taxes lorlhese purposes over 
the past 15 years amounts to possibly tile greatest boondoggle in Sonoma 
GDUDIy h~lmy" 

Maintaining the lural character of Sonoma Coun~ Bnd preventing run-on commu
nities flkeolhorareas In Callfomla is alaudable goal. Thegood news iswe already 
havevolerbased utban growth lIoundanesinevery cily excepl Cloverdale, and Ihe 
Ganeraf Plall and o)C.18ting zoning laws have appropriate conlro[s on how all lantls 
In Ibe County can be use<!. 

With all the more pressing naeds for local governments,lel's stop wasting man~y 
protecting that which does not need further protecUng. 

SC»IOMACQUNlYTAXPAYERS' ASSOC. SONOMACOUNTYrAXPAYERS'ASS{lC. 
sf Jack Atkin, PresIdent sl Fred H. Levin, Execulive Diroctor 

~ON(]MA GOUNTYTAXI'AYERS" ASSOC. SONOMACOUlHYTAXPAVERS' ASSOC. 
$1 John E. Abercrombie, Treasurer sI Timothy J. Hannan 

ARGUMENT AGAINST MEASURE F 
The measure to rEinElW the open Space DIstrict and associated tax does not de· 
se(V6 voters' support. Over the past 15 years the Open Space Dlelrlcl ha~ largely 
wasted over $200 million and achIeved little measurable benefils. for Sonoma 
Counly resldenta_ 

lei's be clear; there;s no objacUoo to malnlafnlng landforagricul\urtl, open space, 
green behs orfor recreation. The point is1hal tBxpayers don't haveto buy the land 
or easements on "\he land to achieve lhasa worthy goals. ClUes end \he County 
already have many lools at their dIsposal to accompJIsh \hese objectlYfts. Those 
10016 include-the General Plan, "Zoning laws'U,at specify haw la.nd wllh ysrlous 
zoning <:iaQslficatlons can be used, In addillone.very cllyln Sonoma County except 
Cloverdale has voler pas"I;ed urban growth boundartesthat llrnftthe ablllty of those " 
C';ities to expand Ulban davelopment outside Ihose bmmdaries, 

We ask, hl)W does purcbase of an agrlcuilural ea&erI'H~nt make oonse for efarm 
thai Is designated for agUcunurro use in fue general plan. Is zoned only foragricul- " 
ture and Is far outside any o[ty's urban grnwth boundary? boes buYing forestland 
that [s already des[gnaled a sCfln[e IesOllIce In the Ganeral Plan and for which 
thare Is no pradical ather use and no concelvabtathrsetenBd dovalopmentrepte
sent an efficIent use oj limaad public resources? " 

Fulure gl'lneHllions deserve the Tight iQ<leclde for themselves, by majority rule. the 

besl use of the l-ands in Sonoma County. Acquisition orlandandlesltiolNe ease· 

mel1\.S has the undemocratic effect of allowing IOOay's clUzens. to make land use 

declslons for all fulure generations. 

To spend taxpayerresOl.lrces an Upmtccl1ng" land that does not nead protacling is 

sImply awaste. Wllhalltlle real needs of gOlJemma~' for funds. we co not have-the 

lllxmy afwasUng any funds while real needs go llnmel . 


SONOMA COUNTY TAXPAYERS' ASscc. SONo}MCOUHIYTmA'fERS' ASSOf;. 
sl JaCK Aikin. Presidant sf Fred H. lc.vin. Exee;uliva DIrector 

SONOMA COU!-nY TAXPAYERS' ASSOC" SONOMACOUNlYTAl<PAYERS"I\SSOC. 
"sf John £. Abercrombie. Treasurer 51 Timothy J. Hannan. Vice President 

REBUTIAL TO ARGUMENT AGAINST MEASURE F 
U's unfonunale fuatlhe TaxpayeiS A!isociatiDD Is misleadIng vol.ers regatding Mea·_ 
sure F and the many benefits the Sonoma County Agrtcullural pre.seIVaion and 
Open Space Dislflct has broughl to Sonoma County. Please review the fads for 
yourself an independent citlzen panel (The Gro.nd Jury of Sonoma County) ,ecenl1y 
reviewed the District's preservation plan for criHcal natural areas and found: ~1lle 
pla.n is well founded and an excellent means of setel:tillg polenUaiacquisjUons.." 

Unl~e zoning, general plan IIpdat-Bs and urban growth bOundaries 1hat can be 
changed by elected omc/als, the Dlslrict's easements "andacquislOOns permanenlly " 
proleclwater sources, open space and farmland frorn.poo~y"plan!fed development 
The Di5trict nas permanllnlly preserved over 69.000 acres of clean waler sources, 
.scenic vistas, wlldlile habitat, wmldng farms, parlcs and lfal1s since its eslabllshmenl 
by volers m1990 -land thai olhelWlsB mighthave bean lost to dBveTopmenL More 
fr<lm the Grand Jury's review: ~•.. lW{] are} saUsfied that... the funds which are avaU
able 10 the DIslrlct are beIng used In an effective matlner to preserve l1iij scenIc 
beauty and the agricultural heritage; of Sonoma Coun\y.~ 

Remember, Measure Flias aslrict 20 year time limit, will p-BrmanenUy protect landS. 
threatened b1 develDpment and preserve water quafity, rivers, .streams, working 
farms and natural areas-with no increase in taxes. Measure Fincludes communily 
ana ta)(payer oveJ5ighl an~ independent annual audits otal\ ellpendilures to ensure 
lhat fNery dO~!lr Is spent wisely. Please joIn Uf> along wllh bUsltlf!:55, environmenlal, 
agricullural, labor and oommunUy organizaUons in supportinll Measure f. 

sf Karen Collins, Chair sf Carol Kneis 
County Parks Commission Pelaluma Chamber President 

~I Saralee McClelland Kunde 81 Peler V. L~vequa. Pasl Presldent 
Farmer-Grape Grower Matlrone Audubon 

sf Steve Rabinowilsn 
Banta Rosa CouncilmemberlSRJC Instructor 

Sonoma county 4{l-503 9455 

http:www.FriendsOfSonornaCounty.org


VOTER'S PAMPHLET 

MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 


(whichever Is applicable !o your ballol) 

Argumenls in suppM 01, or in opposition lo,the proposed laws are Ihe opinions of IhB aulhors• 


FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F .	the 2006 Expenditure Plan conslilules the statement of lhe specific purposes far 
which the r~venue{lenerated by \hill Ordinance may be expended, (2) the .expendl

THE SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE, CLEAN WI\TER AND tUfe of lhe revenue generaled by !his Ordinance- shan be restricled to Ihe purposes 
. FARMLAND PROTECTION MEASURE sleted in E:<hibit -A,M {3} Ihe revenua generated by this Ordinance shall be dopos. 

Ited Into th."Open Space Sp"lal T" Ao<ounl," and (4) the County Auditor shallORDINANCE·No. ~snR·Of THE COUNTY OF SONOMA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
pr-epareand me wilh tbe Board of Supervisors reports meeting tha requirements-ofEXTfNDINGTHE IMPOSITION OF ATRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX TO BE Go,ernment Code §50075.3. Tho Sonoma County Open Space Aulhonly shallADMINISTERED BVTIlE STATE BOARD OF EQUAUZATION 
provide specified fiscal oversighl as providad in an agreement between the-County 

Seclloo 1.TITLE. This Ordinance shall be knllwp aslhe Sonoma County Open Bnd the Distrlcl 
Space, Clean Walar and Farmlsnd Prolec1ion Measure, The County of Sonoma, 

8oollon5. CONTRACT WITH STATE. Prlortothe Operative Date, the.County .herol'alle, shall ba called "County.' This Ordinance ,hall bo 'pplicabl,ln m. shell conlmQt with Ihe Siale Board 01 Equalization to pedoern all function. IncidentIncorporat,d and unlncorporaled 10rrllo1)' of the Counly: 
to Ihe administration and oparaUonoflhls Iransacl!onsand use tax OrdInance; pro· 

Seelion 2. EFFECTIVE DATE: OPERATIONAL DATES: ADMINISTRATIOI{ vlded, Ih.tllth, County shallnol have conlracted with th.SIaIa ftoard ofEqu,llza
t(on pdorto the Opera1Jve Dale, ilshan naverthe-tess sO"Cllnlract and In suCh acaliaA.This Ordinance -shell became elfecllve upon Its approval by a 
the operattve date shallbe l/1e nrst day oj th~ 11rsl calendar quarlerfonowlng the.two-thirds majority of Ibe eleetOis vlltlng on Ihe measure. execution oj such acontract. . ..B.llis Ordinance shan bioomeopamliva on April 1. 21l1!; provided, how

Section 6. TRANSACTIONS TAX BATE. For"" prMlage 01 ,elling langibl,ever, thallhe Sonoma County AgriC\lllural Preservalion &Open Space 20~S Ex
pafwnal pjopeJ1y at relall, a tax. is heJeby imposed" upon allrelaUars Inine incorpo·penditure Plan ("the 2006 ExpEnjdilure Planll

). attached hereto as Exhibit -A,R 
rated and unincorporated lerritory of the County at Iha rate oJ 0119 quarter.of oneshall become.opeJillive on the flffecnve date of this Oldinance, . 
per cent {Q,25%} {)I lha gross receipts of. any retailer from the sale of aU tangible 

C. The. existing cOI;tracl between lhe Sonoma County AgriGunurnl Preser personal PJoperty sold at relall in spid territory on and affer the operalive date of 

"alion &OpBn Space Districlandthe: SCm.omaCounty Open Space Aulhmily shaH 
 this Ordinance, 

remain In effect, sublect to amendments, through March 31 ,2011, 


. Section 7, PLACE OF SALE. For Ihe purposes of this OrdInance, all rat1!ilsaleB 
D. Priorto April 1. 2011, the District arid tha County sha1l enter into aCl)n areoonsummeted al the place ofllusinessofthe rata1\erunlass lha1anglble peffiClnai 

trael for lile'administralion"of 1he 2006·Exp8nd~ure Plan. That Cllnlract-shall be . properl.~' sold Is.delivered by the retaUer or hIs ag,ent to an out-of-Slata deotination 
GOme oparafiveon the expirauon oflhecurrenl contract belween the Authoritv and or to aoomrnon carrlerfor dell\oery to an oUI-of-siale destination.The gross re<Xllpts 
the District and shilH provltl6 for 'fue- administration of the 2006 E"Xpenditure Plan by from such sales shalllnGluda dellvecy charges, when such charges are subject to 
the District -and the fundIng of Ihe Districts -annual budgets. by !he County fr{)m Iha stQlesales and use: lax, regardlessoflhe place lowhlchdellvery Is made. 101M 

I funds available In !he Open Space Special Tax ACC{)un1. event aretailer has no parrnanenlplaoo of bUSiness In the Staie or has more lhnn 
ane place of bUSiness. the place Ot places at whlGh the ralall sales are consum, Section a. PURPOSE. This. Ordinance. is adopled to achieve the folir;lwinQ. 
mated shan be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed andamong oIher pUipDSeS. and iftreCis that1hc provmions haTenl be Interpreled In ord6l' . 
adopted by the State Board of Equalization,to accomplish !hOliO purposes: 

Secllon8. USE TAX RATE. An excise laK is hereby imposed on the storage,. .A. To extend the Imposfllon of arE:lalilmml1mliDnS and USB tax in accor· 
use or other consumption in "the Gounly of tangible personal property purchased-danoowilh Uta provisions oJPl)rt1.6 (commencingwllh Sec~on7251) {If Division 2 
(ram any ralallsT on and after Ihe operalive date oflhis Ordinance for slorage, useof ilia Revenue and Taxation Ctlde and SeCllon 7285.6 of Pari 1.7 of Dl'Jision 2' 
Of other consumpUoo 1n said terrilolY al !he rata of Ilne quarler of .one percentwhichlluthonz.es the Coun\yto adopl1hlslax Ordinance Which shall be opeTative ir 
(O.25%) of tna: sales price of too plOperiy. 1he sales price shaH include delivery213 of lhe -electors voting on the measurevote 10 appmvQ the imposilian (If Ihe lax 
charges when such. cl"rarge{i are subjectto slate sales or use tax regardless of theat an eleatlon called forthal purpose. placa to which deUvruy Is made. 


a To adopt tne eXlenslmt of arelailtransBclions and usa tax Ordinance 

Soclion S. ADOPTION OF PROVISIONS OF STATE LAW. Except as olherthat incDrpmates provisions idenlieallo those of Ihe Sales Bnd Use Tax Law of the 

wise prollided in this Oldinance and except insofar as Ihay are I"conslstent l,vllhSlate of Califomla insofar as those provisions are nol inconsislent with the require-
the pro\'islons of Part1,6 oiOlvlsloo 2altha Re\'enue andTaxal.lol1~de, all oflh.ements andlimilations conlainedin Par11.6of Division 201 the Revenue andTax8
provisions of Pari 1{commerrcingwilh SectiDn 6001) af Division 2of lhe ReV6I1Uation Code and to auUl0rize Ute: Issuance of limited tax bonds 10 finance the 
and Tm:allon Code are hereby adopted ~nd made a part. of this Ordinance as'pUJ~a&e5 of open space lands thai are c(lnsisumt with .\his·Ordinance. 
though fully s.aiforth hereIn, 

C. ToMoplilie extension of arelBlltransacUons- Rnduse lalC Ordinance 
SacHon 10. LIMITATIONS ON ADOPTION OF STATE LAW AND COLL£CTIONth.at imposes a1m: and provIdes ameasure Ihererorlhai can be adminlslered and 

OF USE TAXES. In adopIIng Ule provisIons 01 Prllt 1ofDivisiol\2 olllie Revenueconecled by the State B08(d of Equalizallon In amanner that adapts liself as fully and laxallon Code: ' as p(sdicablelo. andraq,uireslheleas( possible ifavlaUon from, the elCIsting slal.u· 
tcty and administrative procedures followed by Ihe Siale Boatd of Equalization In A, Wherever the Stale 01 California is named or referred to as the la~ng 
administering and collecling the Call1omia Stete Sales and USII Taxes. agency, the nameaf this CouJllysnallbe subS\ltuted Iherefor. HlJv,lever, the subs\1. 

tuUon aha{{ not be made- when:O. To adopl the extension of a relail transactions ami \lS8 tax Ordinance 

thBt can be adminisleroo in amannerlhat will be, 10 Ihe yrealast degree possible, 
 1< The-word"State" is used as apar1-oflhe tllle ofthe S1ate·Conlrollcr, 
consistent W11h the provisioJl~ofPart 1.6orDlvision 2ofIhe Revenue and TaxaUon Slate Treasurer. State Board o{ O:Inlrol, state Board or Equalization, State Trea
COde. minimize tho cost of collecting 1he transactions and use 1ID;es, and allhe sury, or the Constitution of the Siale of CalifornIa; 

same time, minimize tile burden of It'OOTd J;eaping upon persons subjacllo taxaflOn 


2. The resulI oltha! .sUbsmUUOl1 would reqUlre aclion 10 be laken by·oruiKIer Ihe pro....lsioJ\s oJibis Ordinanca. 
agaInst thIs County or any agenc~, <lffic.er. OJ employee thareof ralhar than by or 

E.To aulhOllze the issuance Dfbonds and the undertaking oj lease-purchase against the Stale Board of Equalization, in performIng the funotion6 incidont101ha 
finsilcing obligations toffnance!he acquisitions specified in ExhKlii dA.~ administration or opemtlon 01 U~S OJ(\ll'lance. 

0 ••" •• ' n'~,PL'N' I ,. flRCAI 
~ blth. sof 	 , ti) 

CONT. NEXT PAGE 

Sonoma County 	 49·504 9455 

http:lffic.er
http:whichlluthonz.es
http:quarter.of


VOTER'S PAMPHLET 

MEASURES, ANALYSES AND ARGUMENTS 


(whichever Is applicable to your ballot) 

Argumenls In support of, or In opposition to, tllepropo,ed law, are tha oplnto", of the aulhors, 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F, CaNT. 
3. In those secllons, Including, bul not nllcBssarny Ilmlled to secltons 

referring Iothe exlerlorboundatlesof the Siale of California, whale ina (asultal the 
subsiliulion woulde. to: 

a. Pro;ide an e)l:emptl<ln from Ihis lax wllh respecl \0 certain.sales, 
storage. use or other consumption of tangible personal propetlywhich would 1101 
othelVlise bE) eKempllrom this lax whlla such sales, storage, usa or other oon
sumption remainsubjecl totax by the State under the provisions of Part 1of Divi· 
sian 2of the Ravenue and Taxatlon Code, or, 

b. Impose this tax with Mspect to cerlaln salas, storage, use or 
olheroollsumplion of (anglble personal property which would not be subjecllo1ax 
by the stale under the safd provtslon of Ibat code. 

4. In Sections 6701, 6702 (excep1 in the last sentence there00, 6711, 
6715, 6731, 6791 or 6828 of the Re~enue and TtlxaUot1 Code. 

B. The word "County~ shall be subslilulcd for the word ~State~ In tha 
plirBse ~retaU6ren9aged in. business in Ihls Slale" In SecUa~ 1l~03 and llllh&-defin\
tlon of Ihsl pIYas& i1 Secllon 6203. 

Section 11. PERMIT NOT"REQUIRED, Ifaseller'S permU-has been issued to a 
«'IIaller under Section 6067 of the Revenue and Taxation CDde, an addifional 
transactor's permit shall not be required by this Ordinance. 

Section 12. EXEMPTIONS ANa EXCLUSIONS. 
.. -: - ··---A-Ther!}shall-ba excluded hom!he measure of Ihe tran~.actlO)1S.1ax. and 

the use tax the amount of any sales tall: or us·e tax imposed by the Sla\e of 
Calirornia or byany<:ity. city and county. or oounty pursuant 10 Ihe BradleyoBurns 
Unirorm Local Sales and Use Tax law or tl1-e amount 01 any 6late-adminislered 
transactions. or use tax. 

a. TIlertl ore exompled imm the oompulat[on ofthe tlmonnl of tral"tSAl:liool> 
1ax thE! groSs receipts from: • 

. 1. Sales of tangible personiil property, other than fuel or pelro{eum 
produCls, to opamton. of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside !he 
County in which tlle'sale is made and direclly lind ~xc!usively in the usa of GUch air
craft as commcn capillTS of persons orpropartyunder the authority of tha laws of 
Ihis Slate.lhEt Uniled Siales." or DRY foreigo govcmmenl. 

2. Sales nfpooperlylo be usedoulslde Ihe County whIch Isshippod Loa 
poinloutsidlt the CDunty, pUtsuanlfo lIle contract ofsala. by delivarytn 5uch paint 
bythe relailerorhisagenl, (Jf by delivery bythe retatlerto acarrier for shipmentlo8 
consignee at such poinl.forthe purposes ofthis paraglaph, de]very {o -a llointout
side !he County shall ~esalisfiad: 

a.With MspeC:1 tQvehfcies (o\herlhan commercialvellfcles) subfeat 
IOl'lgislralIcn pursuant tt)Chaptor 1(commencingwilh Sec.lion40aO) of Division 3 
althaVehicle Code, alrcran licensed incompliance with Section 21411oflhe Pub
lic Unlllies Code, and undocumllnled vessels registered under Dtvlsf.on 3.5 (com
mem:ing wIth Seclion 984(})of Ihe Vehicle Code by reg[slralion to an oUI-of-Caunty 
addressandbyadectBratlan under peilellyof perjury. Signed by the buyer, stal1ng 
tbalsuch address is, In [act, his or hsr principal place of resIdence: Bnt! 

. b. With respecl10 commercial vehicles, by registralion to a place of 
business out-of-Counly and declaralion under penalf!1 Df perjury, signed by the 
buyer,lhal the vehicle wID be operated rrom Ihat address. 

3. The sale at tangible personaipJOpefty If the seller Is obligated to fur~ 
nlshlhe properly fora fixed price pursuanl toa contract entered into prior to the op
amllve date of 1I1is Ordinance. 

4. A lease of tangible pers.onal property which is acontinuing sale of 
such PIOperty, for any period of 111110 for which Ihe lessor is obllgaled to !casn !he 
property (or an amDunt fixed by Iha lease pritT to \he operative dale of 1his.Ordi· 
oonoo. 

suenl 10 acontract {IT laasft for any period of 11me ror Which any party to tna contra!:l 
or lease has the unconditional rlghllo \ermlnals tha oonlract or lease upon noUoo, 
whether or not such righlls exercised. 

C. Thete are e)l;empted from the use lax Imposed by this Ordinance, the 
storage. US" or olher ",nGUmption In Ihls COunty oltanglbt, parson,1 property: 

·1. The gross receipts from the sale of"whlch have been subject 10 a 
transacllons lai{ under any slate-administered Iransaclions ~nd use tax Oidl
nance. 

2. Olhar-than fuel OJ pelrolt~um producls purchaBedbyoparatOlsof aIr
craft sndusedorcomiumed bysuc;hoperatoTs d!rect~ and excluslve[y [n Iheuseof 
8uch allcran as COlTUilon carriers of persons or PrQperty for hire or compensation 
UtldeTB certir.ca!e ofpublic conveniente end necessity I~ued pursuanttothelaWB 
of IhisSlete.lhe United Slates, oranyforelgngovemment. ThIs examptionisin ad
dUron lathe exemptions provided InSecllons 6366 and B366.1.of thaRavenua and 
Taxation Code of the Slate of Ctliifl'lTnla. 

3.lf the jlllrchaser Is obl~ated to purchaselhe property tor a fixed prlce 

pUISlJant to a conlrac~ entered Inlo prior to Ihe ~perallve dale of.Uis Ordinance. 


4. Utho pOEsesslon of, tlr the exercise of any right or JKlwer over, the 
langillle personal property arises undBIClle8Be which is aconUnulng purchase oj 
·Sl!Ch property for allY period of lime fnrwhlcl1. Un,1 lessee Is obligated to lease !he 
property for an amount fl:<ed by a lease prior to !he Ilperativa dale of this 
Qrdinam;e. 

5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this seclion. slor

age, use, or c)tl1.ercol1sUTf'lpllon, or·prissll-sSicn of. or e)(ercise-ofanyrtghtorpower 

Oller, tangible peTsonal property shall be deemed not to be obDgated pursuant to a 

con\.raclor lease ror Bny period of Ume forwhkh any party to the OOTltract orlease 

has the ullconditional rIght to lermlnata the contract Dfiease upon nollce. whether 

or not such right Isexerclsad. 


6. Except as provided in subparagrBpfi (7). B retallar engaget\ In busl~ 
. nass irlthe Coonty shall nat be required to colle~ use lax from the purchaser or 

tangible "personal proPlJrty, unless the retailer ships o~dllllvers \he property in!o the 
County Ot participates within the County in making the sale o! the pToperty. inl:lud
lng, butnotlimltad to, solidling or receivIng the order, either dIrectly or Indirectly, at 
9 place of bus.ine8~ or tile releier in the County or throlJgn any representatIve, 
agent. canvasser, sollcilor, subsIdiary, or person In the County under the authority 
Qf·the 16teller. 

1. ~Arelaiter engaged in business In the County" -e.nal1also include any . 
re.tailer of lIny of Ihe following: vehicles subjlKit to regislra!ioTllluri;uanl to Chaple[ 
1 (corrummcil1g wilh Section 4000) of Division 2. of thftVeblc!e Code, airCl'aft li· 
censed in cori'lp~ance V~lh Secnon 21411 of the Public Umilies Code, or undocu
mented vessels registered ullder Division 3.6 {oommenclng with 6ac\1on 9840}of 
the Vehicle Code. Thai retailer ~ha\l be required to collect use tex from any pur
cllaserwho I6gislels ollicenses thevehlcte, vessel, or aircmft at an address in !he 
County. 

O. Any person subject to use tax ooder this Ordinance may meditagainst 
thaI tax any transacl\ons ta:< or reImbursement for transactions tax paid to a 
County imposing, orrelailerliablefora transactions tax pOTSuanllo Part 1.6ofDM
5ion 2of1he Revenue an~ Taxation Codewilh resJl6Cllolhesate lothe pernon of 
Ihe property the slorage., Ulie or olner Gonsumplion ofwhlch is subject to the use. 
tax. 

.~Il~1i~1I \'1 '~lItlo effenUvedate • 
of this Ordinance.lo Part1 of the Revenue a.~a_1 ftx~\I?n Code relaling 
to salas and use laXflS and whicb are n01 inconsistentwllh Part 1.6 and PBtl1.7 of 
DiYiskm 20flhe Rsvenue andTa'i:aUon Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and 
Pari. 1.7 (II DIvision 2of the Revenue 8r1.d IBxBtfon Code. shaU 8utomatlr:aUy be
rome a pari of this Ordinance, pro\lided however, that no such amendment shElll 
·operale 50 as to affect the rate 01 tax imposed by this Ordinance. 

S. For li1e purposes or subparagraphs {3} and (4) of lilis sectlon, Ine 
saleorleaseoflangiblepersonel pwpmiy shall be deemed not lote oblillaled pur-

CaNT. NEXT PAGE 

SOJlomaCoul\ty 9455 

http:Ordinance.lo
http:B366.1.of
http:Dtvlsf.on


VOTER'S PAMPHLET 

MEASURES, ANALYSES ANI) ARGUMENTS 


(whlcheva, 16 applicable to your ballot) 

Arguments in suppa~ of, ar In opposillon to, the proposed laws are the opinions of the au!hors. 


FULL TEXT OF MEASUREF, CONT. 
Section 14. 'ENJOINING COLLEGTIDft FORBIDDEN. No inju.cllon or writ of 

mandala or olher legal or equitable process shall Issue in Bny suit, aellon or pro
ceeding in any court against the Slate Ol tha Cuuntv. Qr against any offlClar Qf Iha 
Siale or Ihe County. to prevent or enjoin the collscUon under Ihis Ordinance, aT 
Par11.6 of Division 2of lila Revenue and Taxalion Code, of any lax or :any amount 
oftax required to be collecled., 

~!::~~~ ~~~IImI:led~I~"~~:~=
bylhl, Coumy m.y, (rom lim.1h 

laase-purcbase agreemenls with l1\a County's Treesurar and the i rOT Ihe 
purpose of assisting in Ihe purchase of propar\ios anUcipalad by Exhibit kA," 

SocHon 16. SEVERA8111IY.1f any prOvision otthis OrdinancBor Ihe applica
tlol\ thereoflo any person or -cirC!Jrnslance is. held invalid, the remainder of tha Or
dinance and the appli~llon of such provision 10 ollier persons or circumstances 
shall noL be affected thereby. I 

Seclion 17. EFFECTIVE DATE.1l11s Ordinance relates to the levying and col· 
leeUng oftl Counlytransactions and use lax and shall take effect fmmedialaly upon . 
apprmla1 or Ihe electorate. 

s"n.. lB. TERMINATION DA1E. The au~orily 10 levy I,. lax Imposed by 

this Ordinance shall e)(plre on March-31, 2031. 


. ,1'A5SE[),AN[)AOOEJED..by.Jh.. B<lar~ of "uP,IVi.'""oJ tho eQunl)' of 
Sonoma, Stale of California, on July 111,21l1l6, by !he followlng vole: . 

SUPERVISORS: 
Brown:_ Kerns:_ Smilh:_ Rellly:_ Kelley:_ 


Aye;;:. L Noes:__ Abstain:_ Absent:.............. 


SO ORDERED. 

J3y: sl Paull. KeUey 
Chairman, Boald <If SuperilsllIs 
CQunty of Sonoma, State of Calif<lrnla 

ATTEST: 

By. sl Ee\le T. Lewis 
County Clerk aod EX-ilf1iclo ClelK of the 
Board OfS\lPCNisOls of said County 

FULL TEXT OF MEASURE F, CONT. 

EXHIBIT A 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE 2006 EXPENDllURE PLAN 

The purpose of Ihis sxpandnureo plan is to Implement the SonDma County 
General Plan and the general plans or the County's lncorporated cltles by 
preserving 8griculluralland use and open space. This purposewiU be aooompllshed 
primarily through the purcha5eof developmenllfghts from wlUlng seners In araBS of 
the County which are designaled in the County end cmas' Genersl Plan open 
6psCe elements and may include 1he purchase of fea·inlerests. for outdoor pIJblio 
recreatIon wb.ere !he public use would not be lncono[stenl with the open space 
designations listed below. 

The open space designations eUgi'ole'for protectlon under this expendltllre 
plan Include community separators, greenbells, scenic tandscape unit~ IiCenlci'· 
corridors, agriculluraU1 productive lands, bloUc hab!tat areas, riparian corridors 
and other araas of biotic slgnlRcance, and olher open space projects. 

1.' Community sooaratorfi lInd greenbelts ara lands that funclion as 
open spBcelo separate c1l1es and ol~erOOmmut1l11esand protect eJly and C<Jmmu
nily ldentity by prOVIding visual relief from conllnuous urbanization. These lands 
are fr13quently subject to development pressures, snd tnerefore, have bean ldenU
fled as priority siles for acquisition 10 prevent urban spTaVii; tD re1aln 1he rural BI1~ 
open character of the county and to prBserve agriCUltural uses. . 

.2. Scenic landscapeul'Ilts and scenic corridors are areas ofhigh scenic 

qllality IncJuding nalurallandscapesand backdrops that provide visual reMer from 

urban densrt1~s ani! maintain the open nature of iha CouniY. 


3. Aqricultural1v productive lantls tnclude- \vorking fanns Bnd ranchlls 

and otiler lands used for tllI~ production of food, fiber, and plant materials and iliA 

raising find maintaining of live-slor.k and farm ammBls. 


4. Biotic habltal areas, riparian corridOrs, and oUler areas of biotic stg
nificance lnclu6e.freshwater and tidal marshes, wetlands, special status species 
locaUons, woodlands and forests, wild~fe habi'latoorrioors and lands along (:reeks 
and.s.\reams crilicalto protecting fisherles andwaler qualily-. The~ij sensitive natu
ral areas require proteclion. resloral(011, and resoucGe management, and include . 
Ihe Petaluma River, Laguna de- Santa Rosa, RUSSIan River, Sonoma Creek and· 
San Pablo- Baylands. 

6. Olhor open space projects Include. but are nol limited.ta, urban-open 
spacs and recreation ptojeCls withirt and nFlar Ineorporated araBS and other urban
ized·ereas 01 Sonoma County. Funds.lorlhese projects shall be &IJ8l!able tD clUes, 
the Coun\y and other entilles lhrough amatching grant prCi:lram, wilh preference 
gNen to atquis\lion and development projects that lb'k comrrlUnlfi6s;Examples of 
these prole~s Include creek reslom1ion and nnhancement, such as aloll9 the 
Peleluma Riller. Santa. Rosa Creek, and Laguna 00 Santa Rosa, trails, a\hletic 
fields, and uTban graenspaoo. 

6. OQeratIDIl and marntenanooof land Includes limnad rumflY1g for tnLUal 
publiG access, operalion and mainlene.l'Ice of reCJeatlonBIIBnd5 purchased tn aD
cordance with tllis Plan. No·more:lhan 10 percent of tolalreveoues generated O'ler 
the life oflhe Measure shall be madeavailabla foroperatlon and malmenBI'lGe-pur
poses.. 

Sonoma County 49-5Q6 9455 

http:limited.ta
http:SEVERA8111IY.1f


 

 

 

 Revenue and Expenditures 

Purpose of Table 1: Review overall scope of major District revenues . 

Table 1 -  Summary of major revenues since Inception to June 30, 2013. 

Table 2 - Measure F November 1, 2006 to June 30, 2013 10% 90% 100% 

Sales Tax Revenue Since Inception $328,499,000
 
Bond Proceeds $84,366,000
 

Purpose of Table 2: Present breakout of O&M expenditures to date. 

Sales Tax Revenue 
BondProceeds 
Major Revenue from Measure F through 6/30/13 

Salaries & Benefits 
Services & Supplies 
Transfer to Stewardship Reserve 
Transfer to O&M reserve 
Debt Service 
Capital expenditures (land and improvements)* 
Total expenditures from Measure F through June 30, 2013 

Net expenditures 

Per Internal Audit 

$11,865,300 $106,787,700 $118,653,000 
84,366,000 84,366,000 

11,865,300 191,153,700 203,019,000 

1,863,000 15,108,000 16,971,000 
3,551,000 12,907,000 16,458,000 

1,600,000 1,600,000 
200,000 200,000 

27,500,000 27,500,000 
5,201,000 101,605,000 106,806,000 

10,615,000 158,920,000 169,535,000 

$1,250,300 $32,233,700 $33,484,000 

*Reflects recommendation #1 including capital expenditures as eligible O&M expense from inception of Measure 

Purpose of Table 3: Show long term forecast including O&M allocation and estimate amount available for future 
acquisitions. 

Table 3 - Forecasts July 1, 2013 thru March 31, 2031 

Fund balance at June 30, 2013 

Estimated Sales Tax revenue (per District long-term forecast) 

Salaries and Benefits (per District long-term forecast)
 
Services & Supplies (per District long-term forecast)
 
Transfer to Stewardship Reserve (meets goal of $32M by end of measure)
 
Debt Service (per debt service schedule)
 
Total forecast expenditures before acquisitions and O&M
 

Transfer 10% to O&M reserve
 

Forecasted Available for  Acquisitions through March  2031
 

$82,496,000
 

409,940,000
 

87,028,000 
78,026,000 
21,331,000 

135,120,000 
321,505,000
 

40,994,000
 

$129,937,000


erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2

erotondo
Typewritten Text



  
 
  
 

      
 

    

     
       

 

                  

  

       

 

      

   

 
  

  

  

 
 

 
 

 
  

  

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
    

   
   

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

   
  

 
  

  
   

 
    

   
 

  

  
   

  

          
            
      

           
                

               
             

              
              

                
 

        
  

 Attachment 3 

Balancing Multiple Objectives 
Example: Taylor Mountain Regional Park and Open Space Preserve

The District balances multiple objectives program-wide while maximizing benefit on 
individual properties. Taylor Mountain Regional Park and Open Space Preserve 
illustrates the District's multiple benefit strategy. 

Although originally designated as Greenbelt properties, the five acquisitions the District 
united over the span of a decade to form Taylor Mountain Regional Park and Open Space 
Preserve achieve key objectives in all four acquisition plan categories.The scenic open land of 
Taylor Mountain not only provides buffering between two cities, its grasslands are sought 
after by livestock ranchers for raising beef cattle, its wetlands are habitat for endangered 
species, its oak woodlands support numerous birds and wildlife, it is an outdoor laboratory 
for school children, and it is a place where Sonoma County residents go to experience nature 
and exercise. 

City of
Santa Rosa

City of 
Santa Rosa 

Taylor Mountain 

Growth 

Boundary 

Urban 

Taylor Mountain 
Regional Park and 

Open Space Preserve 

At a Glance: County Character Leased Grazing Initial Improvements 
Land purchase prevented Supports ag producers Parking, signage, and a 
development on Santa and benefits grasslands moderately-strenuous 
Rosa's scenic backdrop trail leads to stunning 

Urban-edge Preserve 
Protects voter-approved 
Urban Growth Boundary 

Adjacent Privately-
held Conservation 
Easement 

Intact Coastal 
Oak Woodlands 
Supports rich 
wildlife diversity 

Grade School 
Environmental 

Interim Access 
Permit Program 
Allowed responsible public 
access during planning 
phase of the project 

vista 

Provides a buffer for 
users and wildlife 

Education 
The preserve hosts nearby 

New Park and 
Preserve 

Seasonal Wetlands 
Habitat for endangered 
red-legged frog 

schools participating in a 
District-sponsored, nature-
based program 

Transferred ownership to 
Regional Parks and opened 
to the public 



  

  
  
  
  

  
 

Attachment 4.  Completed Land Acquisitions by Acquisition Plan Category 

Primary Acquisition Plan Category* 
District 

Expenditure 
Number of 

Projects Acres Cost per Acre 
Farms & Ranches $ 43,301,000 39 22630 1,913 $ 
Greenbelts & Scenic Hillsides $ 79,572,000 51 10760 7,395 $ 
Water Wildlife and Natural Areas $ 62,157,000 41 57990 1,072 $ 
Recreation & Education $ 87,384,000 38 14450 6,047 $ 
Additional Acquisitions** 
Matching Grants $ 20,744,000 25 390 53,190 $ 
Total $ 293,158,000 193 106220 

*Note that over half of the acquisitions meet at least three of the four Acquisition Plan categories. 
**Matching Grants are considered separately from the four categories. 

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4

erotondo
Typewritten Text



TilE WITHIN INSTRUMENT IS A 

CORRECT COpy OF THE ORIGINAL 

ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE. 


ATTEST: ~J-- 'Sl.d-B'i:>7 

ROBERT DctS,CJ;;i(Of Soard 01 DirecWS 

of the Sonoma County Agricullurat PreseNat,on 
 #43 
and Open Space District Resolution No: 07-0666 
BycJL~

DEPUCLERK 
Dated: Aligns t 7, 2007 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR BUDGETING THE DISTRICT'S OPERATIONS 
AND MAINTENANCE FUNDS 

BE IT RESOLVED that this Board of Directms hereby finds, determines, declares 
and orders as follows: 

1. Sales Tax Extension. On November 7,2006 the voters of the County of Sonoma 
approved Measure F extending the sales tax for open space, currently being levied by the 
Sonoma County Open Space Authority, ftom 2011 to 2031. 

2. Operations and Maintenance Funding. Measure F also amended the Authmity's 
Expenditure Plan to allow expenditures by the District for operation and maintenance of 
open space properties providing that the expenditures did not exceed ten percent of the sales 
tax revenue received from November 8, 2006 through March 31, 2031. 

3. General Manager's Ruommendation. After consulting with the County's Auditor and 
the County's Counsel, the General Manager has made certain recommendations to this 
Board on a proposed policy fm annually budgeting and accounting for maintenance and 
operations appropriations expenditures. The proposed policy has been found by the 
Sonoma CO\Jnty Open Space Authority to be consistent with the 2006 Expenditure Plan. 
The General Manager's recommendation is contained in her letter dated July 2,2007 and 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A." 

4. ApprovaL The General Manager's recommendation as set forth in Exhibit "A" is 
approved and the General Manager is directed to periodically review the policy and 

recommend any needed changes arising from changed circumstances. 


Directors: 

Kerns: Smith: Reilly:__ Kelley:_. _ Brown: 


Ayes:_5_ Noes:__. Absent: Abstain:__ 

SO ORDERED 

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5



·. 

County of Sonoma 
Clerk of the Board Use Only 

~~~2/~1
Agenda Item 

Agenda Item No:

#3 
Summary Report 

Department: SC AGRICULTUR....L PRESERVATION 1< (It) 4/5 Vote 
OPEN SPACE DISTRICT Required 

Contact: Phone: Board Date: Deadline for Board 
Andrea Mackenzie 565-7360 August 7,2007 Action, 

Agenda Short Title: Operation and Maintenance Budget Polic), 

REQUESTED BOARD ACTION: Approve resolution establishing a budget policy to administer 

operation and maintenance funds pursuant to the 2006 Expenditure Plan. 


-_ .. - .. 

-

CURRENT YEAR FINA..'lCIAL IMPACT 

EXPENDITURES SOURCE OF ADDITIONAL FUNDS 
REQUESTED 

Estimated Cost $ 000.00 Contingencies $ 000.00 
(Fund Name: ) 

Amount Budgeted $ 000.00 Unanticipated Revenue $ 000.00 
(Sources: ) 

Other Avail. Approp. Ot.her Transfer(s) $ 000. 00 

(Explain below) 0.00 Total Source of Funds: $ O. 00 
Additional Requested: $ 

Explanation (if required) : 

Prior Board Action (s) Jul)' 18,2006, Rosolurjon No. 06-0657, calling an Election [Q extend the Sales Tax for 
Open Space through 2031 (Mo.sure F) 


• Alternatives - Results of Non-Approval: Do not adopt Resolution. A budget policy 
 for 
administe:ing ope~ar.l:on and mamrenance funding would not be approve.d 



l 

,---,------ 

Background: -"I 
f\/ote;june 1~ 2006 andjuly 2, 2007 fetters ro the Board jj-on? [he Disc...,-icrJs General iHanageI; 2D06 

I 
Expendirun: FLul, ~7nd Open S,D<1Ce Aruhon'ty resoluu"ofls arc OIl file whh L1C Clerk ofrhc Board. 

Discussion: 
On November 7, 2006 (he VQlers of Sonoma Count)' approved Me:ilsure F exrending t.~e sales tax for open space, 
currently being levied by me Open Space Aut..11Or1.r/, from 2011 to 2031- Mea5ur~ F ai:;a amended the Authority's 
Expendimre Pia:) [Q allow e:..:penditures by the Agricultural PreserIation and Open Space Disa1ct for the operation 
and maintenance of open space properties provided t...1at me expe.nditures do not exceed re..'1 peZ"cem of me sales tax 
revenue r~ceived f.:-om November 8, 2006 to March 31) 203 L The e:.::plicit language ~ che 2006 Ex?endii:l.lre Plan is 
as follows: 

6. 	 Opentio:; and main;er.'ap.c:" of !'lOld includes uImted fur.ding for initial publlc.2ccess, operation ar:d maintenance 
of recreaoonaJ la~d pu:chased in accordance \Vich this Plan. No more L'1an 10 percent of tota} revenues 
generated over the life of th;;: Me~sure shall be made: available for ope:-lltion and maintenance purposes_ 

The text of Measun: F does nor mdude a cefirjuon of "iniual public access" G[ 5peci~' how operation and 
Qaint.;':!1ance fund::; would be adrninistere.d. Tne General Manager did) however, include in her June 16, 2006 letter to 
the Board placing pAeasure F on the November 6, 2006 ballot (on file with the Clerk) certain recommendations with 
regard to operation and maintenance_ 

Wid-:i the passage of Measure F, the 2006 Expenditure Plan took effect on Nov~mber 8, 2006, thus making operation 
and ~aintenance funding immediately available. Therefore, the General Manager is recommeoding that the Board 
consider and approve. an implementation policy. Over the P'3st 6 months, the- General Manager has worked with the 
County Auditor and County Counsel [0 develop the following policy recomrnendauons to the Board of Directors 
for..adrr..i.nistering-opera.tion and.ma.i.ntenance.appr.opna dons and _expendi tufes. 

On June 8, 2007 the Open Space Authority adopted Resolution No. 2007-014 finding that the policies 
recommended by the District'~ General Manager are consiste.nt \Virh the: 2006 Expenditure Plan, and including 
certain comments and recommendations to the District's Board of Directors_ 

The following is a summary of the proposed operation and maintenance policy: 

Operation and ~·laintenance Provision in rv.leas~re F 
The Expenditure Plan set forth in Measure C, passed by Voters L.'1 1990, did not include the ability to spend sales tax 
on operation and maintenance of recreational properties. Measure F specificaUy addressed this by making limited 
funds availaSle. where: appropo-ate, [or opening District-gcguired properties to the public. 

At.tachmentS: 
Resolution 

On File with Clerk: 

June 16,2006 letter to the Board of Supervisors 

July 2, 2007 letter to the Board of Directors 

2006 Expenditute Plan 

Open Space AurhoricJ Resolutions Numbered 2006-006 :tr,d 2007-014 


CLS"X OF TEE BOARD USE ONLY 

• Board A~tion (If other than "Requested " ) Vot.e: 

, 


( 


http:consiste.nt


V<l.\"~lUUIlU .... UJIUJllH::U: 

As st~ted in her June 16,2006 leeter [0 the Board, the Generall'\'i<loagcr r~corrunended inclusion of an operation and 

mainrenance componem in me 2006 ExpendihH! Plan. The necessit'l of this provision as recoIIl ....nended was to: 


• 	 Ensure timelJ' public access to District ",:cqwsitions 

• 	 Provide limited expenditures to assist in "jump starting" iniliaJ public use and m:ilmenance of parks and 
open space purchased pursuant to the 2006 Expendirure Plan. 

Definition of Operation and Maintenance 

In order to follow the inrent of Measure F and after rese.arching the definitions offfopcracion -and maintenance" in 

use by oilier jurisdictions. the General Manager re.commends mat for purposes of admin.iste.:ing the 2006 

Expenditure VIan, operation and maintenance be defined as follows: 


1'().t:~ra!iOIl and moiJJt.:nana il1c1H&j r~alollab!e and mce':Jat:./ ClJ.ft! inG(rr~d for ini!:·al OfaillfilnaJJtiJ ojpark.; and open rpaa 
proptrtit; !1JId imprOVWmll! and to provitk u7lIices for i,dialpublic U.f!. " 

Operation and maintenance would, of course, exclude capital improveme:lt project coses associated wiL.~ the public 

recreational use of the property (e.g. fencing, sjgnage, trail developmem., parking areas). Unlike operation and 

maintenance costs] capical improvement project costs are not limited by the ten percent of revenue restriction. 


Policy Guidelines for Operation and ~{aintenance Funding 

The General ~'fanager proposes the following policy guidelines for adm.irtistering operation and mainten'J.nce of 

Dis trict -acquired properties: 


• 	 The District will seek to transfer recreational fee properties (0 'ilppropriate p'il::~<' agencies in a timely mann~. 

• 	 The District will treat all recreational partners equitably 

• 	 The District will provide up to a 3-year time frame on operation and maintenance funding to partner 
agencies and organizations for initial public use. Under extraordinary circumstances, the 3-year time frame 
may be extended by the Board of Duecrors. 

• 	 The District's operation and .rna.in(en~nce grants will be subject to a grant agreement, a conservation 
easement. and annual audit. 

• 	 Under the DistCct's Competitille Matching Grant Pro2fa.,m, applicants are assumed to fund ongoing operation 
and maintenance of open space projects. Operation and maintenance funding for these projects will be 
limited and based on demonstrated oeed. 

Annual Budget 

For ease of adfninistration, the General IVlanage.r recommends an annual appropriation for operation and 

maintenance egdivalent to 10 percent of annual sales tax revenue, directed to two si.Jb-obje.~ts. 


Annual Project Needs: The GenerallYlanager, in consultation with recreational partners, will r::commend operation 
and maintenance expe:ndirures for specific project needs.in the District's annual budget. 

Long Term Reserve: The unspe.nt balance of 10 percem of !lnnual sales tax revenue will be. approp6ated to an 
Opera/ioll and i\tlai'1/enol1ce Designated Rtserlle FJlnd, subject to annual budgeting for the overall needs of the District. 

Flexible Policy 
The proposed policy provides fiexibilir-j for the District··to ensure that 1) sufficient operation and maintenance 
expendirures are. budgeted annually w address specific needs; 2) a designated [eserJe ti..lnd is established and 
maintained for long-term dper:acions; and 3) annual appropnations are adjusted based' on conse:vative. sales tax 
grmvth esrirnares and expe.rience over time. 

• 

• The Board of Director;; will retain the flexibility to increase or decrease annual operation and mainte.nanc:! 


appropriations as long as the 10 percent cap on operation and maint~r.3.nce spendi"1g oyer the life of 

Measure F is Got e:<ceeded . 


• 	 The Dis{rict's Gene~al Manager will make annual recomrr.endnior.s to t..~e Board of DirecLOn regardi...'1g 
necessary adjustffient5 to operation and mamren3.l1ce accounCs. 

• 	 Funds appropriared =::0 an OpaatioJl and lYiaintetlall>:e Desig,ratl!d Rz.rero.Je Ftmd would nor:: be irrevocably 
corrunirred and could be used for o(her purposes consisrem with t..'-le Expenditure Plan. 

P'l"o 2 

http:Rz.rero.Je
http:unspe.nt
http:needs.in


SONOMA COUNTY 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 


July 2,2007 

President Brown and Members of the Board of Directors 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
575 Administration Drive, 100A 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

Re: Operation and Maintenance Funds: Administrative and Budget Policy 

Dear President Brown and Members of the Board of Directors: 

On July 18,2006, your Board voted unanimously to place Measure F on the November 7'" 
ballot. As you know, voters· overwhelmingly approved Measure F, which continues the quarter 
percent sales tax for the District's open space program for another 20 years through 2031. Measure 
F includes the 2006 Expenditure Plan that authorizes spending for "initial public access, operation 
and maintenance of recreational lands purchased in .accordance with this Plan" so long as the 
expenditures do not exceed 10 percent of sales tax revenue generated over the life of Measure F. In 
approving Measure F, the voters also amended the Authority's 1990 Expenditure Plan renarrilng it 
the 2006 Expenditure Plan. The Authority will continue to determine if District acquisitions are 
consistent with the new Plan until 2011 when the Authority's tax expires and is replaced by the 
County's Measure F tax. 

Following the passage of Measure F, 1 met with Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector 
Rod Dole and members of his staff, Chief Deputy County Counsel Sheryl Bratton, Special Counsel 
Jim Botz, and retired County Treasurer Tom Ford to discuss development of administrative 
guidelines and a budget policy for sales tax funding authorized by Measure F's 2006 Expenditure 
Plan. This discussion included operation and maintenance of District properties and accounting for 
expenditures to keep them within Measure F's 10 percent limit. 

2006 Expenditure Plan: Oper~tions and Maintenance 

For purposes of administering the operations and maintenance provisions of the 2006 

Expenditure Plan, operations and maintenance should include "reasonable and necessary costs 

incurred for initial maintenance of parks and open space properties and improvements and to 

provide services for initial public use.". 


747 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100 • Santa Rosa, California 95401-4850 
707.565.7360 • Fax 707.565.7359· www.sonomaopenspace.org 

http:www.sonomaopenspace.org


o & M Recommendations 
July 2, 2007 
Page 2 

Guidelines for Appropriate Use of Operations and Maintenance Expenditures 

Although it is foreseeable that title to and maintenance responsibility for some 

recreational fee properties will remain with the District, every effort should be made to transfer 

recreational properties, at the earliest convenient time, to an appropriate city, the State, the 

County, or a non-profit partner. A time limit on District contributions for initial public use, 

initial operations and maintenance of park and open space properties transferred to other 

entities shlmld be limited to no more than three years, except under extraordinary 

circumstances. 

A primary focus of-the operations and maintenance component in the 2006 Expenditure 

Plan was to provide limited expenditures to assist in "jump starting" some level of initial public 

access and land maintenance on recreational properties purchased with the open space sales tax. 

The operations and maintenance funding provision of Measure F was not intended to replace park 

agencies' ongoing obligations to maintain their park systems. It has been the District's practice, 

when it transfers recreational properties to partner agendes and organizations, to enter into grant 
agreements that require that a management plan be completed and the park be opened for public 

use within 3-5 years from the close of escrow. The operations and maintenance funding under the 

2006 Expenditure Plan can assist recreational agencies in facilitating early and appropriate public use 
of recreational properties, while a long-range management plan and associated environmental 

document for the project is completed. 


Recreational partners that receive operations and maintenance funding would be required to 
submit periodic reports with sufficient detail, so that expenditures could be audited for compliance 
with Measure F and the District's implementing policies. With regard to operations and maintenance 
funding determinations, it will be the District's policy to treat all recreational partners equitably. 

The 2006 Expenditure Plan includes a separate Matching Grant Program, which prqvides 
funding to cities, the County and other entities for urban open space· and recreation projects within 
and near urbanized areas. Funding is made available for land acquisition, development, restoration, 
and enhancement; with preference given to projects that provide linkages or connections between 
communities. Cities, the County and State park agencies are responsible for operating and 
maintaining these projects as part of their park systems. Under the District's Matching Grant 
Program Guidelines, project.s are evaluated in part, on a grantee's ability to fund operations and 
maintenance costs. In certain situations, a matching grant applicant, such as a non-profit 
organization, may demonstrate a unique need for funding for initial operations and maintenance. 
These requests would be evaluated on a case by case basis and if approved would also be 
subject to a three-year time restriction for initial operations and maintenance funding. Grant 
agreements between the District and grantee would require reimburserrient requests to provide 
sufficient detail so tlJat expenditures could be audited for compliance with Measure F and 
implementing District policies. Counsel advises that tlus is particularly important with respect to 



o & M Recoffimendations 
]uly 2, 2007 
Page 3 

matclllng grant agreements with the County in order to assure compliance with certain special tax 
limitation provisions in the California Constitution. . 

Annual Budgeting of Operations and Maintenance Expenditures 

After consulting with legal and financial advisors and recognizing the difficulty of accurately 
predicting sales tax revenue for the next 24 years, the most prudent and straightforward budgeting 
policy for the operations and maintenance funds provided for in the 2006 Expenditure Plan would 
be to set aside 10 percent of annual sales tax revenue for operations and maintenance appropriated 
among two distinct operations and maintenance sub-objects in the District's annual budget: The 
first would be for annual operations and maintenance expenditures for specific recreational 
properties. The second would be for contributions to a designated reserve fund, anticipating the 
long-term needs for operations and maintenance of recreational lands. Because the District's long
term operations and maintenance spending needs and the revenue to be generated over the life of 
Measure F are difficult to accurately predict, annual appropriations could be adjusted based on need 
and revised projections of sales tax revenue growth. In this regard 1t is important to bear in mind 
that a budget policy for appropriating Measure F revenue for operations and maintenance does not 
irrevocably commit those funds. The Board of Directors will retain the flexibility to evaluate and 
make necessary adjusttnents as. needed to annual operations and maintenance expenditures and the 
Operations and Maintenance Designated Reserve Fund. 

Operations and Maintenance Budget for 2007 -08 

Because the new Expenditure Plan went into effect on November 8, 2006, I am 
recommending that 10 percent of the Authority's sales tax revenue accruing from November 8, 2006 
through June 30, 2007, totaling approximately $1,060,000 be appropriated in the.FY 07/08 Budget 
to the Operations and Maintenance Designated Reserve Fund. In addition, I am proposing 
$300,000 be appropriated in the FY 07/08 Preliminary Budget for specific Operations and 
Maintenance projects (sub-object 6169). The $300,000 appropriation would be spent on initiating 
public use and initial land maintenance at the following SD< open space properties at an average 
annual cost of $50,000. 

• Healdsburg Ridge 

• Paulin Creek 

• Taylor Mountain 

• Montini Ranch 

• North Slope Sonoma Mountain Trail 
• Santa Rosa Creek Greenway 

(Note: The recommendation for FY 07/08 annual operations and maintenance expenditures is 
based on a survey of per acre costs for managing open space lands using other Bay Area park and 
open space agencies as benchmarks). 



o & M Recommendations 
July 2, 2007 
Page 4 

Operations and maintenance expenditures specific to each of these properties would be subject to a 
grant agreement between the District and the grantee and would require annual audits for 
compliance with Measure F. Lastly, I am recommending that at the end ofFY 07/08, the remaining 
balance' of the estimated 10 percent of 07/08 sales tax revenue be contributed to the Operations and 
Maintenance Designated Reserve Fund. 

.J am attaching the following documents: the 2006 Expenditure Plan; the Open Space 
Authority'S June 7, 2007 resolution finding the Operations and Maintenance Policies recommended 
by the General Manager to be consistent with the 2006 Expenditure Plan and making certain 
recommendations to the District's Board of Directors; and the Authority'S Resolution No. 2006-006 
which made recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the content of Measure F, 
including recommendations for operations and maintenance expenditures and the 2006 Expenditure 
Plan. 

In closing, I am recommending that the Board consider the General Manager's 

recommendations in adopting a budget policy that: (1) ensures sufficient operations and 

maintenance expenditures are budgeted on an annual basis to address specific needs; (2) ensures a 

designated reserve fund is established and maintained for long-term operations; and (3) provides 

flexibility to adjust annual operations and maintenance appropriations, based on cOliservative sales 
tax revenue annual growth estimates and experience over time. 

I have distributed the above-referenced policy to numerous public agency and non-profit 

partners for their review and comment and am proposing to bring the policy to the Board of 

Directors at its August 7"' meeting. 


Very truly yours, 

Andrea Mackenzie 
General Manager 

c: 	 Members of the Open Space Authority 

Jim Botz, Special Counse1 

Robert Deis, County Admiriistrator 


Attachments: 
2006 Expenditure Plan 
Open Space }luthority Resolution Gune 7, 2007) ----' Consistency "\vith 2006 Expenditure Plan 
Open Space Authority Resolution No. 2006-006 - Recommendations on the content of Measure F 



AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE 2006 EXl'ENDITURE PLAN 


The purpose of this expenditure plan is to implement the Sonoma County General 
Plan and the general plans of the County's incorporated cities by preserving agricultural 
land use and open space. This purpose will be accomplished primarily through the 
purchase of development rights from willing sellers in areas ofthe County which are 
designated in the County and cities' General Plan open space elements and may include 
the purchase of fee interests for outdoor public recreation where the public use would not 
be inconsistent with the open space designations listed below.· 

The open space designations eligible for protection under this expenditure plan 

include community'separators, greenbelts, scenic landscape units, scenic corridors, 

agriculturally productive lands, biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of 

biotic significance, and other open space projects. 


1: Community separators and greenbelts are lands that function as open space 

to separate cities and other communities and protect city and community identity by 

providing visual relief from continuous urbanization. These lands are frequently subject 

to development pressures, and therefore, have been identified as priority sites for 

acquisition to prevent urban sprawl, to retain the TUral and open character of the county 

and to preserve agricultural uses. . 


2. Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors are areas of high scenic quality 
including natural landscapes and backdrops that provide visual relief from urban densities 
and maintain the open nature of the County. 

3. Agriculturally productive lands include working faTIns and ranches and 
other lands used for the production of food, fiber, and plant materials and the raising and 
maintaining onivestock and farm animals. 

4. Biotic habitat areas, riparian corri dors, and other areas ofbiotic significance 
include freshwater and tidal marshes, wetlands, special status species locations, 
·woodlands and forests, wildlife habitat corridors and lands along creeks and streams 
critical to protecting fisheries and water quality. These sensitive natural areas require 
protection, restoration, and resource management, and include the Petaluma fuver, 
Laguna de Santa Rosa, Russian River, Sonoma Creek and San Pablo Baylands. 

1 of2 



5. Other open space projects include, but are not limited to, urban open space 
and recreation projects within and near incorporated areas and other urbanized areas of 
Sonoma County. Funds for these projects shall be available to cities, the County and 
other entities through a'matching grant program, with preference given to acquisition and 
development projects that link communities. Examples of these projects include creek. 
restoration and enhancement; such as along the Petaluma River, Santa Rosa Creek, and 
Laguna de Santa Rosa, trails, athletic fields, and urban greenspace. 

6. Operation and maintenance ofland includes limited funding for initial 
public access, operation and maintenance ofrecreational lands purchased in accordance 
with this Plan. No more than 10 percent of total revenues gerienitedover the life ofthe 
Measure shall be made available for operation and maintenance purposes. 

20f2JO(}!, l.., p,,,. 1_llHJt 



Resolution no. 2007-014 

Dated: June 7,2007 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY OPEN 
SPACE AUTHORITY FINDING THAT THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE POLICIES 
RECOMMENDED BY THE GENERAL MANAGER OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT ARE CONSISTENT 
WITH THE 2006 EXPENDITURE PLAN AND MAKING COMMENTS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE DISTRICT'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

BE IT RESOLVED that this Board of Directors hereby finds, determines, declares and 
orders as follows: 

1. General Manager's Recommendations. This Board has received and considered the 
recommendations of the General Manager of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District contained in the Board's agenda materials and as revised at the June 7, 2007 
meeting of the Open Space Authority. 

2. Expenditure Plan Consistency. The General Manager's recommended policies for 
District appropriations and expenditures for initial public access, operations and maintenance of 
District properties acquired for public outdoor recreation are consistent with the 2006 Expenditure 
Plan. 

3. Additional Comments. Although this Board has determined that the General Manager's 
recommendations are consistent with the 2006 Expenditure Plan, it makes the following comments 
for consideration by the District's Board of Directors: 

a. Provisions for the District's long-term stewardship funding should be strengthened. 

b. The District should work with the Open Space Authority to make annual 
recommendations regarding necessary adjustments to operations and maintenance 
expenditures and the designated reserve fund. 

4. CEQA Complianc~. The Board's actions, memorialized in this Resolution, are 
excluded from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Guidelines § 15378(b)( 4) 
because they assist in "the creation of government funding mechanisms or other government fiscal 
activities which do not involve any commitment to any specific project which may result in a 
potentially significant physical impact on the environment." 

DIRECTORS: 

SANGIACOMO: aye ANDERSON: aye PRUNUSKE: aye 

HAMMOND: aye KAPOLCHOK: aye 

SO ORDERED. 



The within instrument Is s corrsct COpy" 
of t~e original on .. ith is office. 

Resolution No. 2006-006 

Clerlt ot the ... onc,ma County Open Space 
Autilarity of the State of Ca!i1ornia, in and foe Dated: May 10.2006 
the County of Sonoma. 

A RESOLUTION OF DIE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SONOMA COUNTY 
OPEN SPACE AUTHORlTY MAKING RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE SONOMA 
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND TO DIE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE SONOMA COUNTY AGRlCULTURALPRESERVATION & OPEN SPACE 
DISTRlCT REGARDING A MEASURE TO EXTEND THE AUTHORlTY'S SALES 
TAX FOR OPEN SPACE. 

WHEREAS, the General Manager of the Sonoma County AgriCultural 

Preservation & Open Space District ("the District") has advised this Board that she has 

recommended to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma ("the County") and 


" to the "Board ofDirectors of the District that a measure be placed on the November 7, 
2006 General Election ballot to extend the Authority's sales tax for open space for an 
additional twenty years without an increase in rate; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has considered at length the General Manager's letter of 
March 28, 2006 with respect to both changes in the Authority's voter approved 
Expenditure Plan and the future role of the Authority should the voters approve an 
extension of the" tax and has adopted this resolution in order to memorialize its 
recommendations to the District and to the County. 

; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Board ofDirectors makes the 
following recommendations with regard to a ballot measure to extend the current sales tax 
for open space: 

The New Expenditure Plan 

I. Limited Changes. Any change in the current Expenditure Plan should only be 
made after judicious and careful deliberation and then only in response to clear and 
significant open space needs of the community. 

2. Agricultural Designation. The District and the Authority have always given the 
preservation of agricultural lands a high priority, nonetheless it should be clearly 
expressed in a new expenditure plan. Agricultural property should be added to the list of 
open space designations. " 

Reauthorization 2"" AuthorilY res recommendations 5-10-06 . 



3. Recreational Property; Open Space Values. The primacy now given by the 
current expenditure plan to open space values over recreational uses of property 
purchased by the District should be preserved. 

4. Development Costs ofRecreational Property. The current expenditure plan 
allows expenditures for development costs of the District's recreational properties and 
that should be continued in a new plan but the amount should be limited to the cost of 
initial facilities necessary for the earliest public use of the property pursuant to a matching 
grant agreement. 

5. Operation and Maintenance Costs ofRecreational Property. While the 
Authority recognizes the expectation that properties bought for public recreational uses 
should be opened at the earliest possible time, it is concerned that the use ofrevenue for 
those purposes could significantly decrease the District's ability to acquire key open space 
properties. Any provision in the new expenditure plan for operation and maintenance 
costs associated with the recreational use of District properties should be subject to the 

following limitations: 


A. Expenditures should be capped at 3% of the District's annual revenue; 

and 

B. Expenditures should be limited in time to not more than 3 years. 

In those extraordinary circumstances where additional operations and maintenance 
funding is necessary the foregoing limitations should only be overridden with the 
consent of the Authority. 

6. Bonding Authority. The District currently has a lease-purchase arrangement 
with the County and the County Treasurer which has proven to be very beneficial when 
there are numerous purchase opportunities that exceed current revenues. The County 
Auditor has recommended the addition of bonding authority to give the District the 
opportunity to reduce interest costs. The ballot measure should include bonding authority 
to allow the District to borrow against future sales tax revenue. 

7. Appraisals. No acquisition should close unless the Authority has determined 
that the purchase price does not exceed fair market value. 

8. Expenditure Plan ConSistency. No acquisition should close unless the 

Authority has detennined that it is consistent with the Expenditure Plan. 


Reauthorization 2nd Authority res recommendations 5-10-06 2 



The New Role of the Authority 

I. Continuity ofCurrent Tasks. To the extent allowed by law, the current role of 
the Authority should be preserved in any new contract among the County, the District and 
the Authority. 

2. New Tasks. The following new tasks for the Authority should be provided in 
the contract: 

A. 	Special Tax Oversight. Assure that no appropriations from special tax 
account are either directly or indirectly transferred to County General 
Fund. See Government Code §S007S.1 attached. . 

B. Oversight ofOperation and Maintenance Costs for Recreational Use. 
District General Manager provides a report to the Authority for 
review and comment ofexpenditures for initial capital 
improvements, maintenance and operation on transferred District 
properties, including gnint agreements and reporting documents 
between District and third parties. 

C. 	 Performance Measurement. From time to time review District's 
acquisitions to assure that there is a fair balance· of acquisitions 
among the open space categories specified in the Expenditure 
Plan taking into account the District's purchase opportunities. The 
criteria to be used to determine a fair balance would be the acreage 
acquired, cost and number of transactions in each category taking 
into consideration the purchase opportunities available. 

D. 	Auditor's Annual Report. Review, comment and, when appropriate, 
endorse the Auditor's annual report. See Government Code 
§S007S.3 

A New Contract Among the County, the District and the Authority 

I. Stewardship Funds. Jfthe voters approve the extension of the sales tax for 
open space then all Authority fund balances, existing al the close ofbusiness on March 
31,2011, should be left in the Authority'S budget and used by the Authority for 
stewardship purposes for existing District properties. Those purposes should include, but 
not be limited to, costs associated with the reduction of fire hazards and invasive plants 
harmful to neighboring agricultural and other properties. 

Reauthorization 2"" Authority res recommendations 5-] 0-06 	 J 



2. Operation and Maintenance Funds. The funding of operation and maintenance 
expenditures should be thT0ugh the Authority's budget to assist the Authority in 
performing its oversight task. 

DIRECTORS: 

COOKE: Aye AL YS: Absent KAPOLCHOK: ~ 

ANDERSON: Aye PRUNUSKE: Aye 

1 Ayes !LNoes 1 Absent QAbstain 

4Reauthorization 2"d AUlhority res recommendations 5-10-06 



DAVID E. SUNDSTROM, CPA 
DONNA DUNK, CPA 

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER ASSISTANT
TREASURER -TAX COLLECTOR AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 

585 FISCAL DRIVE, SUITE 100 JONATHAN KADLEC 
SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 ASSISTANT

PHONE (707) 565-2631 TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR 
FAX (707) 565-3489 

October 8, 2013 

Ms. Veronica Ferguson 
Sonoma County Administrator 
575 Administration Drive 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

Dear Ms. Ferguson, 

Attached are reports prepared by the District in response to our audit. The sources and methods 
for preparing these reports appear reasonable; however, we have not performed sufficient 
procedures to gain assurance of their accuracy and reliability. The ACTTC staffwho provides 
accounting support to the District is currently working on a report that will provide a more 
complete picture ofthe District's activities related to the expenditure and acquisition plans. This 
report, we anticipate, will also aid us in performing reconciliations and other procedures to gain 
assurance of the accuracy of other reports as well. 

Following is a description of the attached reports: 

1. Appendix 1 - Operation and Maintenance (O&M) 

This report covers the period starting FY 2006-07 to FY2012-13 and is intended to 
include all costs that meet the definition of operations and maintenance per measure F. 
The District included post acquisition capital expenditure transactions as well. 

The District does not separately identify O&M in its systems. To produce this report, the 
District identified all properties classified "recreational" for acquisition plan purposes and 
retrieved all expenditure transactions related to those properties from the general ledger 
system. 

2. Appendix 2 - Post Acquisition Costs 

This report is intended to include all costs other than purchase price or other capitalized 
costs. The County's general ledger system and other systems were utilized to construct 
this report. Since none of the systems identify transactions by expenditure or acquisition 
plan categories, a "pivot table" (a functionality of excel) was used to extract information 
from the general system to which expenditure and acquisition plan categories were 
added. 

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 6

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text
 

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text

erotondo
Typewritten Text



Letter to Veronica Ferguson 
October 8, 2013 
Page 2 of2 

3. Appendix 3 - Acquisition Costs 

This report includes the cost of all properties successfully acquired. It excludes costs 
associated with properties that the District attempted to acquire but, for some reason, 
decided not to purchase. The column titled "District's Contribution" is the amount the 
District paid towards the purchase price. Other capitalized costs have been excluded. 
The ACTTC staff who provides accounting support to the District is currently in the 
process of developing a report of acquisition cost that will coincide with the reporting 
period of the above two reports, include all capitalized costs and costs of abandoned 
properties. 

We have completed our follow up to determine the status of implementation of the District's 
O&M reserve policy. The District had a policy since August 7th 2007 to maintain an O&M 
reserve equal to 10% of the measure revenue to date less O&M expenditures to date. 
The District set up the O&M reserve with a balance of $200,000 in FY 12-13 and increased it by 
$200,000 and $7.2 million in FY 13-14. The reserve balance currently is $7.3 million. In order 
to comply with this policy, the District will need to have a system to accurately determine the 
O&M expenditure. 

We do not see a clear purpose for having a reserve policy for O&M. Generally, a reserve is used 
to ensure legally or otherwise restricted funds are spent for qualified purposes only. From our 
understanding of the measure, no portion of the measure revenue is restricted to O&M. The 
total O&M expenditure however is limited to 10% of the measure revenue. Weare also not 
aware of any District board policy that requires that 10% of the measure revenue be spent for 
O&Monly. 

Accurately tracking the actual O&M expenditures, we believe, would be sufficient to ensure that 
the Measure's limit is not exceeded. 

Sincerely, 

f!Ii=--==--
Kanchan Charan, CPA 
Internal Audit Manager 

Enclosures 



Appendix 1 
Sonoma County Ag Preservation & Open Space District 

Specified Revenue & Expenditure Reporting 

November 2007 through FYE 2013 

. __________,___ ~evenues 11/1- 6/3_0/~007 __'£!E...~008 _ FYE 20~9__FYE2010 ~Ol!..._, FYE..?Ol?__FY~ 2013 Total 
----

.g40 S~les/Use Taxes 13,713,940 19,249,112 17,359,171 15,348,5~l 15,278,741 18,260,198 19,443,594 118,653,!~~_ 
4680 l.T. Debt-Proceeds ________ _______________ "~~~~!.lE.1,, ___,__ ,22."-,5_1_3__ ____8"--4,36~,~1J_. 

Total Revenues 13,713,940 103,592,214 17,381,685 15,348,517 15,278,741 18,260,198 19,443,594 203,018,888 • 

____________!..r.~.er:.r:!i.E!~_~1/1 ~_~!:i.0l200?___ FYE 2008 FYE 2009 FYE 2010 JY~ 2~1__ FYE 2E..12 _~201} 2013 CE Sal Total 
Laguna Trail 13,166 13,605 260,218' , _ 800,678 192,588 183,943 3,353 1,467,553 

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 7,724 ~-~,308 /> 23,465 ""'0 25,336 6,895 7,056 73,784 

60 - Services/Supplies 5,442 '- '10;29.8 10,635 48,365 67,414 66,815 208,968 

85 - Capital Assets ' 226,119 726,977 118,279 110,072 3,353 1,184,801 

Lawson 10;!4Z_ 1,156., 1,106 246 2,057 140 14,853 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits~47 -  '1,078 1,106 246 2,057 140 5,074 

60 - Services/Supplies 9,7QO\ / ig 9,779 

Mark West Properties_ 40,580,',__ /' 7,628 25,619 39,675 58,584 34,932 519 207,537 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits '\12,480 - 5,482 7,598 17,245 8,042 7,226 58,072 

60 - Services/Supplies ) 28,100 2,146 18,022 22,155 48,629 20,623 519 140,194 
85 - Capital Assets <. ! 275 1,913 7,083 9,271 

North Slope Sonoma Mountain Properties 73,8ib 138,196 105,528 258,886 898,066 513,088 541,916 9,372 2,538,861 

50 -- Salaries/Employee Benefits . <~" 74,839 65,653 101,210 73,133 81,244 61,743 457,822 
60 -services/suPplies-73~8\0 "'-,"'-,,63,357 36,985 70,159 29,025 51,829 170,426 1,650 497,241 
85 - Capital Assets 

Sonoma Mountain Ranch/Walsh 

\ \'-/ 
\ \
\ , 

2,890 
\ -

19;981-, 

87,517 

40,482 

795,908 

35,884 

380,016 

8,167 

309,746 

6,253 

7,722 1,583,799 

110,767 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits '" /7 9!4~5"",, 14,639 10,802 4,974 5,196 45,067 
60 - Services/Supplies " /// 10;525 '-',". ?4,767 16,311 3,193 1,057 55,853 

85 - Capital Assets ,/ "<-1,075 8,772 9,847 

Taylor Mountain properties/38,359 63,3i8 132,011 307,908 438,179 329,632 198,476 513 1,508,456 

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 15,67,0\ 39,451 69,786 43,646 37,529 44,184 250,266 

60 - Services/Supplies 38,359 47,707. \ 92,560-. 127,447 143,953 107,080 128,069 513 685,688 

85 - Capital Assets \ ' . / 110,675 250,581 185,023 26,223 572,501 

Healdsburg Ridge Properties 10,741 94,222 \ 96,682 76,471 175,965 311,768 190,150 82,667 1,038,667 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 48;828-,-- 56,132 20,284 32,015 36,813 30,791 224,864 

60 - Services/Supplies 10,741 45,393 34,212 43,178 24,213 55,469 45,461 12,749 271,416 
85 - Capital Assets 6,338 13,009 119,737 219,486 113,899 69,918 542,386 

Montini 14,008 53,652 79,067 61,754 61,830 126,189 259,390 296,390 952,279 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 33,808 42,122 34,739 24,118 65,500 55,579 255,867 
60 - Services/Supplies 14,008 19,844 36,945 19,830 39,142 40,396 107,217 8,795 286,177 
85 - Capital Assets 7,184 (1,430) 20,293 96,594 287,595 410,236 

.~ala~~~~,~ Cre~ek Preserve (Su~~.r!oaft 5,355 22,387 42,553 45,333 45270 19,122 80,289 23 260,833 

Page 10 



Appendix 1 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 10,899 12,524 12,267 25,906 7,963 38,748 108,307 

60 - Services/Supplies 5,355 11,487 30,029 33,066 19,864 11,160 13,519 23 124,503 
85 - Capital Assets 28,022 28,022 

.£arr~.ngt~~ Ranch (Sonoma Coast) 21,129 38,268 42,978 32,546 27,839 7,607 30,619 200,98~ 

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 12,374 10,148 5,487 7,379 3,581 8,869 47,839 
60 - Services/Supplies 21,129 25,893 32,829 27,058 20,460 4,026 21,751 153,147 

East Slope Sonoma Mountain (Jack London) 8,382 61,418 14,715 84,516 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 6,506 15,985 22,491 
60 - Services/Supplies 1,876 4,168 325 6,369 
85 - Capital Assets 41,265 14,391 55,656 

Keegan/Coppin (Annadel) 6,974 1,297 . 62 160 3,938 749 13,180 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 780 574 62 160 602 527 2,704 
60 - Services/Supplies 6,194 723 / 3,337 223 10,476 

Poff (Sonoma Coast) 23,247 85;499 75,585 33,295 57,652 22,214 297,492 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 

60 - Services/Supplies 
85 - Capital Assets 

Occidental Road 

16,476 9;1:63~
' '. 

7,012 10,789 5,800 11,221 60,460 
6;"172' ". 76,336 68,573 10,742 51,851 10,993 225,267 

'. "'~/ 11,765 11,765 

698. ../1,5(;:2. / 37 507 22 2,826 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 698 '\7- 1,562' 37 507 22 2,826 

Paulin Creek 834 / .13,067,. 8,224 6,001 7,830 2,874 25,800 64,629 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 
60 - Services/Supplies 

Saddle Mountain 

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 

60 - Services/Supplies 
85 - Capital Assets 

Clov':!r Springs 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 9,507 3;784. " 16,055• I 14,980 458 828 
60 - Services/Supplies , ,,/" / 1,793 1976 . 7,136 15,224 315 

Jenner Headlands / 29,~~9 10,337 ·.g223 152,218 192,79~ 317,666 430,327 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 7,~14 6,070 11;549 8,405 11,337 4,951 
60 - Services/Supplies 21,655\ 4,267 5,674 24,192 67,724 73,199 239,842 

85 - Capital Assets 
\ \ 

119,621 113,729 239,515 190,485 
Fitch Mountain / 

,. 
482 , 770 764 .... --.~ ...•--.............:...--. 

1,139 4,032 16,535 506 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits '482 233 559 982 
60 - Services/Supplies '~~"\ \ 536 205 157 

Tolay,Lake Ran~h 2,665 1,059 5,450 7,258 

2,898 

1,134 

15,496 

12,300 

4,234 

3,969 

506 

! f 

- ····---/'72,980- -. 905 4,185 

834 10,086 7,318 1,816 

3;7~~ 71,174 . 172,967 141,209 

13,493 13,675 14,174 

'~,744' . 57,682 154,907 32,378 

\ 4,384 94,657 

I, 
\ 

11,299 4j~~~_, 23,191 

1,526 

6,304 

17!.693 
4,845 

8,635 

4,214 

30,204 

1,212 

1,662 

23,598 

6,657 

1,825 

15,116 

773 

4,979 15,788 
20,821 48,841 

13,7?3 11,155 455,29~_ 

6,498 

7,255 

11,155 

828 

59,342 

266,426 

129,526 
___.71,055 

45,612 

25,443 

1,150,130 

50,227 
436,553 

663,350 

24,227 

17,455 

6,772 

35,896 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 

60 - Services/Supplies 
Willow Creek 

50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 
60 - Services/Supplies 

Fee Lands Strategy 

320 

320 

1,190 

1,475 
5,019 

2,025 

2,994 

1,059 

2,178 

2,060 

118 

2,622 

2,828 
16,983 

1,724 

15,259 

403 

6,854 
18,246 

2,229 

16,016 

301 

15,196 

14,919 

2,422 

12,497 
14,218 

1,014 

2,955 
13,578 

1,296 

12,282 

29,584 

6,588 

29,308 
71,242 

11,757 
59,486 

'!.3,803 

Page 11 



Appendix 1 
50 - Salaries/Employee Benefits 14,218 26,312 40,530 

.~_6g- ~~!:,,!!:e~!~lJPp!i.e,s __~ __~__ _~__ ____ ~__~_~._____ ..3..!?Z.~._____ . --------~p? 

. Total 168,301 . 638,189 829,842 1,396,826 2,792,683 1,907,475 2,032,224 849,540 10,615,081 

Criteria 


Report includes all costs of labor allocated to the indentified property groups except for cost center D3 (acquisition). 


Report includes non labor costs allocated to the identified property groups for the following subobjects: / / 


5905 - Classification Costs (Cost Applied Labor) 


6169 - Maint-Open Space Prop 


6175 - Maint-Land/Easements 


6610 - Legal Services 


6611- Legal Research 


7022 - Public Relations Exp 


8510 - Buildings/Improvements 


9618 - Py Enc-Maint Bldgs/lmp 


9700 - Py Enc-Special Dept Exp 


9852 - Py Ene-Bldg/Imp 


Costs related to acquisition (cost center D3) were excluded from the subobjects listed ~b~ve. 
Revenues from Sales Tax and Long Term Debt Proceeds were included·f~()m th~, f9110wingJndex codes: 

077305 - Open Sp Spec Tax Acct-2007 Bond' / ; ; , \ 
/077313 - Open Sp Spec Tax Acct-Meas F ", 


797019 - So Co Open Space Authority " /' 


"'.'" 

Sources 


EZ FAMIS Expenditure Transactions Report. 


EZ FAMIS Expenditure Summary Report. 


SCAPOSD Labor Database. 


Property List provided Sheri Emerson. 


Page 12 



Appendix 2 
Sonoma County Ag Preservation and Open Space District 
Report on non-acquisition costs by category 
July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2013 

Property 
10 Property Name 

Acquisition Plan 
Category Expenditure Plan Category Character FY 2007-081 FY 2008-091 FY 2009-10 I FY 2011-121 FY 2012-13 , Totals 

0001 IAggio Agriculture IAgriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,061 1,363 167 

FY 2010-111 

133 2,724· 
Services and Supplies 308 308 

0342 Azevedo Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,561 39 1,608 
Services and Supplies 2,079 2,079 

0033 Bianchi Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 116 760 238 1,938 35 453 3,540 
Services and Supplies 20,563 14,888 10,383 45,834 
Other Charges 1,305 1,305 

0050 Burns Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 13,087 1,787 1,223 152 1,410 376 18,034 
Services and Supplies 25,924 12,407 308 54 38,692 

0237 Mickelsen Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 568 538 12 536 1,654 . 
0055 Camozzi Dairy Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands ,.Salaries and Benefits 715 161 344 637 . i,856 

Services and Supplies 5,847 4,298 3,937 14,082 
0040 Brayton Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 186 107 .301 
0072 Cloudy Bend Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,529 573 3,593 2,109 324 346 8;474 

Services and Supplies 118 439 1,040 105 ·1,701 
0077 Colliss Agriculture Agriculturally producti~e lands Salaries and Benefits 80 4,381 938 794 3,141 2,873 12,207 

Services and Supplies 79 1,186 836 4,148 2,336 8;5iifi 
0088 Crane Farm Agriculture Agriculturally productive land~ Salaries and Benefits 1,036 846 152 1,047 152 344 3,577 
0256 Crane Home Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands"'., Salaries and Benefits 79 5,611 16,712 1,129 16 1,180 24,727 

Services and Supplies 3,098 9,487 . ii;585 
other Charges 3,581 3;581 

0106 Dougan Agriculture Agriculturally P~~~l!~~~ve lands Salaries and Benefits 2,389 1,552 3,9,il 
Services and Supplies 108 108 

0108 Dutton Ranch Agriculture AgrjCultiJrall{~roduct;~e Ja';'ds
",. , / 

Other Charges 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

568 
17,357 

887 237 
105 12,558 

251 
11,280 

17,357 

1,.943 
23,942 

Other Charges 4,494 4,494 
0134 Falletti Ranch Agriculture Other qpen spa,ce'pr.ojects through a ~?tching grant program Salaries and Benefits 9,613 10,046 289 255 48 198 20,449 

" Services and Supplies 5,988 4,993 10,981 
0121 Flocchinl Ranch Agriculture, ~ ... - -" Agricultur~lly,productive lands Salaries and Benefits 279 411 855 283 1,827. 

- ~'>" '> Services and Supplies 4,579 4,579· 

0131 Gilardi Ranch A~ricul~ure Agric~itl!raIlY prod~~iv.~~i~nds
" 

Other Charges 
Salaries and Benefits 3,774 25,711 897 769 

451 
1,648 81 

·451 
32,881 

\'I . Services and Supplies 
Other Charges 

14,377 205 24,881 8,827 6,189 
6,416 

54,418 
6,416 

0147 Hafey Ranch Agriculture Agricultyrally'productive lands Salaries and Benefits 615 110 244 901 68 1,938 
/ / Services and Supplies 59 157 216 

0166 lelmorini Dairy Agriculture Agric~ltu{aIlY productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,229 735 444 2,416 
0190 Knudtsen Dairy Agriculture "~JAgriclilturaIlY productive lands Salaries and Benefits 255 520 380 1,155 
0199 lang Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands / \, Salaries and Benefits 2,294 80 2,787 594 2,788 2,821 .11;365 

Services and Supplies 601 564 1,242 834 3,241 
0141 le Reve Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 13,753 29,888 11,505 487 1,369 29 57,032 

Services and Supplies 10,218 14,842 5,743 452 590 31,846 
0208 Maffia Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 256 75 1,149 394 1,873 

Services and Supplies 1,285 1,285 
0214 Martin Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productJve" land.;> Salaries and Benefits 159 63 12 1,515 1,749 

Services and Supplies 2,306 2,306 
0219 Mazzetta Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 110 896 678 916 2,599 

Services and Supplies 2,282 2,282 
0251 Morrison Brothers Dairy Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,271 27 220 29 1,548 

Services and Supplies 185 185 
0253 Nahmens Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 745 4,506 1,424 604 2,624 283 10,186 

Services and Supplies 2,746 2,283 1,863 6,893· 

0268 Pacheco Dairy Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 5,999 16,289 716 1,552 539 1,314 26,408 
Services and Supplies 374 13,993 314 56 14,135 
Other Charges 5,302 6,304 11,606 

0100 Quinlan Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 2,784 10,093 12,877 
Services and Supplies 8,293 1,729 10,022 

0297 Roblar Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 615 1,645 2,340 21,662 1,358 27,620 

Page 13 



Appendix 2 
Services and Supplies 1,156 972 14,933 3341 17,395' 

0306 Santa Angelina Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 114 2,189 125 823. . .3/,~2 
Services and Supplies 118 564 <682 

0315 Scott Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

818 880 

5,51
1;698 

55,515 
Other Charges 5,087 6,185 "il,~73 

0324 Silacci Dairy Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 1,257 33 487 "1,777" 
0329 Sleepy Hollow Dairy ,Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 406 11 686 305 237 599 """""2;244, 

Services and Supplies 103 103, 

0376 Sotoyome Highlands Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 337 929 12 3,542 90 "~;9ri9 
Services and Supplies 108 162 270 
Other Charges 2,513 > 2,513" 

0340 St. Francis Vineyards Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 576 805 275 29 1,685 

0207 Stony Point Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 935 48 2,082 79 ',:~,~44 

Services and Supplies 3,162 3,i62. 
0344 SUmmer Home Park Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 88 1,097 377 """1,563 

Services and Supplies 54 " :54" 

0433 Tara Firma Farms Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 22,677 21,817 1,507 944 1,2261" ,<i8;m 
Services and Supplies 8,657 10,246 2,190 781 ,21,875" 
Other Charges 363 , "363; 
Capital Assets 300 300 

0359 Tremari Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 508 2,122 996 801 2,213 590 ,7;~0 
Services and Supplies 146 3,602 2,038 810 6,"5'96 

0052 Uncle Henry's Ranch Agriculture Agriculturally productive land~' Salaries and Benefits 2,149 5,429 10,260 11,697 39 29,574 
Services and Supplies 3,250 4,907 3,514 11,671 

0369 

T
Vasila Agriculture Agriculturally productive lands Salaries and Benefits 583 87 931 473 13 2,087 

0003 IAlba Lane Greenbelts 

otal Agriculture 
Community ~eparators apd greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 

116,325 

104 

248,970 I 
341 

143,995 I 148,016 

308 387 

85,702 

751 

80,778 I 
1,698 

823,787 

3,590 

// ,.r' \ \. \ \. Services and Supplies 154 417 56 ~~6 
0130 IAnnadel State Park - Geary Ranch Addition Greenbelts Scenic landsc~pe units and 'scenic corridors" 

///,/// ,,/ // '\ '\ 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

641 
370 

702 
195 

2,021 133 1,451 . 4,~4s 
565 

0017 I Balletto Greenbelts COl)1mu,"!ity separa~.ors and greenbelt.~. \- I Salaries and Benefits 741 686 902 1,195 417 29 3,972: 
,'-., . . Services and Supplies 59 1,526 1,585 

0018 I Balletto Trail Parcel Greenbelts Biotic habit~t ai~~s;'riparian corrid"ors a~d other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 135 417 1,094 1,645 

0042 Brown Greenbelts' c~;"muni:: ~~p~;afo~s and greenbelts 
. " ' ". 

Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 59 

690 
178 

20 733 
52 157 

178 
, 1,443 

269 

0057 Carinalli Gree'~b~lts Sceni~ land'sfape u~its,~nd scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 444 2,809 3,795 3,157 211 10,417 
\ \ , \ Services and Supplies 718 366 2,268 3,351 

0073 Clover Springs Greenbelts" . Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors 
, I 

Salaries and Benefits 17,593 3,984 17,572 28,635 790 828 69,403 

J / 
Services and Supplies 18,058 976 7,751 24,708 315 "51,807 
other Charges 275,000 275,000 

0078 Connolly Greenbelts Sceni~ lari~scape units and scenic corridors 
'"'/' 

Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

117 
46 

1,991 
2,787 

981 695 
314 

1,029 
108 

2,632 
668 

-7,444 
·3,923 

0079 Cook Ranch Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic'<;orridors Salaries and Benefits 1,339 78 592 74 848 2,931· 

0081 Cooke Ranch Greenbelts S~enic landscape units and sceriic c'orridors Salaries and Benefits 21,090 15,068 1,031 646 1,269 ··39,104 

\ \. Services and Supplies 16,297 5,774 638 22,708 
0084 Cotati Highlands Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic i:~rri~ors Salaries and Benefits 11151 518 218 1,887 

' Services and Supplies 51 52 104 
, 

0092 Danielli Ranch Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts, \ 
'" ", " \ 

Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

5,781 
2,623 

4,709 
10,546 

22,417 206 
6,405 216 

74 33,186 
19,791 

0093 Dashiell/Molle Greenbelts Scenic landscape u'~its'an(t~~enic c()rrid'ors' Salaries and Benefits 276 427 87 977 902 683 3,351 
Services and Supplies 59 167 226 

0097 Deloach Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corrldo!.s Salaries and Benefits 116 581 353 '1;050 
Services and Supplies 39 '39 

0385 Fairfield Osborn Preserve - Wilroth Addition Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 346 20 95 1,586 2;048 
Services and Supplies 59 , 59 

0119 Fitch Mountain Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 3 1,981 88 2,956 5,028 

0135 Glen Oaks Ranch Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 1,937 3,446 233 566 394 343 "6,920 
Services and Supplies 4,713 16,761 6,756 11,549 5,049 8,597 53;~26 
Other Charges 1,858 1,858 

0142 Grossi Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 1,173 204 6371 574 65 2,653 
Services and Supplies - 523 162 G85 

0154 Haroutunian - North Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 3,206 3,484 2,256 9,576 28,638 21,177 , 6~,337 

Page 14 



Appendix 2 
Services and Supplies 2,711 6,058 3,773 10,595 15,142 13,868 52,147 
Capital Assets 185,217 38,188 2~3;4ils' 

0155 Haroutunian - South Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 483 588 642 375 365 564 , 3,oi7 
Services and Supplies 4,868 2,933 1,248 1,678 '10,728 

0161 Ho Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 24 69 52 1,204 2,290 '3,648' 
Services and Supplies 712 1,057 1,769 

0180 Keegan and Coppin Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 780 591 62 160 602 527 2,'121 
Services and Supplies 6,194 723 3,337 223 ; .. ~o,~~~: 

0195 Laguna Trail Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

7,953 
8,828 

6,336 
13,948 

24,531 
12,233 

25,576 
48,365 

7,257 
64,251 

7,491 
96,118 

, 79,145 

"243,744 
Other Charges 3,163 4,617 '.7,780 
Capital Assets 6,377 226,119 726,977 118,279 110,072 , ,1,187,82,5' 

0136 Lupine Hill Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 25 849 , 159 791 1,926 96 3,845 
Services and Supplies 293 293 

0215 Marty Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 380 95 833 1;314' 
Services and Supplies 418 418 

0246 Montini Open Space Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 33,836 42,192 35,644 24,285 67,855 56,680 '.260;493, 
Services and Supplies 29,868 53,815 20,560 38,988 38,122 106,307 , 21i7,660 
Other Charges 268 2,274 4,401 '6;943 
Capital Assets 9,177 (1,430) 20,293 96,594 124,634 ' 

0249 Moon Ranch Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 1,834 322 1,199 298 3,653 

0250 Morelli Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 2,700 1,531 741 1,153 29 6;154~ 
Services and Supplies 98 103 200 

0257 Nicholas Farms Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and sc~nic .~orridor~,
" 

Salaries and Benefits 4,662 5,953 59 2,314 2,206 15;195 
,\ ... ' Services and Supplies 2,025 2,283 784 162 5,254 

0262 Oken Greenbelts Community separators and gree~bel~ Salaries and Benefits 1,890 578 953 634 1,485 864 6,402 

\ \ ' 
Services and Supplies 1,115 1,809 1,010 972 1,707 6,613 

0284 Quailbrook Ranch Greenbelts Scenic landscap~ YDJ~S and scenic c~rrid,ors / Salaries and Benefits 25,398 1,240 678 2,379 1,345 308 31,349 

0304 

0328 

San Francisco Archdiocese 

Sonoma Mountain Trail Corridor - Skiles 

Greenbelts 

Greenbelts 

CommunitYs~parators a'~d greenbel~
,,/"// !) \. 

Sc~nic ,!andscape uni~~ an? scenic corrido~s 
/ 

Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

15,537 

71 
134 
633 
924 

5,191 

106 

2,110 
98 

21 

1}583 

52 
21 

4,637 
3,531 

216 
223 

1,704 
216 

286 

1,730 
501 

20,996 

728 
134, 

12,~96 
,,5,269' 

""-" '~"" / ,/ ,/' - / Capital Assets 8,531 8,531' 

0170 Jacobs Ranch Greenbelts Scenic lan~scape-"units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 14,877 17,688 18,789 9,589 13,939 11,027 '85,907 

"'., 

'-'" '. 
Services and Supplies 
Other Charges 

42,992 33,683 49,693 12,404 
1,324 

34,192 
1,443 

69,515 
1,822 

•'242;~78 
4,589, 

0083 Coopers Grove 

" <' 

Gree~belt~ scen;~ lan~'scape ~~tts ~~~ scenic corridors 
Capital Assets 
Salaries and Benefits 2,523 802 

625 
1,407 5,671 5,925 2,686 

62,S, 
, 19,014~ 

\ \ v Services and Supplies 13,042 1,721 272 3,645 5,869 13,540 3,8,088 
0441 Sonoma Mountain Ranch Gre~nbefti' , 

""~ 
Scenic lan~5c~pe units and scenic corridors 

! ! 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Su pplies 

49,052 
44,833 

17,613 
37,135 

11,355 
16,405 

5,174 
4,530 

5,600 
3,800 

88;795 
106;703': 

, , Capital Assets 1,075 8,772 9;847 

0386 Wilroth Greenbelts ~c,~ni~ !aridscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 195 20 865 1,249 141 2,470 

0341 St.luke's Greenbelts 
// .':-. 

Community separators and greenbelts 
Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 

51 
11 

334 385 
11 

0259 Taylor Mountain Park and Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and sce~lc c6rridors Salaries and Benefits 38 59 50 146 

0217 Taylor Mountain Park and Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and sceni:\9r~l~ors Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 650 1,052 

197 
64 

6,713 
68 19 16 

'6;910' 
,1,87l' 

Services and Supplies 1,440 2,721 1,452 626 6,239 

0023 Taylor Mountain Park and Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape' unit~,~nd scenic corr!dor,s Salaries and Benefits 851 415 32 38 1,336 

0354 Tay/or Mountain Park and Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape':~its-an~-:~;~nlc-corri~'O~~"\ 
Services and Supplies 
Salaries and Benefits 

833 
373 

7,941 920 
456 

965 
461 

10,659 
1,289 

\ Services and Supplies 275 '275 

0370 Taylor Mountain Park and Preserve Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridor~. // Salaries and Benefits 36 28 2,076 168 ,2,309 
Services and Supplies 1,081 1,081 

0377 White Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 576 694 11 375 1;656' 

Services and Supplies 2,455 2;455' 

Capital Assets 807 807 

0378 White II Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 501 18 606 32 191 1,348 
Services and Supplies 2,297 2,297 

0384 Wikiup Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 631 26 664 

0387 Windsor Oaks Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 2,123 362 29 913 789 1,926 6,141 
Services and Supplies 1,250 4,163 378 946 6,136 

0389 Vee Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 1,380 1,258 16 625 231 2,799 6,31l.~ 

Page 15 



Appendix 2 
Services and Supplies 1,780 1,780 

0390 Young - Armas Greenbelts Community separators and greenbelts Salaries and Benefits 285 206 291 402 688 6,000 :7,8n ' 
Services and Supplies 2,224 1,530 1,523 5,277 

0391 Ziedrich Greenbelts Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 53 422 580 1,055 

Total Greenbelts 334,153 399,819 555,894 I 1,351,036 660,468 714,491 4,015,861 

0448 IAuberge Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 2,442 3861 1,798 6,834 2,963 14;422 
Services and Supplies 904 - 105 1,009 

0038 IBordessa Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 145 567 3,159 10,081 3,376 17,328 
Services and Supplies 8,734 7,025 2,781 18,541 
Capital Assets 2,264 2,264 

0054 ICaliahan Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 2,813 170 1,970 I 792 697 219 ,6;,6,60 
Services and Supplies 806 2,696 111 3,614 

0056 ICamp Gualala Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of bio~ic Si~!liricance, Salaries and Benefits 407 183 4,506 2,634 3,742 2,208 '13;679 
Services and Supplies 59 2,377 366 594 3,396 

0080 ICooley Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of bi~tic significance Salaries and Benefits 1,827 3,232 906 1,467 5,323 1,445 14,199 
, Services and Supplies 1,168 146 5,624 15,091 11,791 33,821 

0090 ICresta I Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and othe~areas of biotic significance , I~alaries and Benefits 27,549 3,255 1,628 12,854 5,506 3,906 54,697 
/ - Services and Supplies 78,266 2,146 17,695 18,511 17,356 16,517 -:, 15'0;491 

Capital Assets 275 1,913 7,083 9,271 

0102 IDlckson Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other a,reas?f ~iotic significance Salaries and Benefits 73 1,585 865 263 578 2,509 5,873, 
Services and Supplies 171 308 470 2,342 4,552 '7,842 

0104 IDoerksen Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian cor~i~ors and other areas Qf biotJc significance Salaries and Benefits 1,987 805 1,512 229 3,101 420 :,,~,0~6, 
", Services and Supplies 18,300 20,442 28,461 25,482 28,812 38,377 ",159,873, 

\ '. '-'" "'" Other Charges 2,762 5,370 17,023 25,155 

0112 IDogbane Preserve Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian cor~~dors and-oth~r areas of ~iotic·sig.nificance Salaries and Benefits 621 1,204 508 295 119 237 2,984 
Services and Supplies 2,019 5,855 1,988 3,186 3,905 16,953

\ ,. c' '''_ ./ 

0109 IEliot Natural Resources Biotic habitat are~~,._~.iparian corrid~rs a~~"ot~,erareas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 181 910 325 1,636 756 830 4,63!, 
, -', //' Services and Supplies 385 157 9,990 19,258 29,790, 

// ,/ '. \ '\ \ other Charges 358 358 

0159 IEstero Americana Preserve - Hepper Addition Natural Resources Biotic ~ab~at areas, riPrriap corridors a!1d o,ther areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 408 843 77 581 254 58 -2,222 
,/ ,. Services and Supplies 2,309 2,521 6,012 5,809 10,850 462 27;964 

. -. . \' Other Charges 1,042 1,042 
0099 IEstero Americana Preserve - Dewar Addition Natural Resources Biotic ~abit'!t ar~as, riparian cord~ors a~d'other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 158 663 488 530 222 2,061

Services and Supplies 3,309 2,317 1,200 6,826 

0125 IFreiberg Natural Resources Bio!ic habltat,areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 2,367 571 2,167 I 1,985 7,090 
Services and Supplies 366 366 

Bioth:; ~~bitat a'reas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance0365 IGrove of the Old Trees Natu~1 Resources Salaries and Benefits 316 415 50 1,000 189 ,,1,910

'\ ""..> Services and Supplies 2,584 I 4,971 3,693 i1.247, 

, \ , , Other Charges 1,900 1,900 

0145 IGuttman Natural Resources Biotic hab,tat :areas, riparian corridors and other are~s of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 588 48 159 577 1,271 2,643 
Services and Supplies 3,051 3,051 

0156 Hayfork Ranch Natural Resources Bioti~ hab.~tat areas, riparian corridors and other ar~.as ,of bioti~ significance Salaries and Benefits 12,103 1,238 1,528 893 37 15,798 
Services and Supplies 7,253 359 7,611 

0123 Fox Natural Resources Biotl,' habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic signinc~m~e Salaries and Benefits 415 328 8 752 

0158 Henshaw Natural Resources BJotic habitat areas, riparian co.rridors and other areas of biotic significa!lce Salaries and Benefits 478 51 559 1,087 
0167 Indian Valley Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 588 518 255 397 346 2,105 

Services and Supplies 439 439 
0333 Sonoma Development Cel.lter Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corrjd~,rs <!nd other areas of b,i~tiC significance Salaries and BenefIts 1,334 359 93 1,348 3,134 

Services and Supplies 59 59 

0171 Jenner Headlands Natural Resources Biotic habitat ~!.e-as, rjparian corridors ~nd\other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 18,757 29,908 29,151 9,141 11,575 4,951 103,484' 

'-" "'''- \, \ Services and Supplies 45,716 35,777 26,343 24,192 63,565 74,330 )~9.~i3 
, , Other Charges 4,159 7,307 , 11,466: 

Capital Assets 119,621 113,729 239,515 472,865 

0182 Keen Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors an_~ other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 889 372 511 1,772 

0451 Klesko Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and ot'her areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 4,187 12,428 24,205 4,981 3,037 ,48,838 
Services and Supplies 343 14,426 12,952 3,518 612 31,850 

0266 laguna Uplands Preserve Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 3,655 88 977 54 68 392 ,5,234 

Services and Supplies 879 879 

0221 Mayacama Mountains SanctuarY Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 319 4,549 823 3,913 788 10,392 
Services and Supplies 3,456 2,484 1,168 7,109 

0222 McCord Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 742 680 17 1,473 2,912 
Services and Supplies 445 445 

0227 McCormick Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 511 913 1,025 218 1,289 1,583 5,539 
Services and Supplies 2,254 1,288 111 ~,653_ 

Page 16 



Appendix 2 
Other Charges 3,129 I 3,129 

0228 McCrea Fee Natural Resources Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 125 

1,204 
25,888 

16,606 
14,546 

2,346 15 
216 ,,':~:¢~~, 

Capital Assets 4,910 1,800 6;710 
0229 McCullough Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 6,328 3,601 4,095 1,262 563 3,2331 ' , ,'19;0,~3' 

Services and Supplies 5,661 21,357 15,096 374 - . 42;487 
0472 Meadowlark Field Natural Resources Other open space projects through a matching grant program Salaries and Benefits 314 3,700 6,584 2,236 ".;;2,,8~3. 

Services and Supplies 523 4,156 , ;4,679, 
Capital Assets 84,177 51,186 135,363 

0241 Modini Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significanc.e··' Salaries and Benefits 151 694 4,654 1,430 990 947 ,8,866 
Services and Supplies 1,625 7,924 551 111 10,211 

0252 Myers Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 223 709 973 1,905 
0281 Occidental Road Wetland Transfer Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 2,749 4,280 37 507 22 7,595'

./' //' , Services and Supplies 825 825 
0276 Petaluma Marsh Acquisition, Enhancement and Access Natural Resources Other open space projects through a matching grant progri!~ '.,../ Salaries and Benefits 1,812 305 1,112 1,938 613 2,708 ,8,488 

/ "', Services and Supplies 1,283 15,402 5,705 10,240 32;630' 
// ' Other Charges 94,425 94,425 

0279 Pitkin Marsh Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and othe~. ar~as of biotic Si~~i.ficance Salaries and Benefits 12,537 570 1,651 3,675 1,312 29 19,774 
Services and Supplies 6,030 236 261 6,527 

0116 Buckeye Forest Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and oth~r ~re,as of bi~tic ~~gnificance Salaries and Benefits 1,479 4,784 243 809 27,727 , 35,050 
Services and Supplies 108 439 28,866 29,412 

0283 Pryor Ranch Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other a~ea,s of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 4,581 8,079 9,265 10,287 14,795 1,102 , '48,109 

" " Services and Supplies 6,083 10,090 98 5,263 2,050 626 24,210 
0446 Riddell Preserve Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian co·rrid.ors and other areas of biotic si~nificance Salaries and Benefits 4,982 13,184 893 172 1,434 20,665 

Services and Supplies 195 8,075 59 324 952 9,605 
0294 Rigler Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 498 1,531 56 178 2,263 
0301 Saddle Mountain Open Space Preserve Natural Resources Biotic habitat areas, riparian corrid;ors ~nd o~her}lfeas ..,?~ biot~~ significance

\ '\./' /' ./ 

Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

18,037 
1,667 

13,823 
42,393 

14,695 
31,377 

4,905 
11,560 

6,676 
4,411 

6,498 
7,268 '~~~~: 

, , Capital Assets 94,657 4,214 15,116 1i3,987 
0024 Saddle Mountain Open Space Preserve Natural Resources Biotic h~~itat)Ueas, rip\ariap corridors ~nd fther areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 

/,/ ) i \ .., Services and Supplies 65,294 138,981 22,351 5,058 '231;685' 
Capital Assets 4,384 4,384 

0317 Sebastopol Railroad Forest - Joe Rodota Trail Natural Resources Biotic ha~,itat area~, riparian 'corridors an.~.pther areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 114 219 904 4,263 5,500 

'. .... ,/" ./ .-" Services and Supplies 103 103 
0367 Van Hoosear Wildflower Preserve Natural Resources Biotic habj~at are,as, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance 

",, --', 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

552 1,256 944 
6,758 

625 
10,060 

744 
4,549 

1,971 
223 

",6,092'
,', iis89' 

Other Charges 5,573 2,520 8,093 
0382 Willow Creek Conservation Easement Natural Resources Biotfc.~a·bi~.at are~s,..riPar~~n corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 497 106 221 723 351 1;898 

" v /, Services and Supplies 59 '59 
0383 Willow Creek Conservation Easement Natural R~sources Biotic hab\~at\areas, riparian corridors and other are~s Of~.i~tiC significance Salaries and Benefits 358 509 372 1,348 1,998 4,585 

Services and Supplies 378 56 434 
0086 Wright Preservation Bank Natural Resources Biotic hab;tatlareas, riparian corridors and other are~s of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 2,006 456 1,058 2,086 123 1,436 7,165 

Services and Supplies 413 118 410 418 259 1,618 

;Total Natural Resources 373,387 414,865 462,273 387,803 614,410 644,198 I 2,896,936 

0008 IAlman Marsh Recreation Qth'er open space projects thr~.ugh\ a matching grant program Salaries and Benefits 790 1,124 213 291,'''' ' .2,156 
Services and Supplies 3,394 3,298 6;692 

0209 IAUStin Creek SRA - Magers Addition Recreation Biotic habitat areas, riparian corr'idors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 64 822 886 
0144 Austin Creek SRA - Gustafsson Addition Recreation Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridt?rs' and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 150 37 455 192 834 
0428 Bayer Neighborhood Park and Gardens Recreation Other open space projects through ~,matching grant pr<?g'r~O} Salaries and Benefits 2,458 275 1,295 3,925 1,680 9,633, 

\ 
\. 

Services and Supplies 
Other Charges 

339 4,629 
2,906 

2,864 
4,511 

2,115 "9,947' 
7,418 

\ Capital Assets 108,457 2,836 111,293 
0005 Recreation Other open space projects througtJ a matching grant program 

~, "-> 
Salaries and Benefits 
Services and Supplies 

15,834 
1,391 

13,047 
26,233 

8,382 
13,933 

2,492 
4,321 

292 
12,236 

869 
15,417 

, ,40,9,1? 
',73;532 

Other Charges 6,987 6,9.87 
0034 IBodega Bay Fire House Recreation Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 212 156 756 11 947 , ,,2,090' 

Services and Supplies 52 '52 
0028 CaJabazas Creek Open Space Preserve Recreation Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 

Services and Supplies 
10,957 
11,583 

13,240 
30,261 

12,566 
33,826 

26,998 
20,478 

8,347 
9,685 

38,748 
76,877 U~:jiri 

Other Charges 1,475 3,063 ~ ~~~3~~' 
Capital Assets 28,022 "'-28,022 

0059 Carrington Ranch Recreation Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors Salaries and Benefits 89 539 35 261 104 491 '1,520 

Services and Supplies 9,690 32,671 6,264 3,557 52;182' 
Other Charges 1,747 ,.,.1,74'1 

Page 17 



Appendix 2 
1,257 810 239 289Salaries and Benefits 3,712Recreation Other open space projects through a matching grant program "6,3070010 Cloverdale River Park - Anderson 

:1:0,955Services and Supplies 2,500 2,560 5,895 
Other Charges 2103,000 3;iio 

. :' 87'Salaries and Benefits 29 42 16Recreation other open space projects through a matching grant programCloverdale River Park - Girouard0074 
. '49 Services and Supplies 49 

Salaries and Benefits 31 42 20 264 8Recreation Other open space projects through a matching grant programCloverdale River Park - Richardson0075 365 
839Salaries and Benefits 223 408 710 94Recreation Other open space projects through a matching grant programCloverdale River Park - Treadwell0358 "."i'274' 

Services and Supplies 2,~:~ 1:-;: 2;i:!
Other Charges 

Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significanc~ , Salaries and Benefits 990 3,110 18,280 10,808 6,639 ··',39,827,Recreation0455 Cresta II 
Services and Supplies 1,455 10,020 10,503 ':21;978 
Salaries and Benefits 4,452 8,180 2,972 15,173Scenic landscape units and scenic corridors 9,203 41,677 ·.'~81,657,Recreation0120 Fitch Mountain II 

9,740Services and Supplies 4,818 410 10,356 9,521 102,331 137,176 
186Salaries and Benefits 60Recreation Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of bio~ic ~ignificance 277 524Forestville River Access0242 

73Other open space projects through a matching grant progr~m' ,,'  Salaries and Benefits 3,605 15,377 1,039 81 .';20,175,RecreationGiorgi Park0422 
Services and Supplies 138 10,739 2,451 295 13,622 ' 

890Other open space projects through a matching gra~t program Salaries and Benefits 644 12,512Recreation '14,0.460470 Giorgi Park 
Services and Supplies 5737,885 8,458 

234Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and Benefits 240 44Recreation 119 638Healdsburg Ridge Open Space Preserve0124 
Services and Supplies 100 100 
Salaries and Benefits 35Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other aTeas of biotic significance 129 20Recreation 184Healdsburg Ridge Open Space Preserve0013 

50,148Salaries and Benefits 56,774 20,222 32,042 38,253 30,791Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other area~ of b!~tic significanceRecreationHealdsburg Ridge Access Easement0157 C'~?:81~3<l 
Services and Supplies 47,482 35,051 43,178 57,585 45,288 '< ,:252,087 . 23,504 

""'d;i18'Other Charges 1,245 1,701 172'" 
Capital Assets 6,338 13,009 119,737 219,486 113,899 472,468 

68Salaries and Benefits 905 40 87 930Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance 2,031RecreationHood Mountain Regional Park - Johnson Addition0173 
Salaries and Benefits 4Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors"and ot,her ~reas ofbl!lti~ significance 24 28Recreation 56Hood Mountain Regional Park (Lower Access)0174 
Salaries and Benefits 786 1,250 1,347 2,861 140Recreation Biotic habitat ar~~.s, ~!parian corrid\"rs a.~d ot~er areas ~f biotic significance 352 6,736·Hood Mountain Regional Park -lawson Addition0200 
Services and Supplies 14,340 79 14;419 

Other open,,~~'ace proje~~ .through a 'match'ing grant program Salaries and Benefits 60 149Recreation i090184 Keiser Park 
,/" ',.//' )) \ '\ Services and Supplies 840 840 

Salaries and Benefits 203 172 39Recreation CO,mhlynity separato~s anld greenbelts \. ;, 413laguna de Santa Rosa Aquisition and Improvement0196 
18,509 12,527 : ','59;U4Services and Supplies 14,906 2,599 4,156 6,417,/ 'I.' 

Other Charges 7841,041 1,826 
Salaries and Benefits 876Biotic habitat are.as, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance 1,883Recreation 2,7590204 Lorenzini 

3,475Salaries and Benefits 27,547 32,293 5,823 805 692Biot!c habitat,areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance 70,635'Recreation / rMcCullough Phase I0411 
Services and Supplies 24,872 31,327, " 4,761 4,217 65,177 
Salaries and Benefits 73 170 30,204Recreation, Bi~tk.~a'bi~at are~s"ripar!:n corridors and other areas of biotic significance 213 11,680 12,806 55,1450412 McCullough Phase II 
Services and Supplies 11,944 4,696 16,640, 

654Other open s\pace projects through a matching gran(p~ogram Salaries and Benefits 212 2,351 1,240 173 1,150Recreatio~ 5;781McNear Peninsula Waterfront Park0231 
; 1 : ' Services and Supplies 615 314 929 

Salaries and Benefits 425Other open space projects through a matching grant' program " 1,461 226 1,614 .3,725.Recreation0254 Nathanson Creek 
, , (,,/ ' '''-.'' Services and Supplies 103 4553,311 '3;868 

Other Charges 459 2,315 2,774 
Salaries and Benefits 111 109 1,508Sceni/landscape units and scenic corridors 1,248 187 58Recreation 3,222Old Monte Rio School0264 

·,,41232,Salaries and Benefits 98 12,799 15,138 2,834 1,079oth~r open space projects thrQ~gh.\a matching grant program 9,284RecreationPatterson Point Preserve0427 
Services and Supplies 3,047 10,559 4,823 3,569 :;·Zi;997 
Capital Assets 5,200 5,500 4,849 18,823,3,275 
Salaries and Benefits 3,040 905 , :,15,937. 4,185 1,526 1,212 5,068Recreation0269 Paulin Creek Preserve Other open space projects through,~ rT\~tching grant pro~!~~ 

10,165Services and Supplies 7,318 1,816 6,304 1,662 20,821 48,086 
765 1,015Salaries and Benefits 32 652 114 2,577.Recreation0039 Prince Gateway Park Other open sPj3ce 'proj~~ts through a ~at~~ing grant progra~ 

98 79 1,000 1,177Services and Supplies 
97 865 250 116 121 248Biotic habitat areas, dpariar, corridors an'd other areas of biotic significance Salaries and BenefitsRecreation .... 1,~9~0424 Riverfront Regional Park 

-", ~,~~ \. '\ 13,078 19,504Services and Supplies 4,327 21,276 16,771 .74,957 
4,044 2,394Other Charges 5,474 U;912 

188 607Salaries and Benefits 10,075 7,234 1,868 1,917Other open space projects through a matchl~g grant programRecreation0295 Riverkeeper Stewardship Park .. 'j!;~~:3,059Services and Supplies 370 17,014 3,887 2,454 
18,573 .32,348Capital Assets 13,775 

,,'20,92,6160 70518,288 282 546 944Biotic habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance Salaries and BenefitsRecreation0298 Roche Ranch 
,',li;473223Services and Supplies 11,251 

3,150 3,150Other Charges 
,24,592266 710Salaries and Benefits 125 23,491Other open space projects through a matching grant programRecreation0471 Roseland Creek Park and Trail 

Services and Supplies 59 59 
137 463Salaries and Benefits 172 123 31Other open space projects through a matching grant programRecreation0308 Prince Memorial Greenway 

Services and Supplies 28,035 7,146 21,830 5J,01,1 

Page 18 



Appendix 2 
0307 Rosa Creek Greenway - 3 Bridges space projects through a matching grant program 

0314 separators and greenbelts 

0318 Skate Park and Community Garden space projects through a matching grant program 

0321 Skate Park and Community Garden open space projects through a matching grant program 

Coast State Park- Red Hill Addition landscape units and scenic corridors 
Coast State Park - Willow Creek Addition habitat areas, riparian corridors and other areas of biotic significance 

/ 

open space projects through a matching grant program 

Valley Regional Park - SOC Addition landscape units and scenic corridors 

Recreation habitat areas, riparian corridors and othe~.afeas of biotic significance 

Recreation habitat areas, riparian corridors and oth~r areas of biotic significance 

Recreation habitat areas, riparian corridors and oth~r 3r.eas ~f,biO~!C significance 

-'. 
. , 

Recreation open space projects through a matching grant program "~ 
\ \ . '. ..,~,- " 

Recreation open space projects through a matching grant program -, 

Recreation open space. projects through' ~ matching grant program' 

Recreation open space proj'fcts,~hrough a rt:'atc~ing grant program 

i j , 
Recreation Bi()tic h,aoitat areas, ripar~an corridors and ot~er areas of biotic significance 

open space projects through a matching grant 

"-. 
"\, 

'. 

217 

107 

1,637 
348 

9,017 
6,000 

280 
1,626 
2,994 

483 
2,343 

185 
201 
36 

2,132 
19,948 

738 
634 

279 
6,601 

708 

236 
59 

38,578 
24,328 

721 339 
886 
47 

579 

1 

2,804 
413 1,187 

1,402 140 

161 

1,954 1 1,782 
59 15,259 

1,357 

498 

1,;40 I 12,374 
455 

79 
322 106 

1,091 2,626 
2,828 

184 1,532 

88,000 
92 545 

216 119 

716 20 

76,417 1 
9,341 7,048 

68,573 

11 

229 

49 

19 
2,009 

16,016 

19,103 
2,293 

8,911 

689 

403 

1 
6,~54 

159 

16 1 
35 

368 

110,867 

259 

1,317 
2,155 

1,699 
11,573 

924 
15,259 

2,916 
279 

2,981 

301 
7,386 
7,810 

705 

1 
378 

5,800 

880 
1,000 

911 

11 

1,953 
56 

11,221 
11,493 

i! ...... " 
Criteria: Report includes all costs of labor allocated to the identified properties. ". ./,/ ". / "" \', 

Report includes all non Jabor costs allocated to the identified properties except for costSof a{quisition of land and easements (subobjects 8500, 9480: 9850;.9855). 
Sources: EZ FAMI5 Expenditure Summary Report -""-. // """, "', 

SCAPOSD labor Database 'v' 'v/ 

Property listing By Category Report provided by Mary Dodge. 

Page 19 



Appendix 3 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Protected Lands Updated: May 31, 2013 

Property Acq. Plan Category District Acreage Escrow Date District's Contribution 
Partnership 
Funding Purchase Price 

Independent 
Appraised Value Transaction Type 

3 CLOUDY BEND Agriculture 2 368.00 03/26/93 S 100,000 S 100,000 S 412,000 Conservation Easement 

8 ST. FRANCIS VINEYARDS Agriculture 1 92.00 09/23/93 S 875,000 S 875,000 S 1,570,000 Conservation Easement 

9 VASILA Agriculture 2 200.00 09/24/93 S 125,000 S 125,000 S 125,000 Conservation Easement 

11 BURNS Agriculture 2 560.00 11/10/93 S 425,000 S 425,000 S 440,000 Conscn-ation Easement 

13 DOUGAN Agriculture 2 376.00 06/21/94 S 350,000 S 350,000 S 492,000 Conservation Easement 

25 MAFPIA (Stan' Point Ranch) Agriculture 2 285.00 04/28/95 S 470,000 S 470,000 S 506,000 Conservation Easement 

28 LANG Agriculture 4 243.00 06/30/95 S 1,250,000 S 1,250,000 S 1,550,000 Conservation Easement 

30 DUTTON RAt"lCI-I Agriculture 5 69.00 09/15/95 S 315,000 S 315,000 S 340,000 Conservation Easement 

33 SILACCI DAIRY Agriculture 2 196.00 11/15/95 S 495,000 S 495,000 S 540,000 Conservation Easement 

35 SANTA ANGELINA (McMicking) Agriculture 4 7877.00 01/03/96 S 1,725,000 S 1,725,000 S 3,450,000 Conservation Easement 

42 MICKELSEN Agriculture 2 419.00 OS/24/96 S 670,000 S 670,000 S 787,000 Conservation Easement 

43 

+l 

SLEEPY HOLLOW DAIRY (Herzog) 

KNUDTSEN DAIRY 

Agriculture 

Agriculture 

2 

2 

561.00 

221.00 

06/07/96 S 990,000 

07/23/96 S -123,000 

$ 

$ 

990,000 

-123,000 

S 1,200,000 

S 423,000 

Conservation Easement 

Conservation Easement 

-18 SOTOYOME I-lIGHLANDS (Weston) Agriculture -I 1160.00 12/11/96 $. 1,650,000 S 1,650,000 S 1,980,000 Conservation Easement 

55 MOIUUSON BROTHERS DAIRY Agriculture 2 

'. 

\137.00 ,,' 11/03/97 

' / 

S 375,000 $ 375,000 S 392,000 Consen-ation Easement 

60 AGGIO RANCI-I Agriculture 

-'. 

2 

, 
2-19.00 02/20/98 S 485,000 S 485,000 S 498,000 Conscn-ation Easement 

68 HAFEY RANCI-I Agriculture -I 500.00 09/30/98 S 900,000 S 900,000 S 1,390,000 Conscn-ation Easement 

71 MAZZETTA DAIRY Agriculture 2 480.62 0-1/23/99 S 990,000 S 990,000 $ 990,000 Conservation Easement 

75 NAI-lMENS Agriculture 2 255.00 06/25/99 $ 1,150,000 S 1,150,000 $ 1,223,000 Conservation Easement 

77 COLLISS Agriculture 5 1578.00 01/05/00 S 1,025,000 S 1,025,000 S 1,395,000 Conservation Eascmcn t 

79 CAMOZZI DAIRY Agriculture 2 256.00 01/21/00 S 1,500,000 S 1,500,000 S 1,580,000 Conservation Easement 

94 TELMORINI DAIRY Agriculture 5 1217.00 01/10/02 S 1,800,000 S 1,800,000 S 1,856,000 Conservation Easement 

95 AZEVEDO DAIRY Agriculture 2 236.00 01/29/02 S 1,750,000 S 1,750,000 S 2,115,000 Conservation Easement 

100 tvIARTIN Agriculture , 2 429.42 04/05/02 S 1,600,000 S 1,600,000 $ 1,785,000 Conservation Easement 

104 BIANCHI AgO_culture 5 631.26 05/03/02 S 1,518,000 $ 1,518,000 S 1,615,000 Conservation Easement 

103 SCOTT Agriculture 2 533.32 08/16/02 S 3,345,000 $ 3,345,000 S 3,900,000 Conservation Easement 

113 BRAYTON Agriculture 2 130.00 05/30/03 $ 1,301,500 $ 1,301,500 S 1,370,000 Conservation Easement 

122 FLOCCHINI Agriculture 2 . 153.16 02/26/04 S 780,000 S 780,000 S 1,070,000 Conscn'ation Easement 

127 ROBLAR RANCI-! Agriculture 2 758.00 OS/21/04 S 2,269,500 S 2,269,500 S 2,775,000 Conscfl'iltion Easement 

130 MAFFIA RANCI-! Agriculture 2 245.00 10/13/04 S 1,150,000 $ 1,150,000 S 1,150,000 Conscn·ation Easement 

SUMlVIER I-lOME PARK Agriculture 5 \ 69.0 03/15/05 S $ S ConscnOltion Easement 

145 TREMARI Agriculture 2 874.86 

/ 

0-1/18/07 S 2,650,000 S 3,150,000 $3,710,000 
ConsclTation Easement (ptn pd 

by NRCS Grant S500K) 

Aericulture Total . $ 34,452,000 $ - $ 34,952,000 $ 42,629,000 

158 FALLETTI RANCI-I Farms & Ranches 2 

-"'c 

\\
4.4 

1\. 
10/17/08 S 3,135,000 S 3,300,000 S 3,300,000 

FEE District holds CE (ptn 
pd by City of Cotati S165k) 

160 PACHECO DAIRY Farms & Ranches 2 230.2 03/20/09 S 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 S 1,545,000 Conscn'ation Easement 

164 GILARDI Farms & Ranches 5 396.0 06/04/09 S 1,615,000 S 1,615,000 S 1,615,000 Conscn"ation Easement 

166 QUINLAN Farms & Ranches 5 248.0 09/25/09 S 1,680,000 $ 1,680,000 S 1,860,000 Consc£1.ation Easement 

165 SITTENAUER (LA REVE BERRY FARlvl) Farms & Ranches 2 8.65 09/28/09 S 387,000 $ 387,000 S 387,000 Conservation Easement 

171 SMITI·I FAMILY RANCH Farms & Ranches 2 238.39 12/??/09 S 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000 S 2,300,000 
Conscn"'3.tion Easement & 

Irrevocable Trail Offer 

175 CRANE HOME RANCH Farms & Ranches 1 48.53 06/25/10 S 365,750 S 365,750 S 385,000 Consen'ation Easement 

179 UNCLE HENRY'S RAt"lCH Farms & Ranches 2 96.69 09/24/10 $1,000,000' $1,000,000 $1,022,000 Conservation Easement 

Page 20 



Appendix 3 


Partnership Independent 
Property Acq. Plan Category District Acreage Escrow Date District's Contribution Funding Purchase Price Appraised Value Transaction Type 

Farms & Ranches Total $11,982,750 $0 $12,147,750 $12,414,000 

1 MARTY Greenbelts 2 223.00 09/04/92 S -l95,000 $ -l95,000 S 495,000 Conservation Easement 

6 ALBA LANE Greenbelts -l 31.00 09/14/93 S 635,000 $ 635,000 S 635,000 ConscLyation Easement 

7 \\/f-I1TE Greenbelts -I -l1.00 10/07/93 S 4-18,000 $ 4-18,000 S 448,000 Consen-ation Easement 

10 BROWN Greenbelts 3 14.00 10/29/93 .S 190,000 $ 190,000 S 200,000 Conscn·ation Easement 
- '. . 

12 ST. LUKE'S Greenbelts -I 33.00 0-1/29/94 S '. 660,000 S 660,000 S 660,000 Conservation Easement 

14 COTATI HIGHLANDS Greenbelts 2 317.00 06/30/94 S 2,080,000 S 2,080,000 S 2,080,000 Conservation Easement 
/ 

17 DELOACH Greenbelts 4 75.00 09/01/94 S 535,000 S 535,000 S 535,000 Conservation Easement , 

18 ZlEDRICH Greenbelts 4 42.00 09/01/)4 S 140,000 S 140,000 S 140,000 Conservation Easement 
"'. '. '. 

15 SAN FRANCISCO ARCHDIOCESE Greenbelts 2 28.00 09/02/94 S 133,000 S 133,000 S 133,000 FEE 

19 FITCH MOUNTAIN Greenbelts 4 '178.50 09/15/94 S 1,030,000 S 1,030,000 S 1,030,000 ConscnTation Easement 

20 FITCH MOUNTAIN DONATION Greenbelts 4 3.50 09/15/94 S S Conservation Easement 

, 
24 HAROUTUNIAN SOO111 Greenbelts 2 , 21.00 OS/23/95 S 169,200 $ 169,200 S 169,200 FEE 

26 CARINALLI Greenbclts 5 245.00 06/16/95 S 760,000 S 760,000 S 760,000 Conscn"ation Eascmcnt 
, 

29 SILBERSTEIN (\\'ikiup) Grcenbelts 4 12.00 09/07/95 S 200,000 S 200,000 S 290,000 Conservation Easement 

34 NICHOLAS FARMS Greenbelts 1 306.00 12/12/95 S 1,400,000 S 1,400,000 S 1,584,000 Conservation Easement 

37 MATTERI Greenbelts 3 116.00 01/19/96 S 790,000 S 790,000 S 875,000 FEE 

32 MOON RANCH Greenbelts 2 381.00 03/29/96 S 1,400,000 S 1,400,000 S 1,400,000 Conscrvation Easement ! 

50 YEE .' Greenbelts 2 / 630.00 04/25/97 S 795,000 $ 795,000 S 832,000 Conscn-ation Easement I , 
\

! I 
b5/19/97 S51 YOUNG - ARMOS Grecnbelts I 3 45.00 370,000 S 370,000 S 443,000 FEE 

53 GEARY RANCH Greenbelts 1 592.00 07131/97 S 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000 S 2,300,000 Conservation Easement 

56 KEEGAN & COPPIN Greenbelts 1 24.00 12/11/97 S 550,000 S 550,000 S 550,000 FEE 

57 \'V1NDSOR OAKS (Stein) Greenbelts , 4 711.00 02/17/98 S, 1,600,000 S 1,600,000 S 2,255,000 Conservation Easement 
-../ \ 

' \ /' 

62 HAROUTUNIAN - NORTH Greenbelts 4 ". \18.00 02/27/98 S 395,000 $ 395,000 S 435,000 FEE 
63 OKEN Greenbelts 3 \ 73.00 04/13/98 S 890,000 S 890,000 S 890,000 FEE 

66 DASHIELL/MOLLE Greenbelts 3 ' 83:00 08/04/98 S 330,000 $ 330,000 S 330,000 Conservation Easement 

65 WHITE II Greenbelts 
/: 

15.00 08/14/98 S 235,000 S 235,000 S 235,000 Conservation Easement 

70 BATH-WATT Grcenbelts 3 47.00 12/21/98 S 790,000 S 790,000 S 790,000 FEE 

74 SKILES Greenbelts 1 171.00 '. 05/18/99 S 632,000 S 632,000 S 632,000 Conservation Easement 

76 NUNES Greenbelts 3 120.00 12/23/99 S 975,000 S 975,000 S 1,100,000 FEE 

82 COOK RANCH Greenbelts 1 519.00 10/04/00 S 1,700,000 S 1,700,000 S 1,886,000 Conservation E,1.sement 

87 HO Greenbelts 1 30.00 05/04/01 S 560,000 $ 560,000 S 560,000 FEE 

84 GLEN OAKS Greenbelts 1 234.00 05/18/01 S 1,500,000 S 1,500,000 S 1,665,000 Conservation Easement 

89 ALPHA FARM Greenbelts 5 428.53 12/17/01 S S S Consen'ation Easement 

90 BROW'N FARM Greenbelts 5 500.3-1 12/17/01 S - S - S - Conservation Easement 

91 KELLY FAlUvI Greenbelts 5 396.29 12/17/01 S - S - S - Conservation Easement 

92 STONE FAlUvI Greenbelts 5 114.93 12/17/01 S - S - S - Conservation Eascment 

97 MORELLI Greenbelts 2 -154.00 03/20/02 S 2,161,000 S 2,161,000 S 2,161,000 Conservation Easement 

Page2! 



Appendix 3 

Property Acq. Plan CateJ>;ory District AcreaJ>;e Escrow Date District's Contribution 
Partnership 
Funding Purchase Price 

Independent 
Appraised Value Transaction Type 

102 BALLETTO Greenbelts 5 252.66 04/18/02 S 2,600,000 S 2,600,000 $ 2,650,000 Conservation Easement 

110 GROSSI Greenbelts 1 48.00 12/31/02 S 315,000 S 315,000 S 315,000 Conservation Easement 

'118 CONNOLLY Greenbelts 4 63.00 07/31/03 S 250,000 S 250,000 $ 250,000 Conservation Easement 

120 IJACOBS RANCH Greenbelts 1 168.00 08/13/03 S . ' 4,878,000 S 4,878,000 S 4,878,000 FEE 

126 WILROTH Greenbelts 1 240.00 0-1/30/04 S 2220,000 S 2,220,000 S 2,765,000 Conservation Easement 

128 ELIOT Greenbelts 1 71.00 OS/28/04 $ - S - S - Conservation Easement 

132 WILROTH (11.3 acres) Greenbelts 1 39,00 12/01/04 $ '. - S - S 52,000 FEE 

139 MONTINI Greenbelts 1 98,0 12/15/05 

'. 

S .11,300,000 S 12,550,000 $ 12,550,000 
FEE (ptn Pd by C.C Grant 

S1,250,000) 

MONTINI Greenbelts 1 57.0 12/15/05 S 200,000 S 1,350,000 S 1,350,000 
Conservation Easement (ptn. Pd 

by City Grant SI, 150,000 

140 TAYLOR MOUNTAIN (RUSSELL) Greenbelts 3 823.0 01/13/06 S 18,000,000 S 18,000,000 $ 18,000,000 FEE 

144 CRANE Greenbelts 1 80.55 09/08/06 S 1,100,000 $ 1,100,000 $1,100,000 Conservation Easement 

191 TAYLOR MOUNTAIN Greenbelts 3 0.0 Transfer with CE 
148 CLOVER SPRINGS Greenbelts & Scenic 4 248,7 09/28/07 S 7,780,000 S 7,980,000 $ 7,980,000 FEE 

154 QUAILBROOK RANCH Greenbelts & Scenic 1 160,0 06/05/08 S 1,600,000 S 1,600,000 $ 1,600,000 Conscevation Easement 

QUAILBROOK RANCH Greenbelts & Scenic 1 0,0 06/05/08 S - S - $ - Irrevocable Trail Offer 

161 COOKE RANCH Greenbelts & Scenic I 

\ 

193,0 

, 
" 

06/02/09 s 1,000,000 S 1,000,000 S 4,100,000 
Conservation Easement & 

Irrevocable Trail Offer 

172 DANIELLI Greenbelts & Scenic /1 164,58 03/31/10 S 1,480,500 S 1,480,500 $ 1,645,000 Conservation Easement , . 
Greenbelts & Scenic Total $ 79,571,700 ,$ - $ 82,171,700 $ 87,733,200 

2 MCCORD/AUDUBON PRESERVE Natural Resources 4 3053,00 12/09/92 S 700,000 S 700,000 S 1,682,000 Conservation Easement 

4 SEBASTOPOLRAILROAD FOREST Natural Resources 5 8,00 07/29/93 $ 20,000 S 20,000 S 20,000 Conservation Easement 

5 DOERI(SEN Natural Resources 1 120,00 08/20/93 S 107,000 S 107,000 S 550,000 Conservation Easement 

21 MYERS Natural Resources 5 373,00 12/16/94 S 100,000 S 100,000 S 500,000 Conservation Easement 

22 FOX Natural Resources 4 (22,00) 02/02/95 S 150,000 S 150,000 S 194,000 Conservation Easement 

23 HEALDSBURG RIDGE '. Natural Resources 4 (33,00) 02/27/95 S 300,000 S 300,000 S 339,000 Conservation Easement 

31 FREIBERG NatUral Resources 1 122,62 09/22/95 S 937,500 S 937,500 S 937,500 Conservation Easement 

HENSHAW Natural Resources ; 1 80.38 09/22/95 S 312,500 $ 312,500 S 312,500 Conservation Easement 

41 LAGUNA UPLANDS (palm Terrace) Natural Resource~ 5 8,00 05/03/96 $ 900,000 S 900,000 $ 1,240,000 Conservation Easement 

49 GUTTMAN Natural Resources -'I . 158,00 09/04/96 $ 400,000 S 400,000 S 413,650 Conservation Easement 

46 CALLAHAN Nanu'al Resources 4 106.00 09/26/96 S 550,000 S 550,000 S 600,000 Conservation Easement 

52 MCCREA Natural Resources I 287,00 07/23/97 S 1,200,000 S 1,200,000 S 1,353,000 Conservation Easement 

54 I-IEPPER Natural Resources 5 87,00 09/05/97 S 285,000 S 285,000 S 465,000 Conservation Easement 

58 WRIGHT PRESERVATION BANK (Cramer) Natural Resources 5 173,00 01/21/98 S 1,650,000 S 1,650,000 $ 3,600,000 FEE 

64 SONOMA DEVELOPMENT CNT - Area 1 Natural Resources 1 290,00 01/06/99 S 255,000 S 255,000 $ 255,000 Conservation Easement 

81 GROVE OF TI-lE OLD TREES Natural Resources 5 28,00 09/13/00 S 1,250,000 $ 1,250,000 $ 2,740,000 Conservation E.'lsemcnt 

83 MODINI Natural Rcsources 4 

. 

1725,00 12/06/00 S 1,044,000 S 1,044,000 S 1,160,000 Conservation Easement 

86 DEWAR Natural Resources 5 40,00 05/11/01 S 284,750 $ 28-'1,750 $ 335,000 Conservation Easement 

88 COOLEY RANCH Natural Resources 4 1906-tOO 12/28/01 S 5,750,000 S 6,000,000 S 11,915,000 
CE (ptn pd by Water Agency 

Grant S250K) 

105 MCCULLOUGH Natural Resources 1 (284,00 08/27/02 S 2,898,500 $ 2,898,500 S 2,898,500 Conscrvation Easemcnt 

99 RIGLER Natural Resources 5 415.00 09/17/02 S 850,000 S 850,000 S 850,000 ConscLTation Easemcnt 

109 KEEN Natural Rcsources 1 60.64 12/24/02 S 350,000 S 350,000 S 700,000 Conservation Easement 

119 INDIAN VALLEY Natural Resources 5 24,78 07/16/03 S 465,000 S 465,000 S 930,000 Conserration Easement 

Page 22 



Appendix 3 

Partnership Independent 
Property Acq. Plan Catel(ory District Acrea2'c Escrow Date District's Contribution Fundinl( Purchase Price Al'p~aised Value Transaction Type 

Conservation Easement (pm. Pd 

116 VAN HOOSEAR W1LDFLO\,('ER PRESERVE Natural Resources 1 163.00 07/H/0-l S 3,300,000 S 5,000,000 S 5,690,000 by WCB Grant SI.7) 
Conservation Easement (ptn pd 

131 DICKSON RANCH Natural Resources 2 M8.00 1I/02/0-l S 2,600,000 S 4,212,000 S 5,090,000 bySLTSI.612) 
WILLOW CREEK - Seed Orchard Tract Natural Resources 5 305.00 05/06/05 S 1,805,000 S 1,805,000 S 1,805,000 Conscn'ation Easement 

WILLOW CREEK - Northern Tract Natural Resources 5 210.00 05/06/05 S 630,000 S 630,000 S 630,000 Conservation Easement 
Conservation Easement (ptn pd 

136 CAMP GUALALA Natural Resources 5 425.0 12/05/05 $ 450,000 S 450,000 S 850,000 bv Dept of Forestry S400K) 
FEE (ptn I'd by C.C Grant 

142 SADDLE MOUNTAIN - Phase I Natuml Resources 1 960.0 08/24/06 S 8,700,000 S 9,700,000 S 14,400,000 SI,OOO,OOO) 

SADDLE MOUNTAIN - Phase II Natural Resources 1 07/06/07 
. 

1st CE amendment/Grant 
177 MARIA HAl"lSEN TRUST EXCHAl"lGE Natural Resources 1 -33.55 / p~ndin)" S - S - S Deed 

Natural Resources Total $ 38,244,250 $ - $ 42,806,250 $ 62,455,150 

16 LORENZINI Recreation 5 221.00 08/22/94$ 500,000 S 500,000 S 1,597,000 Conscnration Easement 
27 GRATON RAILROAD TRAIL Recreation 5 16.00 ···.05/31/95 S 174,356 S 174,356 S 240,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

36 MCCORMICK RANCH Recx:eation 1 353.00 01/08/96 S 1,700,000 $ 1,700,000 S 4,157,000 Conscx:vation Easement 

\;. 2~.00 
, 

39 SCHOPFLIN (UNITY) BALLFIELDS Recx:eation 4 .. 04/03/96 $ 400,000 S 400,000 S 405,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

\\ ". 
, 

40 ANDERSON Recreation 4 3'0.00 04/10/96 S 220,000 $ 220,000 S 220,000 FEE (District I-Iolds C.E.) 

38 ALMAN l'vIARSH Recreation 2 27.00 05/30/96 S 54,000 S 54,000 S 54,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 
\ '. 

47 TREAD\'VELL Recreation 
/ 

4 i 10.00 07/05/96 S 100,000 S 100,000 S 100,000 FEE (District Holds c.E.) 

45 MCNEAR PENINSULA Recreation 2 10.00 10/14/96 S 184,500 S 184,500 S 184,500 FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 
MCCORMICK RANCH Recreation 1011.00 OS/29/97 S 650,000 S 650,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

59 MAGERS (Gm ' Creek Portion) Recreation 5 62.00 01/15/98 S 80,000 S 80,000 S 80,000 Conservation Easement 

61 GUST AFSSON (Gray Creek Portion) Recreation 5 30.00 03/11/98 S 134,000 S 134,000 S 134,000 Conservation Easement 

69 MONTE RIO SCHOOL DISTRICT Recreation " ····5 4.00 02/04/99 S 188,000 S 188,000 S 188,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

67 BODEGA BAY FIREHOUSE Recreation 5 0.50 04/16/99 S 50,000 S 50,000 S 50,000 Conservation Easement 

73 MOM'S BEACI-I " Recreation ", 1\, 5 
, 

11.00 .04/23/99 S 70,000 S 70,000 S 70,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

72 NATHANSON CREEK Recreation . 1 0.70 06/01/99 S 95,000 S 95,000 S 190,000 Consenration Easement 

78 \'<'1NDSOR TOWN GREEN Recreation 4 3.30 01/12/00 S 7M,500 S 7M,500 S 7M,SOO FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 

80 REDI-IILL Recreation 5 911.00 12/07/00 S 1,370,000 S 1,370,000 S 2,175,000 Conservation Easement 

85 SOLAK Recreation / 5 0.60 12/29/00 S' 165,000 S 165,000 S 165,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

RICHARDSON (Cloverdale River Park) Recrcati~~ ,,/// .:,,\ 2.00 "" "" 
93 4 01/18/02 S 53,000 S 53,000 S 53,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 

107 PAULIN CREEK Recreation 3 \ .9.00 07/31/02 S 1,575,000 $ 1,575,000 S 1,900,000 FEE I 
\ 

... 

108 KEISER PARK Recreation 4 6.81 08/30/02 S l,HO,OOO $ 1,HO,000 S 1,140,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 

< \ \ 

"- ". , 
FEE (District Holds c.E.) Ptn 

106 RIVERFRONT PARK {Hanson Aggregates) Recrcation 4 304.62 10/09/02 S 3,803,000 $ 6,353,000 S 6,353,000 pd by \'('ater Agency $2.550) 
\ 

101 GIROUARD (Cloverdale River Park) Recreation 4 0.33 ' 10/31/02 S 18,500 S 18,500 S 18,500 FEE (District Holds C.E.)MG 

Conservation Easement( 

96 PRINCE MEMORIAL GREENWAY Recreation 3 0.50 12/27/02 S 4,000,000 S 4,000,000 S 4,000,000 Dev./Rest. MG) 
98 SUNSET BEACH Recreation 5 21.00 01/31/03 S 616,000 S 616,000 S 770,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 
114 ASBORNO/NELSON Recreation 4 98.00 03/11/03 S 4,250,000 S 4,250,000 S 4,250,000 FEE 

111 JOHNSON Recreation 1 297.00 03/25/03 S 3,000,000 S 3,000,000 S 3,000,000 FEE (District Holds C.E.) 

Page 23 




Appendix 3 

Partnership Independent 
Property Acq. Plan Category District Acreae:e -Escrow Date District's Contribution Fundine Purchase Price Appraised Value Transaction Type 

1'15 OI-INSON ACCESS Recreation 1 2.67 03/25/03 S 1,025,000 S 1,025,000 S 1,025,000 FEE (Dis,ric, Holds C.E.) 

117 CARRINGTON COAST RANCI-I Recreation 5 335.00 05/16/03 S 4,800,000 S 4,800,000 S 4,800,000 FEE 

112 FOX POND Recreation 4 52.90 11/10/03 S /. 2,880,000 $ 2,880,000 S 2,880,000 FEE 

-,/ 

125 SKILES (Fcc) Recreation 1 47.00 01/29/04 $ - 5 - $ 200,000 FEE (pd by a c.c. Gmn') 

121 PETALUMA MARSH ACCESS/ENHANCEl'vIENT Recreation 2 221.00 02/27/04 $ 2,006,000 S 2,006,000 S 2,006,000 FEE (Dis,ric' holds C.E.) MC 

124 SEBASTOPOL SKATE PARK Recreation 5 1.00 10/21/04 S 125,000 S 125,000 5 125,000 FEE (Dis<rict holds C.E.) MG 

123 CALABAZASCREEK~ELTANE) Recreation 1 1290.00 10/22/04 5 9,115,000 5 9,115,000 S 9,615,000 FEE 

133 COOPER'S GROVE Recreation 1 226.0 01/31/05 S 4,865,000 S 4,865,000 S 5,527,000 FEE 

134 SUMl'vIER HOl'vIE PARK Recreation 5 3.2 03/15/05 S 365,000 5 365,000 5 365,000 FEE (Dis<rict holds C.E.) 
FEE (District holds CE) Ptn pd 

129 WILLOW CREEK - Park Tmct Recreation 5 3373.00 05/06/05 S 7,790,000 S 18,350,000 S 18,350,000 b· WCB/SCC SlO.560) 
, 

FEE (District holds C.E.) PIn 

135 TOLAY LAKE Recreation 2 1769.0 09/29/05 $ 11,176,018 ~ 18,000,000 S 18,000,000 
pd by Contributions S6,823,982) 

137 PRINCE GATEWAY PARK ~OYETI) Recreation 3 0.5 10/07/05 S 405,000 S 405,000 S 405,000 FEE (District holds C.E.) 

138 LAWSON Recreation 1 247.3 10/07/05 S 1,160,000 S 1,160,000 $ 1,160,000 FEE 

141 HEALDSBURG RIDGE PROPERTIES Recreation 4 2.9 12/29/05 S $ Conscr:ation Easemcnt 

143 SANTA ROSA CREEK GREENWAY (3 Bridges) Recreation _ 3 50.42 07/03/06 S 800,000 S 800,000 $ 800,000 Conservation Easement 

159 OCCIDENTAL RD PROPERTY Recreation 5 15.6 11/10/08 S S $ FEE 

186 SONOMA GARDEN PARK rion & Education, Farms & R 1 6.00 11/18/2011 $119,763 $119,763 CE ($119,763 fordevclopmenl) 

146 SDC-AREA3 Recreation & Education 1 - 41.0 06/22/07 $ 600,000 S 600,000 S 600,000 Fl:ili (District holds C.E.) 
'. ,,/// ~ 

FEE (Ptn pd by c.c. Grant 

149 \VIUGHT HILL RANCH (pOFF) Recreation &" Education 5. 1235.0 09/28/07 S 4,850,000 $ 5,600,000 $ 5,600,000 S750k) 
./ /-_..... "', CE (ptn pd by WCB grant, 

151 ROCHE RANCH Recreation & Educat~o~ '>'\ 1&2 1657.0 12/21/07 S 2,000,000 $ 13,000,000 S 14,086,000 Moore,SL1) 
/. \ \, '. CE ($125K for restoration, 

157 LAGUNA ACQUISITION & IMPROVEl'vIENT Recr~tion & Education \ \ 5 9.1 i0/17/08 $ 675,000 $ 675,000 $ 675,000 $675K for acquisition) 
I ! , 

i'··, " Conservation Easement(, ! 
12/30/08162 RUSSIAN IUVEIU<EEPER STEWARDSI-IIP PARK Recreation & Education 5 5.0 $. 50,000 S 50,000 $ 50,000 Dev./Rest. MG) 
" 

" "'. FEE (ptn Pd b), C.C Grant 

163 SONOMA MOUNTAlN RANCH Recreation & Education 1 282.5 12(30/08 S 8,450,000 $ 9,950,000 $ 9,950,000 S1.5) 

168 MCCULLOUGH Recreation & Education 1 460.96 09/15/09 S 8,463,000 $ 8,463,000 S 8,463,000 FEE 
\ 

167 PATTERSON POINT Recreation & Education 5 
" \ 1.8 

09/17/09 S 140,000 S 140,000 S 210,000 Fce(District holds C.E.) MG 

176 BAYER NEIGHBORHOOD PARK & GARDENS Recreation & Education 5 5.84 05/06/10 51,311,229 $3,938,771 $5,250,000 $5,075,000 Fce{District holds C.E) MG 

178 GIORGI PARK, PHASE 1 Recreation & Education 4 2.16 06/30/10 $500,000 $1,844,049 5750,000 5725,000 Fcc (District holds C.E.) MG 

180 BURBANK AVE PHASE lb Recreation & Education 5 '. 10.97 03/01/11 $1,406,000 $2,074,000 S3,480,000 Fcc (District holds C.E.) MG 

182 VANSTEYN Recreation & Education 3 5.30 03/25/11 $0 SO $114,000 Fcc Donation 

188 PAULA LANE OPEN SPACE PRESERVE Recreation & Education 2 10.10 5/14/2012 $1,050,000 $1,890,000 SI,OSO,OOO S 1,050,000 Conservation Easement ~'IG 

/81 GIORGI PAIU(, PHASE 2 Recreation & Education 4 1.72 6.30.11 $270,000 $330,000 $485,000 Fcc (District holds C.E.) MG 

FEE (ptn I'd by City of SR 
153 COLGAN CREEK Recreation & Education 5 1.6 \lcndin grant $174,560) 

Conservation Easement( 

155 WEST COUNTY REGIONAL TRAIL* Recreation & Education 0.5 reimbursement S 88,000 $ - S - Dcv./Rcst. MG) 

Conservation Easement( 

156 SEBASTOPOL SKATEPARK & COMMUNITY GARI: Recreation & Education 5 -1.1 reimbursement S 529,575 $ - Dcv./Rcst. MG) 

MARIA I-JANSEN TRUST EXCI-iA.J.'JGE Recreation & Education 1 22.05 FEE 

Page 24 




Appendix 3 

17+ 

1+7 

150 

152 

169 

170 

183 

184 

185 

190 

187 

189 
192 

173 

Partnership Independent 
Property Acq. Plan Catee:ory District Acreae:e Escrow Date District's Contribution FundiDe: Purchase Price Appraised Value 

1400 BURBANK AVE (APN 125-331-001t Recreation & Education 5 5.96 04/07/10 S 2,+20,000 $2,85+,350 S 2,+20,000 S 2,+20,000 
Recreation & Education, Farms & Ranches Total $ 104,789,441 $ 13,050,933 $ 142,963,856 $ 146,534,500 

, 

Water, Wildlife and Natuml 
PITKIN MARSH Areas 5 27.0 09/28/07 S 400,000 S 970,000 S 970,000 

Water, Wildlife and Natuml 
CRESTA Areas 1 340.0 11/15/07 $ 3,060,000 S 3,060,000 S 3,060,000 

Water, Wildlife and Natuml 
j-jAYFOIU( RANCI-j Areas 1 217.0 12/31/07 S 650,500 S 650,500 S 650,500 

Water, Wildlife and Natural 
ENNER HEADLANDS Areas 5 5360.00 12/17/09 $ 10,150,000 S36,000,000 S 36,100,000 

Water, Wildlife and Natural '. 
RIDDELL PRESERVE Areas 4 400.00 12/30/09 

Water, Wildlife and Natural 
I<LESKO, PHASE 1 Areas 4 2018.1 7/26/2011 SI,312,560 5350,256 SI,312,560 SI,312,560 

Water, Wildlife and Natural \.\' 
MEAOO\VLARK FIELD Areas 5 53 10/14/11 S203,643 S257,000 S203,643 

Water, Wildlife and Natural \. , 
KLESKO, PHASE 2 Areas .- 4 697.6 1 11/22/11 $353,440 S453,440 $453,440 

Water, Wildlife and Natural' / , )
AUBERGE (Sonoma Country Inn) Areas 1 65.51 . 12/20/2011 SO $0 

Water, Wildlife and Natum! I. 
PRYOR RANCH Areas 4 1509.00 12/21/2011 $2,400,000 $2,400,000 $2,655,000 

Water, Wildlife and Natural " 

BORDESSA RANCH Areas 5 460.81 5/25/2012 $850,000 $650,000 $1,500,000 $1,770,000 
PRESERVATION RANCH 'ater, \~'ildlife and Natural Arc 5 18300.0 5/31/2013 H,OOO,OOO SO $-1,000,000 

Water, Wildlife and Natural 
O'BIUEN, ROBERT Areas 5 15.00 S 5 - $ -

Water; Wildlife and I 

Natural Areas Total $ 23,380,143 $ 1,257,256 $ 50,550,143 $ 46,971,500 
CLOVER SPIUNGS - Transfer to City of Cloverdale 6.30.11 
........ "" ................. .on .. "n..... n . . . . 

Transaction Type 

Fcc ( District holds C.E.) MG 

CE (ptn pd by WCB Gmnt 
S570K) 

FEE 

Conse[\~ation Easement 
Conservation Easement (pIn. 
paid b)' U.S. Forest Service. 

NO_-LA. other grant funding) 

Conservation Easement 

Conscn'ation Easement 

Conservation Easement 1vlG 

Conservation Easement 

Fce Donation 

Conservation Easement 

Conservation Easement 

conservation fec bu 'er 

Donation of ConserYation 
Easement 

,..n ... ",.. ......n. 4 .. .., .......... nn ..,,. .... 1>0 .....1>01>0 -- -- --

protected lands as of 6/3/2013 v' '''-''' , 

'\ Grants, Partner Funding, and Discounts $ 73,171,415 

Notes: , 

District Contribution - was obtained from Board resolutions, escrow closing settlement stat~me~ts, or District ~ancial records (white claims and JVs for wire transfers). 


Partnership Funding - (This will depend on if the money was granted at time of escrow or rei~bursed post closi~g),Board packet/resolutions, escrow closing settlement statements, grant agreements, or District financial records. 

Purchase Price - obtained from Board resolutions, escrow closing settlement statements, or purchase contracts. . 


Independent Appraised Value - obtained from Independent third-party appraisal commissioned for ea~h proj~~t.· '. 


The protected lands spreadsheet is used to track basic infonnation related to successful acquisition projects to date. The primary focus being on time ofacquisition, total acres protected and the comparison of the District's 

contribution and the purchase price and/or mamet value. This information allows us to easily evaluate acquisition efforts on a annual basis, amount of protected land) and savings to the ta.'\: payers. 


Page 25 



   

 
 

 

	 	 	

TABLE 1. TiEr OnE prOpErTiEs (prOpOsEd TrAnsfEr EnTiTy idEnTifiEd). 
Acres status Agricultural public Access Open space proposed Expected 

Use dedication Transfer Transfer 
Entity date 

TiEr OnE prOpErTiEs 3408 
recommended 2968 
for Transfer to 
regional parks 
Laguna Trail 0	� Trail construction complete, N/A Open N/A Regional Parks 2011 

trail easement transferred 
to Regional Parks 

Lawson 247	� Regional Parks has con- No Volunteer Yes Regional Parks 2014 
ducted assessments and workdays 
other studies, managing as 
part of Hood Mountain 

Mark West properties 801 Phase 2 acquisitions pending Yes Outings No Regional Parks 2014 
North Slope Sonoma 537 District conducting resource Yes Outings, Partial Regional Parks 2013 
Mountain properties assessment, trail and related Volunteer 

amenities under construction Patrol, 
Workdays 

Sonoma Mountain 283 Grazing plan in preparation Proposed Outings Yes likely Regional tbd 
Ranch/Walsh Parks 
Taylor Mountain 1100 Transfer in early 2013 Yes Permit Partial Regional Parks 2013 
properties	� Program, 

Outings, 
Workdays 

recommended for 440 
Transfer to Others 
Cramer/ Wright 174 Land management by No Outings Yes California 2015 
Preserve Department of Fish and Game Dept Fish 

and Game 
Haroutunian North 18 Currently leased by farmer Yes Outings, Tours, No private farmer 2014 

Farm stand 
Healdsburg Ridge 150 Trail construction com- No Open Yes City of 2013 
properties plete, transfer in 2013 Healdsburg 
Montini 98	� Trail construction and Yes Outings, Yes City of 2013 

transfer by end of 2013	� Volunteer Sonoma 
Patrol, 
Workdays 

District Fee LanDs strategy
�

erotondo
Typewritten Text
Attachment 7

erotondo
Typewritten Text



 

TABLE 2.  TiEr TwO prOpErTiEs (TrAnsfEr EnTiTy nOT yET idEnTifiEd) 
Acres status	� Agricultural public Access Open space 

Use dedication 
TiEr TwO prOpErTiEs 5297 
Acquired as addition to state parks 2925 
system (proposed park unit) 
Calabazas Creek Preserve (Sugarloaf) 1290 Management plan in preparation, No Outings, Volunteer No 

grant secured for trail planning Patrol, Workdays 
Carrington Ranch (Sonoma Coast) 335 Grazing plan in preparation, Proposed Outings, Volunteer Yes 

evaluation of historic structure Patrol, Workdays 
East Slope Sonoma Mountain 40 Trails plan in preparation, grant N/A Outings N/A 
(Jack London) secured for trail planning 
Keegan/Coppin (Annadel) 24 Leased for grazing Yes No No 
Poff (Sonoma Coast) 1236 Management plan pending, Yes Outings Yes 

leased for grazing 
Other (primarily greenbelt/ 1186 
community separator acquisitions) 
Dogbane 3 Culturally-important No Annual Harvest, No 

plant population Workdays 
Haroutunian South 21 Closed to public-some No No No 

ecological research 
Ho 30 Leased for row crops Yes No Yes 
Occidental Road 15 Adjacent to Laguna, No Outings No 

Regional Parks patrols 
Oken 76 Leased for grazing Yes No No 
Paulin Creek 8 Vegetation maintenance, No Outings, Volunteer Yes 

Regional Parks patrols Patrol, Workdays 
Saddle Mountain 960 Resource assessments completed, No Outings, Volunteer Yes 

management plan pending Patrol 
San Francisco Archdiocese 28 Leased for grazing Yes No No 
Young/Armos 45 Leased for hay production Yes No No 

District Fee LanDs strategy
�

erotondo
Typewritten Text



  

 

Date:   October 15, 2013 
Item Number:  

Resolution Number:  

 

 

4/5 Vote Required  
 

 

Resolution Of The Board Of Directors Of The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District, Updating the District’s Initial Public Access, and Operations and 
Maintenance Policy 

 
 Whereas, In November of 2006, the voters of Sonoma County approved Measure F 
(Sonoma County Open Space, Clean Water, and Farmland Protection Measure) extending the 
District’s funding for an additional twenty years. Measure F included an Expenditure Plan, 
which governs the District’s expenditure of tax revenues, and which became effective upon 
voter approval (“2006 Expenditure Plan”).  
 
 Whereas, Paragraph 6 of the 2006 Expenditure Plan authorizes expenditures for  
initial public access and operation and maintenance of recreational lands as follows: 
 

“Operation and maintenance of land includes limited funding for initial public 
access, operation and maintenance of recreational lands purchased in 
accordance with this Plan. No more than 10 percent of total revenues generated 
over the life of the Measure shall be made available for operation and 
maintenance purposes.” 

 
 Whereas, this Board finds that the plain language of Paragraph 6 of the 2006 
Expenditure Plan authorizes the following expenditures of tax revenues:  (1) Payments to 
entities receiving fee-title transfer of recreational properties, for the purposes of funding 
operation and maintenance costs that support initial public access; (2) Costs related to resource 
management and infrastructure maintenance on District lands intended for recreational use; 
(3) Costs to provide interim access or permit programs, public outings and educational 
programs on recreational lands  protected by the District but not currently open to the general 
public; (4) Capital  improvements to provide initial public access on lands intended for 
recreational use; and (5) related District staff and legal costs; 
 
 Whereas, in 2007, the Board adopted Resolution No. 07-0666, which approved a policy 
proposed by the previous General Manager for budgeting funds under Paragraph 6 for 
operations and maintenance, directing the General Manager to periodically review the policy 
and recommend any needed changes arising from changed circumstances; 
  



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 2 
 
 Whereas, the General Manager has recommended that Resolution No. 07-0666 be 
updated in order to clarify Board direction and to ensure that funding is available to achieve a 
balanced program over the life of Measure F.  
 
 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that with respect to expenditures of tax revenues under 
Paragraph 6 of the 2006 Expenditure Plan, the policy of the District shall be as follows:  

1: 

Expenditures related to capital improvements, including District staff and consultant 
time, materials and supplies, and legal costs, to support initial public access on District 
protected lands intended for recreational use shall be included within the 10% cap on 
operations and maintenance expenditures under Paragraph 6 of the 2006 Expenditure 
Plan. 

Capital Improvements 

Payments to entities receiving fee-title transfer of District recreational properties, for 
the purposes of funding operation and maintenance costs that support initial public 
access, shall continue and shall be included with the 10% cap on operations and 
maintenance expenditures under Paragraph 6 of the Expenditure Plan. These payments 
may be for a period not to exceed three years from the date of fee title transfer and 
shall be made on a reimbursement basis according to an approved work plan. The 
District may grant an extension of the three-year time frame in the case of extraordinary 
circumstances.  

2: Payments to Recreational Partners 

Expenditures related to resource management and infrastructure maintenance on 
District lands intended for recreational use, including District staff and consultant time, 
materials and supplies, and legal costs, shall be included within the 10% cap on 
operation and maintenance expenditures under Paragraph 6 of the 2006 Expenditure 
Plan. 

3: Recreational Lands Management Costs 

Expenditures to provide interim access or permit programs, public outings, and 
educational programs on recreational lands protected by the District but not currently 
open to the public, including District staff and consultant time, materials and supplies, 
and legal costs, shall be included within the 10% cap on operations and maintenance 
expenditures under Paragraph 6 of the 2006 Expenditure Plan. 

4: Interim Access, Permit, and Outings Costs 

5:  Annual appropriations for Initial Public Access and O&M Expenditures and Reserve 
Fund contribution:   

 
 
 



Resolution # 
Date:  
Page 3 

As part of the annual budgeting process, the General Manager shall recommend (a) 
allocations for qualifying initial public access and operations and maintenance 
expenditures for specific properties or projects, and (b) an annual contribution to the 
District’s Operation and Maintenance Reserve.  Total allocations shall not, cumulatively, 
exceed 10 % of the special tax revenues of the District to the date of the allocation. The 
Board of Directors will retain the flexibility to re-allocate funds, from the District’s 
Operation and Maintenance Reserve for other purposes eligible under Measure F as it 
deems appropriate. 
 
Be It Further Resolved that this Resolution clarifies Resolution No. 07-0666. In 

the event of any inconsistencies, this Resolution shall govern. 
 

Supervisors:     

Gorin: Zane: McGuire: Carrillo: Rabbitt: 

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstain: 

   So Ordered.  
 


	00 Agenda October 15, 2013
	01 BOS Schulz Certificates_summ
	02 BOS Gold Reso RP Chamber of Commerce_summ
	02.1 BOS Rohnert Park Chamber of Commerce
	03 BOS North Bay Leadership Council 2013 Leaders gold reso summary
	03.1 BOS Gold Reso North Bay Leadership Council 2013 Paint the Community Green So Co Beekeepers Assoc
	04 BOS Gold Reso Williams_summ
	04.1 BOS Gold Reso Williams_Reso
	05 AP&OSD Copeland Creek Watershed Grant App_packet
	05 AP&OSD Copeland Creek Watershed Grant App_Summ
	05.1 AP&OSD Copeland Creek Watershed Grant App_Reso
	05.2 APOSD Copeland Creek Watershed Grant App_Att 1

	06 BOS First_Dist_Cat_E_summ
	06.1 BOS Advertising Cat E Contract 13-14
	07 BOS 3rd District Advertising_summ
	07.1 BOS Third Att A - Advertising Cat E Contract 13-14
	08 BOS 4th District Advertising_summ
	08.1 BOS Fourth Att A - Advertising Cat E Contract 13-14
	09 GSD MTC MOU_packet
	09 GSD MTC MOU_Summ
	09.1 GSD MTC MOU_Att1 Reso
	09.2 GSD MTC MOU_Att2 Alam BOS Cov Ltr
	09.3 GSD MTC MOU_Att3 Alam BOS Let
	UDISCUSSION/SUMMARYU:


	10 TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_packet
	10 TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_summ
	10.1TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_Att#1 Scoring Sheet
	10.2 TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_Att#2 Elig Memo
	VPMP Grant Program – Funding Eligibility Justification Memo

	10.3 TPW NSCAPCD VPMPGrantLloydGroup_Att#3 Reso

	11 TPW AirportTravelAuth_summ
	12 BOS Board Minutes of 9-24-2013 & 10-1-2013 _summ
	12.1 Minutes September 24, 2013
	12.2 Minutes Special Closed Session Meeting 10.1.13
	13 Sangiacomo Appt_AOSFOC_summ
	14 Peterson Appt_SCTB_summ
	15 BOS Jennifer Buffo reappt 10-15-12
	16 GSD Community Corrections Center_packet
	16 GSD Community Corrections Center_Summ
	16.1 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att1 Reso
	16.2 GSD Community Corrections Center_Att2 Staff Report
	Adult Detention Facilities Needs Assessment


	17 TPW AirportRealPropertyAcq_packet
	17 TPW AirportRealPropertyAcq_summ
	17.1 TPW AirportRealPropertyAcq_Att#1 Approved Reso
	17.2 TPW AirportRealPropAcqu_Att2 Map
	17.3 TPW AirportRealPropertyAcq_Att#3 Note
	17.4 TPW AirportRealPropertyAcq_Att#4 Note Reso

	18 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_packet
	18 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_Summ
	18.1 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_Att1 Exhibit B-Scope of Work
	Revision History
	Review History
	1 Acronyms
	2 Executive Summary
	Nexus Profile
	Project Objectives

	3 Solution Overview
	3.1 Current Environment
	3.2 Operational Requirements
	3.3 Solution Description
	3.4 Solution Components
	3.4.1 Cisco Unified Communications Manager
	3.4.2 Unity Connection Voice Mail 
	3.4.3 CER - Cisco Emergency Responder v9.0
	3.4.4 Cisco Unified Communications Instant Messaging & Presence
	3.4.5 Jabber
	3.4.6 PCCE - Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Release 9.0(x)
	3.4.7 UCS - Unified Computing Solution
	3.4.8 Metropolis Call Accounting
	3.4.9 Voice Gateways
	3.4.10 Endpoints
	3.4.11 Calabrio Workforce Management
	3.4.12 Calabrio Quality Management

	3.5 Product Implementation Specifics
	3.5.1 Phase I - Unified Communications Products
	3.5.2 Phase 1 - PCCE Implementation Objectives
	3.5.3 Phase 2 - Unified Communications Products
	3.5.4 Phase 2 - PCCE Implementation
	3.5.5  Customer Departments
	3.5.6 Physical Locations


	4 Professional Services Overview
	4.1 Project Approach
	4.2 Project Initiation
	4.3 Requirements Definition Development – Core UC
	4.4 Requirements Definitions Development – PCCE (Contact Center)
	4.5 Design Development
	4.6 Contact Center Design Development
	4.7 Implementation Tasks – Phase One
	4.7.1 Phase One Responsibilities:

	4.8 Contact Center Upgrade Deployment Tasks
	4.9 Site Implementation Tasks – Phase Two
	4.10 QoS Deployment
	4.11 General Test and Acceptance
	4.12 Contact Center End User Acceptance Testing
	4.13 Knowledge Transfer and Training
	4.13.1 System Administration Knowledge Transfer
	4.13.2 End-User Knowledge Transfer Training
	4.13.3 Contact Center Agent/Supervisor Knowledge Transfer 
	4.13.4 Contact Center Administrative Knowledge Transfer

	4.14 Cutover/First Day of Support
	4.15 Deliverables
	4.16 Project Completion
	4.17 Issue Escalation
	4.17.1 Implementation Issues
	 4.17.2 Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Issues
	4.17.3 Cisco SMARTnet: Critical Technical Support


	5 Responsibilities of Each Party
	5.1 Project Coordination
	5.2 Project Kickoff Meeting
	5.3 Network Readiness for VoIP System
	5.4 Environmental
	5.5 Carrier Services
	5.6 End User Requirements
	5.7 Routing
	5.8 IVR Call Handling
	5.9 Contact Center Requirements
	5.10 Quality Monitoring
	5.11 Training
	5.12 Installation Coordination 
	5.13 Post Installation Test and Acceptance  
	5.14 Documentation
	5.15 County Responsibilities
	5.16 Implementation Phase
	5.17 Off-Site Staging
	5.18 Deployment
	5.19 Hardware Disposal

	6 Responsibilities
	6.1 General Responsibilities
	6.2 Packaged Contact Center Enterprise Specific Responsibilities


	18.2 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_Att2 Exhibit C-Payment Schedule
	18.3 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_Att3 Exhibit D-Bill of Materials
	ScheduleA-All
	Sonoma County RFP-UC-Phase 1- Core and Pilot - A-91475 - 008-Excel Format.pdf
	ScheduleA-All


	18.4 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_Att4 Exhibit E-Change Procedure
	1.1 If the County requires a change to the existing SoW, County’s Project Manager shall deliver to Contractor’s Project Manager a Change Order with sufficient detail to enable Contractor to evaluate it.  Contractor, within five (5) business days, or longer as may be mutually agreed between the parties, following the date of receipt of such Change Order, shall provide County with an evaluation of the Change Order and a written proposal (“Proposal”) containing the following, as applicable: 
	a. A detailed description of the employees required to perform the requested services; specifications; 
	b. Implementation plans, with implementation to commence not later than thirty (30) days after approval thereof, unless otherwise mutually agreed; 
	c. The timeframe for performance; and 
	d. The price for such performance based on the applicable charges set forth in this Agreement.  
	All Proposals for a change to the project scope will include Acceptance Criteria and either modifications to existing payment milestones or additional fixed fee payment milestones payable upon acceptance of such milestones.

	1.2 If Contractor believes a change to the project is necessary or desirable, it shall promptly provide County its Proposal, as set forth in Section 1.1 of this Change Procedure.
	1.3 All Change Orders shall be governed by the terms and conditions of this Agreement (including the descriptions and timeframes for all milestone-based work) unless mutually agreed in writing otherwise.  
	1.4 Within the reasonable timeframe specified in Contractor’s Proposal, which timeframe shall not be less than ten (10) business days from the Project Manager’s receipt of such Change Order (the “Response Period”), County shall notify Contractor in writing if County elects to proceed with the Change Order, provided however, that no Proceed Order can or will be authorized by the County without either obtaining further authorization from the County's Board of Supervisors, or authorization pursuant to Paragraphs 1.4(b) or 1.4(c) of this Change Procedure.  If, within the Response Period, the County gives notice to Contractor not to proceed, or fails to give any notice to Contractor, then the Change Order shall be deemed withdrawn and Contractor shall take no further action with respect to it.
	a. All Change Orders shall be in writing, and shall comply with this Change Procedure.  The parties expressly recognize that, pursuant to Sonoma County Code Section 1-11, County personnel are without authorization to order extra or changed work or waive Agreement requirements without authorization from the County Board of Supervisors.  Compliance with this Change Procedure represents authorization from the County’s Board of Supervisors.  Contractor’s failure to secure written authorization for extra or changed work pursuant to this Change Procedure shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the Agreement price or Agreement time due to such unauthorized work and thereafter Contractor shall be entitled to no compensation whatsoever for the performance of such work.  Contractor further expressly waives any and all right or remedy by way of restitution and quantum meruit for any and all extra work performed without such express and prior written authorization from County.  In the absence of an approved Change Order under this Section 1.3, the parties shall continue performance of all Services in accordance with the then-current, unmodified SOW.
	b. Minor changes which do not significantly change the scope of work or significantly lengthen time schedules, and amendments to the Agreement which do not increase the amount of payment under the Agreement (taking into account all prior amendments), may be executed by the County’s Director of the County's Information Systems Department in a form approved by County Counsel.  
	c. Changes which decrease the amount of payment without significantly decreasing the system functionality to be delivered to County under the effective SoW, or that increase the amount of payment under the Agreement (taking into account all prior amendments) by no more than $194,000, but which do not significantly decrease the system functionality to be delivered to County under the effective SoW, may be executed by the Director of County’s Information Systems Department, in a form approved by County Counsel.
	d. Minor changes in the Products purchased, as listed in the Bill of Materials (Exhibit D), or in any amendment to the Bill of Materials, may be executed by any designee of the Director of County’s Information Systems Department that has been approved by the County Board of Supervisors, in a form approved by County Counsel.  In this paragraph, "Products" means any non-service purchase in the Bill of Materials.
	e. If Contractor is of the opinion that any work it has been directed to perform is beyond the scope of this Agreement and constitutes extra work, it shall promptly notify County and provide a detailed explanation.  County shall make a determination as to whether or not such work is, in fact, beyond the scope of this Agreement and constitutes extra work not within the agreed price.  In the event that County determines that such work does constitute extra work, a new SOW or Change Order under this Agreement providing for such extra work shall be negotiated between County and Contractor, pursuant to this Change Procedure, subject to the terms and rates of this Agreement.
	f. In the event County determines that such work does not constitute extra work, any disagreement with this determination shall be addressed at a meeting between the Director of County’s Information Systems Department and Nexus’ Executive Sponsor.


	18.5 ISD Telecomm Purchase & Implement-Nexus_presentation
	Telecommunications System Purchase and Implementation
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Solution
	Solution
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Questions?


	26 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access OM_Acct_Fee_summ FINAL
	26.1 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Atts 1 thru 7
	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 2
	Sheet1

	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 3
	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 4
	Sheet1

	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 5
	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 6
	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 6
	Att 6

	10-15-2013 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 7
	11-20-2012 Fee Lnds Strtgy Options Dist Props_Att 1 Table1
	11-20-2012 Fee Lnds Strtgy Options Dist Props_Att 2 Table2


	26.2 Dist Study Fiscal_Initial Pub Access O&M_Acct_Fee_Att 8 reso FINAL

	NvbmNlcHQlMjBQcm9wb3NhbC5odG0A: 
	form0: 
	input4: 
	closeButton: 
	txtAgency: Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District
	txtAddress1: 747 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100 
	txtCity: Santa Rosa
	txtState: CA
	txtZip: 95401
	txtAgencyType: Type: Special District
	txtProjectCity: Project City: Rohnert Park 
	txtProjectCounty: Project County: Sonoma County 
	txtDisadvantaged: Disadvantaged Community: No
	txtSeverlyDisadvantaged: Severely Disadvantaged Community: No
	txtTargeted: Targeted Funds For Small Projects: No
	txtIn500Acre: Program Requirements:
	txtDwellingUnits: Number of Dwelling Units in 500-acre Urban Area: 5290
	txtNaturalSystems: Uses Natural Systems: Yes
	txtMimicSystems: Mimics Natural Systems: Yes
	txtGreenSpaces: Creates/Enhances Green Spaces: Yes
	txtDecreasePollution: Decreases Pollution: Yes
	txtDecreaseConsumption: Decreases Consumption: Yes
	txtIncreaseWater: Increases Water Supply: Yes
	txtClimateChange: Increases Adaptability To Climate Change: Yes
	txtProjectCostCaption: Estimated Project Costs: 
	txtTotalProjectCost: Total Project Cost: $13,128,993.00
	txtGrantAmtRequested: Grant Amount Requested: $950,000.00
	txtNonConstructionCost: Non Construction Cost: $10,000.00
	txtProjectFundingCaption: Other Sources of Funding: 
	txtOFS1Amount: Other Funding Amount(1): $1,345,580.00
	txtOFSStatus1: Status Source(1): Secured
	txtOFS2Amount: Other Funding Amount(2): $669,675.00
	txtOFSStatus2: Status Source(2): Secured
	txtOFS3Amount: Other Funding Amount(3): $4,263,738.00
	txtOFSStatus3: Status Source(3): Secured
	txtOFS4Amount: Other Funding Amount(4): $5,900,000.00
	txtOFSStatus4: Status Source(4): Committed
	txtCEQALead: Lead:Sonoma County Ag Preservation &Open Space District
	txtProposalPK: Proposal ID:223
	txtTimeStamp: Generated on 4/5/2013 12:48:51 PM




